
 

 

 

 
At: Aelodau’r  Cabinet Dyddiad: 

 
10 Chwefror 2014 
 

 Rhif Union: 
 

01824706141 

 ebost: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Annwyl Gynghorydd 
 
Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y CABINET, DYDD MAWRTH, 18 CHWEFROR 2014 
am 10.00 am yn YSTAFELL BWYLLGORA 1A, NEUADD Y SIR, RHUTHUN. 
 
Yn gywir iawn 
 
 
G Williams 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
RHAN 1 – GWAHODDIAD I’R WASG A’R CYHOEDD FYNYCHU’R RHAN HWN 
O’R CYFARFOD 
 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU   

 

2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT   

 Ni ddatganodd unrhyw Aelod gysylltiad personol neu sy’n rhagfarnu ar 
unrhyw fater sy'n cael ei ystyried yn y cyfarfod.   
 

3 MATERION BRYS   

 Rhybudd o eitemau y dylid ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod 
fel mater o frys yn unol ag Adran 100B (4) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.   
 

4 COFNODION  (Tudalennau 5 - 14) 

 Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Cabinet a gynhaliwyd 14 Mehefin 2014 (copi’n 
amgaeedig).   
 

Pecyn Dogfen Cyhoeddus



 

5 CYNNIG I GAU YSGOL CLOCAENOG AC YSGOL CYFFYLLIOG AC I 
SEFYDLU YSGOL ARDAL NEWYDD  (Tudalennau 15 - 72) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd Eryl Williams, Aelod Arweiniol dros 
Addysg (copi'n amgaeedig) yn hysbysu'r Cabinet o'r gwrthwynebiadau a 
dderbyniwyd yn dilyn cyhoeddi'r Hysbysiad Statudol ac a ddylid cymeradwyo 
gweithredu'r cynnig. 
 

6 CYMERADWYO ACHOS BUSNES AR GYFER PROSIECT YSGOL 
NEWYDD  Y RHYL  (Tudalennau 73 - 92) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd Eryl Williams, Aelod Arweiniol dros 
Addysg (copi'n amgaeedig) yn hysbysu'r Cabinet o'r sefyllfa bresennol o ran 
cyflwyniad y Cyngor o'r Achos Busnes Terfynol ar gyfer Ysgol Newydd y Rhyl 
i Lywodraeth Cymru. 
 

7 MODEL CENEDLAETHOL O WEITHIO’N RHANBARTHOL I WELLA 
YSGOLION  (Tudalennau 93 - 118) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd Eryl Williams, Aelod Arweiniol dros 
Addysg (copi'n amgaeedig) yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet o'r Model 
Cenedlaethol arfaethedig ar gyfer Gweithio’n Rhanbarthol i Wella Ysgolion a 
datblygu cynllun busnes. 
 

8 ADNEWYDDU CYFLEUSTERAU ARFORDIROL YN Y RHYL A 
PHRESTATYN  (Tudalennau 119 - 128) 

 Ystyried adroddiad ar y cyd gan y Cynghorwyr Hugh Evans, Aelod Arweiniol 
dros Ddatblygu Economaidd a Huw Jones, yr Aelod dros Hamdden, 
Ieuenctid, Twristiaeth a Datblygu Gwledig (copi'n amgaeedig) ynghylch 
datblygiad y prosiectau Cyfleusterau Arfordirol ar gyfer y cam nesaf. 
 

9 CYNLLUNIAU TREF AC ARDAL  (Tudalennau 129 - 196) 

 Ystyried adroddiad ar y cyd gan y Cynghorwyr Hugh Evans, Aelod Arweiniol 
dros Ddatblygu Economaidd a Huw Jones, Aelod Arweiniol dros Hamdden, 
Ieuenctid, Twristiaeth a Datblygu Gwledig (copi'n amgaeedig) sy’n 
diweddaru'r Cabinet ar Gynlluniau Tref ac Ardal a cheisio mabwysiadu 
Cynlluniau Ardal ar gyfer Rhuthun a Phrestatyn a chymeradwyo cyllid ar gyfer 
y blaenoriaethau sydd wedi'u cynnwys yn y cynlluniau hynny. 
 

10 GADAEL TŶ NANT, PRESTATYN  (Tudalennau 197 - 210) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill, Aelod Arweiniol 
Cyllid ac Asedau (copi'n amgaeedig) yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet ar 
gyfer y cynnig i adael Swyddfeydd Tŷ Nant, Prestatyn. 
 

11 CYMERADWYO CYNIGYDD O DDEWIS, A'R AIL GYTUNDEB RHWNG 
AWDURDODAU GOGLEDD CYMRU AR Y PROSIECT GWASTRAFF 
GWEDDILLIOL (PTGGGC)  (Tudalennau 211 - 566) 



 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd David Smith, Aelod Arweiniol ar gyfer 
Tir y Cyhoedd (copi’n amgaeedig) am gynnydd y bartneriaeth ffurfiol gyda 
phedwar Cyngor arall yng Ngogledd Cymru i gaffael contract 25 mlynedd ar 
gyfer darparu cyfleusterau gwaredu gwastraff gweddilliol ar y cyd.  Mae 
Atodiad 6, 7 ac 8 yr adroddiad hwn yn gyfrinachol. 
 

12 LLEOLIAD RHENT CYFRIF REFENIW TAI, CYLLIDEBAU REFENIW A 
CHYFALAF 2014/15  (Tudalennau 567 - 580) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd Hugh Irving, Aelod Arweiniol dros 
Gwsmeriaid a Chymunedau (copi'n amgaeedig) yn ceisio cymeradwyaeth y 
Cabinet i'r cynnydd arfaethedig mewn  Rhent  a Thâl Gwasanaeth a 
Chyllidebau Cyfalaf ar Refeniw Cyfrif Refeniw Tai ar gyfer 2014/15. 
 

13 ADRODDIAD CYLLID  (Tudalennau 581 - 598) 

 Ystyried adroddiad gan y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill, Aelod Arweiniol 
Cyllid ac Asedau (copi'n amgaeedig) yn rhoi diweddariad ar sefyllfa ariannol 
bresennol y Cyngor. 
 

14 BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y CABINET  (Tudalennau 599 - 602) 

 Derbyn Rhaglen Waith i’r Dyfodol y Cabinet sydd wedi’i hamgáu a nodi ei 
chynnwys.   
 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Y Cynghorwyr 
 
Hugh Evans 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Eryl Williams 
Bobby Feeley 
 

Hugh Irving 
Huw Jones 
Barbara Smith 
David Smith 
 

 
COPIAU I’R: 
 
Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth 
Y Wasg a’r Llyfrgelloedd 
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned  



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

CABINET 
 
Cofnodion cyfarfod o’r Cabinet a gynhaliwyd yn Ystafell Bwyllgora 1a, Neuadd y Sir, 
Rhuthun, Dydd Mawrth, 14 Ionawr 2014 am 10.00 am. 
 

YN BRESENNOL 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Hugh Evans, Arweinydd ac Aelod Arweiniol dros Ddatblygu Economaidd; 
Bobby Feeley Aelod Arweiniol dros Ofal Cymdeithasol, Gwasanaethau Oedolion a 
Phlant; Hugh Irving, Aelod Arweiniol dros Gwsmeriaid a Chymunedau; Huw Jones, Aelod 
Arweiniol dros Dwristiaeth, Hamdden ac Ieuenctid a Datblygu Gwledig; Barbara Smith, 
Aelod Arweiniol dros Foderneiddio a Pherfformiad; David Smith, Aelod Arweiniol dros 
Barthau Cyhoeddus; Julian Thompson Hill, Aelod Arweiniol dros Gyllid ac Asedau ac Eryl 
Williams, Dirprwy Arweinydd ac Aelod Arweiniol dros Addysg. 
 
Arsylwyr: Y Cynghorwyr Ray Bartley, Brian Blakeley, Joan Butterfield, Jeanette 
Chamberlain-Jones, Meirick Davies, Richard Davies, Stuart Davies, Martyn Holland, Huw 
Hilditch-Roberts, Colin Hughes, Margaret McCarroll, Jason McLellan, Dewi Owens, 
Merfyn Parry, Arwel Roberts, Gareth Sandilands, David Simmons, Bill Tasker, Joe 
Welch, Cefyn Williams a Huw Williams 
 

HEFYD YN BRESENNOL 
 
Prif Weithredwr (MM), Cyfarwyddwyr Corfforaethol: Uchelgais Economaidd a 
Chymunedol (RM), Cwsmeriaid (HW) a Moderneiddio a Lles (SE); Penaethiaid 
Gwasanaeth: Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd (GW), Cyllid ac Asedau (PMc); 
Refeniw a Budd-daliadau (RU), Cyfathrebu, Marchnata a Hamdden (JG), Gwasanaethau 
Oedolion a Busnes (PG), Addysg (KE), Cwsmeriaid a Chefnogaeth Addysg (JW ), 
Rheolwr Rhaglen - Moderneiddio Addysg (JC), Uwch Swyddog - Strategaeth a 
Phartneriaethau (SL), Swyddog Digartrefedd Tai (CO), Uwch Swyddog Dewisiadau Tai 
(SC), Rheolwr Caffael Strategol Dros Dro (SA), Rheolwr Fframwaith (TS), Rheolwr y Tîm 
Dylunio ac Adeiladu (SE), a Gweinyddwr y Pwyllgor (KEJ). 
 

 
1 YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Dim. 
 

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD  
 
Datganodd y Cynghorwyr Hugh Irving ac Eryl Williams gysylltiad personol ag Eitem  
8 – Datblygiadau Polisi Trethi Busnes yng Nghymru. Datganodd y Cynghorwyr 
Julian Thompson-Hill, Barbara Smith ac Eryl Williams gysylltiad personol ag Eitem 
9 – Gostyngiad Dewisol ar y Dreth. 
 

3 MATERION BRYS  
 
Ni chodwyd unrhyw faterion brys. 
 

4 COFNODION  

Eitem Agenda 4

Tudalen 5



 
Cyflwynwyd cofnodion cyfarfod y Cabinet a gynhaliwyd ar 17 Rhagfyr 2013. 
 
Tudalen Rhif: 1 - DEISEB - Gofynnodd y Cynghorydd Bobby Feeley i'r Cabinet gael 
gwybod pan fydd ymateb wedi bod i’r ddeiseb. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD y dylid cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 17 
Rhagfyr 2013 fel cofnod cywir ac y dylai’r Arweinydd eu llofnodi. 
 

5 Y CYNNIG I GAU YSGOL LLANBEDR  
 
[Ar gais yr Arweinydd Ymatebodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a 
Democrataidd (PGCD) i’r materion cyfreithiol a godwyd cyn y cyfarfod ynghylch y 
broses ymgynghori.   Cadarnhaodd y PGCD ei fod yn fodlon ein bod wedi cadw at y 
ddeddfwriaeth berthnasol ac nad oedd unrhyw rwystr cyfreithiol rhag gwneud 
penderfyniad.] 
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Eryl Williams yr adroddiad a oedd yn rhoi manylion 
canfyddiadau’r ymgynghoriad ffurfiol ar y cynnig i gau Ysgol Llanbedr ar 31 Awst, 
2014 a throsglwyddo’r disgyblion presennol i Ysgol Borthyn, Rhuthun yn amodol ar 
ddewis y rhieni, a gofynnodd am gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i gyhoeddi hysbysiad 
statudol ar y cynnig.  Dosbarthwyd llythyr oddi wrth Esgob Llanelwy’n 
gwrthwynebu'r cau yn y cyfarfod. 
 
Cydnabu'r Cynghorydd Williams fod hwn yn benderfyniad anodd, gan nodi bod 
Ysgol Llanbedr yn arfer bod yn ysgol ffyniannus, a rhoddodd ganmoliaeth i’r gofal 
cyflawn a ddarparwyd gan yr ysgol.  Nododd fod nifer o blant o Lanbedr wedi 
penderfynu peidio â mynychu’r ysgol a chyfeiriodd at anawsterau blaenorol sydd 
wedi effeithio ar nifer y disgyblion.  Eglurodd y Cynghorydd Williams y cyd-destun 
dros adolygu ysgolion a thynnodd sylw at benderfyniadau a chanlyniadau blaenorol 
fel rhan o'r rhaglen foderneiddio addysg.  Disgrifiodd hefyd gamau’r broses adolygu 
a oedd yn cynnwys cau, uno neu ffederaleiddio’r ysgol neu gynnal y drefn 
bresennol. 
 
 Cyfeiriodd yr Arweinydd at gyfarfod diweddar gyda rhieni a llywodraethwyr i drafod 
y mater o chwarae teg i Lanbedr.  Roedd yn fodlon bod y broses yn un deg ac y 
byddai Llywodraeth Cymru wedi rhoi sylw i’r mater pe na bai wedi bod yn deg. 
 
Cydnabu’r Cabinet yr angen i fynd i'r afael â lleoedd gwag fel rhan o’r adolygiad yn 
ardal Rhuthun a nodwyd bod 21 o ddisgyblion yn mynychu’r ysgol a oedd â lle i 54. 
Nodwyd hefyd mai dim ond 7 o’r 21 disgybl oedd yn byw yn y gymuned ac nid oedd 
yn ymddangos bod unrhyw ddewis penodol dros unrhyw ysgol arall.  Roedd yr 
Aelodau'n cydnabod y pryderon a godwyd yn ystod yr ymgynghoriad ond tynnwyd 
sylw at bwysigrwydd darparu addysg o ansawdd a gwneud y mwyaf o botensial 
addysgol pobl ifanc yn ardal Rhuthun.  Gofynnwyd am sicrwydd ynglŷn ag effaith 
cau ar gyrhaeddiad disgyblion a gofynnwyd am eglurhad pellach o ran dewisiadau 
ysgol a chymryd ymagwedd gyson tuag at ysgolion eraill.  Ymatebodd y 
Cynghorydd Eryl Williams a'r swyddogion fel a ganlyn - 
 

Tudalen 6



• Enwyd Ysgol Borthyn fel ysgol arall (fel ysgol ffydd Cyfrwng Saesneg) gydag 
ysgolion eraill yn cael eu crybwyll fel dewisiadau eraill addas gan ymatebwyr i'r 
ymgynghoriad, gan gynnwys Gellifor, Bro Famau a Stryd y Rhos 

• dim ond un ymatebydd gadarnhaodd y byddent yn anfon eu plentyn/plant i 
Ysgol Borthyn gyda'r mwyafrif yn dewis peidio â datgan dewis - os cytunwyd i 
gau'r ysgol, byddem yn cysylltu â rhieni ynghylch eu dewisiadau 

• eglurwyd y rhesymeg y tu ôl i benderfyniadau cynharach a wnaed mewn 
perthynas ag ysgolion llai a'r cynigion ar gyfer ysgolion eraill fel rhan o adolygiad 
ardal Rhuthun yn seiliedig ar ffactorau penodol yn ymwneud â’r ysgolion hynny 

• nid fu’r adolygiadau blaenorol yn seiliedig ar niferoedd yn llwyddiannus a gellid 
buddsoddi mewn ysgolion llai os oeddynt yn gynaliadwy 

•  adroddwyd ar y safonau da o gyrhaeddiad yn ysgolion Rhuthun, gan dynnu 
sylw at y ffaith fod perfformiad y tair ysgol ffydd yn dda  

• nad oedd unrhyw broblemau gyda darpariaeth cyfrwng Saesneg na dwyieithog 
yn yr ardal. 

 
Siaradodd y Cynghorydd Huw Williams yn erbyn cau Ysgol Llanbedr ac roedd yn 
siomedig bod y mater wedi’i ddwyn gerbron y Cabinet mor fuan ar ôl dyddiad cau'r 
ymgynghoriad.  Tynnodd sylw at y cysylltiadau cymunedol cryf rhwng yr ysgol a'r 
eglwys, a chefnogaeth rhieni a phlant lleol mewn digwyddiadau cymunedol.  Wrth 
ymateb i bwyntiau cynharach, eglurodd y Cynghorydd Huw Williams bod rhieni’n 
teimlo nad oeddent wedi derbyn digon o wybodaeth am ysgolion eraill i fynegi eu 
dewis.  Cyfeiriodd at effaith anawsterau blaenorol ar nifer y disgyblion ond roedd 
rhagamcanion yn dangos cynnydd i 41  disgybl yn 2014 a 47 yn 2015. Nododd 
hefyd bod swyddogion wedi tan adrodd niferoedd derbyniadau a gofynnodd am 
eglurhad ynghylch y rhesymau dros gau ac a oedd gan y Cyngor bolisi ar gyfer 
ysgolion bach.  Rhoddwyd yr ymatebion canlynol - 
 

• rhoddwyd eglurhad ar y broses o ddadansoddi ymatebion i'r ymgynghoriad ar ôl 
y dyddiad cau mewn pryd i’w cyflwyno i'r Cabinet 

• roedd rhieni wedi derbyn gwybodaeth yn ymwneud ag Ysgol Borthyn fel y dewis 
arall o ysgol a enwebwyd 

• roedd ffigurau derbyn yn agored i newid nes bod y rownd o dderbyniadau 
meithrin ar gau - mae 13 o dderbyniadau meithrin ar hyn o bryd gyda 4 o 
Lanbedr - fodd bynnag nid oedd yr ysgol yn cael ei hystyried yn gynaliadwy hyd 
yn oed gyda’r nifer llawn o 54 o ddisgyblion 

• roedd Fframwaith Polisi Moderneiddio Addysg y Cyngor a gymeradwywyd yn 
2009 yn cynnwys adolygiad o bob ysgol gyda llai nac 80 o ddisgyblion 

• roedd Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gosod targedau ar gyfer gostwng lleoedd gwag 
ac nid oedd modd defnyddio cyllid cyfalaf i wella ysgolion oni bai ein bod yn 
cyflawni’r targedau 

• roedd 24% o leoedd yn wag yn ardal Rhuthun felly nid oedd y Cyngor yn 
gwneud y defnydd gorau o'i adnoddau. 

 
Tynnodd y Cynghorwyr Joe Welch a Martyn Holland sylw at adeilad a chyfleusterau 
ardderchog yr ysgol ynghyd â'r cynnydd a ragwelir yn nifer y disgyblion a 
goblygiadau’r tai ychwanegol a glustnodwyd ar gyfer yr ardal yn y CDLl.  
Cwestiynwyd yr arbedion a fyddai’n deillio o gau’r ysgol a'r posibilrwydd o 
ffederaleiddio gydag ysgol debyg.  Awgrymodd y Cynghorydd Dewi Owens y gellid 

Tudalen 7



gohirio’r penderfyniad nes ein bod yn sicr o lefel y galw am leoedd yn yr ysgol.  
Rhoddwyd yr ymatebion canlynol - 
 

• nid oedd unrhyw ddatblygiad tai yn debygol o ddigwydd am rai blynyddoedd ac 
yn seiliedig ar y galw presennol nid oedd yn debygol o olygu mwy na 2 neu 3 
disgybl ychwanegol i’r ysgol 

• nodwyd arbedion blynyddol o £68k y gellid eu defnyddio i ariannu benthyca 
darbodus; er bod y cyfleusterau a'r adeiladau yn dda, roedd yr adolygiad yn 
canolbwyntio ar gynaliadwyedd a byddai angen buddsoddiad yn y dyfodol 

• defnyddiwyd ystafell ddosbarth symudol yn Ysgol Borthyn ac roedd lle i fwy o 
ddisgyblion - byddai asesiad lleoedd yn cael ei gynnal yn yr ardal wrth ystyried 
niferoedd disgyblion ar gyfer ysgol newydd yn Rhuthun 

• rhoddwyd ystyriaeth i ffederaleiddio, ond byddai costau ynghlwm â chadw dau 
adeilad ac roedd angen lleihau'r sail asedau er mwyn buddsoddi mewn 
adeiladau ysgolion eraill a gwneud y defnydd gorau o adnoddau 

• cydnabuwyd y cynnydd yn niferoedd y disgyblion yn ystod y flwyddyn ond hyd 
yn oed pe bai’r ysgol yn llawn, ni fyddai’n gynaliadwy i’r dyfodol 

• byddai gohirio’r penderfyniad yn peryglu adolygiad ardal Rhuthun ac yn cael 
effaith negyddol ar ddisgyblion. 

 
Yn ei ddatganiad i gloi aeth y Cynghorydd Huw Williams ati i - 
 

• ddweud pe bai’r ysgol yn cau, byddai'r safle’n dychwelyd i’r cymwynaswr ac ni 
fyddai'r Cyngor, yr Esgobaeth na Phentref Llanbedr yn elwa 

• mynegi pryderon nad oedd cau’r ysgol er mwyn gostwng nifer y lleoedd gwag a 
denu arian cyfalaf wedi’i grybwyll yn y ddogfen ymgynghori ffurfiol ac, felly, ei 
fod yn teimlo na ddilynwyd y broses gywir 

• roedd yn siomedig nad oedd y Corff Llywodraethu wedi derbyn unrhyw ymateb 
i'w papurau cyfreithiol ac roedd eu Cyfreithiwr yn bryderus ynghylch diffygion yn 
yr ymgynghoriad. 

 
Ailadroddodd y PGCD ei farn fod y broses briodol wedi’i dilyn ac y gellid gwneud 
penderfyniad ar sail y wybodaeth a gyflwynwyd.  Wrth gynnig yr argymhelliad 
amlygodd y Cynghorydd Eryl Williams ymagwedd strategol Sir Ddinbych tuag at 
fuddsoddi mewn ysgolion a sicrhau darpariaeth addysg o safon ar draws y sir.  
Talodd y Cabinet deyrnged i'r ymgyrch egnïol i gadw'r ysgol ar agor, ond roeddynt 
yn teimlo mai cymeradwyo’r argymhelliad oedd y penderfyniad cywir. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod y Cabinet yn cymeradwyo cyhoeddi hysbysiad statudol ar y 
cynnig i gau Ysgol Llanbedr ar 31 Awst 2014 a throsglwyddo’r disgyblion presennol 
i Ysgol Borthyn, Rhuthun, yn dibynnu ar ddewis y rhieni. 
 
Ar y pwynt hwn (11.15 a.m.) cafwyd egwyl ar gyfer lluniaeth. 
 

6 FFRAMWAITH AR GYFER GWASANAETHAU INTEGREDIG AR GYFER POBL 
HŶN  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Bobby Feeley yr adroddiad yn gofyn i’r Cabinet 
gymeradwyo’r Datganiad o Fwriad drafft (ynghlwm wrth yr adroddiad) i’w gyflwyno i 
Lywodraeth Cymru mewn ymateb i’w bwriad i sefydlu gwasanaethau iechyd a gofal 

Tudalen 8



cymdeithasol integredig i bobl hŷn sydd ag anghenion cymhleth.  Roedd y 
Datganiad yn ddogfen ranbarthol ond yn tynnu sylw at feysydd o arfer da a 
ddatblygwyd yn Sir Ddinbych. 
 
Rhoddodd Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Archwilio Partneriaethau, y Cynghorydd Jeanette 
Chamberlain-Jones drosolwg o drafodaeth y pwyllgor archwilio ar y Datganiad a 
chadarnhaodd bod y pwyllgor wedi croesawu'r cynigion ac wedi gofyn i ddigon o 
adnoddau gael eu darparu i gynnig y gwasanaethau integredig. 
 
Canolbwyntiodd y drafodaeth ar y canlynol - 
 

• Amlygwyd yr Iaith Gymraeg fel elfen bwysig o ran sicrhau y gallai pobl sgwrsio 
yn Gymraeg os oeddent yn dymuno - nodwyd hefyd fod hwn yn fater a allai elwa 
o fonitro fel rhan o'r fframwaith integreiddio 

• rhoddwyd manylion yr amserlen ar gyfer datblygu cynigion am ddarpariaeth 
integredig drwy gyflwyno’r camau gweithredu pellach i Lywodraeth Cymru oedd 
yn ofynnol ystod y flwyddyn a’r dyddiad cwblhau ym mis Rhagfyr 2014 

• sefydlwyd fod y rhaglen integreiddio hefyd yn cynnwys y sector gwirfoddol ond 
byddai angen archwilio arian ar gyfer grwpiau gwirfoddol drwy’r ardaloedd lleol  

• gobeithiwyd y gellid hwyluso anawsterau blaenorol o ran gwaith partneriaeth 
gyda Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr (BIPBC) fel rhan o’r rhaglen 
integreiddio ac roedd yn fater a fyddai'n elwa o gael ei fonitro’n agos 

• Amlygwyd swyddogaeth hanfodol Meddygon Teulu wrth sefydlu gwasanaethau 
integredig ynghyd â phryderon dros amseroedd aros am apwyntiadau a sut y 
gellid ymdrin â’r materion hynny drwy'r fframwaith integredig – roedd y mater yn 
cael ei reoli drwy nifer o fforymau, gan gynnwys timau arweinyddiaeth lleol dan 
arweiniad meddygon teulu.  O safbwynt amseroedd aros, nodwyd fod y mater 
wedi’i godi o’r blaen gyda BIPBC a gellid ei amlygu eto fel rhwystr rhag 
integreiddio. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD bod y Cabinet yn cytuno y dylid cyflwyno’r Datganiad o Fwriad 
drafft (fel y nodir yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad) i Lywodraeth Cymru fel ymateb 
rhanbarthol cychwynnol i ddogfen Llywodraeth Cymru “Fframwaith ar gyfer Darparu 
Gofal Iechyd a Chymdeithasol Integredig” (Gorffennaf 2013). 
 

7 POLISI DYRANIADAU CYFFREDIN - UN LLWYBR MYNEDIAD AT DAI  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Hugh Irving yr adroddiad ar ddatblygu Un Llwybr 
Mynediad at Dai (SARTH) ar draws isranbarth Gogledd Ddwyrain Cymru a gofyn i’r 
Cabinet roi cymeradwyaeth i weithredu’r Polisi Dyraniadau Cyffredin yn lleol.  
Roedd SARTH yn brosiect partneriaeth rhwng landlordiaid cymdeithasol mawr yng 
Ngogledd Ddwyrain Cymru.  Roedd yr adroddiad yn manylu ar nod y Polisi 
Dyraniadau Cyffredin (PDC) a’i weithrediad arfaethedig ar draws sefydliadau 
partner. 
 
Ymatebodd y swyddogion i nifer o wahanol senarios a gyflwynwyd iddynt mewn 
perthynas ag anghenion tai a chadarnhawyd nad oedd unrhyw gyswllt trawsffiniol 
rhwng awdurdodau lleol.  Rhoddwyd sicrwydd i Aelodau na fyddai pobl leol, gan 
gynnwys y rhai a oedd ar y rhestr dai ar hyn o bryd, o dan anfantais o ganlyniad i’r 
polisi newydd a bod cysylltiadau lleol yn nodwedd amlwg yn y broses asesu.  

Tudalen 9



Cyfeiriwyd at y cyd-destun cyfreithiol a’r categorïau dewis rhesymol mewn 
perthynas ag anghenion tai lle gellid gweithredu cysylltiadau lleol hefyd. 
 
Rhoddodd Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Archwilio Partneriaethau, y Cynghorydd Jeanette 
Chamberlain-Jones drosolwg o drafodaeth y pwyllgor archwilio ar yr adroddiad gan 
dynnu sylw at nifer o bryderon a oedd wedi eu manylu yn Atodiad C yr adroddiad.  
Adroddodd swyddogion ar y cynnydd wrth fynd i'r afael â rhai o'r materion a 
godwyd, a nodwyd y dylid delio â phryderon mewn perthynas â thai o ansawdd 
gwael a ddarparwyd gan Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig fel mater ar 
wahân.  Cododd aelodau eraill faterion nad oeddynt yn ymwneud yn uniongyrchol 
â'r PDC, gan gynnwys is-osod tai fforddiadwy; safonau llety gwarchod a diffyg 
wardeiniaid mewn ardaloedd penodol, a thenantiaid nad oedd yn cynnal eiddo ac 
yn mynd ati i atal gwelliannau i eiddo.  I sicrhau eu bod yn mynd i’r afael â’r holl 
faterion, cytunwyd y byddai swyddogion yn adrodd yn ôl i'r pwyllgor archwilio ar 
hynny. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD - bod y Cabinet yn – 
 
(a)  cymeradwyo'r Polisi Dyraniadau Cyffredin ar gyfer Sir Ddinbych fel y 

manylwyd yn Atodiad A yr adroddiad, a 
 
(b) gofyn i swyddogion adrodd yn ôl i’r pwyllgor archwilio ar y camau i'w cymryd 

mewn perthynas â'r materion a godwyd gan y Pwyllgor Archwilio 
Partneriaethau fel y nodir yn Atodiad C yr adroddiad a phwyntiau eraill a 
godwyd gan aelodau etholedig yn y Cabinet. 

 
Gwahardd y wasg a’r cyhoedd 
 
PENDERFYNWYD dan ddarpariaethau Adran 100A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, 
gwahardd y Wasg a’r Cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer yr eitemau canlynol ar y sail y byddai 
gwybodaeth eithriedig yn debygol o gael ei datgelu fel y’i diffinnir ym Mharagraffau 14 ac 
15 Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 
 
8 DYFODOL CLWYD LEISURE LIMITED  

 
[Cafodd yr eitem hon ei dwyn ymlaen ar y rhaglen gyda chydsyniad yr Arweinydd] 
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Huw Jones adroddiad cyfrinachol ar yr opsiynau ar gyfer 
darparu’r cyfleusterau a weithredir ar hyn o bryd gan Clwyd Leisure Limited yn y 
dyfodol. 
 
Darllenwyd deiseb a gydlynwyd gan aelod o staff Canolfan Fowls Gogledd Cymru 
yn annog y Cyngor i gymryd camau i atal y cyfleusterau rhag cau. 
   
Rhoddodd yr Aelodau ystyriaeth ofalus i ganfyddiadau'r ymarferiad diwydrwydd 
dyladwy a gynhaliwyd a'r achos a wnaed ar gyfer opsiynau i'r dyfodol a 
manteisiwyd ar y cyfle i holi’r swyddogion ar hynny er mwyn bodloni eu hunain o 
ran y ffordd orau o weithredu.  Yn ystod trafodaeth fanwl, codwyd pryderon dwys 
am y ffordd roedd y cwmni’n cael ei redeg a gweithrediad y cyfleusterau.  Er y 
cytunwyd na allai'r Cyngor gymryd drosodd na pharhau i ariannu'r cwmni yn sgil y 

Tudalen 10



pryderon hynny, ailadroddwyd eu hymrwymiad i wella’r ddarpariaeth twristiaeth a 
hamdden arfordirol. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD -  
 
(a) bod y Cyngor yn ailddatgan ei weledigaeth o ran datblygu cyfleusterau 

twristiaeth a hamdden o'r radd flaenaf fel rhan o'r ddarpariaeth arfordirol 
tymor hir. 

 
(b) bod y Cabinet yn galw ar Fwrdd Clwyd Leisure Limited i ddatgan erbyn 31 

Ionawr 2014 beth oedd eu cynlluniau tymor byr a chanolig ar gyfer 
gweithredu’r cyfleusterau; 

 
(c)  bod y Cabinet yn cadarnhau y byddai rheoli Cwmni Clwyd Leisure Limited yn 

ormod o risg.  
 
(d) yn sgil y pryderon parhaus a chanfyddiadau’r ymarferiad diwydrwydd 

dyledus, dylai’r Cyngor roi'r gorau i ariannu Clwyd Leisure Limited o 1 Ebrill 
2014 ymlaen, a 

 
(e)  bod y cyllid presennol sydd ar gael i gefnogi Clwyd Leisure Limited (tua 

£200k yn 2014/15) yn cael ei ddefnyddio i gefnogi’r newidiadau hyn ac i 
ddatblygu darpariaeth dros dro tra bod y Cyngor yn penderfynu ar ddyfodol 
tymor hir y ddarpariaeth arfordirol. 

 
Ar y pwynt hwn, cafodd y Cabinet egwyl ar gyfer cinio ac ailddechreuodd y cyfarfod 
mewn sesiwn agored am 3.00 pm 
 

9 DATBLYGIADAU POLISI TRETHI BUSNES YNG NGHYMRU  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill yr adroddiad yn manylu ar 
newidiadau deddfwriaethol i Drethi Busnes i hyrwyddo datblygiadau newydd a 
gwneud defnydd o’r newydd o eiddo gwag hir dymor, ac argymhellodd y dylai’r 
Cabinet fabwysiadu’r ddau gynllun newydd. 
 
Crëwyd y ddau gynllun i hyrwyddo twf a chynyddu lefelau cyflogaeth ar raddfa 
genedlaethol.   Mewn ymateb i gwestiynau, dywedodd y Pennaeth Refeniw a Budd-
daliadau y byddai uchafswm y terfynau cymorth Ewropeaidd yn berthnasol ac y 
byddai trethdalwyr yn elwa ar y cynllun mwyaf ffafriol mewn achosion lle'r oedd 
mwy nag un yn berthnasol.  Nododd y Cabinet rinweddau’r cynlluniau a gofynnodd 
yr Arweinydd iddynt gael eu hyrwyddo gymaint ag y bo modd i sicrhau’r budd 
economaidd mwyaf. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD mabwysiadu ‘penderfyniadau enghreifftiol’ a 'ffurflenni cais 
enghreifftiol' y ddau gynllun mewn perthynas â Threthi Busnes yn ffurfiol fel yr 
amlinellir gan Lywodraeth Cymru. 
 

10 GOSTYNGIAD DEWISOL AR DRETHI  
 

Tudalen 11



Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill yr adroddiad ar lefelau’r 
Gostyngiad Dewisol ar Drethi (GDD) a ddyfarnwyd i Elusennau a sefydliadau Nid 
am Elw a gofynnodd am gymeradwyaeth i ddiwygiadau arfaethedig i'r Meini Prawf 
GDD. 
 
Rhoddwyd amlinelliad i’r Aelodau o gost bresennol GDD i’r Cyngor ynghyd â 
chamau i sicrhau arbedion ar gyfer 2015/16, a gofynnwyd iddynt ystyried 
diwygiadau pellach i feini prawf y GDD.  Dan y ddeddfwriaeth bresennol byddai ond 
yn bosibl diwygio gostyngiad ar drethi o 2015/16 ar gyfer ymgeiswyr presennol ond 
byddai’n dod i rym ar unwaith ar gyfer ceisiadau newydd.  Trafododd y Cabinet yr 
achos dros ddiwygio a chroesawyd y cynigion fel ffordd deg ymlaen i sicrhau fod y 
Cyngor yn parhau i ddarparu gostyngiad dewisol lle bo angen a bod hynny er budd 
y gymuned leol. 
 
 PENDERFYNWYD bod y Cabinet yn rhoi cymeradwyaeth i weithredu'r diwygiadau 
bwriedig i'r Meini Prawf Gostyngiad Dewisol ar Drethi o 1 Ebrill 2014 ar gyfer 
ymgeiswyr newydd ac o 1 Ebrill 2015 ar gyfer ymgeiswyr presennol, fel yr amlinellir 
ym mharagraffau 4.1 - 4.9 yr adroddiad. 
 

11 CYLLIDEB 2014/15  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill yr adroddiad yn manylu ar gynigion 
y gyllideb ar gyfer 2014/15 a’r cynnydd o 3.5% yn lefel Treth y Cyngor yn sgil 
hynny.  Roedd cynigion ar gyfer arbedion ychwanegol o £2m i’r gyllideb er mwyn 
cwblhau’r Gyllideb Refeniw ar gyfer 2014/15 wedi’u hatodi i’r adroddiad (Atodiad 1) 
ynghyd â manylion am arbedion o £6.5m ar y gyllideb a gymeradwywyd yn 
flaenorol ar gyfer 2014/15 (Atodiad 2). 
 
Cyfeiriwyd at farn yr aelodau yn deillio o'r Gweithdy diweddar ar y Gyllideb a’r 
rhesymeg y tu ôl i’r cynigion a gyflwynwyd.   Mynegwyd rhai amheuon ynghylch y 
defnydd o falansau cyffredinol i helpu ymateb i’r diffyg o ran arbedion, ond 
rhoddwyd sicrwydd i’r Cabinet y byddai balansau’n aros ar lefel resymol ac nad 
oedd yn peri risg i'r Awdurdod.  Roedd y defnydd o falansau wedi’i fwriadu fel 
dyraniad un waith yn unig i ganiatáu amser i ddatblygu cynigion pellach am 
arbedion ar gyfer 2015/16. Byddai unrhyw ddigwyddiadau ar hap ar ddiwedd y 
flwyddyn ariannol yn cael eu dyrannu i falansau cyffredinol oni bai eu bod wedi’u 
clustnodi ar gyfer gwasanaethau penodol. Amlygwyd hefyd yr her ariannol 
sylweddol dros y blynyddoedd nesaf gyda phenderfyniadau anoddach i'w gwneud. 
 
Talodd y Cynghorydd David Smith deyrnged i'r Pennaeth Cyllid ac Asedau a’i dîm 
am eu gwaith caled a’r rheolaeth o’r broses o bennu’r gyllideb.  
 

PENDERFYNWYD bod y Cabinet yn – 
 
(a)  cefnogi'r cynigion ar gyfer cyllideb 2014/15 fel y dangosir yn Atodiad 1 yr 

adroddiad ac yn argymell hynny i'r Cyngor llawn, ac 
 
(b)  argymell y cynnydd o 3.5% yn lefel Treth y Cyngor yn sgil hynny ar gyfer 

2014/15 i’r Cyngor llawn. 
 

Tudalen 12



12 ADRODDIAD CYLLID  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill, adroddiad yn rhoi manylion ynglŷn 
â'r sefyllfa ariannol ddiweddaraf a chynnydd yn erbyn strategaeth y gyllideb y 
cytunwyd arni.  Rhoddodd y grynodeb ganlynol ar sefyllfa ariannol y Cyngor- 
 

• rhagwelwyd tanwariant o £951k ar draws cyllidebau gwasanaeth a 
chorfforaethol 

• roedd 76% (£3.061m) o’r arbedion y cytunwyd arnynt wedi’u sicrhau hyd yma 

• amlygwyd y prif amrywiadau oddi wrth dargedau cyllideb neu arbedion yn 
ymwneud â meysydd gwasanaeth unigol 

• symudiad negyddol o £6k ar falansau ysgolion a ddygwyd ymlaen o 2012/13. 

• diweddariad cyffredinol ar y Cynllun Cyfalaf a’r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai. 
 
 Gofynnwyd hefyd i’r Cabinet gymeradwyo tri throsglwyddiad i gronfeydd wrth gefn 
fel y nodir yn adran 6 yr adroddiad:  Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn gan yr Arweinydd, 
dywedodd y Cynghorydd Thompson-Hill fod y Cyngor ar hyn o bryd yn rhagweld 
tanwariant o £950k ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn ariannol, ond gallai’r ffigwr hwnnw newid. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD bod y Cabinet yn – 
 
(a)  nodi’r sefyllfa ariannol ddiweddaraf a’r cynnydd yn erbyn y strategaeth a 

gytunwyd ar gyfer y gyllideb, a 
 
(b)  Cymeradwyo’r trosglwyddiad canlynol i’r cronfeydd wrth gefn a nodir yn 

Adran 6 yr adroddiad: 
 

• £72k i’r Gronfa Wrth Gefn EDRMS 

• £355k i'r Gronfa Buddsoddi Strategol (Tai Gofal Ychwanegol) 

• £300k i Gronfa Wrth Gefn Moderneiddio Gofal Cymdeithasol. 
 

13 RHAGLEN GWAITH I'R DYFODOL Y CABINET  
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Hugh Evans Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol y  Cabinet i’w 
hystyried.  Os bydd un o’r pwyllgor archwilio’n galw ar y Cabinet i adolygu'r 
penderfyniad a wnaed mewn perthynas ag Ysgol Llanbedr, dywedodd Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd y byddai angen ystyried y mater yn y 
cyfarfod ym mis Chwefror. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD nodi Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol y Cabinet. 
 

Gwahardd y wasg a’r cyhoedd 
 
PENDERFYNWYD dan ddarpariaethau Adran 100A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, 
gwahardd y Wasg a’r Cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer yr eitemau canlynol ar y sail y byddai 
gwybodaeth eithriedig yn debygol o gael ei datgelu fel y’i diffinnir ym Mharagraffau 14 ac 
15 Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972. 
 
14 FFRAMWAITH CONTRACTWR YSGOLION AC ADEILADAU CYHOEDDUS 

GOGLEDD CYMRU  

Tudalen 13



 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill yr adroddiad cyfrinachol a oedd yn 
argymell penodi contractwyr a enwyd i Fframwaith Contractwr Ysgolion ac 
Adeiladau Cyhoeddus Gogledd Cymru (NWSPBCF).  Roedd yr adroddiad yn rhoi 
manylion ar ganlyniad proses gaffael NWSPBCF a rhinweddau’r ymagwedd o 
gydweithio. 
 
Cyflwynodd y Cynghorydd Thompson-Hill y tîm sy’n gweithio ar y fframwaith a 
thalodd deyrnged iddynt am eu gwaith caled.  Cadarnhaodd y swyddogion y gallai 
pob awdurdod bennu eu hanghenion economaidd penodol eu hunain a’r manteision 
cymunedol y ceisir eu sicrhau ar gyfer pob prosiect. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD penodi’r contractwyr a enwir ym mharagraff 3 yr adroddiad i 
Fframwaith Contractwyr Ysgolion ac Adeiladau Cyhoeddus Gogledd Cymru. 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 4.15pm 
 

Tudalen 14



 

  

 
Adroddiad i'r:    Cabinet  
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   18 Chwefror 2014 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol:  Cynghorydd Eryl Williams  
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:   Pennaeth Cymorth Addysg a Chwsmeriaid 
 
Teitl:  Cynnig i gau Ysgol Clocaenog ac Ysgol Cyffylliog a 

sefydlu ysgol fro newydd 
 

 
 
1. Am beth mae'r adroddiad yn sôn?  
 
1.1 Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw cynghori'r Cabinet ynglŷn â'r broses y mae angen 

ei dilyn ar ddiwedd cyfnod yr Hysbysiad Statudol a fyddai'n caniatáu gwneud 
penderfyniad ynglŷn â'r cynnig. 

 
2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio'r adroddiad?  
 
2.1 Ar ôl cwblhau cyfnod Hysbysiad Statudol mae angen penderfynu a ddylid symud 

ymlaen i weithredu'r cynnig i gau Ysgol Clocaenog ac Ysgol Cyffylliog ar 31 Awst 
2014 ac i sefydlu ysgol fro newydd ar y safleoedd presennol. 

 
3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 
 

Dyma'r argymhellion i'r Cabinet:- 
 
(i) ystyried canfyddiadau'r adroddiad ar wrthwynebiadau.  
 
(ii) yn amodol ar ystyriaeth o'r uchod, cymeradwyo gweithredu'r cynnig i gau Ysgol 

Clocaenog ac Ysgol Cyffylliog ar 31 Awst 2014 fel bo modd agor ysgol fro 
newydd ar 1 Medi 2014 gan ddefnyddio safleoedd presennol Clocaenog a 
Chyfylliog. 

 
 
4. Manylion yr adroddiad. 
 
4.1 Cyhoeddodd y Cyngor Hysbysiad Statudol ar 7 Ionawr 2014 yn hysbysu 

rhanddeiliaid am y bwriad i gau Ysgol Clocaenog ac Ysgol Cyffylliog ar 31 Awst 
2014 a sefydlu ysgol fro newydd ar y safleoedd presennol. Daeth cyfnod yr 
Hysbysiad Statudol, sef 28 diwrnod, i ben ar 3 Chwefror 2014. 

 
 
 
 
 

Eitem Agenda 5

Tudalen 15



 

  

4.2  Yn unol â gofynion y cod trefniadaeth ysgolion newydd 

(http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/school-
organisation-code/?lang=cy), cafodd y cynigion eu cyhoeddi ar wefan Cyngor Sir 
Ddinbych ac yn agos at brif fynedfa'r ysgolion presennol a drafodir yn y cynnig. 

  Yn yr holl ysgolion a drafodir yn y cynnig, rhoddwyd copïau o'r hysbysiad i'w 
rhannu ymhlith y disgyblion, rhieni a gwarcheidwaid, ac aelodau o staff (caiff yr 
ysgolion rannu'r hysbysiad drwy e-bost); 

 
4.3.  Ar ddiwrnod cyhoeddi'r cynigion, cafodd y canlynol naill ai gopi caled ohonynt, 

neu ddolen gyswllt wedi'i hanfon drwy e-bost i'r wefan berthnasol: 

• Cyngor Sir Ddinbych; 

• Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy; 

• Esgobaeth yr Eglwys yng Nghymru, Llanelwy, ac Awdurdod Esgobaeth Gatholig 
Wrecsam; 

• Corff Llywodraethu Ysgol Clocaenog, Ysgol Cyffylliog, Ysgol Pen Barras, Ysgol 
Pantpastynog, Ysgol Rhewl ac Ysgol Pantpastynog.; 

• Gweinidogion Cymru; 

• yr Aelodau Cynulliad (ACau) sy'n cynrychioli Gogledd Cymru, yr Aelod Cynulliad 
a'r Aelod Seneddol (AS) sy'n cynrychioli Gorllewin Clwyd ac, er gwybodaeth, yr 
Aelodau Seneddol a'r Aelodau Cynulliad sy'n cynrychioli De Clwyd a Dyffryn 
Clwyd; 

• Estyn; 

• GwE - y Consortiwm Addysg Rhanbarthol; 

• undebau llafur athrawon a staff sy'n cynrychioli athrawon ac aelodau eraill o staff 
yn unrhyw ysgol a drafodir yn y cynigion; 

• Taith - y Consortiwm Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol; 

• Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu Gogledd Cymru; 

• Cynghorau Cymuned Clocaenog, Cyffylliog a Derwen; 

• Mudiad Meithrin a Chylch Meithrin Clocaenog; 

• Tîm Partneriaeth a Chymunedau Cyngor Sir Ddinbych; 
 
4.4  Roedd yn rhaid mynegi unrhyw wrthwynebiad dros gyfnod yr hysbysiad mewn 

ysgrifen neu drwy e-bost. Ar ddiwedd y cyfnod ymgynghori ar 3 Chwefror 2014, 
roedd 16 o wrthwynebiadau unigol wedi dod i law'r Cyngor gan aelodau o'r 
Gymuned, ynghyd â deiseb wedi'i llofnodi gan 144 o unigolion.   

 
Y Broses 

 
4.5 Wrth wneud penderfyniad ynglŷn â'r cynigion, mae'r Cod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion 

yn datgan: 

• bod yn rhaid i'r penderfynwyr ystyried p'un a oes unrhyw gynigion eraill 
cysylltiedig; 

• bod yn rhaid i'r penderfynwyr sicrhau bod yr ymgynghoriad statudol wedi'i gynnal 
yn unol â'r Cod hwn; 
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/school-
organisation-code/?lang=cy 

• bod yn rhaid i'r penderfynwyr sicrhau bod y cynnig wedi'i gyhoeddi’n unol â'r Cod 
hwn a bod yr hysbysiad yn cynnwys yr holl wybodaeth ofynnol; 

Tudalen 16



 

  

• bod yn rhaid i'r penderfynwyr ystyried y ddogfen ymgynghori a'r adroddiad ar yr 
ymgynghoriad; 

• bod yn rhaid i'r penderfynwyr ystyried y gwrthwynebiadau a'r adroddiad ar y 
gwrthwynebiadau, ac unrhyw ymatebion i'r hysbysiad sydd o blaid y cynigion; 

 
4.6 O dan adran 54 Deddf Safonau a Threfniadaeth Ysgolion (Cymru) 2013, caiff 

awdurdod lleol arall y mae'r cynigion yn effeithio arno gyfeirio'r cynnig o fewn 28 
diwrnod i'w ystyried gan Weinidog Cymru.  

 
4.7 Mae'r Cod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion yn datgan yn glir "os bydd gwrthwynebiadau 

wedi dod i law i gynigion awdurdod lleol, a bod angen penderfyniad o dan adran 
53 o Ddeddf 2013, rhaid i’r awdurdod lleol beidio ag ystyried y cynigion hynny 
gyda meddwl caeedig. Rhaid i’r gwrthwynebiadau gael eu hystyried yn 
gydwybodol ochr yn ochr â’r dadleuon mewn perthynas â’r cynigion ac yng 
ngoleuni’r ffactorau a amlinellir yn adran 1.3 – 1.14 o’r Cod hwn." 

 
4.8 Wrth ystyried y cynnig, dylai'r Cabinet ystyried y ffactorau a amlygir o fewn y cod 

sy'n cynnwys ansawdd a safonau mewn addysg, yr angen am leoedd a'r effaith 
ar hygyrchedd ysgolion, adnoddau addysg a goblygiadau ariannol eraill, fel y 
nodir yn y Cod Trefniadaeth Ysgolion.  Mae Atodiad 1, yr Adroddiad ar 
Benderfyniad, yn rhoi crynodeb i'r Cabinet o'r ffactorau i'w hystyried cyn gwneud 
penderfyniad ynghylch unrhyw gynnig. 

 
4.9 Yn ychwanegol at hyn, yn unol â Deddf 2013, mae'n ofynnol i'r Cabinet roi 

ystyriaeth lawn i'r gwrthwynebiadau a gafwyd i'r cynnig o du'r Gymuned.  Mae'r 
gwrthwynebiadau wedi cael eu casglu ynghyd i greu Adroddiad ar 
Wrthwynebiadau sy'n manylu ar y gwrthwynebiadau a gafwyd ac ymateb yr 
awdurdod lleol i'r pryderon hyn. Mae'r adroddiad wedi'i gynnwys yn Atodiad 2. 

.  

5. Sut mae'r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 
5.1 Mae'r cynnig yn cefnogi'r flaenoriaeth o "Wella perfformiad mewn addysg ac 

ansawdd ein hadeiladau ysgol” ac wedi'i amlygu fel ffrwd waith fel a ganlyn: 
“Byddwn yn parhau i adolygu darpariaeth ysgolion ledled y Sir er mwyn sicrhau ein 
bod yn darparu'r nifer cywir o leoedd mewn ysgolion, â'r lleoedd hynny o'r math 
cywir, ac yn y lleoliad cywir. 

 
6. Beth fydd yn ei gostio, a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 
6.1 Os caiff yr argymhelliad ei gymeradwyo, nodwyd y byddai un ysgol ar ddau safle'n 

cynyddu'r gyllideb sydd ei hangen ar gyfer yr ysgol yn ystod y cyfnod interim hwn.  
Ni fydd hyn yn cael unrhyw effaith gyffredinol ar gostau'r Cyngor oherwydd bydd y 
cynnydd hwn mewn costau'n cael ei ystyried yn rhan o'r fformiwla ariannu 
gyffredinol ar gyfer ysgolion, ac fe'i telir yn rhan o'r gyllideb gyfan ar gyfer yr 
ysgolion. 

 
6.2 Rhagwelir y bydd costau cludiant rhwng y cartref a'r ysgol yn cynyddu o ganlyniad 

i'r cam cyntaf.  Cyfeiriai'r ddogfen Ymgynghori at gynnydd posib o £39k mewn 
costau, yn dibynnu ar gytuno ar ba safle y byddai disgyblion yn cael eu lleoli yn 
rhan o drefniadau'r ysgol fro newydd.  Os bydd y cynnig yn cael ei weithredu, bydd 

Tudalen 17



 

  

y Cyngor yn gweithio gyda'r Corff Llywodraethu Dros Dro i gadarnhau'r trefniadau 
hynny er mwyn tarfu cyn lleied ag sy'n bosib ar rieni a disgyblion, a hefyd i leihau 
unrhyw gostau cludiant ychwanegol yn sylweddol. 

 
6.3 Er mwyn symud ymlaen i gam dau, bydd angen gwneud gwaith i asesu 

dichonoldeb y safleoedd posib, ac wedyn y safle a ffafrir. Staff o'r adran Cyllid ac 
Asedau fydd yn cyflawni'r gwaith hwn. Telir costau'r gwaith o'r dyraniad presennol 
ar gyfer maes blaenoriaeth Moderneiddio Addysg y Cynllun Corfforaethol, oddi 
mewn i Raglen Gyfalaf y Cyngor. 

 

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau'r Asesiad Effaith Cydraddoldeb a gynhaliwyd ar 
gyfer y penderfyniad?  Dylid atodi'r templed AEC sydd wedi'i gwblhau fel 
atodiad i'r adroddiad. 

 

7.1 Awgrymodd yr AEC a gynhaliwyd ar gyfer y cynnig mai bach fyddai effaith cam 
cyntaf y cynnig. Byddai datblygu ysgol fro yn cynyddu'r gallu i ymateb i newid yn 
niferoedd disgyblion ac yn lleihau ystod oedran y plant a addysgir gyda'i gilydd. 
 

8. Pa ymgyngoriadau a gynhaliwyd â'r Pwyllgorau Archwilio ac eraill? 
 
8.1 Mae ymgynghoriad llawn wedi cael ei gynnal â'r holl randdeiliaid, ac fe gyflwynwyd 

canfyddiadau'r Cyfnod Ymgynghori Ffurfiol i'r Cabinet ar 17 Rhagfyr 2013. Ceir 
crynodeb o'r gwrthwynebiadau a gyflwynwyd yn ystod cyfnod yr hysbysiad statudol 
yn yr adroddiad ar wrthwynebiadau.  

 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
 
9.1 Gall costau gwasanaeth trafnidiaeth ysgolion gynyddu o ganlyniad i'r cynnig yma 

ond bydd unrhyw arbedion yn cronni yng nghyllideb ysgolion ai ail-fuddsoddi 
mewn addysg. Gall hyn o bosib greu pwysau ar y gyllideb trafnidiaeth. Mae'r 
Cyngor wedi neilltuo cyllid tuag at foderneiddio addysg a byddai hyn yn ddefnydd 
teilwng o’r cyllid hwn. Pan fydd y gost yn glir,  gall rhan o gyllideb moderneiddio 
addysg ei symud i gyllideb drafnidiaeth ysgolion i dalu am y cynnydd. 

 
10. Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w lleihau? 
 

Ceir posibilrwydd cryf y gallai'r cynnig arwain at gyhoeddusrwydd anffafriol i'r 
Cyngor, a sylwadau anffafriol o du'r cyhoedd.  
 
Er mwyn lleihau'r risg hon hyd yr eithaf, bydd y Cyngor yn ceisio cyfathrebu'n glir 
â'r holl randdeiliaid. 

 
11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 

 
Deddf Safonau a Threfniadaeth Ysgolion (Cymru) 2013 
Fframwaith Polisi Moderneiddio Addysg (cymeradwywyd gan y Cabinet Ionawr 
2009) 

Tudalen 18



 

 

Appendix 1: Determination Report 
 
1.0 Summary 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members about the decision required in 

relation to the publication of a statutory notice for: 
 

• The closure of Ysgol Clocaenog on the 31st August 2014,  

• The closure of Ysgol Cyffylliog on the 31st August 2014 

• The opening of a new Welsh medium split site school for 4 – 11 years old 
on the two current sites.  
 

1.2 It is recommended that this proposal is approved for implementation. This 
proposal will ensure the retention of primary provision in the rural area to the 
west of Ruthin. By 2018 it is projected that there will be 83 pupils requiring 
primary provision in the area. The establishment of the area school will provide a 
sustainable provision.  

 
2.0 Background to the proposal 

 
2.1 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the Modernising Education 

Policy Framework in January 2009 to provide a platform upon which to review 
existing school provision.  
 

2.2 The council is committed to providing a first class education for all children and 
young people in the county. As part of this commitment, the Council has agreed 
that ‘modernising education provision’ is a priority because we recognise the 
importance of having school buildings, learning environments and resources that 
meet the needs of 21st century Wales. 

 
2.3 The objectives of the review are: 

• To ensure the sustainability of high quality education provision 

• Improve the quality of school buildings and facilities; 

• Provide the right number of places, of the right type in the right location; 
 
3.0 Ruthin Review – Informal Consultation 
     
3.1 In November 2012, Denbighshire’s Cabinet approved the commencement of a 

review of primary school provision in the Ruthin area. The review included 
eleven primary schools in the area:- 

• Ysgol Borthyn 

• Ysgol Bro Famau (Llanarmon yn Ial and Llanferres) 

• Ysgol Clocaenog 

• Ysgol Cyffylliog 

• Ysgol Gellifor 

• Ysgol Llanbedr 

• Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd 

• Ysgol Pen Barras 

Tudalen 19



 

 

• Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

• Ysgol Rhewl  

• Ysgol Bryn Clwyd was also considered at the request of the Federated 

Governing Body of Ysgol Bryn Clwyd and Ysgol Gellifor. 

 

3.2 The informal consultation document highlighted a number of issues that needed 
to be addressed to achieve long term sustainability.  These included: 

a. Sustainability of Schools and High Quality Provision  
b. Surplus Places  
c. Condition and Suitability of School Buildings (incl. use of Mobile 

Accommodation) 
d. Recruitment of Head Teachers 
e. Demand for Welsh Medium Education 

 
3.3 Following careful consideration of the issues raised during the Informal 

Consultation stage, the following six proposals were approved by the Cabinet. 
These were: 

• Creation of new area school to serve the communities of Clocaenog 
and Cyffylliog. 

• Closure of Ysgol Llanbedr with transfer of pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, 
Ruthin subject to parental preference. 

• Ruthin town area detailed feasibility. 

• Proposed federation of Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd and Ysgol 
Pentrecelyn. 

• Support for the Federation of Ysgol Bryn Clwyd and Ysgol Gellifor. 

• Retention of Ysgol Bro Famau. 
 

4.0  Formal Consultation 
 

4.1 In June 2013, Cabinet approved recommendations to start a formal consultation 
on the proposal to amalgamate Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog from the 
1st of September 2014. Formal consultation started on the 9th of September 
2013 and came to an end on the 22nd of October 2013. A formal consultation 
document (Appendix A) was published which provided details of the proposal.  

 
4.2 During the formal consultation, parents, staff, governors, children and young 

people were consulted along with other statutory consultees. The findings of the 
formal consultation can be found in Appendix B and were presented to Cabinet 
on the 17th of December 2013. 

 
4.3 At this meeting, Cabinet approved a recommendation to publish a statutory 

notice to establish a new area school to replace Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol 
Cyffylliog. 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 20



 

 

5.0 Statutory Notice  
 

5.1 A Statutory Notice was published on the 7th of January 2014. A copy is attached 
in Appendix C. The notice period came to an end on the 3rd of February 2014. 

 
5.2 In total 16 objections were received during the consultation period. In addition a 

petition was also submitted. The points raised and the responses provided are 
included in the Objections Report (Appendix 3).  

 
6.0 Determining School Organisation Proposals 

 
6.1 When approving or determining proposals, relevant bodies: 

• must consider whether there are any other related proposals; 

• must ensure that the statutory consultation has been conducted in 
accordance with this Code (the requirement to consult does not apply to 
proposals to discontinue a school which is a small school); 

• must ensure that the proposal has been published in accordance with this 
Code and the notice contains all the required information; must consider 
the consultation document and consultation report; 

• must consider the objections and the objection report and any responses 
to the notice supporting the proposals; 

 
7.0 The Schools 

 
7.1 Ysgol Clocaenog 

 
Ysgol Clocaenog is located in the centre of the village of Clocaenog and serves 
an age range of 4 – 11 years old. It is a Community Primary School 
predominately serving children from the villages of Clocaenog, Clawddnewydd 
and Derwen and the surrounding area. As of January 2013 Ysgol Clocaenog had 
36 full time pupils. The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls suggests an 
increase in future pupil numbers. The capacity of the school building has been 
calculated at 36 pupils.  As of January 2013 the school had no surplus (empty) 
places. Educational Standards at the school are good. The school’s last Estyn 
Inspection was in October 2012.  
 
The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that an increase in future 
pupil numbers will occur at the school as illustrated below: 
 

Current Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

36 39 45 47 47 48 

 
The map on page 4 shows the catchment area for Ysgol Clocaenog based upon 
pupils at the school in January 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 21



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.2 Ysgol Cyffylliog 

 
Ysgol Cyffylliog is located within the village of Cyffylliog and serves an age range 
of 4-11.  The school predominately serves children from Cyffylliog, Bontuchel 
and the surrounding area. As of January 2013 Ysgol Cyffylliog had 19 full time 
pupils. The forecast of future pupil numbers suggests that an increase will occur. 
The capacity of the school building has been calculated at 45 pupils.  As of 
January 2013 the school had 26 surplus (empty) places; equivalent to 57% of 
the total capacity. Educational standards at the school were judged adequate 
when the school was inspected by Estyn in March 2011. Following a period of 
monitoring by Estyn the school was judged as good in November 2013 and 
subsequently removed from the Estyn category of ‘schools that need significant 
improvement’. 

 
The council’s forecast of future pupil numbers suggests that an increase will 
occur at the school as illustrated below: 

 

Current Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

19 25 29 31 35 35 

 
The map on page 5 shows the catchment area for Ysgol Cyffylliog based upon 
pupils at the school in January 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 22



 

 

 
7.3 Combined catchment

 
The council’s forecast of future pupil 
catchment will have an increase as illustrated below:
 

Current Projected Full Time pupil 

2013 2014 

55 64 

 
The combined catchment is illustrated below:

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Combined catchment 

The council’s forecast of future pupil numbers suggests that the combined 
an increase as illustrated below: 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC

2015 2016 2017 

74 78 82 

The combined catchment is illustrated below: 

 

the combined 

January PLASC 

2018 

83 

Tudalen 23



 

 

8.0 Quality and standards in education 
 
8.1 Objectors have questioned the need to close Ysgol Cyffylliog as it is now 

removed from the list of schools requiring monitoring by Estyn following a 
successful monitoring visit in November 2013. However it is Estyn’s opinion 
that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the present standards of 
education provision in the area. Estyn agrees that during phase one (one 
school on two sites) the expected benefits include the following: 

• the age range of pupils taught together will be reduced; 

• teaching capacity will increase; and 

• the development of better leadership and management structures, to 
provide increased opportunities for staff development and progression.  

 
8.2 Following implementation of phase two (single site area school), the expected 

benefits include the following: 

• an improved learning environment for all pupils; 

• the potential for economies of scale; 

• sufficient capacity to absorb fluctuations in pupil numbers; 

• reducing the number of  Head Teachers required; and  

• ensuring the long term sustainability of the school and its ability to 
deliver the changing curriculum. 

 
Special Education Needs (SEN) Provision 

 
8.3 Support for pupils with SEN will be provided by Denbighshire County for 

pupils who experience difficulties because of the proposed change. At the 
time of the last school census (January 2013) 7 pupils attended Ysgol 
Clocaenog or Ysgol Cyffylliog and were registered as requiring either school 
action plus or school action. There were no statemented pupils at either 
school. Estyn agree that the move to a Single Site Area School (Phase 2) will 
result in greater change, particularly for pupils with SEN.  

 
8.4 Denbighshire County Council will take all practicable steps to minimise 

disruption for all pupils by working closely with the Head teacher and 
Temporary Governing Body. Additional support will be provided, if required, to 
assist pupils with the transition. 

 
Standards 

 
8.5 In its most recent report on Ysgol Clocaenog, Estyn found that in 

assessments at the end of the Foundation Phase in 2012, in comparison with 
schools that have similar levels in terms of entitlement to free school meals, 
the school was performing lower than its statistical family, local authority and 
all-Wales averages in language, literacy and communication and in personal 
and social development and wellbeing and cultural diversity. The percentages 
who achieved outcomes 5 and 6 in mathematics were higher than family, local 
authority and all-Wales averages.  

 
8.6 In key stage 2 over the last three years, the school’s performance in english, 

mathematics and science had been consistently higher than the averages for 

Tudalen 24



 

 

Wales and similar schools. The school’s performance in welsh, apart from in 
2009, has been lower. Achievements at level 5 in all subjects have been lower 
than the average figures for the family and Wales in the last three years.  

 
8.7 Estyn’s most recent report on Ysgol Cyffylliog found that numbers in every 

year group were very small in key stage 1 and key stage 2, therefore end of 
key stage results have to be treated with care because one pupil’s results can 
have a substantial impact on the school’s performance.  

 
8.8 Estyn found that over the last four years, the results of teacher assessments 

at the end of key stage 1 had improved, and since 2008 have been 100% in 
terms of the number attaining level 2 (the expected level) in every indicator. 
This places the school in the top 25% in comparison with schools with similar 
percentage of pupils entitled to free school meals, and better than the results 
of the family of schools, the local authority and all-Wales.  

 
8.9 Over the same period, the performance at key stage 2 has been inconsistent. 

Results in welsh and mathematics have placed the school in the bottom 
quarter of similar schools in three of the last four years.  

 
8.10 It is Estyn’s opinion that the proposal realistically considers that the new 

arrangements will provide additional teaching capacity for smaller groups of 
pupils who are in need of extra support; including greater capacity for more 
able and talented pupils.  In addition, there will be opportunities for pupils to 
be taught within a reduced age range.  The proposal does not include an 
evaluation of teaching; however Estyn, in its most recent reports, judged it to 
be good at Ysgol Clocaenog and good at Ysgol Cyffylliog (Estyn Monitoring 
visit November 2013). 

 
8.11 It is Estyn’s opinion that: 

• The proposal reasonably expects that the new arrangements will lead to 
a raise in standards through teachers working together to plan and 
prepare high quality lessons, by undertaking peer observations of the 
best teachers and by sharing resources to enable more efficient and 
innovative ways of working. 

• The proposed new arrangements may reasonably be expected to see the 
development of better leadership and management structures, to provide 
increased opportunities for staff development and progression, and 
reduce the current difficulty in recruiting head teachers.   

• The proposal has considered appropriately the new leadership and 
management arrangements. The new arrangements would call for one 
Governing Body, one executive head teacher and one group of staff.  
Prior to the opening of the Area School, on 1st September, a Temporary 
Governing Body would be established to take key decisions such as the 
appointment of the head teacher.    

 
Curriculum Delivery 

 
8.12 Objectors have questioned the impact of educating children on two sites and 

identify the disruption transporting from one site to another will have on their 

Tudalen 25



 

 

children’s education. In the formal consultation document Denbighshire 
County Council proposed KS1 to be located in Cyffylliog and KS2 in 
Clocaenog as a means of accommodating all pupils and reducing the taught 
age range.  

 
8.13 Following consideration of responses from the formal consultation, 

Denbighshire County Council listened to the views of parents and will now 
adopt a more flexible approach. Denbighshire County Council will work closely 
with the Temporary Governing Body and the new Head teacher to find a 
classroom configuration which will work for curriculum delivery and staff.  

 
8.14 The proposal states that both sites are in need of significant investment to 

enable them to provide a learning environment fit for purpose to meet the 
requirements of the 21st Century Schools Programme.  Objectors question 
this statement and have stated that the building in Cyffylliog is fit for purpose. 
Neither school has adequate indoor sports facilities for pupils. Both schools 
access nearby playing fields to use as outdoor sports facilities.  The 
development of a new school in phase two would provide indoor sports 
facilities which would enable the school to offer pupils a broad range of 
experiences in physical education.   

 
 
9.0  Need for places and the impact on the accessibility of schools 
 
9.1 Within the Ruthin area there are Welsh Medium, English Medium and Dual 

Stream provision. The outcomes from each language category are as follows: 
 

Category Outcomes 

Welsh Medium (1) The normal expectation is that pupils, regardless of home 
language, will be able to transfer easily to Welsh medium 
Secondary provision and by the end of Key Stage 2 will have 
reached a standard in English equivalent to that reached by 
pupils in predominantly English medium schools. 

English Medium (5) The normal expectation is that pupils will transfer to English 
medium secondary provision and continue to learn 
predominantly through the medium of English, learning 
Welsh as a second language. 
 

Bilingual 
(Dual Stream) 

For pupils in the Welsh stream, normal expectations are as 
for category 1. For pupils in the English medium stream, 
normal expectations are as for category 5. 

 
 

9.2 The wider proposals ensure that the area will retain English, Welsh, and Faith 
provision in a mix of rural and town locations. The informal consultation 
involved all 11 schools and the diocesan authority. 

 
9.3 The proposal is likely to have limited impact on other schools in the area. 

Denbighshire County Council anticipates that, following completion of the first 

Tudalen 26



 

 

phase, the majority of pupils attending the Clocaenog and Cyffylliog sites of 
the 
Area School would transfer to the New Area School. The proposal identifies 
other available primary schools for those parents or guardians who choose to 
send their children elsewhere.  These schools have 78 combined surplus 
places.   

  
9.4 There is expected to be limited impact on secondary provision in the area.  

Both schools currently feed Ysgol Brynhyfryd, which the proposal states could 
expect to see an increase in pupils for the welsh medium stream due to the 

new primary school being a welsh‐medium primary School where at least 70% 
of the teaching is through the medium of welsh. 

 
9.5 In phase one; the current proposals will create additional transport costs as 

pupils are transported from their home to their designated site for the period 
that the school stays on two sites.   

 
9.6 In phase two, in line with the current transport policy, pupils would receive free 

home to school transport, if they live more than 2 miles from the new school.  
Existing pupils living more than two miles away from the new school will 
receive free transport while they remain at the new school even if the new 
location isn’t their nearest suitable school.  This may not be the case if their 
home address changes. 

 
9.7 It has been demonstrated that some pupils will travel further to their school as 

a result of this proposal due to their classroom being on an alternative site. 
Free home (Home School) to school transport will be provided for pupils in 
accordance to Denbighshire County Council Transport Policy and journey 
times will remain below 45 minutes which is in accordance to Welsh 
Government expectations. 

 
9.8 Objectors have questioned the suitability of the road network for transporting 

pupils and have identified the congestion that this proposal will create. The 
Council acknowledges that the proposal will increase transport along a rural 
road. The road is already used by public transport buses to provide the 
number 70 Ruthin area service (Ruthin to Betws GG via Clawddnewydd, 
Clocaenog, Bontuchel and Cyffylliog). 

 
9.9 Estyn state that “The proposer appears to have given reasonable 

consideration to the impact of the proposal on pupils’ travel arrangements and 
their ability to access the provision”. 

 
10.0 Resourcing of education 

 
10.1 Currently Ysgol Clocaenog cost per pupil is £5,342 and Ysgol Cyffylliog cost 

per pupil is £7,857 per annum. It has been estimated that the average cost 
per pupil will be between £6,000 and £6,500 per pupil as a result of this 
proposal. This is higher than the Denbighshire average of £3,951 per pupil. 

 

Tudalen 27



 

 

10.2 The budget for the new area school has been estimated as £413k a net 
increase of £24k on the current combined total budget of £389k (2013 – 14). 
The budget for every school in Denbighshire is derived from the same funding 
formula and the final budget will be dependent on the pupil numbers attending 
the school. It has been identified that revenue savings will be generated on 
implementing a second phase of moving the school to one site.  

 
10.3 This proposal represents a more efficient use of teaching space on both sites. 

The area school would provide an overall capacity across all the age ranges 
of 81 full time places and 10 part time places. Based on current projections for 
2014 and assuming all pupils transfer to the area school, this would leave a 
surplus of 17 places.  

 
10.4 The current proposal will cost more than the current provision. Neither school 

are projected to be in financial deficit based upon their existing 3 year plan. 
Additional transport cost of up to £40k per annum would be as a result of 
providing additional transport between sites based upon the maximum 
number of pupils requiring additional transport. 

 
10.5 There would not be any significant capital costs or savings from implementing 

this current proposal. The implementation of the second phase would require 
capital expenditure which has been agreed in principle in the capital plan and 
would generate revenue savings from the reduction of sites. 

 
11.0 Other general factors 
 
11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been conducted and has identified that 

the proposal would not result in any significant equalities issues.  
 
11.2 In the most recent Estyn reports, the catchment of both schools is identified as 

neither prosperous nor economically disadvantaged. 
 
11.3 Both schools are in the freehold ownership of Denbighshire County Council. 
 
12.0 Specific factors in the consideration of school closures 
 

12.1 Objectors stated that this proposal will have a detrimental effect on the 

community. The school building in Cyffylliog is currently used for weekly 

community activities although the school building in Clocaenog is not. As the 

current proposal will result in both existing school sites remaining in use 

Denbighshire County Council assess this as a neutral effect.  

 

12.2 In preparing this proposal, consideration was given to other options: 

Option 1.1 Maintain the status quo; 
Option 1.2 Federate both Schools 
Option 1.3 Undertake extension works at Ysgol Clocaenog; 
Option 1.4 Close both Schools and establish an area school on the existing 

sites. 

Tudalen 28



 

 

Option 1.5 Close both Schools establish an Area School on existing sites 
prior to building a new Area School; 

 

12.3 The advantages and disadvantages of each option which were considered by 

the Council were detailed in the consultation report. 

 

12.4 When a new area school building is constructed the area school will no longer 

be a multi-site school. Retaining both buildings would not address the deficit in 

facilities that both schools currently have. This is also one of the key reasons 

why a federation wasn’t pursued.  

 

12.5 When the existing sites are closed, both properties will be declared as surplus 

to education requirements. Officers from Denbighshire County Council will 

work with the local community to understand the need and support to retain 

community activities.  

 

13.0 Specific factors in the consideration of proposals for the change of 
language medium 

 

13.1 The proposal would see the new school categorised as a welsh‐medium 
primary school where at least 70% of the teaching is through the medium of 
welsh. The proposal states  the normal expectation is that pupils, regardless 
of home language, will be able to transfer easily to welsh medium secondary 
provision and by the end of key stage 2 will have reached a standard in 
english equivalent to that reached by pupils in predominantly english medium 
schools. 

 
13.2 Objectors have stated that they will send their children to another school due 

to the proposed change in language category. The proposal to change the 
language is based upon the evidence of use with 89% of pupils assessed at 
the end of key stage 2 at both schools being assessed in medium of welsh 
and english.  

 
13.3 Since 2008, the following number of pupils have been assessed at the end of 

key stage 2 at each school: 
  

School Welsh medium cohort English medium cohort Total 

Ysgol Clocaenog 20 0 20 

Ysgol Cyffylliog 13 4 17 

 
13.4 Outcome 1 of Denbighshire County Council Welsh Education Strategic Plan 

has set a target to increase and sustain the number of seven year olds being 
taught through the medium of welsh. As one of only three welsh medium 
schools in the Ruthin area the new area school will contribute towards the 
objective of the strategic plan. 

 

Tudalen 29



Tudalen 30

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Denbighshire County Council/Modernising Education/Clocaenog and Cyffylliog/Objections Report Appendix 2

04/02/14

Number of objections received:   

16

Point Raised LA Response

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

W
ri

tt
e
n

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 R

a
is

in
g

 

P
o

in
t

%
 o

f 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 

R
a
is

in
g

 P
o

in
t

1 We are happy with current provision. Don't agree with the proposal. The review has concluded that retaining the Status Quo is not the preferred option. Ysgol Cyffylliog is currently a very 

small school and retaining the school would not address any of the issues identified as part of the Ruthin review.

10 63%

2 The Ysgol Cyffylliog building is fit for purpose. The authority is of the view that investment will be required in Ysgol Cyffylliog should the school remain open in the 

medium term. The recent condition survey for the school ranked the school building as "Poor". The school requires 

investment in catering facilities and doesn't have an indoor space suitable for use for physical education.  Ysgol Cyffylliog 

is the worst performing building within the Ruthin area review in terms of energy use per m2 (£16/m2).

2 13%

3 The proposal will have a detrimental effect on the education of the children as 

the process is disruptive.

The authority will work closely with the Temporary Governing Body and the new Head teacher to make arrangements for 

the new school and to minimise disruption for pupils. Estyn have determined that this proposal will at least maintain the 

present standards of education  provision. 

1 6%

4 The proposal will fail in its aims to save money and will not reduce overall 

environmental impact.

The authority is of the opinion that this proposal is the best option for retaining primary education provision in the 

Clocaenog/Cyffylliog area. The aim as set out in the informal consultation document is to ensure the education provision 

is of the right type, in the right place and of the right size. The authority acknowledges that the current proposal will cost 

more financially and environmentally but has demonstrated that the second phase would address both of these issues.

2 13%

5 The proposal doesn't provide greater economy due to additional transport costs 

and a new school will cost over £1m.

The authority has acknowledged that this option isn't the 'cheap' option. This proposal has educational benefits that 

include reducing the age range taught together, increasing the teaching capacity and developing a more robust 

leadership and management structure. Whilst the provision of any new school is outside the direct remit of this proposal 

investing in a new building would provide a fit for purpose modern facility that would ensure parity of facilities to pupils 

from a rural area. 

4 25%

6 The carbon footprint of the schools will increase because of the additional travel 

and embodied energy of the new building. 

It is acknowledged that the carbon footprint of the new area school will be higher than current provision due to the 

additional transport that will be provided. The authority will work with the Temporary Governing Body to minimise 

disruption in terms of where year groups are based for teaching. 

2 13%

7 Retaining use of the existing Ysgol Cyffylliog site is more cost effective as a 

modest investment would reduce environmental impact.

The authority acknowledges that investing in reducing environmental impact in Ysgol Cyffylliog would reduce the running 

costs of Ysgol Cyffylliog. However the authority doesn't believe that upgrading the current building fabric is best use of 

resources as the current building would require a disproportionate amount of funding in comparison to other better 

performing school buildings.  

2 13%

8 The proposal will increase transport with children moved backwards and 

forwards between two sites. This is disruptive for children, expensive, increasing 

risk and environmentally damaging.

It is acknowledged that this proposal will mean that some pupils will travel between the two sites. The extent of how many 

pupils will travel will be the decision for the Temporary Governing Body and Head teacher as they will decide which age 

groups are taught on each site.

8 50%

9 A new area school will fail to serve the needs of families in the Cyffylliog area. 

The road connection is not a suitable route for buses, taxis, staff of parents and 

will create congestion.

The road between Clocaenog and Cyffylliog is a small rural lane. It is used by public transport service number 70 as part 

of its Ruthin local service.

5 31%

10 Prefer to federate both schools to overcome problem of recruiting Head 

teachers.

Federating both school wouldn't address the issues of surplus/deficit in space in each school or the overall deficit in 

facilities.

2 13%

11 Ysgol Clocaenog school should have an extension or a bigger school. It would be difficult to justify investment in Ysgol Clocaenog without considering the impact on nearby schools and the 

current large surplus at Ysgol Cyffylliog. Providing a new school for Ysgol Clocaenog would not ensure parity of facilities 

for Cyffylliog and could undermine the catchment of Ysgol Cyffylliog which already is a very small school. 

1 6%

12 Investment in renewable energy would reduce running costs of Ysgol Cyffylliog. The authority acknowledges that investing in reducing the environmental impact of Ysgol Cyffylliog would reduce the 

running costs of the school. Further work would be required to determine if any upgrade of the building fabric is viable.

1 6%

13 The population of Cyffylliog is forecast to grow and the school is projected to 

have as few as 10 surplus places by 2017.

The authority acknowledges that Ysgol Cyffylliog is projected to grow. If the school were to grow to 35 pupils it would 

remain a small school with a small catchment area and vulnerable to future fluctuations in pupil numbers .

3 19%

14 Parents will send their children to another school as it will not be bilingual.  It is not anticipated that the standards of outcomes in English and Welsh will be significantly changed by the proposal. 

The normal expectation for pupils attending a welsh medium school is that pupils, regardless of home language, will be 

able to transfer easily to Welsh Medium secondary provision and by the end of junior stage will have reached a standard 

in English equivalent to that reached by pupils in predominantly English medium schools.

8 50%

15 There should be land bought by now if you are proposing to open a new school 

for September 2015. 

The Cabinet confirmed their commitment to work towards delivering a new area school on one site subject to the 

availability of capital funding at their meeting on the 17th of December 2013. The authority hasn't committed to opening a 

new area school in September 2015 as the final decision to establish a new area school has not been made.

1 6%

16 The major concerns and questions of parents and governors haven't been 

answered.

All responses submitted during the consultation periods have been considered by the decision makers. Responses have 

been provided to all questions and comments raised both in the Cabinet report 17 December 2013 - Appendix E and in 

parent meetings arranged in the school.

3 19%

17 Why haven't you considered putting portacabins at the Clocaenog school until a 

new school is built.

It is Denbighshire County Council policy to remove temporary accommodation from schools. There is a significant 

installation cost for bringing a temporary building on site and an ongoing monthly rental cost. In addition there needs to be 

space on site to locate the building. Installing temporary accommodation 4.3 miles from a school with a significant surplus 

is not in the opinion of the authority best use of resources. The lack of space to locate a building at Ysgol Clocaenog 

eliminates this as a feasible option.

2 13%

18 Parents will move their children to other schools as they do not want their 

siblings to be split across two sites.

It is the intention of the Authority for all pupils to be retained in the area school.  Although some siblings will be located on 

different sites the exact configuration will not be determined until the Head teacher and Temporary Governing Body have 

been appointed.

5 31%

19  Is it the intention of Denbighshire County Council for parents to move their 

children for town schools so you can avoid building a new school?

Denbighshire County Council Cabinet have approved an overarching vision for the Ruthin area which retains a mix of 

both rural and town schools. A new area school has been identified as the best option for the Clocaenog and Cyffylliog 

area due to the fact that most roads in the area are uncategorized and the travel time to Ruthin is increased as a result. 

As part of the proposal we would wish to retain where possible all pupils within the Clocaenog / Cyffylliog area. 

1 6%

20 People feel pressurized into accepting the proposals. The Authority accepts that this proposal has not been accepted by all parties although the majority of respondents during 

the formal consultation period supported the proposal.  In many instances the community are concerned over the 

implications of proposals and should this proposal be implemented the authority will work with the Temporary Governing 

Body to reduce such concerns.  The Temporary Governing Body will also need to ensure that the new area school serves 

both communities.

1 6%

21 Locating a new school in Clawddnewydd would be more acceptable because of 

better access and it is easier to be reached.

Locating a school in Clawddnewydd would mean that children living in the village of Cyffylliog would not be eligible for free 

home to school transport to the new school as it would not be their nearest suitable school

1 6%

22 Conduct of officers hasn't been professional. No acknowledgement has been 

provided to emails and letters that have been received. At the start of one 

meeting everyone was notified when the meeting would end before being 

welcomed.

All correspondence was acknowledged when an email address was provided. The Council has sought to be professional 

in its approach to holding meetings on what is a very difficult subject for all concerned.

1 6%

23 Not enough detail about education, wellbeing of pupils or importance of life in 

the countryside within the one side of A4 (Statutory Notice).

The Statutory notice follows a Welsh Government template. During the formal consultation a document was produced 

which addressed the details of the proposal and this is referenced on the statutory notice with details of the Council's 

website for Modernising Education

1 6%

24 Closing the school will be detrimental to the community. It is the heart of the 

community.

The review has concluded that retaining the Status Quo is not an option. As the current site will remain open as a result of 

the current proposal it has been determined that the proposal will have a neutral impact on the community.

7 44%

25 The consultation process was just a smoke screen and that decisions had 

already been made.

The Authority have followed the requirements of the School Organisation Code during the consultation period. At each 

stage of decision making the process has been considered as robust and all relevant issues have been considered by 

elected members before making any decision to proceed.

1 6%

26 The closure of Ysgol Llanbedr could lead to additional demand for non-Welsh 

medium education in small schools in the wider Ruthin area.

The review has concluded that sufficient capacity will remain for welsh and non-welsh provision in the Ruthin area should 

all proposals be approved

1 6%

27 There is no clear timetable for a single site school and funding for such a 

scheme is likely to be challenging. 

The Cabinet confirmed their commitment to work towards delivering a new area school on one site subject to the 

availability of capital funding at their meeting on the 17th of December 2013.  The Council has a commitment to investing 

in school buildings as part of its Corporate Plan.

1 6%

Objections to the Proposal to Close Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog and to establish a new area school 

Includes:

Under section 49 of the 2013 Act proposers must publish a summary of the statutory objections and the proposer's response to those objections ("the Objections Report"). 

Page 1 of 1Tudalen 31



Tudalen 32

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

  

Modernising Education Programme

Review of Primary School Provision in the Ruthin Area

Formal Consultation

Proposal for a new Area School to replace

Ysgol Clocaenog 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Modernising Education Programme 

 

Review of Primary School Provision in the Ruthin Area

 

Formal Consultation Document

Proposal for a new Area School to replace

Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog 

 

September 2013 

 

Version: 20/08/2013 

Appendix A 

 

Review of Primary School Provision in the Ruthin Area 

Document 

Proposal for a new Area School to replace 

Tudalen 33



1 

 

Contents  

 

No Description Page No 

Introduction  

1.  Introduction 2 

2.  Summary of proposal 2 

3.  Consultation Process 3 

4.  Power to make a decision 4 

Background Information  

5.  Background to the proposal 4 

6.  Current Provision 5 

7.  Educational attainment 11 

8.  Alternative provision 11 

9.  Secondary provision 13 

10.  Special educational needs provision 13 

The Proposal  

11.  The proposal in detail 14 

12.  What is the proposed option? 15 

13.  Admission arrangements 18 

14.  What are the transport implications of this proposal? 18 

15.  What are the staffing implications of this proposal? 18 

16.  What are the financial implications of this proposal? 19 

17.  What are the considerations for Phase 2? 20 

18.  How would any new school buildings be financed? 21 

19.  What are the disadvantages of this proposal? 23 

20.  Alternative options 24 

21.  Explanation of the statutory process 28 

22.  Community, Welsh Language and Equality assessment 29 

23.  Response Form 29 

 

  

Tudalen 34



2 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 Denbighshire County Council has completed an Informal Consultation with eleven 

primary schools in the Ruthin Area. 

 

1.2 As a consequence of the informal consultation exercise Denbighshire County 

Council wish formally to consult with all interested parties on a proposal which they 

consider would strengthen future provision. 

 

1.3 The proposal that: 

 

Denbighshire County Council would close Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog on 

the 31
st

 August 2014; and establish a new Area School on the existing sites from 

the 1
st

 of September 2014. 

 

2. Summary of proposal 

 

 First Phase 

 

2.1 This formal consultation relates to a proposal to create the New Area School to 

serve both Clocaenog and Cyffylliog Communities. Throughout this document, this 

proposal is called the Current Proposal. 

 

2.2 If the Current Proposal is agreed and implemented the first phase would see the 

existing Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog close on 31
st

 August 2014.  The Area 

School would open on 1
st

 September and would initially use the existing buildings in 

Clocaenog and Cyffylliog.  The Cyffylliog site (the former Ysgol Cyffylliog) would 

offer Key Stage 1 (4 – 7 Years old) provision whilst the Clocaenog site (the former 

Ysgol Clocaenog) would offer Key Stage 2 (7 – 11 years old) provision.  Throughout 

this document the creation of the Dual-Site Area School is called the First Phase. 

 

 

 

 

Second Phase 

 

2.3 The next phase would see the Area School consolidated on a new site in the 

Clocaenog area, subject to land availability and suitability. 

 

2.4 Throughout this document the movement onto a new site is called the Second 

Phase and the school operating from the new site is called the New Area School.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key Point: On the 1
st
 of September 2014 the Area School will open with Key Stage 1 (4-7 years old) 

based in Cyffylliog and Key Stage 2 (7 – 11 years old) based in Clocaenog. 

Key Point: The new school will be built in the Clocaenog area subject to suitable land being 

available.   

Tudalen 35



3 

 

3. Consultation Process 

 

3.1 This formal consultation process relates to the Current Proposal and both the First 

and Second Phase. This formal consultation is being carried out to ensure that all 

relevant parties have an opportunity to contribute to this important subject.   

 

3.2 This formal consultation document has been sent to a wide range of potential 

consultees including: 

a. Parents, teachers and ancillary staff of Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog; 

b. Chair of Governors and School Council of the following schools: 

  i) Ysgol Clocaenog; 

ii) Ysgol Cyffylliog; 

iii) Ysgol Pant Pastynog; 

iv) Ysgol Pen Barras; 

v) Ysgol Rhewl; 

vi) Ysgol Bro Cinmeirch; 

c. Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph and Roman Catholic Diocese of 

Wrexham; 

d. Headteachers and Chairs of Governors of all Denbighshire Schools; 

e. Independent nursery providers in the Ruthin area; 

f. Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership and the Early Years 

Development and Childcare Partnerships; 

g. All Denbighshire County Councillors; 

h. Assembly Members and Members of Parliament representing areas affected 

by the proposal; 

i. Cyngor Cymuned Clocaenog: 

j. Cyngor Cymuned Cyffylliog; 

k. Cyngor Cymuned Derwen; 

l. The Welsh Government; 

m. Estyn; and 

n. Relevant teaching and staff trades unions. 

o. Taith 

p. Gwasanaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion  

q. North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner 

 

3.3 This formal consultation document has also been published on the Denbighshire 

County Council website www.denbighshire.gov.uk
i
 

 

3.4 The formal consultation period in respect of the Current Proposal will take place 

between 9
th

 September and 22
nd

 of October 2013. 

 

3.5 A series of formal consultation events will take place during this period. These will 

be arranged in the format of a ‘parents evening’ where attendees will be able to 

speak with officers on a one to one basis. Details of the meetings are included in 

the letter which is circulated.  

   

Tudalen 36



4 

 

3.6 Events will also be held with children and young people at Ysgol Clocaenog and 

Ysgol Cyffylliog.   

 

3.7 A supplementary version
ii
 of this formal consultation document has been produced 

for and made available to children and young people who are likely to be affected 

by the Current Proposal.  The supplementary version has been written specifically 

to enable children and young people to understand better and engage with the 

formal consultation. 

 

3.8 You are welcome to ask questions and let us have your views on the Current 

Proposal at the events mentioned above or to put your views in writing.  Responses 

should be sent to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County 

Council, County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL15 1YN or by e-mail to 

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk by no later than 22
nd

 October 2013. 

 

3.9 At the end of the formal consultation period all views received will be collated and 

considered before any recommendation is made to proceed to the next stage and 

issue a statutory notice. 

 

3.10 It is anticipated that Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet will consider a report 

on the outcome of this formal consultation (including a recommendation from 

Council officers) on the 17
th

 December 2013.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Power to make a decision 

 

4.1 Denbighshire County Council is permitted to publish proposals to establish a new 

area school according to the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013
iii
.  

Accordingly, the formal publication of the closure of the two existing schools may 

be carried out by the Council following the correct statutory procedure. 

 

5. Background to the proposal 

 

5.1 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the Modernising Education Policy 

Framework
iv
 in January 2009 to provide a platform upon which to review existing 

school provision. 

 

5.2 The council is committed to providing a first class education for all children and 

young people in the county. As part of this commitment, the Council has agreed 

Key Points:  

• Formal Consultation starts on the 9
th

 of September 2013 and finishes on the 22
nd

 of 

October. 

• We are consulting with all stakeholders including children attending the schools.  

• We intend to report back to Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet on the 17
th

 of 

December 2013. 

Tudalen 37



5 

 

that ‘modernising education provision’ is a priority because we recognise the 

importance of having school buildings, learning environments and resources that 

meet the needs of 21st century Wales. 

 

5.3 We know that we have to change and modernise education provision in the county, 

as improvements in education cannot be sustained without changes to the way 

education is provided.  Schools need to be able to provide the best possible 

learning experience so that children and young people in Denbighshire have the 

widest opportunities available to them and are able to reach their full potential. 

 

5.4 In November 2012 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the 

commencement of an informal consultation on the future of primary education in 

the Ruthin Review.  The informal consultation document highlighted a number of 

issues that needed to be addressed to achieve long term sustainability.  These 

included: 

a. Sustainability of Schools and High Quality Provision  

b. Surplus Places  

c. Condition and Suitability of School Buildings (incl. use of Mobile Accommodation) 

d. Recruitment of Head Teachers 

e. Demand for Welsh Medium Education 

 

5.5 The informal consultation ended on 22
nd

 of March 2013 and Denbighshire County 

Council has carefully considered the issues raised during this period.  In total over 

63 letters and emails were received from stakeholders together with 195 

questionnaires completed by parents.  The findings of the informal consultation 

exercise have been compiled by the council and have been published on its website 

as part of the decision making process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. Current Provision 

 

6.1 This section details the current provision at Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog.   

 

Ysgol Clocaenog 

 

6.2 Ysgol Clocaenog is located in the centre of the village of Clocaenog and serves an 

age range of 4 – 11 years old. It is a Community Primary School predominately 

Key Points:  

• Modernising Education is a Denbighshire County Council priority. 

• Issues identified as needing  to be addressed are: 

o Sustainability of Schools and High Quality Provision 

o Surplus Places 

o Condition and suitability of School Buildings (Inc. use of Mobile Accommodation) 

o Recruitment of Head Teachers 

o Demand for Welsh Medium Education 

• The report of the informal consultation is published on our website. 

Tudalen 38



6 

 

serving from the villages of Clocaenog, Clawddnewydd and Derwen and the 

surrounding area. This is illustrated in the diagram below which shows the postcode 

location of the home address for each pupil. 

 

 

Tudalen 39



7 

 

6.3 As of January 2013 Ysgol Clocaenog had 36 full time pupils.  The pupil numbers has 

increased over recent years as illustrated below: 
 

Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

25 27 31 33 36 
 

6.4 As of January 2013 the number of pupils in each year group was as follows: 
 

Reception  Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

7 6 6 7 5 1 4 

 

6.5 The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that an increase in future pupil 

numbers will occur at the school as illustrated below: 
 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

39 45 47 47 48 

 

Note: The Admissions arrangements would be required to limit the number of 

admissions to the school to 5 per year group and additional pupils would be 

required to be accommodated in alternative schools. 
 

6.6 The capacity of the school building has been calculated at 36 pupils.  As of January 

2013 the school had 0 surplus (empty) places; equivalent to 0% of the total 

capacity.  The school is operating at capacity. 
 

6.7 Educational Standards at the school are good. The school’s last Estyn Inspection 

was in October 2012
v
 and the inspection report in summary commented as follows: 

 

Current performance 

The school is good because: 

• pupils achieve good standards; 

• the school provides a range of interesting and varied learning experiences that 

meet pupils’ needs; 

• teaching is of good quality; 

• effective leadership and an inclusive ethos create the best possible conditions for 

every individual to develop and thrive; and 

• partnerships with parents and the local community are a strength. 
 

Prospects for improvement 

Prospects for improvement are good because: 

• there is a clear vision that is conveyed successfully to staff, pupils, governors and 

parents; 

• the school knows its own performance well; 

• the headteacher, staff and governors are committed to continuous improvement; 

• planning for improvement focuses on raising standards; and 

• there is a willingness to continue to work with other schools in the cluster as an 

effective learning community. 

Tudalen 40



8 

 

Key Question  Ysgol Clocaenog Inspection Judgement 

1. How good are the outcomes? Good 

2. How good is provision? Good 

3. How good are leadership and 

management? 

Good 

The school’s current performance Good 

The school’s prospects for improvement Good 

Key: 

Excellent  Many strengths, including significant examples of sector leading practice 

Good  Many strengths and no important areas requiring significant improvement 

Adequate Strengths outweigh areas for improvement 

Unsatisfactory Important areas for improvement outweigh strengths 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ysgol Cyffylliog 

 

6.8 Ysgol Cyffylliog is located within the village of Cyffylliog and serves an age range of 

4-11.  The school serves predominately children from Cyffylliog, Bontuchel and the 

surrounding area. This is illustrated in the diagram on page 9 which shows the 

postcode location of the home address for each pupil. 

 

6.9 As of January 2013 Ysgol Cyffylliog had 19 full time pupils.  The pupil numbers have 

fluctuated over recent years as illustrated below: 

 

Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

23 20 22 26 19 

 

6.10 As of January 2013 the number of pupils in each year group was as follows: 

 

Reception  Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

5 4 5 1 3 1 0 

 

6.11 The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that an increase in future pupil 

numbers will occur at the school as illustrated below: 

 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

25 29 31 35 35 

Key Points:  

• Ysgol Clocaenog has 36 full time pupils on roll and a capacity of 36 places. 

• Surplus places are zero. 

• Projections indicate the school will be significantly oversubscribed by 2018. 

• Estyn identified the school’s educational standards as good in October 2012. 

Tudalen 41



9 

 

6.12 The capacity of the school building has been calculated at 45 pupils.  As of January 

2013 the school had 26 surplus (empty) places; equivalent to 57% of the total 

capacity.   

 

 

Tudalen 42



10 

 

6.13 Educational Standards at the school are adequate. The school was inspected by 

Estyn in March 2011. The inspection report in summary commented as follows: 

 

Current performance 

The school is adequate because: 

• all pupils make appropriate progress during their time at the school;  

• attendance is very good and pupils enjoy coming to school;  

• pupils enjoy a good range of interesting activities;  

• equal opportunity is provided for all pupils in an inclusive school;  

• the results of end of key stage 2 assessments have been inconsistent;  

• reading and writing skills in Welsh at key stage 2 are adequate;  

• the more able pupils are not challenged sufficiently to reach their potential.  

• planning for teaching the skills and also the arrangements for assessment and 

assessment for learning are adequate, and  

• the school does not conform fully with the requirements for safeguarding 

children.  

 

Prospects for improvement 

Prospects for improvement are adequate because: 

• the commitment of the head teacher and staff to the pupils and school is sincere; 

• parents and governors are very supportive of the work of the school; 

• the school has good links with a wide range of partners; 

• progress in response to the recommendations of the last inspection has been 

inconsistent; 

• a number of the school’s managerial procedures do not have enough impact on 

improving pupils’ standards. 

 

Key Question  Ysgol Cyffylliog Inspection Judgement 

1. How good are the outcomes? Adequate 

2. How good is provision? Adequate 

3. How good are leadership and management? Adequate 

The school’s current performance Adequate 

The school’s prospects for improvement Adequate 

 

Key: 

Excellent  Many strengths, including significant examples of sector leading practice 

Good  Many strengths and no important areas requiring significant improvement 

Adequate Strengths outweigh areas for improvement 

Unsatisfactory Important areas for improvement outweigh strengths 

 

Estyn Monitoring 

As a result of the adequate judgment in the March 2011, the school were requested to 

produce an action plan that shows how it will address the recommendations. As a result 

Estyn monitor the school’s progress. 

 

Tudalen 43



11 

 

Result of the reinspection: May 2012 

Ysgol Cyffylliog has not made enough progress in the key areas for action that were 

identified in the Section 28 inspection of the school in May 2012. As a result, and in line 

with the Education Act 2005, Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector for Education and Training in 

Wales is of the opinion that the school needs significant improvement. The school will 

produce an action plan that will show how it will address the recommendations. Estyn will 

monitor the school’s progress for a further 12 months. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. Educational attainment 

 

7.1 Educational standards at both schools over the past three years are shown below. 

However as a result of very small cohorts in each year a meaningful comparison 

with local and national averages is not possible 

   

% achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Ysgol Clocaenog 33.3% 75.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Ysgol Cyffylliog 50.0% 100% 50.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire 76.50% 76.80% 78.10% 82.30% 83.50% 

Wales – Average 75.50% 77.00% 78.20% 80.00% 82.60% 

 

 

 

 

 

8. Alternative provision  

 

8.1 Should the Current Proposal proceed, Denbighshire County Council would wish to 

see all pupils transfer to the New Area School to ensure that they continue to 

receive their education in a rural area and to a consistently high standard. 

 

8.2 However, due to the nature of road links in the area parents/guardians could wish 

to choose alternative provision. The distance between Clocaenog and Cyffylliog is 

4.3 miles.  Accordingly, this section provides details of potential alternative, local 

authority maintained, provision on the periphery of the catchment areas of the 

existing schools.  The nearest alternative school for villages within the area are as 

follows:  

Key points: 

• Ysgol Cyffylliog has 19 full time pupils and a capacity of 45 places. 

• There are 26 surplus places at the school. 

• It is projected there will be 35 pupils at the school by 2018. 

• Estyn identified the schools educational performance as adequate in March 2011.  

• The school is currently monitored by Estyn. 

Key point: 

Due to small year groups a meaningful comparison with averages cannot be made. 

Tudalen 44



12 

 

School Name Distance from 

Ysgol 

Clocaenog 

Distance from 

Ysgol 

Cyffylliog 

Type of 

School 

Current 

Capacity 

Surplus 

Places 

Nursery 

Places 

Ysgol Pen Barras 5 miles 5 Miles 

Welsh / 

Community 252 32 36 

Ysgol Rhewl 5.9 miles 4.3 miles 

Bilingual / 

Community 82 27 11 

Ysgol Pant 

Pastynog 7.6 miles 3.5 miles 

Welsh / 

Faith (VC) 54 1 7 

Ysgol Bro 

Cinmeirch 6.8 miles 4.4 miles 

Welsh / 

Community 80 18 11 

 

% achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2 

 

 School Name 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Ysgol Pen Barras 97.00% 92% 97.14% 90% 96.77% 

Ysgol Rhewl 100% 66.70% 100% 100% 100% 

Ysgol Pant 

Pastynog 

66.70% 66.70% 50% 75% 100% 

Ysgol Bro Cinmeirch 100% 100% 100% 80% 100% 

 

Current Full Time Pupil Numbers 

  

 School Name Reception Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Total 

Ysgol Pen Barras 35 32 38 22 34 27 35 223 

Ysgol Rhewl 10 7 6 10 11 4 7 55 

Ysgol Pant Pastynog 7 8 10 5 8 8 7 53 

Ysgol Bro Cinmeirch 12 9 11 8 8 2 12 62 

 

Pupil Numbers 2008 - 2012 

School Name 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Ysgol Pen Barras 216 217 215 216 219 

Ysgol Rhewl 34 41 34 34 37 

Ysgol Pant Pastynog 37 41 47 50 49 

Ysgol Bro Cinmeirch 46 46 51 56 57 

 

Projected Pupil Numbers 

School Name 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Ysgol Pen Barras 215 219 216 224 217 

Ysgol Rhewl 53 56 52 48 49 

Ysgol Pant Pastynog 59 60 62 68 68 

Ysgol Bro Cinmeirch 66 76 81 87 89 

 

 

 

 
Key point: There is alternative provision for communities within the wider area which may receive 

pupils as a consequence of this current proposal. 

Tudalen 45



13 

 

9. Secondary Provision 

 It is not expected that the Current proposal will have a significant impact on 

Secondary Provision in the area. Both Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog currently 

feed Ysgol Brynhyfryd and the new Area School will continue to feed Ysgol 

Brynhyfryd. The only implication for Ysgol Brynhyfryd would be an expected 

increase in pupils for the Welsh Medium stream due to the new school being a 

Category 1 school (Currently Clocaenog is Category 1 and Cyffylliog is Category 2). 

 

 

 

10. Special educational needs provision 

 

10.1 If the Current Proposal is approved and the KS1 and KS2 model endorsed change 

will be limited.  The two existing schools will become one new school but the pupils 

will continue to be taught on the existing sites. The most significant change for a 

pupil would be a change in site and teacher. Accordingly, any pupils with special 

educational needs (SEN) who currently attend the schools will continue to receive 

the same education and support but the environment may change.  The council will 

help pupils with SEN who experience difficulties because of the change. 

 

10.2 The council appreciates that Phase 2 proposal to move to a New Area School will 

result in greater change than operating one school on two sites.  This will affect all 

pupils but it is likely to prove even more challenging to pupils with SEN.  The council 

will take all practicable steps to minimise disruption and to assist such pupils with 

the transition.   

 

10.3 The facilities available at a New Area School will be designed in consultation with 

Denbighshire County Council’s SEN Education Officers, and the staff and pupils 

concerned.  It is anticipated that this approach will produce improved conditions 

and so learning experience for pupils with SEN. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key Points: 

• SEN Provision would be provided on both sites. 

• The environment for the pupils may change depending on current location and age 

group. 

• A new area school would provide an opportunity to improve facilities. 

Key Point: Only the language category of the school is likely to impact on Secondary provision. 

Tudalen 46



14 

 

11. The proposal in detail - description and rationale 

 

11.1 Denbighshire County Council has a responsibility to provide the best possible 

educational provision for children and young people. This proposal has been 

developed in line with: 

a. the Council’s commitment to ‘Modernising Education’; 

b. the School Effectiveness Framework’s aim of enabling all children and young 

people to develop their full potential; and  

c. the Welsh Assembly’s 21
st

 Century Schools Programme to improve school 

buildings and facilities. 

 

11.2 There are a number of issues facing both schools that could impact on their ability 

to sustain educational standards and experiences into the future. 

 

Educational case for change 

 

11.3 Financial constraints limit the capacity of small schools to implement senior 

leadership structures that meet the requirements of teachers pay and conditions.  

Currently neither school has an Assistant or Deputy Head teacher. The Current 

Proposal could see the development of leadership and management structures, to 

provide increased opportunities for staff development and progression. 

 

11.4 The Current Proposal will offer greater opportunities for the two schools to work 

together to improve staff expertise that will lead to raising standards.  For example: 

a. Teachers can work together to plan and prepare high quality lessons and 

standardise assessment and thus reducing the demands on individual 

teachers;  

b. Peer observation of the best teachers lessons to develop consistently high 

teaching practice, and 

c. Sharing resources to enable more efficient and innovative ways of working 

 

11.5 An Area school will provide additional teaching capacity for smaller groups of pupils 

who are in need of extra support; including greater capacity for more able and 

talented pupils. 

 

11.6 Currently pupils are taught in classes encompassing up to 4 age groups. A larger 

area school will provide opportunities for pupils to be taught within a reduced age 

range. 

 

11.7 Small schools are limited in their abilities to respond to fluctuations in pupil 

numbers by their schools structural and teaching capacity. A larger area school will 

be able to respond to fluctuations in pupil number that are a feature of rural 

schools. 

 

11.8 The Current Proposal would reduce the current difficulty in recruiting head 

teachers which lead to vacancies and temporary appointments 

 

Tudalen 47



15 

 

11.9 The two schools find it difficult to offer pupils a broad range of experiences in 

physical education; neither school has adequate indoor sports facilities for pupils. 

This will not be addressed by the Current proposal. 

 

Adequacy of existing school buildings and sites 

 

11.11 The condition of both schools is adequate. Both require investment to bring them 

up to a satisfactory standard. The Energy consumption per square meter are the 

highest within the review area (Clocaenog £15 / m2 and Cyffylliog £18 / m2).  

 

11.12 The catering facilities in both schools require investment. Space is limited in 

Cyffylliog and Clocaenog has meals cooked off site and consumed in a classroom. 

 

11.13 The capacity of individual classrooms within each school reduces their ability to 

respond to fluctuations in pupil numbers.  

 

11.14 Neither school have a hall space that can be used for Physical Education. Both 

schools can access fields located nearby each individual school but neither are 

owned by the schools. 

 

11.15 Both sites are in need of significant investment to enable both schools to provide a 

learning environment fit for purpose to meet the requirements of the 21
st

 Century 

Schools Programme.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12. What is the proposed option? 

 

12.1 This formal consultation relates to the Current Proposal, namely: to close Ysgol 

Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog to enable the establishment of an Area School 

serving the communities of Clocaenog, Cyffylliog and surrounding areas on the 

existing sites.  In summary, the Current Proposal relates to the First Phase which 

entails the creation of a Dual-Site Area School. 
 

12.2 A second phase, which will follow the completion of the current proposal, would 

involve construction of a new school building in a location to be determined in the 

Key points:  

• The age range of pupils taught together will be reduced. 

• Teaching capacity will increase. 

• Small schools have limited capacity to implement senior leadership structures. 

• Physical Education facilities are inadequate. 

• Both schools have access to playing fields. 

• Both school buildings would require significant investment to improve facilities. 

Tudalen 48



16 

 

Clocaenog area. Clocaenog is deemed geographically the central location of the 

catchment of the new area school  
 

What would this mean? 
 

12.3 If the Current Proposal was approved: 
 

a. Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog School would both close on 31
st

 August 

2014; and 

b. The Area School would open on 1
st

 September 2014 (initially on the existing 

sites in Clocaenog and Cyffylliog and utilising the existing buildings). 
 

12.4 All children attending Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog would transfer to the 

Area School; subject to parental preference.  Whilst the Area School remains on 

two sites pupils would be taught on the existing school sites. 
 

12.5 The Area School would have two distinct age ranges which would be linked to the 

particular sites.  Initially as part of the first phase, the existing buildings at the 

Clocaenog site would provide 7-11 provision (Key Stage 2) and the existing buildings 

at the Cyffylliog site 4-7 provision (Key Stage 1).  The table below shows the 

proposed capacity on the two sites, taking into account the change in use of 

teaching space: 
 

Capacity: Area School 

 Nursery 

(part time) 

Key Stage 1 

(full time) 

Key Stage 2 

(full time) 

Clocaenog site 
0 0 40 

Cyffylliog site 
10 35 0 

Total 
10 35 

 

40 

 

This would provide an overall capacity across all the age ranges of 75 full time 

places and 10 part time places.  Based on current projections for 2014 and 

assuming all pupils transfer to the Area school, this would leave a surplus of 11 

places. 

 

12.6 Pupils would be taught in classes of two age groups as follows:   

  - Nursery / Reception – Based in Cyffylliog 

  - Year 1 / Year 2 – Based in Cyffylliog 

  - Year 3 / Year 4 – Based in Clocaenog 

  - Year 5 / Year 6 – Based in Clocaenog 
 

12.7  In terms of the leadership and management of the Area School, as of 1
st

 September 

2014 there would be one Governing Body, one Executive Headteacher and one 

group of staff.  The Governing Body would include Parent, Denbighshire County 

Council, Teacher and Staff representation together with a number of Community 

Governors.  Prior to the opening of the Area School, on 1
st

 September, a Temporary 

Tudalen 49



17 

 

Governing Body would be established and this would take key decisions regarding 

the appointment of the Headteacher and the supportive leadership team, the 

staffing structure for and name of the Area School, uniform policies etc.  
 

12.8 The new school would be categorised as a Welsh-Medium Primary School where at 

least 70% of the teaching is through the medium of Welsh. Welsh would be the 

language of the day to day business of the school and in communication with 

pupils. The school would communicate with parents in both languages. The normal 

expectation is that pupils, regardless of home language, will be able to transfer 

easily to Welsh medium secondary provision and by the end of Key stage 2 will 

have reached a standard in English equivalent to that reached by pupils in 

predominantly English medium schools. 
 

12.9 Nursery provision would be provided on the Cyffylliog site. As an exception to the 

general policy home to school transport would be provided for nursery pupils, 

provided they are attending their nearest suitable school and living more than 2 

miles from Cyffylliog.  
 

12.10 Existing Breakfast and after school provision would remain on each site. 
 

12.11 The intention of the Council would be to consolidate provision on to a single site, 

probably in the Clocaenog area.  The vision for the New Area School would be a 4 - 

11 provision serving 77 pupils in the same 4 class model.   
 

12.12 Following the completion of the new school Denbighshire County Council would 

need to consider declaring the existing sites as surplus to requirements in 

accordance with the Modernising Education Policy Framework. It is anticipated that 

any proceeds from the disposal of surplus sites would be used to contribute to the 

overall costs of the new school building.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key Points: 

• All children currently attending Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog would transfer to 

the new area school subject to parental preference. 

• The new area school would have a capacity of 75 with 10 nursery places during phase 1. 

• Key stage 1 will be located in Cyffylliog and Key stage 2 in Clocaenog. 

• The new school will have one Head teacher. 

• A Temporary Governing Body will be established who will appoint the Head teacher  

• The school will be a Welsh Medium Category 1 school. 

• Nursery provision would be in Cyffylliog. 

• Home to School Transport would be provided for nursery pupils attending their nearest 

suitable school whilst the school is on two sites. 

• Breakfast and after school club provision would remain on existing sites. 

• The New Area School (Phase 2) would have a capacity of 77 pupils. 

Tudalen 50



18 

 

13. Admission arrangements for the Area School 

 

13.1 The Area School would have a unified approach to admission arrangements and 

would be administered by Denbighshire County Council’s School Admissions 

service. 

 

14. What are the transport implications of this proposal? 

 

14.1 At present the current costs for ‘Home to School Transport’ for the two schools are 

£32,357 per year. 

 

14.2 The current proposals will create an additional transport cost of approximately 

£39,140 per academic year as a result of transporting pupils between sites to allow 

for one key stage to be taught on each site. 

 

14.3 Pupils will be transported from their homes / home school to their designated site 

for the period that the school stays on two sites.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

15. What are the staffing implications of this proposal? 

 

15.1 Should the Current Proposal be implemented, the Area School would have only one 

Headteacher. The Temporary Governing Body of the Area School would need to 

appoint the Headteacher and this could involve national advertisements or an 

internal appointment.   

 

15.2 Denbighshire County Council, with agreement from the Temporary Governing 

Body, would apply its policies to reassure and clarify the position of staff. 

  

15.3 A staffing structure would need to be developed for the Area School taking into 

account a number of factors including operating initially on two sites, delivering the 

curriculum, class sizes and budget implications. 

 

15.4 While the Area School operates on two sites the council does not anticipate any 

major changes to the existing staffing structures other than the Headteacher and 

other leadership positions. However, final decisions regarding the new staffing 

structure would be taken by the Temporary Governing Body and the new 

Headteacher. 

 

15.5 The council will recommend to the Temporary Governing Body that all teaching and 

associate staff posts for the Area School should be “ring-fenced” to the staff within 

the existing two schools.  

Key points:  

• Transport costs will increase when the school operates on two sites. 

• Additional transport will be arranged for pupils to attend their designated site.   

Tudalen 51



19 

 

 

15.6 As part of this formal consultation process there will be full consultation with all 

members of staff and the appropriate teaching and staff unions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16. What are the financial implications of this proposal? 

 

16.1 The cost of provision based upon the 2012/13 budget share is £5,342 per pupil at 

Ysgol Clocaenog and £7,857 per pupil at Ysgol Cyffylliog, compared with the 

Denbighshire average of £3,951. 

 

16.2 Within the existing funding framework both Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog 

are funded consistently with all other schools in Denbighshire. Both schools have 

less than 70 pupils currently and therefore receive additional small school funding 

within their allocation. 

 

16.3 The current reported financial position for the schools is:  

Balance c/f 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Ysgol Clocaenog £ 11,066 £ 13,371 £ 27,471 

Ysgol Cyffylliog £ 12,507 £ 14,756 £ 16,863 

 *This is based on the existing 3 year plan.  

 Any balances, surplus or deficit , at either school, will transfer to the Local Authority at the 

point of change. 

 

16.4 As two separate schools, the combined total budget is £389k (2013-14). Upon 

implementation of the current proposal it is estimated that the new school would 

receive a total budget of £413k. This is a net increase of £24k compared to when 

they were 2 separate schools. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key points: 

• The Area school would have one Head teacher 

• The Temporary Governing Body appoints the Head teacher 

• Final decisions on staffing structures would be taken by the Temporary Governing Body 

and the new head teacher. 

• The Council will recommend that roles are “ring-fenced” for existing staff 

• All staff and unions will be consulted. 

Key points: 

• Both schools receive more than the Denbighshire average of funding per pupil. 

• All schools in Denbighshire are funded through a funding formula. 

• The Local Authority inherits any balance, surplus or deficit at the point of change. 

• It is estimated that one area school on two sites will receive more funding. 

 

Tudalen 52



20 

 

17. What are the considerations for Phase 2? 
 

 Site 

 

17.1 The final site location for the New Area School, which will emerge from the Second 

Phase, will be carefully considered by Denbighshire County Council. 

 

17.2 In the first instance, the difficulties in expanding both current school sites within 

the existing boundaries to accommodate all pupils attending both schools have 

been acknowledged during site analysis. 

 

17.3 The proposal submitted as part of the Informal Consultation stage by Ysgol 

Clocaenog identified 3 site options within Clocaenog: 
 

17.3.1 Site A is a proposal to extend the current Ysgol Clocaenog site beyond the 

existing site boundary. This is identified as having the highest cost of all 

options due to added expense to ground works from working on a slope. 
  

17.3.2 Site B & C are two nearby Greenfield sites identified by the Governors as 

potential suitable sites. Constructing a new site would have a lower cost 

than Option A and could be constructed without any impact on the existing 

school. 
 

17.3.3 Site B identified by the School Governors has been allocated for Housing 

within the latest Local Development Plan. Site C is located outside the 

development boundary for Clocaenog. 
 

17.4 The priority, in considering a new single location, has been to ensure, where 

appropriate, it can be accessible to a large percentage of current and future pupils. 

(See combined catchment diagram on page 21). This would exclude Clawddnewydd 

and Cyffylliog as potential sites as a location in one of these villages would exclude 

the new school from being the ‘Nearest Suitable School’ for the other village. The 

distance between the villages is 5.5 miles.  
   

17.5 More detailed feasibility work will be progressed to determine a preferred site 

which will enable Denbighshire County Council to enter into any negotiations which 

may be required with any third parties regarding land purchases etc. 
 

 Transport 
 

17.6 Denbighshire County Council anticipates that, following completion of the First 

Phase, the majority of pupils attending the Clocaenog and Cyffylliog sites of the 

Area School would transfer to the New Area School; in the Clocaenog area.  

  

17.7 Transport would be provided in the first instance in accordance with Denbighshire 

County Council’s Transport Policy which states that free transport is provided for 

pupils who live more than 2 miles from their nearest suitable school.  
 

17.8   The Council has recognised that some pupils currently attending Ysgol Cyffylliog 

who reside on the outskirts of the village of Bontuchel may not be eligible for free 

Tudalen 53



21 

 

transport should the Area School be located in Clocaenog.  The council will examine 

the scope for discretionary free transportation for all pupils of the Area School who 

remain on the roll when the change of site takes place for a period of 5 years.   
 

17.9 On moving to a single site, the interim transport arrangement for nursery pupils 

would come to an end. 
 

17.10 In view of the current uncertain timescale between the Current Proposal being 

approved and a new site becoming operational, it is difficult to estimate the likely 

costs implications in respect of transport budgets in full.  During the possible years 

(for which the Area School may operate until the Second Phase is approved), there 

will be a range of variables which will impact on any modelling, including changes in 

pupil numbers, transport costs etc.   
 

 Financial  
 

17.11 In view of the range of variables associated with the move to a single site, at this 

stage it is more difficult to predict what the overall impact would be for the 

finances of the New Area School.  Costs will be modelled taking into account the 

likely pupil numbers and floor areas based upon current projections.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18. How would any new school buildings work be financed? 
 

18.1 The council would need to fund this proposal in its entirety utilising savings from 

the removal of temporary accommodation in other schools, capital receipts and any 

revenue savings as this proposal wasn’t included within the Band A projects for 21
st
 

Century Schools Funding. 
 

18.2 As a result, the construction of the new school building would be subject to 

securing sufficient capital resources for the project. 
 

 

 

 

 

Key points:  

• Denbighshire County Council would need to fund this project in full.  

• The project will not start until funding is secured. 

Key points: 

Site 

• Neither existing site can accommodate the existing pupils of both schools. 

• Ysgol Clocaenog has submitted potential sites within the village which will be 

considered. 

• Clocaenog is the preferred location for the New Area School. 

• Detailed feasibility work will be undertaken to identify the most suitable site before 

starting any negotiations with third parties. 

Transport 

• Pupils would receive free home to school transport, if they live more than 2 miles from 

the new school. 

• Existing pupils, currently attending their nearest suitable school would receive home to 

school transport for 5 years if the new location isn’t their nearest suitable school. 

 

Tudalen 54



22 

 

 

Tudalen 55



23 

 

19. What are the disadvantages of the proposal? 

 

19.1 If the Current Proposal is approved the Area School will be located on the existing 

school sites in Clocaenog and Cyffylliog.  This arrangement would be managed to 

ensure that any disruption is kept to a minimum and should not impact negatively 

on the children’s education. 

 

19.2 Upon the opening of the New Area School it is anticipated that more children will 

be required to travel further to school; subject to parental preference.  Transport 

would be provided to all pupils currently attending their nearest suitable school to 

either site. Work will be undertaken to ensure travelling times are not excessive. 

 

19.3 There would also be implications for staff at the current Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol 

Cyffylliog should the proposals be progressed for the development of an Area 

School.  The role of the Headteacher would need to be carefully considered by the 

Temporary Governing Body.  The approach to appointments to the role of 

Headteacher/Deputy Headteachers would be an issue for determination by the 

Temporary Governing Body which would need to consider whether the positions 

should be advertised nationally or appointed internally.   

 

19.4 The new Head teacher and the Temporary Governing Body would be required to 

consider the staffing structure for the Area School. The Council would work initially 

with the Temporary Governing Body (and then with the Governing Body) of the 

Area School during these times and should the need arise would work with the 

current members of staff at both schools and/or the new area school to seek 

redeployment opportunities. 

 

19.5 This proposal will cost more than the current provision due to additional transport 

costs.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key points: 

• Changes will be managed to ensure that disruption will be minimised to ensure 

that there is no impact on education. 

• Some pupils will have to travel further to school. 

• The Temporary Governing Body will need to decide if they advertised for a 

Head teacher nationally or appointed internally. 

• Some staff may be redeployed or made redundant depending on the staffing 

structure adopted. 

• It is estimated that the Current proposal will cost more than the current 

provision. 

 

Tudalen 56



24 

 

20. Alternative Options 

 

20.1 Denbighshire County Council have given careful consideration to a range of 

alternative options as part of the development of the Current Proposal.  In 

considering these options reference has been made to the main investment 

objectives of the council’s 21
st

 Century Schools Programme which are as follows: 
 

a. Learning environments for children and young people aged from 3 to 19 that 

will enable successful implementation of strategies for school improvement 

and better educational outcomes; 

b. Greater economy through better use of resources to improve efficiency and 

cost-effectiveness of the education estate and public provision; and 

c. A sustainable education system with all schools meeting a 21
st

 Century 

Schools Standard, and reducing recurrent costs and carbon footprint. 

 

20.2 Denbighshire County Council have also referred to the Critical Success Factors for 

this project.  The main options to have been considered are as follows: 
 

Option 1.1 Maintain the status quo; 

 

Option 1.2 Federate both Schools 

 

Option 1.3 Undertake extension works at Ysgol Clocaenog; 

 

Option 1.4 Close both Schools and establish an area school on the existing sites. 

 

Option 1.5 Close both Schools establish an Area School on existing sites prior to 

building a new Area School; 

 

20.3 The main advantages and disadvantages of each option are as follows. 

 

Option 1.1 Maintain Status Quo (Do nothing) 

Advantages Disadvantages 

This is the ‘cheap’ option as no additional 

investment expenditure is required. 

Would not address issues regarding a 

projected deficit of places at Ysgol 

Clocaenog and the surplus of places at 

Ysgol Cyffylliog. 

 The two schools could face real issues 

regarding long term sustainability in 

regard to delivering the changing 

curriculum. 

 There would be no flexibility within the 

schools to respond to fluctuating pupil 

numbers within the existing catchment of 

each school. 

Tudalen 57



25 

 

 Appointing a Head teacher for the 

schools may be difficult in the future by 

maintaining the current configuration. 

 A lack of catering facilities / indoor hall 

space at Ysgol Clocaenog would not be 

rectified. 
 

Option 1.2 Federate both Schools 

Advantages Disadvantages 

No additional investment expenditure is 

required. 

Would not address issues regarding a 

projected deficit of places at Ysgol 

Clocaenog and the surplus of places at 

Ysgol Cyffylliog. 

Appointing a permanent Head Teacher 

would be more viable in the future as the 

post would have no teaching 

commitment. 

A lack of catering facilities / indoor hall 

space at Ysgol Clocaenog would not be 

rectified. 

More opportunities to share resources 

and ensure long term sustainability of 

each school. 

There would be no flexibility within the 

schools to respond to fluctuating pupil 

numbers within the existing catchment of 

each school. 

Both schools would retain their identity.  

 

Option 1.3 Extend Ysgol Clocaenog; 
 

Advantages Disadvantages 

Designing and constructing additional fit 

for purpose facilities would significantly 

improve the learning environment for all 

pupils. 

The current site is too small for any 

significant improvement. 

Would enable the schools capacity to be 

amended to reflect the respective current 

demand for Ysgol Clocaenog. 

Surplus places would remain at Ysgol 

Cyffylliog. 

Would not lead to any significant changes 

in regard to school organisation 

proposals with potential alterations 

required to the capacity of Ysgol 

Clocaenog. 

The two schools could face real issues 

regarding long term sustainability in 

regard to delivering the changing 

curriculum. 

 

Would not require amendments to pupil 

travel arrangements. 

The Head Teacher would retain a 

significant teaching commitment. 

Tudalen 58



26 

 

Option 1.4 Close both Schools and establish a permanent new Dual-site Area School 

on the existing sites. 

 

Advantages Disadvantages 

No additional Capital Investment 

expenditure is required. 

A lack of catering facilities space at Ysgol 

Clocaenog would not be rectified. 

Appointing a permanent Head Teacher 

would be more viable in the future as the 

post would have no teaching 

commitment. 

A lack of an indoor Physical Education 

space at both sites would not be 

rectified. 

Resources and space would be organised 

across both sites according to current 

demand. 

Transporting pupils from Clawddnewydd 

and Derwen to Cyffylliog on a long term 

basis would pose a risk to the 

sustainability of the school as alternative 

schools are nearer. 

Pupils would be taught in smaller age 

groups than the current provision. 

Costs of provision would be higher than 

the existing provision. 

 

 

Option 1.5 Close both Schools and initially establish a dual site area school prior to 

building a new area school in Clocaenog. 

 

Advantages Disadvantages 

Designing and constructing new fit for 

purpose facilities would significantly 

improve the learning environment for all 

pupils. 

Potential risk that parents choose an 

alternative provision to the new School 

especially if they live at the periphery of 

the new catchment area. 

Bringing together the delivery of both 

schools to a single campus could yield 

significant economies of scale. 

Parents in the Clawddnewydd / Derwen 

area may move pupils to avoid them 

being transported to the Cyffylliog site. 

A new area school will have sufficient 

capacity to absorb fluctuations in pupil 

numbers.  

 

Appointing a permanent Head Teacher 

would be more viable in the future as the 

post would have no teaching 

commitment. 

 

The long term sustainability of the school 

would be far more secure in regard to 

delivering the changing curriculum. 

 

Tudalen 59



27 

 

  

20.4 The analysis of these options suggest that to meet the investment objectives and 

critical success factors that the option of closing both schools and establishing a 

single site area school should be considered as the preferred option. 

 

Analysis of Options against Investment Objectives and Critical Success Factors 

 

 

 

 

Option 1.1 

Do nothing 

Option 1.2 

Federate 

Option 1.3 

Extend 

Clocaenog 

Option 1.4 

Existing Site 

Area School 

Option 1.5 

New Area 

School 

1 Improved 

Learning 

Environment 

x x � x � 

2 Greater Economy 

– Revenue 

Implications 

x x ? x ? 

2  Greater Economy 

– Capital 

? ? ? ? ? 

3 Sustainable 

Education system 

x � x � � 

Critical success factors  

CSF1 Improved 

attainment and 

performance 

? ? ? ? ? 

CSF2 Improved 

school condition 

and suitability 

x x � x 
 

� 

CSF3 Reduction in 

surplus places 
x x x � � 

CSF4 Improved 

ability to appoint 

and retain 

permanent Head 

Teachers.  

x � x � � 

CSF 5 Support the 

increase in demand 

for Welsh Medium 

Education 

x x � ? � 

Summary Discounted Possible Discounted Possible Preferred 

Tudalen 60



28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21. Explanation of the statutory process 

 

21.1 In order for the Current Proposal to be implemented, Denbighshire County Council 

is required to follow a procedure laid out by a combination of an Act of the Welsh 

Government and a statutory Code. 

21.2 The requirements are as follows: 

a. Consultation held with people likely to be affected by the Proposal; 

b. Consultation report setting out details of the Consultation to be published 

on the council’s website; 

c. Publication of the Current Proposal (also known as the ‘statutory notice’) 

with details such as the planned implementation date, how to obtain a copy 

of the consultation report and how to object: 

i) on the council’s website; 

ii) posted on or near the main entrance of the two schools; and 

ii) by providing affected schools with copies to distribute to parents. 

d. An objection period of 28 days from the date of publication allowing anyone 

who wishes to object to the Current Proposal to do so; 

e. Determination by the council (when, subject to the above process, the 

decision to implement the Current Proposal may be approved); 

f. Publication by the council of any objections and its response to them (within 

7 days of the date of determination of the Current Proposal. 

 

21.3 Please note that any response provided to the formal consultation will not be 

regarded as an objection to the Current Proposal.  This is because the Current 

Proposal may change in response to the formal consultation.  If you would like to 

object to the Current Proposal, please wait until it has been published (as described 

in paragraph 21.2(c) above) then follow the procedure set out on the statutory 

notice.  

 

 

 

Key Points:  

• Maintaining the status quo doesn’t address any issues in either school. 

• Federating both Schools doesn’t address surplus places in Cyffylliog and the lack of space 

in Clocaenog. 

• Undertaking extension works at Ysgol Clocaenog in isolation, doesn’t address surplus 

places in Cyffylliog. 

• Closing both Schools and establishing an area school permanently on the existing sites 

does not improve the condition of buildings or facilities in the schools. 

• Closing both Schools, establish and build a new Area School meets the objectives set out 

in the review regarding surplus places, suitability of buildings and sustainability of 

provision. 

 

Key Point: For the current proposal to be implemented a Statutory Notices would be published for 

28 days. This would allow anyone wishing to object to do so.  

A response provided during the formal consultation will not be regarded as an objection. 

Tudalen 61



29 

 

22. Community, Welsh Language and Equality impact 

 

22.1 As the Current Proposal, if implemented, will result in the closure of two schools a 

Equality, Welsh Language and Community impact assessments has been carried out 

and this is available on our website. 

 

23. Response Form 

 

23.1  A response form for comments, including an opportunity for consultees to register 

their wish to be notified of publication of the formal consultation report, appears at 

the end of this consultation document. 

 

23.2 You are welcome to ask questions and let us have your views on the Current 

Proposal at the events mentioned above or to put your views in writing.  Responses 

should be sent to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County 

Council, County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL15 1YN or by e-mail to 

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk by no later than 22
nd

 October 2013. 

 

                                                           
i
 The consultation document can be found in the School Organisation & Modernising section or you can 

follow this link [www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] 
ii
 Formal Consultation Document for Children.  This is available upon request from DCC [and/or from the DCC 

website in the School Organisation & Modernising section by following this link 

[www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] 
iii
 Section 48 School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act; 

iv
 Modernising Education Framework -  available to read on request at DCC’s offices in Ruthin or by visiting 

the website [www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] in the School Organisation & 

Modernising section 
v
 The Estyn report relating to both schools may be accessed by following this link www.estyn.gov.uk.  

 

Tudalen 62



Appendix B 

CONSULTATION ANALYSIS REPORT 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Denbighshire County Council carried out an informal consultation between the 4th of February 

2013 and 22nd of March 2013 into Primary School provision in the Ruthin Area. The findings of 

the informal consultation are contained in a report which was submitted to Denbighshire County 

Council’s Cabinet of elected members in June 2013. 

1.2 On the 25th of June 2013 we presented to the Cabinet a Draft Formal Consultation Document 

entitled “Proposal One: Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog”. At that meeting, and on the basis 

of the draft document, the Cabinet approved a formal consultation into a proposal to close Ysgol 

Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog on the 31st of August 2014; and to establish a new area school 

serving the communities of Clocaenog, Cyffylliog and surrounding areas form the 1st of 

September 2014 (the Current Proposal). 

1.3 The Formal Consultation ran from the 9th of September to the 22nd of October 2013. 

1.4 This document sets out the steps taken during, and the findings obtained from, the Formal 

Conaultation. It has been produced after taking into consideration the requirements set out in 

the School Organisation Code; a document produced by virtue of the School  Standards and 

Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.  

2.0 Consultation Method 

2.1 The Consultation period ran from the 9th of September  2013 until the 22nd of October 2013. A 

consultation document was published on www.denbighshire.gov.uk and paper copies were sent 

to each household and the two schools.  

2.2 The Formal Consultation Document was published on our website on the 9th of September 2013. 

A Children’s version (aimed at primary school ages) was also produced and published on our 

website. You can view the Formal Consultation Document in the Closed Consultation section of 

the DCC website; Click on the Ruthin Review section. 

2.3 People were invited to either complete the online survey, email the Modernising Education 

Team, return the response form by post or write to the Modernisation Education Team  by post. 

The complete  list of recipients is set out in Appendix A and a copy of the standard response form 

is in Appendix B.  

2.4 Meetings were held as follows: 

• With Staff at Ysgol Clocaenog  – 16th of September 2013 

• With Staff at Ysgol Cyffylliog – 17th of September 2013 

• With Governors of Ysgol Cyffylliog – 17th of September 2013  

• With Governors of Ysgol Clocaenog – 18th of September 2013 

• With Parents of Ysgol Cyffylliog – 24th of September 2013 

• With Parents of Ysgol Clocaenog –25th of September 2013 

• With Pupils of Ysgol Clocaenog – 4th of October 2013 

• With Pupils of Ysgol Cyffylliog – 10th of October 2013 

 

Tudalen 63



Appendix B 

2.5 The parents meetings were held at Ysgol Cyffylliog and in Clocaenog Church Hall. 

2.6 It was decided to adopt a ‘parents’ evening’ format in favour of the open, question and answer 

format used during the informal consultation. The parents’ evening format created a more 

intimate environment in which people could say what they thought without having to be heard 

by a room filled with people.  

2.7 A summary of the comments received in the Parents, Staff and Governors meetings the response 

provided can be found in Appendix C. 

2.8 Details of the consultation with pupils can be found in Appendix D.  

 

3. Consultation Response 

3.1 In total 60 responses were received during the consultation stage which included responses from 

Estyn and the National Union of Teachers of Wales (UCAC). The table below shows the 

connection of each respondent (if stated): 

Connection of Respondent 

 

Total 

Ysgol Clocaenog 

 

37 

Ysgol Cyffylliog 

 

20 

No connection / Didn’t state connection 

 

3 

Total 

 

60 

 

3.2 The response type and the indicative support / opposition to the current proposal are shown 

below: 

No Response Type For the 

Proposal 

(actual / %) 

Against the 

Proposal 

(actual / %) 

Other 

 

(actual / %) 

Total 

 

1. Letters and Emails 

 

16 69.6 5 21.7 2 8.7 23 

2. Online Response Form 

 

7 58.3 5 41.7   12 

3. Postal Response Form 

 

13 52 12 48   25 

4. Total 

 

36 60 22 36.7 2 3.3 60 

Note: This does not include consultation with School Councils. 

3.3 An analysis of the frequency of issues being raised during all consultation meetings and within 

correspondence received highlighted the following issues: 

Tudalen 64



Appendix B 

Rank Issue Description Frequency of issue 

raised 

1. 

 

Transport Concerns regarding suitability of transport 

used, Logistical implications, Suitability of 

road network, Length of travel, Requirement 

for chaperones 

50 out of 60 responses 

2. 

 

Language Important to retain Welsh Language 

Category for school, Importance of Bilingual 

Language Category in retaining pupils from 

non Welsh speaking families, Long term 

impact of change in Language Category 

44 

3. 

 

Phase 2: 

New School  

Support for proposed location,  Alternative 

Locations, Funding, Competing Projects, 

Admission Number, Size of the school. 

43 

4. 

 

Education 

Provision 

 

Estyn grading of standards in Cyffylliog, 

Concern regarding standards deteriorating, 

Advantage of small cohorts, Support for 

reducing age range of classes.  

34 

5. 

 

Phase 1:  

Dual Site 

 

Class sizes, Configuration of classes across 

two sites, Identity of the School, Age range 

of classes, Splitting up siblings 

 

32 

6. 

 

Community Impact, One area gaining over the other, 

Importance to fund community activities 

that bring together both sites in one 

location. 

28 

7. 

 

Staffing Headteacher Appointment, Retention of 

current staff 

25 

8. 

 

Timescale 

 

Risk of prolonged two site provision - 

Support from parents, Pupil Retention, 

Future Intake, Communication of timescale 

regarding New Build, Timescale to appoint 

Temporary Governing Body and 

Headteacher 

25 

 

9. Breakfast / 

After School  

Provision 

Importance of retaining provision on two 

sites that links to the transport provided. 

Parent friendly operating times. 

21 

10. 

 

Retain the 

Status Quo 

(Positive) 

Existing ethos of the school, Existing 

Provision, No need to change – Lots of 

Children to start in the school, Cost of 

change is too high, Alternative Proposal  of a 

Federation should be pursued. 

11 

11. Other Issues 

 

Proposal Document / Consultation method, 

Future of nearby schools, Indirect 

consequences 

8 

12. 

 

Pre School How current proposal would tie in with Cylch 

Meithrin provision and future provision. 

6 

13. Governance Structure / Membership  of the Temporary 

Governing Body 

3 

14. Need to Current dining arrangements, poor facilities 3 

Tudalen 65



Appendix B 

 change the 

Status Quo 

(Negative) 

in both schools 

 

3.4 The Council’s response to the concerns raised can be found in Appendix E . A summary of the 

redacted correspondence from the Formal Consultation can be found in Appendix F. 

3.5 Denbighshire County Council published a separate Children’s version of the Formal Consultation 

Document. Meetings were arranged with each School Council. Similar hopes that emerged during 

the consultation included more friends and more space. The similar fear for both schools was the 

additional travel time and the change of teachers.  Further details can be found in Appendix D. 

4. Response from Estyn  

In accordance with the requirements from the School Organisation Code, a copy of the 

Consultation Document was sent to Estyn for its observations. In its response, Estyn considers a 

range of key questions with regard to the Current Proposal. In response to the question, “Are the 

proposals likely to maintain or improve the standard of education provision in the area?”, its 

response was: 

“It is Estyn’s opinion that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the present standards of 

education provision in the area. 

In October 2012, Estyn identified the educational standards at Ysgol Clocaenog to be good.  

In March 2011, Estyn identified the educational performance at Ysgol Cyffylliog to be adequate 

and the school was placed in Estyn monitoring.  Subsequently the school received a monitoring 

visit by Estyn in May 2012.  Estyn found that the school had not made enough progress in the key 

areas of action that were identified in the Section 28 inspection and was identified as needing 

‘significant improvement’ 

 

The full response can be found in Appendix G. 

 

5. Response from UCAC 

In accordance with the requirements from the School Organisation Code, a copy of the 

Consultation Document was sent to all trade unions for its observations. UCAC was the only trade 

union to submit a response to the formal consultation.  In its response, UCAC observes that: 

• Clocaenog requires a larger school as a matter of urgency 

• UCAC appreciates Denbighshire County Council’s intention to preserve education in 

rural areas. 

Concerns include: 

• The lack of decisiveness regarding Phase 2. 

• Denbighshire County Council ability to fund Phase 2. 

• The size of the new build 

• Timescale to establishing Temporary Governing Body and appointing a new 

Headteacher. 

The full response can be found in Appendix H. 

Tudalen 66



Appendix C 

 

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 
 
Notice is hereby given in accordance  with section 41 and 43 of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and the School 
Organisation Code that Denbighshire County Council of County Hall, Ruthin, Denbighshire LL15 1YN (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Council”), having consulted such persons as required, proposes:-  
 

• From 31 August 2014, to discontinue Ysgol Clocaenog, Clocaenog, Ruthin, Denbighshire LL15 2AY 

• From 31 August 2014, to discontinue Ysgol Cyffylliog, Cyffylliog,Denbighshire, LL15 2DL 

• From 1 September 2014, to establish a new Welsh medium area community school for boys and girls aged 4 – 11 years old 
to be maintained by the Council; 
 

Pupils currently attending Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog and those admitted during the 2013-14 school year will from the 1st 
September 2014, be able to attend a new area community school for boys and girls aged 4 – 11 years old to be maintained by the Council.  
The new school will operate from two school sites: 

- Clocaenog site, Clocaenog, Ruthin, Denbighshire, LL15 2AY, and 
- Cyffylliog site, Cyffylliog, Ruthin, Denbighshire, LL15 2DL  

(which are the current sites of Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog) 
 
The Council undertook a period of consultation before deciding to publish this proposal. A consultation report containing a summary of the 
issues raised by consultees, the proposer’s responses and the views of Estyn is available on the website of Denbighshire County Council  
www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation/ 
  
The Council will be the admission authority for the new school. The admission number for first time admissions to the primary phase at the 
new school in the first year in which the proposals have been implemented is 12.  
 

From 1 September 2014, pupils will be admitted to the new 4 – 11 school in accordance with the Council’s admission arrangements, which 
do not take account of the sex, aptitude or ability of the child: 

- Pupils currently in nursery/reception provision and Year 1 to 5 at Ysgol Clocaenog, and those admitted during the 2013-14 school 
year, will be admitted to the New Area School; 

- Pupils currently in nursery/reception provision and Year 1 to 5 at Ysgol Cyffylliog, and those admitted during the 2013-14 school 
year, will be admitted to the New Area School; 

 

The language category of the proposed new school, as defined by "Defining schools according to Welsh medium provision" Welsh 
Assembly Government Information document No: 023/2007 will be as follows: 

• Welsh Medium - Category 1  
 

The new School’s pupil capacity will be 81. This will include 36 at the Clocaenog Site and 45 in the Cyffylliog site. 
 

Parents may express a preference for another school and the Council will comply with any such expressed preference subject to the 
School Standards and Framework Act 1998, Section 86(3). 
 
The home to school transport arrangements for pupils currently at Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog will remain the same at the 
proposed new school in accordance with the Authority’s Home-to-School Transport Policy as at the date of implementation of the proposal.   
 

Within a period of 28 days after the date of publication of these proposals, that is to say by 3rd February 2014 any person may object to 
the proposals.  
 

Objections should be sent in writing to Jackie Walley, Head of Customers and Education Support, Denbighshire County Council, County 
Hall, Ruthin, Denbighshire, LL15 1YN, or by email to modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk 
 

Denbighshire County Council will publish a summary of any such objections made within the objection period (and not withdrawn in writing), 
together with the Council’s observations thereon, within the period of 28 days after the end of the objection period.  
 

Jackie Walley,  
Head of Customers and Education Support 
For Denbighshire County Council       Dated this day 7th January 2014 
 

EXPLANATORY NOTE  
 

 (This explanatory note does not form part of the Notice but is offered by way of explanation). 
1. The Council is proposing to replace the existing schools, namely Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog schools with an all-through 

Primary school initially incorporating the existing school sites.  
2. The proposal is one of six identified through the ‘Review of primary school provision in the Ruthin area’ which was undertaken by the 

Council to address issues including head teacher recruitment, surplus places, mobile accommodation and the sustainability of 
schools 

3. At the date of the last school census in January 2013, Ysgol Clocaenog had 36 full-time pupils on roll against a capacity of 36 full-
time pupils. As of January 2013, the school had 0 surplus (empty) places; equivalent to 0% of the total capacity. 

4. At the date of the last school census in January 2013, Ysgol Cyffylliog had 19 full-time pupils on roll against a capacity of 45 full-time 
pupils. As of January 2013, the school had 26 surplus (empty) places; equivalent to 57% of the total capacity. 

5. The reasons for this proposal were set out in the consultation document circulated in September 2013, further copies of which are 
available on request from the address set out in the above notice.  

6. A copy of the Council’s School Admission Policy is available from Modernising Education at the address in the above Notice. 
7. A copy of the Council’s Home to School Transport Policy is available from Modernising Education at the address in the above 

Notice. Additional transport arrangements made for pupils who attend a different site as a result of classroom configuration will be 
outside the scope of the Council’s school transport policy.  

8. The mode of instruction in the new school will be mainly through the medium of Welsh. 
9. Delegated funding for the new school will be in accordance with the Council’s local funding formula for schools. 
10. This notice marks the start of a 28 day objection period from 7th January 2014 to the 3rd February 2014 and sets out the address to 

which objections in writing may be submitted. 

Tudalen 67



Tudalen 68

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Ruthin Area Review of Primary School                           

provision 

                     04 February 2014 

Equality Impact Assessment 

Tudalen 69



Ruthin Area Review of Primary School Provision 

Contact: 

Updated: 

Carwyn Edwards, Customers and Education 
Support 
04/02/2014 

1. What type of proposal is being assessed? 

A service review or re-organisation proposal 

2. Please describe the purpose of this proposal 

The creation of a New Area School following the closure of Ysgol Clocaenog and 
Ysgol Cyffylliog. The New Area School will be opening on the existing school 
sites. 

3. Does this proposal require a full equality impact assessment? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit above for guidance) 

No The impact of this proposal will be neutral as very little will change. The only  

changes will be: 
1) The existing schools will close; 
2) A new school will open but operate from existing sites; 
3) Some pupils will have to travel further to school but free 
home to school transport will be provided to ensure that the proposal will not 

discriminatory. 
4.The school will only need one headteacher and that post may be filled by one  

of the existing head teachers or an external candidate. Accordingly the post of the 

existing headteachers will be redundant and a single new position will 
be created. Advice will be provided to the governing body of the new school to  

ensure that the process of appointing a New Headteacher is not discriminatory. 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 

(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

We have identified all stakeholders prior to commencing the review. We have engaged with stakeholders  

by post, public meeting and online during the informal consultation period.  

All correspondence with stakeholders was available bilingually (Welsh and English). 

Tudalen 70



All venues for public meetings were identified as accessible and took place after 5pm to ensure that working 

familes were not excluded. Details of all meetings were sent at least 2 week in advance. 

5. Will this proposal have a positive impact on any of the 
protected characteristics? 

(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

The impact will be neutral as as noted in section 3, the proposal will not result in significant change. 

6. 

No 

Will this proposal have a disproportionate negative impact on 
any of the protected characteristics? 

7. Has the proposal been amended to eliminate or reduce any 
potential negative impact? 

No <If yes, please provide detail> 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

No <If yes please complete the table below. If no, please explain 
here> 

Owner 
  

   Date Action(s) 
 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

9. Declaration 

Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 

Review Date: 04/02/2014 

   Date 
04/02/2014 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment 
Carwyn Edwards 

2 

Tudalen 71



 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
            assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

3 

Tudalen 72



  

 
Adroddiad i’r:    Cabinet  
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   18 Chwefror 2014 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol:  Y Cynghorydd Eryl Williams, Yr Aelod Arweiniol 
     dros Addysg 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Pennaeth Cwsmeriaid a Chymorth Addysg  
 
Teitl:   Cymeradwyo Achos Busnes ar gyfer Prosiect 

 Ysgol Newydd y Rhyl 
 

 
 
1. Ynglŷn â beth mae’r adroddiad?  
 

Mae’r adroddiad yn ceisio hysbysu’r Cabinet ynghylch y sefyllfa gyfredol 
mewn perthynas â’r Achos Busnes Terfynol ar gyfer Ysgol Newydd y Rhyl a 
gyflwynwyd gan y Cyngor i Lywodraeth Cymru.  

 
2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad?  
 

Ym mis Medi 2013 fe gymeradwyodd Llywodraeth Cymru’r Achos Amlinellol 
Strategol ar gyfer prosiect Ysgol Newydd y Rhyl. Yn dilyn trafodaethau gyda 
swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru cytunwyd i gyflwyno Achos Busnes Amlinellol 
/ Terfynol iddi ei ystyried.   

 
3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 
 

Argymell wrth y Cyngor ei fod yn cymeradwyo’r Achos Busnes ar gyfer Ysgol 
Newydd y Rhyl cyn iddo gael ei benderfynu gan Lywodraeth Cymru. 

 
4. Manylion yr adroddiad. 
 
4.1  Mae’r Cynllun Corfforaethol yn manylu ar uchelgais y Cyngor i fuddsoddi’n 

sylweddol yn y portffolio Adeiladau Ysgolion o 2012-17. Elfen sylweddol o’r 
gwaith yma fydd cyflawni prosiectau Band A ar gyfer Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain 
Ganrif. 

 
4.2  Rhoddodd Llywodraeth Cymru gymeradwyaeth mewn egwyddor ar gyfer 

£36.7m fel ei chyfraniad o 50% tuag at Raglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif ym mis 
Rhagfyr 2011. Ar ôl hyn mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gweithio gyda’r holl 
awdurdodau lleol i ganfod sut y gellir dyrannu’r buddsoddiad o £1.2 ar y cyfan 
ledled Cymru yn ffrydiau gwaith y gellir eu cyflawni ar gyfer awdurdodau lleol 
unigol. Un o’r prosiectau hyn oedd Ysgol Newydd y Rhyl. Bydd y prosiect yn 
darparu adeilad ysgol newydd ar gyfer Ysgol Uwchradd y Rhyl i wasanaethu 
hyd at 1200 o ddisgyblion mewn addysg brif-ffrwd gan hefyd gartrefu tua 45 o 
ddisgyblion yng Nghyfnod Allweddol 3/ 4 o Ysgol Tir Morfa, yr ysgol arbennig 
gymunedol yn y Rhyl. 

Eitem Agenda 6

Tudalen 73



  

4.3  Bydd yn ofynnol i’r holl brosiectau o fewn Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif 
(RhY21ainG) ddilyn y canllawiau ar gyfer cymeradwyo Achosion Busnes a 
ddiffinnir ym Model Trysorlys EM. Ar gyfer prosiectau islaw £5m bydd yn 
ofynnol cael cymeradwyaeth i Achos Cyfiawnhau Busnes ac ar gyfer 
prosiectau uwchlaw £5m bydd yn ofynnol cael cymeradwyaeth i’r Achos 
Amlinellol Strategol (SOC), Achos Busnes Amlinellol (OBC) ac Achos Busnes 
Llawn (FBC).   

 
4.4  Rhoddodd y Cabinet gymeradwyaeth ym mis Chwefror 2013 ar gyfer tua 

£1.5m i ariannu Cam 2 (Dyluniad Manwl) a fyddai’n ei gwneud yn bosib bwrw 
ymlaen â’r prosiect i gam lle gellid ceisio cymeradwyaeth i’r achos busnes 
llawn. Cafodd yr Adroddiad Dylunio Cam D ei gyflwyno gan Wilmott Dixon, y 
contractwr a benodwyd gan y Cyngor i gyflawni’r prosiect hwn, i Sir Ddinbych 
ym mis Rhagfyr 2013 ac mae’r ddogfen yn garreg filltir allweddol sy’n crynhoi’r 
gwaith dichonoldeb a wnaed dros yr 8 mis diwethaf ar y prosiect hwn. Yr 
amcanion allweddol yw: 

 
• Rhoi trosolwg cynhwysfawr o’r gwaith dichonoldeb a wnaed. 
• Deall y weledigaeth ar gyfer addysg a sut y mae hon wedi cael ei throsi’n 
gyfleuster cymunedol newydd. 
• Dangos hyfedredd technegol sy’n briodol i ddyluniad yr adeilad a’r safle. 
• Cyflwyno gwybodaeth gostio gadarn sy’n dangos y gellir cyflawni’r ysgol yn 
unol â chyllideb y cytunwyd arni. 
• Dangos uwch raglen gyraeddadwy ar gyfer y prosiect sy’n adlewyrchu 
canlyniadau posib y broses gynllunio. 
• Amlygu unrhyw risgiau sy’n dal i fodoli mewn perthynas âr prosiect a dangos 
y gellir lliniaru a rheoli’r rhain trwy gamau nesaf y prosiect. 
• Cyflwyno lefel o wybodaeth am y gwaith dichonoldeb i gael cymeradwyaeth 
lwyddiannus i’r cyllid gan Sir Ddinbych / Llywodraeth Cymru ac i alluogi’r 
awdurdod i symud ymlaen at gamau manwl y prosiect. 
 

4.5  Y gost ar y cyfan ar gyfer yr elfen o’r prosiect a roddwyd ar gontract i Wilmott 
Dixon o fewn yr adroddiad Cam D oedd £22,281,516. Roedd hyn £38,017 yn 
llai na’r swm a amcangyfrifwyd yn flaenorol. Cost y prosiect ar y cyfan ar hyn o 
bryd yw £24,586,100 sy’n cynnwys costau Sir Ddinbych (costau’r cleient a 
dylunio) a symiau wrth gefn y Cleient. 

 
4.6  Mae’r Achos Busnes sydd wedi’i atodi’n ceisio cyllid o 50% gan Lywodraeth 

Cymru. Bydd hyn yn golygu y bydd yn ofynnol i Sir Ddinbych ddarparu swm o 
£12,293,050. Mae’r swm wedi’i gynnwys o fewn y Cynllun Corfforaethol a 
Chynllun Cyfalaf cyffredinol.   

 
4.7  Rhoddodd Grŵp Buddsoddi Strategol y Cyngor ystyriaeth i’r Achos Busnes 

(gweler Atodiad 1 am y crynodeb gweithredol) yn ei gyfarfod ar 22 Ionawr 
2014. Rhoddodd y grŵp ystyriaeth i nifer o faterion gan gynnwys maint yr 
ysgol, y trefniadau ar gyfer diogelu disgyblion o fewn dyluniad cynllun y safle 
a’r broses a gyflawnwyd hyd yma. Yn dilyn trafodaeth helaeth argymhellwyd y 
dylid cyflwyno’r Achos Busnes i Lywodraeth Cymru a cheisio cymeradwyaeth 
gan y Cabinet a’r Cyngor yn eu priod gyfarfodydd ym mis Chwefror. 

Tudalen 74



  

Cyflwynwyd yr Achos Busnes i Lywodraeth Cymru er mwyn iddi benderfynu 
arno, yn amodol ar safbwyntiau’r Cabinet a’r Cyngor, ar ddiwedd Ionawr 2014.  

 
4.8  Rhagwelir y graddfeydd amser canlynol ar gyfer symud ymlaen gyda’r 

 prosiect:- 
 

Gweithgaredd sy’n garreg filltir Dyddiad 

Cyflwyno Achos Busnes i Lywodraeth Cymru Ion 2014 

Y Cabinet / Cyngor yn cymeradwyo’r Achos Busnes Chwe 2014 

Llywodraeth Cymru’n asesu’r Achos Busnes Maw 2014 

Cwblhau Cam 2 – Dyluniad Manwl Mai 2014 

Dyfarnu’r Contract  Meh 2014 

Cam 3 – Adeiladu Gorff 2014 – Maw 2016 

Trosglwyddo’n Derfynol Maw 2016 

 
5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 
Bydd datblygu Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif a’r Rhaglen Moderneiddio Addysg 
ehangach yn ffactor wrth sicrhau bod y Cyngor yn cwrdd â’i ddyhead i wella 
perfformiad mewn addysg ac ansawdd adeiladau ein hysgolion fel a ddogfennir yng 
Nghynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor 2012 – 2017. Bydd y Rhaglen hefyd yn 
cynorthwyo’r Flaenoriaeth i Ddatblygu’r Economi Leol trwy fuddsoddi gwariant cyfalaf 
mewn gwella ansawdd adeiladau ysgolion. 
 
6. Faint fydd yn ei gostio a sut fydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 
Tua £24.6m yw’r costau a fydd yn deillio o brosiect Ysgol Newydd y Rhyl. Bydd 
cymeradwyo’r Achos Busnes yn ei gwneud yn bosib rhoi contract. Bydd y cyllid ar 
gyfer y flaenoriaeth hon o fewn y Cynllun Corfforaethol yn cael ei ddarparu trwy 
ddefnyddio cronfeydd, balansau, gwaredu asedau a thrwy fenthyca darbodus. 
 
Bu trafodaethau helaeth yn cael eu cynnal gyda’r Gwasanaethau Hamdden mewn 
perthynas â’r trefniadau defnydd deuol ar gyfer y Ganolfan Hamdden. Yn dilyn 
derbyn arolwg cyflwr cytunwyd y bydd y Ganolfan Hamdden bresennol yn dal i gael 
ei defnyddio gan Ysgol Uwchradd y Rhyl a chan Ysgol Tir Morfa i ddarparu’r 
cwricwlwm Add. Gorff. Bydd hyn yn ei gwneud yn bosib i’r ffocws fod ar wella’r 
cyfleusterau presennol yn hytrach na chreu ased arall o bosib. 
 
7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o’r Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb (EqIA) a 

gwblhawyd ar y penderfyniad? Dylid atodi’r templed EqIA wedi’i gwblhau 
fel atodiad wrth yr adroddiad. 

 
Mae’r asesiad o’r effaith ar gydraddoldeb o’r farn y bydd y cynnig yn cael effaith 
gadarnhaol ar blant a phobl ifanc sy’n rhannu nodweddion gwarchodedig. Bydd yr 
effaith yn cael ei monitro yn ystod oes y prosiect. 

Tudalen 75



  

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi cael eu cynnal gyda’r Pwyllgorau 
 Archwilio ac eraill?  
 
Fe ymgynghorwyd yn helaeth â chymunedau Ysgol Uwchradd y Rhyl ac Ysgol Tir 
Morfa wrth ddatblygu’r prosiect hyd yma. Mae hyn wedi cynnwys nifer o gyfarfodydd 
ymgynghori yn y gymdogaeth i drafod y dyluniadau sy’n dod i’r amlwg ar gyfer 
adeiladau’r ysgol newydd. Fe ymgysylltwyd hefyd â Grŵp Ardal Aelodau’r Rhyl a 
Chyngor Tref y Rhyl ar ddatblygiad y prosiect.  
 
9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
 
Mae hwn yn brosiect strategol allweddol yn Rhaglen Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif a 
Chynllun Corfforaethol y Cyngor. Mae’r Cyngor eisoes wedi ymrwymo tua £1.5m i’r 
gwaith cychwynnol sydd wedi arwain at y cynnig hwn. Mae digon o gyllid cyfalaf ar 
gael i gyflawni’r prosiect am y gost ragamcanol.  
 
Hwn yw’r prosiect cyfalaf sengl mwyaf erioed i’r Cyngor ymgymryd ag ef a chan 
hynny mae’n dwyn risg ariannol. Mae rheolaeth prosiect dda’n allweddol i hyn felly ac 
mae’n rhaid i’r prosiect gael ei fonitro’n ofalus. Hwn yw’r cyntaf o’r prosiectau mawr 
ar gyfer ysgolion i gael ei gyflawni ac mae mwy’n debygol o ddilyn.  
 
Ym mhob cam mae’n rhaid bod y Cyngor wedi’i argyhoeddi bod pob prosiect yn rhoi 
gwerth am arian a bod y rhaglen ar y cyfan yn fforddiadwy ac y gellir ei chyflawni. Ar 
y cam hwn yn y rhaglen gellir ei chyflawni ac mae’n fforddiadwy. 
 
10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ni ei wneud i’w lleihau? 
 
Mae’r Cabinet wedi cytuno’n flaenorol i ganlyn arni â’r prosiect hwn gan dderbyn y 
risg yn amodol ar gymeradwyo’r Achos Busnes. Os bydd y prosiect yn methu â chael 
cymeradwyaeth mae risg na fydd y gwaith a wnaed hyd yma’n cael ei ddatblygu 
ymhellach. Gellid ystyried bod y gymeradwyaeth i’r Achos Amlinellol Strategol ar 
gyfer y prosiect hwn ym mis Medi 2013 wedi lleihau’r risg y bydd y prosiect yn methu 
â chael cymeradwyaeth derfynol gan Lywodraeth Cymru. I liniaru hyn bu 
trafodaethau rheolaidd gyda Llywodraeth Cymru am ddatblygiad prosiect Ysgol 
Newydd y Rhyl.  
 
Mae’r prosiect ar y cyfan yn cael ei reoli gan Reolwr Prosiect profiadol gyda 
threfniadau clir ar gyfer rheoli risg yn ystod y prosiect.  
 
11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 
Adran 2 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 / Adran 111 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 
 

Tudalen 76



     

APPENDIX 1 

Rhyl New School (RNS) 

 

Full Business Case (FBC) 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Version No:  1.0 

Issue Date:  29/01/2014

Tudalen 77



     

 

VERSION HISTORY 

 

Version Date Issued Brief Summary of Change Owner’s Name 

Draft 0.1 17/01/2014 First Draft Version  J Curran 

1.0 29/01/2014 First Version J Curran 

    

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Tudalen 78



     

1. Executive Summary  

 

1.1 Introduction 

This Full Business Case seeks approval to invest £24,586,100 in a contract with Willmott 

Dixon Construction to construct a new school and associated facilities in Rhyl.  

 

1.2 Strategic case 

 

1.2.1 The strategic context 

This business case is for the provision of a new school building to replace the existing Rhyl 

High School building at a cost of £24,586,100; this being a key project within Denbighshire 

County Council’s overall 21
st

 Century Schools Programme.  

This business case builds on the detail presented in the SOC that was approved by Welsh 

Government in September 2013. It also develops and confirms the following: 

• Determining and confirming value for money 

• Preparing for and contracting the deal 

• Confirming affordability and financial requirement 

• Planning for successful delivery 

 

1.2.2 The case for change 

Rhyl High School is situated in a residential area of Rhyl and shares its site with Rhyl Leisure 

Centre (RLC).  It occupies a range of buildings which have been adapted and remodelled 

over the years.  The school has the poorest energy efficiency and performance figures of the 

entire Council buildings portfolio – a situation which is difficult to improve given the usage 

patterns of its series of detached and external ‘walkway-linked’ buildings. 

 

Ysgol Tir Morfa is a community special school which caters for pupils with a wide range of 

additional learning needs, aged between 3 and 19 years. The school is located on Ffordd 

Derwen.  The Key Stage 1 and 2 provision has seen significant investment by Denbighshire 

County Council and the Welsh Government in recent years.  However plans for the next 

phase to address needs for KS 3&4 have had to be re-assessed due to the scarcity of capital 

funding to undertake the work.  

 

The strategic drivers for this investment and associated strategies, programmes and plans 

include the following: 

 

• A need to bring about a step-change improvement in 11-16 secondary education 

provision in Rhyl and the associated attendance and attainment levels 

• The vision for the economic regeneration of Rhyl demands that education 

infrastructure is kept in step with progress made in other areas of the regeneration 

programme 

• A required reduction in the ever-growing (cost of the) maintenance backlog of 

secondary school buildings in Rhyl 

Tudalen 79



     

• The requirement to reduce the carbon footprint of the Council – in particular that of 

the total school estate 

 

Since the initial discussions regarding this project in 2009 Rhyl High School has had a change 

of leadership which has seen considerable improvements in performance and attainment. 

However, in order to see sustained improvements there is a compelling case to improve the 

physical teaching and learning environment. 

 

At Ysgol Tir Morfa KS3&4 pupils need access to more specialist curriculum facilities than can 

be provided at the main school site – particularly for vocational courses, performance 

spaces, technology and science.  To address this need consideration has been given to the 

co-location of elements of Ysgol Tir Morfa at Rhyl High School to enable the school to access 

improved facilities. This will be provided within the design and configuration of new 

buildings at Rhyl High School where Ysgol Tir Morfa pupils would have their own discrete 

base with direct access to shared specialist facilities.  This would also provide practical 

integration opportunities with mainstream life – socially and academically.  

 

 

1.3 Economic case 

 

1.3.1 The OBC long list and short list 

The five long list options as considered in the SOC and confirmed in this business case 

included: 

• Option 1.1 – do nothing  

• Option 1.2 – the ‘minimum’  scope – for some improvements in secondary education 

provision in Rhyl: close RHS and re-open as a 11-16 school within the existing 

buildings  

• Option 1.3 – the ‘do-a-bit-mote-than-the-minimum’  scope – marginal improvements 

in secondary education provision in Rhyl:  Remodel or refurbish present RHS 

buildings - Leave BEJ to be reviewed as part of a wider ‘faith’ Education review; 

continue with Rhyl 6
th

 Project; keep Welsh medium provision discrete 

• Option 1.4 – the ‘intermediate’ scope – for improvements in secondary education 

provision in Rhyl:  Rebuild RHS on its present site or an alternative site - Leave BEJ to 

be reviewed as part of a wider ‘faith’ Education review; continue with Rhyl 6
th

 

Project; keep Welsh medium provision discrete 

• Option 1.5 – ‘maximum’ scope – for improvements in secondary education provision 

in Rhyl:  Closing Rhyl High School (RHS) and/or Blessed Edward Jones Roman Catholic 

High School (BEJ); open a new replacement/successor school for RHS  and/or BEJ 

establishing a single campus 11-18 school with a ‘faith’ element and offering a Welsh 

medium stream with community and ALN facilities 

 

The short list shown within the SOC and confirmed in the business case is as follows: 

• Option 1 – the do minimum – clear maintenance backlog – status quo 

Tudalen 80



     

• Option 2 – do intermediate – major refurbishment & extension 

• Option 3 – do maximum – new school build 

 

1.3.2 The procurement 

Denbighshire County Council’s aspiration was to use the best current practice for 

procurement and implementation of the project. Specialist advice was sought from a 

number of areas; this is explained in more detail in Section 4 – Commercial Case. Based on 

this advice it was decided to adopt an Early Contractor Involvement (ECI) approach within a 

‘partnering’ agreement as the best way to ensure the Council’s aspirations for the project 

could be met within a partnering relationship with an experienced strategic partner. 

It was decided to structure the procurement call into three main Phases as follows: 

Phase 1 – Feasibility 

Phase 2 – Detailed Design & Target Cost Preparation 

Phase 3 – Construction 

This approach was taken so as to provide break points at which progress could be halted in 

order to attain the required approvals at Council and Welsh Government level for the 

preferred option and the funding to support moving on to the next phase.  

The first stage of the procurement process, given the scale of the potential project 

estimated at the time to be in the order of £25M, was to prepare and launch an OJEU notice 

and initial PQQ exercise for potential partners. 

The OJEU Notice was issued in October 2009 and 15 valid PQQ responses were received in 

response and subsequently evaluated against the advertised evaluation criteria. Of the 15 

responses, 8 potential providers were shortlisted and invited to tender in January 2010. 

The 8 potential provider tenders were evaluated against the advertised evaluation criteria 

and interviewed by a panel. Based on the outcome of this evaluation, Willmott Dixon 

Construction was selected as the preferred partner to take forward the project in a phased 

approach as described above. 

 

1.3.3 Key findings 

The key findings from the economic appraisals are: 

 Undiscounted (£) Net Present Cost (Value) (£) 

Option 1 – Do minimum – Status Quo – Clear maintenance backlog 

Capital 

Revenue (inc. maintenance) 

Optimism bias 10% (on capital) 

3,088,050 

972,000 

308,805 

2,741,689 

551,093 

274,172 

Total costs 4,368,855 3,566,984 

Less cash releasing benefits -2,063,000 -1,788,992 

Total 2,305,855 1,777,991 

Tudalen 81



     

 Undiscounted (£) Net Present Cost (Value) (£) 

 

Option 2 – Do intermediate – major refurbishment & extension 

Capital 

Revenue (inc. maintenance) 

Optimism bias 10% (on capital) 

26,316,644 

2,632,500 

2,631,664 

24,237,438 

1,492,542 

2,423,744 

Total costs 31,580,808 28,153,725 

Less cash releasing benefits -2,063,000 -1,788,992 

Total 29,517,808 26,364,732 

 

Option 3 – Do maximum – New school build 

Capital 

Revenue (inc. maintenance) 

Optimism bias 10% (on capital) 

24,811,100 

2,632,500 

2,481,110 

22,536,013 

1,492,542 

2,253,601 

Total costs 29,924,710 26,282,157 

Less cash releasing benefits -2,063,000 -1,788,992 

Total 27,861,710 24,493,164 

 

NOTES:  

• Capital – includes initial project capital costs plus cyclical capital costs at years 10,20 & 25 of 

£50k, £75k & £100k 

• Revenue (inc. maintenance) – estimated revenue impact on school of Options 2&3 of increased 

floor area of £87,500 plus £36k annual maintenance for Option 1 & £10k annual maintenance for 

Options 2&3 

• Optimism Bias – standard 10% applied across all three options based on the capital element only 

• Cash releasing benefits - consist of £2,063,000 in estimated current maintenance backlog 

 

The key findings are as follows: 

 

• Option 1 – Do minimum – Status Quo – Clear maintenance backlog  

This option ranks first overall in terms of ‘Cost net all savings’ however it is not a realistic 

investment option as a step-change in accommodation and facilities is required. 

Investing in the current buildings would not bring about sufficient change in the teaching 

and learning environment to realise this.  The present buildings lie within a defined flood 

plain, which militates against any case for large scale capital investment in the site. 

 

It provides no additional benefits in terms of up to date teaching and learning facilities 

or improved suitability for delivering a modern curriculum.  Minimum maintenance 

investment would just keep the present buildings safe, secure and weather-tight, 

sufficient to allow continuing operation.   

Tudalen 82



     

 

• Option 2 – Do intermediate – Major refurbishment & extension  

 

This option ranks third overall in terms of ‘Cost net all savings’. It would see the existing 

building refurbished & refreshed and new additional accommodation constructed to 

provide the required capacity to accommodate 1200 plus 45 ALN for Ysgol Tir Morfa. 

The issue with this option is that it would not provide the complete step change in 

facilities as a significant amount of the existing accommodation would be retained albeit 

fully refurbished. This is estimated as being the most expensive option financially given 

the more complicated nature of a major refurbishment and the logistics of working 

within a live site. 

 

• Option 3 – Do maximum – New school build 

This option ranks second overall in terms of ‘Cost net all savings’.  It provides a new 

building with state of the art accommodation and facilities; this would enable full 

flexibility in the design process to ensure the school will be provided with the 

accommodation required to make that set change. 

 

1.3.4 Overall findings: the preferred option 

Summary of overall results: 

Evaluation Results Option 1 

Do minimum 

Clearing maintenance 

backlog 

Option 2 

Do Intermediate 

Major Refurbishment 

& extension 

Option 3 

Do Maximum 

New build 

school 

Economic Appraisals 1 3 2 

Benefits Appraisals 3 2 1 

Cost per Benefit Point 3 2 1 

Risk Appraisal 3 2 1 

Overall Ranking 3 2 1 

 
 
1.4 Commercial case 

 

1.4.1 Agreed products and service 

The products and services under contract are as follows: 

• A successful recent track record of designing and constructing innovative secondary 

schools 

• Experience of using ‘partnering-ethos’ arrangements 

• Ability to provide and lead a team of appropriate technical specialists (Education 

consultants, ICT and Energy specialists, et al) 

• Understanding of the emerging education and economic trends in Wales and locally 

in Denbighshire and Rhyl 

Tudalen 83



     

• A sound reputation for maximising use of local suppliers within the construction 

supply chain 

• A history of delivering significant community benefits through their construction 

ventures 

• Technical ability to lead a complex design and build project to replace the existing 

school buildings including design, construction, demolition and reinstatement/re-

landscaping works 

 

1.4.2 Agreed risk allocation and charging mechanism 

The advertised tender invited bidders to submit their proposals for managing risks under 

contract.  These were ‘scored’ as part of the evaluation of tenders and included 

consideration of: 

• a ‘pain/gain’ model to offset risk to the Council 

• development of target cost for the project; firming of prices 

• an insight into their experience and perceptions of ‘partnering’ 

An allocation of risk against a number of risk categories have been agreed with Willmott 

Dixon Construction. 

Reimbursement under the contract will be made in line with appropriate procedure 

supporting the submission of claims and control of costs as required. Within the contractual 

arrangements there is an agreed Pain/Gain mechanism whereby should the Target Cost be 

exceeded then the contractor will be liable for 100% of the pain. As part of PHASE 2 – 

Detailed Design & Target Cost Preparation a number of construction risks have been 

identified and costed in order to allocate a sufficient risk contingency should these risks 

materialise as the project progresses. 

 

1.4.3 Key contractual arrangements 

In addition to ‘standard’ contract headings and wording associated with an NEC3 contract, 

the key contract provisions reflect DCC’s aspiration to engage a partner organisation as a 

first step towards building an enduring beneficial relationship.  Some of the key contractual 

clauses are in relation to the following: 

• Project Delivery Proposal 

• Building Performance 

• Community Focus 

• Delivery 

• Learning Environment 

• Financial Information 

o PHASE 1 – (Feasibility) 

o PHASE 2 - (Detailed Design and Target Cost Preparation) 

o PHASE 3 - (Construction Phase) 

• PRICING SCHEDULES 

Tudalen 84



     

• SPECIFICATIONS 

o Partnering 

o Sustainable Development Scheme 

o Delivery and Implementation of Community Benefits 

 

There are no personnel implications and TUPE does NOT apply. 

 

1.4.4 Agreed implementation timescales 

Having appointed a successful supplier (Willmott Dixon Construction) following the 

procurement approach described above in Section 1.3.2, Phase 1 (Feasibility) of the works 

was conducted between April and October 2010 using funding from the Welsh 

Governments Tranche 1 of Transitional Funding awarded in 2009. The output from this 

Phase provided key information to feed into the developing 5 Case Business Case Process 

being undertaken by Denbighshire in relation to the Welsh Government’s 21
st

 Century 

Schools Programme. 

There was then a pause in the project whilst the implications for changes to the timescales 

and scale of the Welsh Government’s 21
st

 Century School Programme and Denbighshire’s 

response to it were worked through.  

In order to demonstrate commitment to the project and to be in a good position to make 

timely progress moving forward Denbighshire decided to provide funding to commence 

work on Phase 2 (Detailed Design & Target Cost Preparation) with this work commencing in 

Spring 2013 and feeding into this Business Case. Phase 2 is anticipated to be completed by 

May 2014. 

This business case seeks approval to take forward the outputs from Phase 2 and proceed to 

Phase 3 – contract award for an NEC3 Engineering and Construction Contract for delivery of 

works associated with construction of a new school building in Rhyl. 

 

1.4.5 Accountancy treatment 

The assets created as a result of the project will be included in DCC’s Education property 

portfolio and the appropriate corporate asset register. 

 

 

1.5 Financial case 

 

1.5.1 Financial expenditure 

Summary of financial expenditure: 
 

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Total 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Option 3 

Capital  24,945 1,477,975 7,222,434 15,860,746 0 24,586,100 

Revenue  0 0 0 0 87,500 87,500 

Total (Capital) 24,945 1,477,975 7,222,434 15,860,746 15,860,746 24,586,100 

Tudalen 85



     

Capital Only 

DCC 24,945 1,477,975 2,859,758 7,930,372 0 0 

WG 0 0 4,362,676 7,930,374 0 0 

Total 24,945 1,477,975 7,222,434 15,860,746 15,860,746 24,586,100 

NOTE: 

The increase in revenue shown, £87,500, is in direct relation to the increase in the Gross Internal Floor Area 

(GIFA) of the preferred option against the current school GIFA.  The revenue budget for schools is driven by a 

number of variables which are often dependent upon pupil numbers.  Whilst it is expected that the project will 

have a positive impact on pupil numbers at this stage this hasn’t been robustly modelled.  The overall quantum 

for the all schools revenue budget would remain the same. 

Therefore the increased revenue is not an increased financial pressure to the County as it will be dealt with via 

the standard school budget setting formula process from within the funding envelope for all schools year on 

year 

1.5.2 Overall affordability and balance sheet treatment 

The payment stream for the capital only to fund the chosen option (Option 3) will see 50% 

of the funding coming from the WG, the remaining 50% coming from DCC. Revenue 

implications will be dealt with once the new project is in place via the standard school 

budget formula setting process. 

 

The capital cost of the project is £24,586,100 over the expected lifetime of the project. A 

submission to access 50% of the project value is being made to WG with the remaining 50% 

coming as contribution from Denbighshire. This approach was outlined in the SOP and has 

been agreed at Council. The detail on the proposed method of delivery for the 50% 

contribution from Denbighshire was included within the Capital Plan that formed part of the 

latest Corporate Plan that was agreed at Council on 09
th

 October 2012. The funding 

provided by the authority will be found from reserves, balances and by selling assets with 

the rest being generated through prudential borrowing. Any amendments to the delegated 

school revenue budgets arising from the project will be dealt with via the existing school 

budget formula setting process 

 

In February 2013, a report was submitted to Denbighshire’s Cabinet recommending 

approval of £1.5M from the county’s own resources to demonstrate the commitment to 

taking the project forward through detailed design. This recommendation was approved at 

Cabinet with the £1.5M being included in the Corporate Plan matrix. This has enabled Phase 

2 to progress in parallel with the Welsh Government Business Case process so as to inform 

the business case development in a timely manner and place the project in a good position 

to proceed without delay within the County’s overall 21
st

 Century Schools Band A 

Programme given formal approval from Welsh Government. 

In addition, this business case has been reviewed by Denbighshire Strategic Investment 

Group to ensure it aligns with the approved Council Capital Plan.  The Council’s Cabinet and 

Council will also consider the Business Case prior to determination by the Welsh 

Government. 

The proposed capital expenditure will increase the overall value of the Council’s asset estate 

by replacing aged buildings with new structures. Consequently, the balance sheet will show 

an increase in total asset value 

Tudalen 86



     

 

1.6 Management case 

 

1.6.1 Project management arrangements 

The scheme is an integral part of the DCC 21
st

 Century Schools programme, which comprises 

a portfolio of Education transformation projects within the context of Modernising 

Education in Denbighshire.  Like all projects within the programme, this project will follow 

the DCC Project Management Methodology founded on PRINCE2 and the principle of 

management by exception within approved parameter boundaries.   

 

A Project Board was established in September 2009 to oversee the development and 

progress of the project. Following completion of the feasibility study stage of the project in 

2010 the Project Board was suspended until the project detailed design stage was re-started 

in 2013.  

The Project Team reports to, and advises the Project Board and is responsible for the 

development, planning and delivery of the project. The membership of the team is dynamic 

and evolves over time with some roles increasing or diminishing in profile as the project 

progresses though its sequential stages. The team is led and coordinated by the Project 

Manager. 

As with the 21
st

 Century Schools Programme Board, the Project Team will be supported, as 

appropriate, by advisers in key areas.  This was a key principle in the appointment of a lead 

strategic project partner with a recent successful background and track record of designing 

and constructing similar schools. 

 

1.6.2 Benefits realisation and risk management 

A benefits register for the project is maintained within the DCC corporate project 

management system.  The register records details of the beneficiaries, the timeframe for 

realisation, the metrics and indicators (for baselines, targets and monitoring) and the 

benefits owner/manager as the persons accountable for realisation.  

 

As with benefits, a risk register is maintained within the DCC corporate project management 

system. The register identifies and allocates risk management responsibilities and mitigation 

measures. This risk register is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure it is up to date and any 

new risks identified are recorded. 

 

 

1.6.3 Post project evaluation arrangements 

Post occupancy evaluation (POE) provides a structured review of the process of delivering a 

capital project as well as a review of operational, functional and strategic performance of 

the building following occupation. This is a recognised way of providing feedback on the 

performance of the project through a building’s lifecycle from the initial concept to 

occupation and beyond. 

The post occupancy evaluation will occur after a period of operational use – between 6-12 

months – and will again capture feedback from all users on how the new set-up is 

Tudalen 87



     

functioning and to measure the actual outcomes against the objectives, plus it will feedback 

to identify any areas where changes are needed and as a source of lessons learned for any 

other similar projects being developed. 

 

1.7 Recommendation 

We recommend that the Rhyl New School should proceed to the delivery phase of the 

project, Phase 3 – Construction. 

 

 

Signed: 

 

 
 
 

 

Date:  

 

29/01/2014 

 

 

Senior Responsible Owner 

Project team 

 

Tudalen 88



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Rhyl New School   

04 February 2014 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 89



 

Rhyl New School 
 

Contact: 
 

James Curran, Education and Support 

Services 
 

Updated: 04.02.2014 
 
  

 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A project proposal 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

The proposal is for funding for a project to deliver a replacement building for the 
existing Rhyl High School which will also be able to accommodate a number of 
pupils from the secondary provision at Ysgol Tir Morfa. 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes       

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

Consideration of equality issues has occurred at all stages of the development of 
the project via the Council as clients and by Wilmott Dixon and AEDAS, the 
contractors and archictects for the project.  
 
The intentions have been to provide buildings which meet the current 
requirements of the legislation in the provision of services, education and 
employment, within the scope of the brief recognising Denbighshire’s policy for 
‘access for all’ and the site conditions. The overall approach to the design being 
new build will aim to meet the standards set by the ADM and the BS8300:2009 as 
a minimum and will reflect good practice guidance (it should be noted that 
BS8300:2009 supersedes ADM). In relation to particular spaces the level of 
accessibility will be agreed within the constraints of the brief that enables the 
needs of new users and the existing school population and staff; which may 

Tudalen 90



 

require accessibility above the standards of the ADM. 
 
 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

  
 
Yes, the project will deliver improved learning accommodation for some of the 
current pupils attending Ysgol Tir Morfa who will transfer to the new site in 2015.  
In addition to improved accomodation they will be able to access specialised 
facilities within the main area of Rhyl High School.  
 

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

No 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

Yes The approach to inclusion and disabled access and use of the 
building has been to incorporate access for all into every 
aspect of the design. This will include (but not limited to): 
• Ample disabled parking bays close to the main entrance. 
• Step free external environment. 
• Level access thresholds to all external and internal doors. 
The floor level will be designed at the same level as the 
external ground level. 
• Lifts solely for the use of disabled pupils, staff or visitors as 
well as deliveries. 
• Sufficient disabled sanitary provision as well as ambulant 
sanitary provision within the main toilet blocks. 
• Changing Places hygiene suite. 
• Furniture design to allow for disabled use. 
• Main circulation doors held open during the school day. 
• Colour schemes to provide the correct colour contrast 

Tudalen 91



 

between surfaces etc. .      

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
Yes       

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

Review Proposals at end of Stage F Sian Lloyd Price 09.05.14 

Review Proposals prior to site construction 
works 

Sian Lloyd Price 30.05.14 

Monitor during progression of works Sian Lloyd Price 20.11.15 

< < < 

                  

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 04.02.2014 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

James Curran 04.02.14 
 
 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 92



 

 

 
Adroddiad i'r:    CABINET 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   18 Chwefror 2014 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol:  Cynghorydd Eryl Williams/Karen Evans 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Karen Evans 
 
Teitl:  Model Cenedlaethol ar gyfer Gwaith 

Rhanbarthol i Wella Ysgolion 
 

 
 
1. Am beth mae'r adroddiad yn sôn?  
 
Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw rhoi'r newyddion diweddaraf i'r Aelodau am 
ddatblygiadau'n gysylltiedig â gwasanaethau gwella ysgolion a chymeradwyo’r Model 
Cenedlaethol newydd ar gyfer Gwaith Rhanbarthol i Wella Ysgolion. 
 
Lluniwyd yr adroddiad hwn ar y cyd â'r pum awdurdod lleol arall yng Ngogledd Cymru 
ac fe'i cyflwynir gerbron y Cabinet ym mhob awdurdod lleol. 
 
2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio'r adroddiad?  
 
Yn Adolygiad Hill, nodwyd sawl opsiwn ar gyfer gwella darpariaeth a strwythur 
gwasanaethau addysg yng Nghymru.    Un o'r opsiynau allweddol oedd bod angen 
mwy o gysondeb wrth ddarparu gwasanaethau gwella ysgolion drwy'r consortia 
addysg rhanbarthol.  Cefnogwyd y safbwynt hwn gan lywodraeth leol drwy ymateb 
CLlLC i Adolygiad Hill ym mis Medi 2013.  

Yn deillio o hyn, ymrwymiad allweddol ar ran llywodraeth leol fu llunio Model 
Cenedlaethol ar gyfer Gwaith Rhanbarthol i Wella Ysgolion (a elwir "Y Model" o hyn 
allan) ar y cyd â Llywodraeth Cymru.  Nod y Model yw cysoni a sefydlogi 
gwasanaethau gwella ysgolion rhanbarthol yr awdurdodau lleol, sy'n gydnaws ag 
ymateb CLlLC i Adolygiad Hill.  

Cwblhawyd y gwaith i ddatblygu'r Model yn ystod mis Tachwedd 2013, gyda 
chynrychiolwyr Prif Weithredwyr, Cyfarwyddwyr Addysg, Cyfarwyddwyr Cyllid a 
Chyfarwyddwyr Adnoddau Dynol o awdurdodau lleol yn cymryd rhan flaenllaw yn y 
broses. Er mwyn cyflawni'r nod hwn, ffurfiwyd sawl gweithgor, gan gynnwys 
swyddogion llywodraeth leol, arbenigwyr addysg a gweision sifil o Lywodraeth 
Cymru.  Mae'r gweithgorau hyn wedi gweithio ar wahanol agweddau ar y Model, gan 
gynnwys egluro'r diffiniad o wella ysgolion, llywodraethu a chomisiynu, cyllidebau a 
chynllunio busnes ar gyfer gwasanaethau rhanbarthol.  

Cytunodd y Gweinidog a Phwyllgor Cydgysylltu CLlLC ar y Model yn hwyr ym mis 
Tachwedd 2013.  Roedd yr amserlen ar gyfer cyflawni'r gwaith hwn yn dynn,  ond 
bu'n broses wirioneddol o lunio ar y cyd.  Yn anochel, bu'n rhaid i bob ochr 
gyfaddawdu i ryw raddau. 

Eitem Agenda 7

Tudalen 93



 

 

 
3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 
 
Bod yr Aelodau'n trafod a chymeradwyo'r ddogfen a gynigir, sef y Model 
Cenedlaethol ar gyfer Gwaith Rhanbarthol i Wella Ysgolion. Atodiad 1 
 
Cytuno â'r argymhelliad:  
 

“y dylid mabwysiadu'r Model Cenedlaethol ar gyfer Gwaith Rhanbarthol i Wella 
Ysgolion a bod cynllun busnes yn cael ei ddatblygu gyda'r bwriad o ymgorffori'r 
gwasanaethau ychwanegol a restrir yn y Model ym model rhanbarthol GwE, 
fesul cam, yn amodol ar gyflwyno achos busnes boddhaol ar gyfer pob un a 
chynllun pontio cysylltiedig er mwyn sicrhau parhad a pherfformiad 
gwasanaethau”. 

 
4. Manylion yr adroddiad 
 
Mae'r Model yn amlinellu ymagwedd gyson at weithgarwch gwella ysgolion, fel sut i 
weithredu cymorth ysgol i ysgol sy'n rhan allweddol o'r broses o symud tuag at 
ysgolion sy'n eu gwella eu hunain.  Nod y Model yw annog ysgolion i fod yn fwy 
cyfrifol am eu gwelliant eu hunan.  Mae'r Model hefyd yn ceisio egluro rhai materion, 
fel pa weithgarwch defnyddiol y gellid ei gyflawni ar raddfa'r awdurdod lleol, a pha 
weithgarwch y mae'n well ei drafod yn rhanbarthol. 

Mae rhan allweddol o'r ddogfen yn trafod y trefniadau llywodraethu mewn perthynas 
â gwasanaethau cydweithredol rhanbarthol i wella ysgolion.  Cedwir at y sefyllfa 
statudol gyfredol, gyda’r awdurdodau lleol unigol yn parhau i fod yn gyfrifol am wella 
ysgolion.  Awgryma'r Model mai Cyd-bwyllgor yw'r ffordd orau o lywodraethu, a bod 
hynny'n cydymffurfio â gofynion cyfreithiol Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972; byddai 
aelodau'r Cyd-bwyllgor yn cael eu penodi gan yr awdurdodau lleol cyfansoddol.  I 
gefnogi'r grŵp hwn ceid bwrdd gweithredol a fyddai'n trafod materion mwy 
gweithredol yn gysylltiedig á'r gwasanaeth rhanbarthol.  

Yn rhan o'r trefniadau newydd, cytunwyd bod angen templed cynllun busnes 
cyffredin fel bo modd i gonsortia gael dull clir o nodi eu blaenoriaethau allweddol ar 
gyfer y flwyddyn a'r canlyniadau a ddisgwylir.  Bydd y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau'n 
defnyddio'r cynlluniau'n sail ar gyfer cytundeb canlyniadau â'r consortia, ac yn derbyn 
y cynlluniau'n ffurfiol (neu beidio) bob blwyddyn.  Dylid cwblhau'r broses o gyflwyno a 
chymeradwyo cynllun busnes erbyn diwedd mis Mawrth bob blwyddyn.  

Drwy gynnal digwyddiadau Adolygu a Herio rheolaidd (archwiliadau gynt), bydd 
Llywodraeth Cymru'n monitro cynnydd yn erbyn y blaenoriaethau a'r canlyniadau a 
nodir yn y cynlluniau busnes, ac yn dwyn consortia ac awdurdodau lleol i gyfrif am 
hynny. Rhaid i'r cynlluniau:- 

• ganolbwyntio ar ganlyniadau strategol;  

• gydweddu'n effeithiol â'r canlyniadau a nodwyd mewn cynlluniau awdurdod 
lleol statudol; 

Tudalen 94



 

 

• sicrhau blaenoriaethau cenedlaethol a lleol er mwyn cael effaith ar 
ddeilliannau dysgwyr;  

• gael eu defnyddio i oleuo trefniadau atebolrwydd democrataidd; a 

• bod yn seiliedig ar ddadansoddiad effeithiol o ddata ac anghenion. 

Rhagwelir y bydd gan y consortia, o fewn y canllawiau a nodir yn y Model, drefniadau 
eraill wedi'u teilwra'n arbennig ar gyfer cynllunio strategol, llywodraethu a gwneud 
penderfyniadau'n effeithiol, trefniadau rheoli perfformiad ac atebolrwydd clir yn fewnol 
ac ar gyfer awdurdodau lleol cyfansoddol, hunanwerthuso, sicrhau ansawdd, 
cynlluniau gweithredu i'w rhoi ar waith ar raddfa'r awdurdod lleol, rheoli risg a 
chynllunio ariannol cadarn. 
 
5. Sut mae'r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 
Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn cyfrannu at y Flaenoriaeth Gorfforaethol o wella perfformiad 
mewn addysg ac ansawdd ein hadeiladau ysgol.  
 
6. Yr Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb 
 
Nid oes unrhyw oblygiadau o ran yr effaith ar gydraddoldeb yn deillio'n uniongyrchol 
o'r adroddiad hwn. 
 
7. Beth fydd yn ei gostio, a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 
Ym mis Hydref 2013, cyhoeddodd y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau ddatganiad 
ysgrifenedig yn derbyn y cynnig gan lywodraeth leol i ddiogelu cyllid gwella ysgolion 
o fewn setliad y gyllideb llywodraeth leol ac i lunio Model Cenedlaethol ar gyfer 
Gwaith Rhanbarthol ar y cyd.    
 
Mae'r cytundeb yn disodli'r cynnig, yn Adolygiad Hill, i ariannu gwasanaethau 
rhanbarthol ar gyfer gwella ysgolion drwy drosglwyddiad o'r Grant Cynnal Refeniw.  
Mae'n cytuno y bydd cyfraniadau Awdurdodau Lleol at swyddogaethau gwella 
ysgolion yn cael eu diogelu ar sail y fethodoleg a'r cyllid a nodir ar y papurau a 
gyflwynir i'r Is-grŵp Dosbarthu a'r Is-grŵp Cyllid.  
 
Mae'r swm yn seiliedig ar isafswm y brigdoriad a gynigiwyd yn wreiddiol (£19.2m), 
llai'r gostyngiad canrannol cyfartalog mewn cyllid refeniw craidd i Gymru, fel y 
cyhoeddwyd yn y Setliad Llywodraeth Leol Terfynol ar gyfer 2014-15.  Mae hyn yn 
gyfwerth â 3.4%  
 
Mae'r dyraniadau i awdurdodau unigol yn seiliedig ar ddosbarthiad Asesiad o Wariant 
Safonol y sector Ysgolion Prif Ffrwd, fel y nodir yn Setliad Terfynol 2014-15.  Mae'r 
sector Ysgolion Prif Ffrwd yn cynnwys y prif feysydd gwasanaeth sy'n ymwneud â 
darpariaeth addysg Gynradd, Uwchradd ac Arbennig.  
 
Yn achos GWE:- 
Ni fydd cyllid ychwanegol i dalu'r symiau a nodir yn y Model Cenedlaethol ond yn 
cael ei drosglwyddo i GwE wrth i'r swyddogaethau hwythau gael eu trosglwyddo.  

Tudalen 95



 

 

Bydd hyn yn unol â'r cerrig milltir a nodwyd yn y Cynllun Busnes ac yn amodol ar 
gydymffurfio'n llwyr â'r argymhelliad yn 4 uchod. 
 
 
8. Beth yw prif gasgliadau'r Asesiad Effaith Cydraddoldeb a gynhaliwyd ar 

gyfer y penderfyniad?  Dylid atodi'r templed AEC sydd wedi'i gwblhau fel 
atodiad i'r adroddiad. 

 
Nid oes unrhyw oblygiadau’n deillio'n uniongyrchol o'r adroddiad hwn o ran yr effaith 
ar gydraddoldeb. 
 
9. Pa ymgyngoriadau a gynhaliwyd â'r Pwyllgorau Archwilio ac eraill? 
 
Mae'r Model wedi cael ei ddatblygu drwy ymgysylltu â swyddogion llywodraeth leol, 
arbenigwyr addysg, gweision sifil, CLlLC a Llywodraeth Cymru.  
 
Bydd angen ymgynghori'n barhaus ag arweinwyr ysgolion, llywodraethwyr, 
swyddogion gwella ysgolion, awdurdodau cyfagos a Llywodraeth Cymru er mwyn 
datblygu cynllun busnes rhanbarthol 2014/15.  
 
10. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
 
Cytunwyd ar gost y gwasanaeth rhanbarthol drwy'r cytundeb lefel gwasanaeth.  
Negodir ynghylch costau ychwanegol cyn gynted ag y bo'r cynllun busnes wedi nodi 
gwasanaethau pellach i'w trosglwyddo i GwE yng nghyd-destun y model 
cenedlaethol. 
 
11. Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 

lleihau? 
 
Er mwyn lleihau unrhyw risg i'r swyddogaeth cefnogi a herio yn ysgolion Dinbych, 
bydd Swyddogion Addysg o fewn yr Awdurdod yn monitro ac yn asesu ansawdd y 
Gwasanaeth Addysg Rhanbarthol (GwE) 
 
12. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 
Erthyglau 6.1 a 6.3.4(b) yng Nghyfansoddiad y Cyngor 
 
Swyddog Cyswllt: 
Pennaeth Addysg: 
Ffôn: 01824 708009 

Tudalen 96



 
 

1 

Appendix 1 
 
National model for regional working in Wales 
 
Section 1: The mission, values and principles of effective school improvement 
 
The vision and the purpose 
 
Wales needs for its future success in the world young people who are clever, skilled, 
happy and healthy, and an educational system that helps to produce them.  Our 
proposals in this agreement are designed to generate this through supporting reform 
to the way that local authorities, regional consortia and the Welsh Government work 
together to support school leaders, governors and teachers and, through this 
process, helping to create excellent learning, in excellent classrooms in excellent 
schools. 
 
The Hill review will help to shape Wales’ education reform programme and the 
national model for school improvement is an integral part of that. The development of 
the national model is a shared endeavour between schools, local authorities, regional 
consortia and the Welsh Government. It recognises the important role each tier has 
to play in improving outcomes for children and young people.  The national model 
can create the structures and define the framework within which this partnership will 
function but it will require a shared commitment and moral purpose for the system as 
a whole to deliver the improvements in education and life chances that all children in 
Wales deserve.  
 
Local authorities retain the statutory responsibility for schools and school 
improvement. The national model is based on a vision of regional school 
improvement consortia working on behalf of local authorities to lead, orchestrate and 
co-ordinate the improvement in the performance of schools and education of young 
people.   The prime mission and purpose of regional consortia is to help those who 
educate our children and young people.  So, in future, their non-negotiable job will be 
to support schools and local authorities in their efforts to: 
 

• improve learner outcomes for all young people;  
 

• ensure the delivery of high quality teaching and learning; and   
 

• support and empower school leaders to better lead their schools. 
 
Model and key principles of school improvement 
 
Schools are at the heart of this new national model. It is the job of governors, school 
leaders, teachers and other staff to set high expectations of pupils, constantly seek to 
improve the quality of teaching and learning, raise standards, share good practice 
and learn from one another through genuine partnerships and school-to-school 
support arrangements. Figure 1 describes an annual cycle of school improvement, 
which we believe should be adopted by all schools. It is a model that many schools 
will recognise and already follow.  
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 97



2 

 
 
Figure 1: Annual cycle of school improvement
 

 
 
1. Step1: School assessment

 
Schools need to know themselves and to evaluate their strengths and weaknesses. 
Assessment is a constant process for both teachers and school leaders
self-evaluation and school categorisation. 
 
School self-evaluation 
Once a year the annual self
school’s life, should provide a systematic trigger for a school auditing how it is 
performing for all its learners. We need to ensure that schools have the capacity to 
do this and that clear systems of core, simple and powerful data are available to 
support this process including benchmarking data so that schools can compare 
themselves against both the best schools and those within their family of schools. 
The more that schools can ‘own’ this process, with help as necessary, the better it 
will work, and the more ‘inspection ready’ every school can be. Challenge advisers 
within consortia will, as their name implies, provide challenge and assure the integrity 
of the process – particularly for those schools who need support or that have serious 
weaknesses. 
 
National school categorisation
Each consortium has developed its own system for categorising sch
as part of the work on the national model, each consortium has agreed to work 
towards and implement a national system for categorising the schools which will be 
in place from 1st April 2014. This national approach will support the school in 
evaluation assessment.  
 
Step 2: Planning improvement
 

 

Figure 1: Annual cycle of school improvement 

Step1: School assessment 

Schools need to know themselves and to evaluate their strengths and weaknesses. 
Assessment is a constant process for both teachers and school leaders

evaluation and school categorisation.  

Once a year the annual self-evaluation, involving all departments and aspects of a 
school’s life, should provide a systematic trigger for a school auditing how it is 

for all its learners. We need to ensure that schools have the capacity to 
do this and that clear systems of core, simple and powerful data are available to 
support this process including benchmarking data so that schools can compare 

h the best schools and those within their family of schools. 
The more that schools can ‘own’ this process, with help as necessary, the better it 
will work, and the more ‘inspection ready’ every school can be. Challenge advisers 

eir name implies, provide challenge and assure the integrity 
particularly for those schools who need support or that have serious 

National school categorisation 
Each consortium has developed its own system for categorising sch
as part of the work on the national model, each consortium has agreed to work 
towards and implement a national system for categorising the schools which will be 

April 2014. This national approach will support the school in 

Step 2: Planning improvement 

  

 

Schools need to know themselves and to evaluate their strengths and weaknesses. 
Assessment is a constant process for both teachers and school leaders based upon 

evaluation, involving all departments and aspects of a 
school’s life, should provide a systematic trigger for a school auditing how it is 

for all its learners. We need to ensure that schools have the capacity to 
do this and that clear systems of core, simple and powerful data are available to 
support this process including benchmarking data so that schools can compare 

h the best schools and those within their family of schools. 
The more that schools can ‘own’ this process, with help as necessary, the better it 
will work, and the more ‘inspection ready’ every school can be. Challenge advisers 

eir name implies, provide challenge and assure the integrity 
particularly for those schools who need support or that have serious 

Each consortium has developed its own system for categorising schools. However, 
as part of the work on the national model, each consortium has agreed to work 
towards and implement a national system for categorising the schools which will be 

April 2014. This national approach will support the school in its self-

Tudalen 98



3  

Schools should use their self-evaluation and the strengths and weaknesses it 
reveals, to work out what to change in what they do. These ideas will often naturally 
come from schools and teachers themselves, but the process can be facilitated by 
making available ‘good practice’ from other schools. Schools, which are struggling, 
will receive the support they need to do this from challenge advisers.  
 
Schools should set targets by which they can measure their improvement. The 
targets should cover both improvement in process – for example, the quality of 
teaching and learning, marking of books or feedback – and outcomes in terms of 
improvements in attainment and progress. The job of challenge advisers will be to 
challenge headteachers and governors to set aspirational targets that ensure high 
levels of motivation and significantly improved pupil attainment. 
 
 
Step 3: Making improvement 
 
Enabling and supporting schools to access, share and use a range of proven and 
new classroom-based approaches should be at the heart of securing the 
improvements that schools need to make. This will include development programmes 
that align training for teachers with them working in groups to observe and coach 
each other on implementing improved practice, and the deployment of Lead 
Practitioners. Every school also has within itself good practice that can be used as 
the basis for ‘within school’ transfer and school-to-school improvement activity. More 
schools will be in federations and still more in clusters. Executive headship will grow 
to maximise the value and potential of our best school leaders. Local authorities may 
also see benefits of such changes in organisational and governance terms as part of 
school improvement.  
 
Consortia will facilitate and orchestrate this collaboration. There will also be 
programmes at consortia level that will draw on the expertise of the best practitioners 
and schools in the region. There will be help from the private sector the voluntary 
sector and indeed local communities that can be matched with the needs of schools 
and their teachers. The higher and further education sectors will also possess many 
individuals and courses that can help teacher and school development.  Whatever 
the source of the help, it is essential that is tailored to the social, linguistic, cultural 
and social context of every school.  
 
Schools that have the capacity to do so should be encouraged and empowered to 
lead their own improvement and deploy their own resources accordingly. For those 
schools that are struggling or underperforming it would be the job of the consortia to 
help match and broker the support needed to the support available. 
 
School leadership at all levels should be nurtured and developed through training 
programmes, coaching, assigning mentors and providing opportunities for emerging 
leaders to be seconded to other schools.  
 
Step 4: Reviewing impact 
 
Schools, teachers and consortia should consider the effects of their actions on the 
achievements of all their children, and then decide what changes to make in their 
plans and their future actions.  Consortia will broadly follow a similar philosophy in 
terms of the planning and review cycle as advocated for schools within Figure 1 
above. The annual cycle of school, departmental, individual, local authority and 
consortium level plans that align all parts of the system together. 
 

Tudalen 99



4  

The role of regional consortia in implementing this model 
 
The delivery of consortia services should be based on co-construction with schools 
with a move to common/shared data systems and underpinned by excellence of 
expertise in analysing and challenging schools’ improvement needs. The delivery of 
consortia services should not be based on employing large numbers of full time staff 
– rather a core staff should draw on the skills of the best headteachers in their 
regions along with other school improvement experts and should use budgets flexibly 
to commission the support schools require. 
 
Relationships and lines of accountability between local authorities and regional 
consortia should be clear so that everyone in the education system understands who 
is responsible for what. 
 
The implementation of this model will change over time.  As schools and teachers 
develop over the next two to three years, and as they gain knowledge and 
confidence, they will expect more independence, autonomy and space to make their 
own decisions.  The measure of success for regional consortia will be that they cease 
to exist in their present form over time because their job is done. 

Tudalen 100



5  

 
Section 2: The scope of regional consortia  
 
The scope of consortia services  

It is important that there is clarity about the scope of the functions and services that 
regional consortia will provide and what schools and local authorities can expect of 
them. Regional consortia services will include: 

• school improvement – which is defined as intervention, challenge and support 
strategies delivered by regional consortia that improve the teaching and learning 
in classrooms and lead to improved pupil attainment and progress at all levels 
and all contexts, including closing gaps in attainment, and addressing specific 
needs (such as the needs of Special Educational Needs (SEN) or More Bale & 
Talented (MAT) Learners ); 
 

• data collation, analysis and application – which is defined as collating from local 
authorities and schools the data on school and pupil performance and progress 
across each region (based on the core data sets established by the Welsh 
Government and Fischer Family Trust projections), using that data to benchmark 
and challenge school performance and, with schools, set challenging targets for 
improvements; 

 

• supporting the development of school leadership at all levels – which includes 
developing opportunities for emerging and senior leaders to develop their 
experience and expertise by having assignment and secondments in other 
schools, in addition to commissioning, and co-ordinating the  provision of training 
and development programmes; 

 

• supporting and promoting the development of school improvement linked to 
learner well being, including issues such as behaviour and attendance; 

 

• ensuring that the delivery of the national Literacy and Numeracy frameworks is 
effective across all schools and co-ordinate and quality assure the provision of 
training and development to achieve this; 

 

• providing challenge to the performance and delivery of Foundation Phase 
settings and assess the need for and then commission, co-ordinate and quality 
assure provision of training and development support; 

 

• aligning national and local 14-19 strategies across the wider consortium area to 
help raise standards in the core subjects of English and mathematics, ensure 
high quality courses offer relevant training for pupils and contribute effectively to 
regeneration strategies; 

 

• working with local authorities to ensure that their plans for developing and 
implementing strategies for 21st Century schools go hand-in-hand with plans for 
school improvement; 

 

• enabling the aims of the Welsh Government’s Welsh-medium Education Strategy 
(WMES) to be delivered by ensuring the alignment of the Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plans(WESP) and the Welsh in Education Grant (WEG) across each of 
the local authorities within the regional consortia, so that there is consistency in 
the development of excellence in pedagogy not only across both the Welsh-

Tudalen 101



6  

medium and bilingual sectors, but also in the delivery of Welsh as a second 
language; 

 

• commissioning, coordinate and quality assure delivery of high quality governor 
training and advice services including the requirements for mandatory training for 
governors; and 

 

• providing specialist human resources advice to support headteachers and 
governing bodies in dealing with performance management and capability issues. 

 
All children are important. Schools and colleges have a duty to deliver appropriate 
curriculum and personal support for pupils with additional learning and special 
educational needs. As part of their school improvement function  consortia will, 
therefore, help schools to deliver high quality education to these groups of pupils, 
drawing on the expertise of the best special schools, and good practice and systems 
adopted by the best mainstream  

. Consortia procedures protocols and business plans should demonstrate that they 
are giving full attention to children who have SEN and data systems should be 
designed to demonstrate the progress they make. They may also need to draw on 
expert support from local authorities where that is appropriate.   
 
The delivery of specialist services, the statementing of pupils and the legal 
procedures that safeguard the welfare and rights of children with special needs 
remain the responsibility of the LA and Consortia should ensure that their services 
and LA services for pupils with SEN are closely aligned.  
 
Local authorities will also continue to be responsible for delivering – either by 
employing their own staff or by working in partnership with another local authority – 
the organisation of schools and school places, special educational and additional 
learning needs, school transport, school meals, safeguarding services, education 
welfare, behaviour and attendance and employees’ pay and conditions of service. In 
some cases local authorities in a region may choose to commission these functions 
from their consortium and such arrangements could strengthen the consortia’s prime 
responsibility to deliver school improvement. But it is implicit in the national model 
that school improvement must be at the forefront of regional consortia’s efforts and 
activity.  
 
The sections that follow explain in more detail how regional consortia and local 
authorities will discharge their respective functions and work together to develop an 
integrated system that supports schools and avoids duplication.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 102



7  

Section 3: Delivery of respective regional consortia and local authority 
functions 
 
The responsibilities of regional consortia 
 
In relation to school improvement regional consortia will provide challenge through: 
 

• monitoring the work and performance of schools, using all-Wales standardised 
data sets, Fischer Family Trust projections and in-school and in-year data on 
pupil progress and the quality of classroom teaching and learning, to categorise a 
school’s performance and development needs in accordance with the nationally 
agreed categorisation model; 

 

• examining with school leaders and chairs of governors performance and 
provision at whole-school level and for different subjects, year groups and 
sub-categories of pupils, in order to compare the progress of individual and or 
groups of pupils with progress made in other comparable schools and to identify 
areas of underperformance and achievement gaps; 

 

• confirming with headteachers and chairs of governors the priority areas for 
improvement and the strategies to be deployed to secure improvement; 

 

• agreeing stretching targets that will raise expectations, set the standard for 
improving the quality of teaching and learning and provide the success criteria by 
which pupil attainment and progress will be judged. Where agreement cannot be 
reached [in respect of schools that are in an Estyn category or monitoring] the 
consortium will advise the local authority so that in accordance with current 
legislation the local authority can determine the appropriate targets; 

 

• assessing for schools that are in special measures, require significant 
improvement, are subject to Estyn or local authority monitoring or otherwise 
identified through the categorisation process as causing serious concern, 
whether governors and school leadership teams have the capacity and will to 
lead school improvement – and making appropriate recommendations as 
necessary; and 

 

• advising of those situations where statutory intervention is required and the 
form(s) that intervention might take – whether federation with another school, the 
deployment of an executive headteacher, the establishment of an interim 
executive board or another appropriate measure.  

 
These functions will be applied proportionally – that is to say those schools most in 
need of support will be monitored most closely. Conversely where schools are 
performing strongly monitoring will be light-touch in nature. These functions, rather 
than the delivery of school improvement programmes and initiatives, will be the main 
focus of challenge advisers’ activity.  
 
Challenge advisers may be employed full-time by a consortium or be bought in on a 
part-time basis. Challenge advisers will have the following attributes: 
 

• experience of leading in a successful school1; 
 

                                                 
1
 This could include being a member of a senior leadership team. 

Tudalen 103



8  

• expertise in analysing and using school improvement data; 
 

• an understanding and experience of how to implement school improvement; and 
 

• strong interpersonal skills. 
 
This will represent a significant shift in the roles and skills needed. Challenge 
advisers should be credible in their challenge role and command respect from 
schools.  Welsh Government will provide national training for those undertaking the 
role of challenge advisers as a matter of urgency.  Consortia will, therefore, need to 
facilitate this training and also secondments to help make the transition to this new 
role wherever possible.  Consortia will have the responsibility of identifying staff to 
participate in training, and will need to ensure strong performance management of 
those undertaking the role of challenge advisors.  Consortia executive boards and 
the managing directors will need to urgently assess the capability of their staff to 
meet the new requirements and discussion with unions that represent them so that 
headteachers and school leaders are challenged and supported by high quality 
advisers. 
 
Regional consortia will share monitoring information with local authorities on a termly 
basis and more frequently in relation to schools that are in special measures, require 
significant improvement, are subject to Estyn or local authority monitoring or are 
otherwise identified through the categorisation process as causing serious concern 
(see below). 
 
Regional consortia will also co-ordinate, broker and provide improvement 
support for schools. These activities will be co-constructed with headteachers and 
teachers. The brokerage and improvement support will be differentiated in relation to 
a school’s capacity to improve and commission/broker its own improvement support. 
Where a school is assessed as performing well or having the capacity to secure its 
own improvement it will be free to use its budgets to draw down and use the services 
as appropriate to its circumstances and improvement needs. Where, however, a 
school has low attainment and poor pupil progress – and/or lacks the capacity to 
promote improvement in general or in a specific area – the consortium will arrange 
the necessary improvement support on behalf of the school in consultation with the 
headteacher and governing body and, where charged-for services are deployed, 
charge the school accordingly. The objective will be to build up the capacity of all 
schools to take responsibility for organising their own improvement. 
 
Consortium’s brokerage and improvement activities will include: 
 

• facilitating the use and interpretation of data as part of this process to support 
forensic school self-evaluation and identify gaps in attainment; 

 

• publishing anonymised benchmarking data on the performance and progress of 
comparable groups of pupils in different subjects and phases to encourage and 
enable schools to learn from each other;  
 

• supporting school leaders to broker  appropriate support from other schools, 
consortia-commissioned programmes and other sources, where a school has the 
capacity lead its own improvement; 

 

• overseeing the implementation of a support programme, including the 
deployment of headteachers of Lead Practitioner schools and other headteachers 

Tudalen 104



9  

capable of acting as executive heads, in those schools that are in special 
measures, require significant improvement, are subject to Estyn or local authority 
monitoring or otherwise identified through the categorisation process as causing 
serious concern; 

 

• commissioning and quality assuring a range of predominantly classroom-based 
training and development programmes to support improvements in teaching and 
learning and subject knowledge; 

 

• working with headteachers and other leaders through joint lesson observations to 
develop a consistent understanding on what constitutes excellent teaching and 
learning; 

 

• identifying excellent departments and lead practitioners using nationally agreed 
criteria who can be deployed to support other schools for part of their working 
week; 

 

• providing mentoring support for headteachers and school leadership teams that 
need support in leading improvement2; 

 

• encouraging, incentivising and steering schools to work on school improvement 
together through local clusters of schools; 

 

• providing access to evidence of ‘what works’ in terms of closing gaps in 
attainment and support schools to implement and assess the impact of targeted 
intervention strategies; 

 

• supporting the formation and development of federations and interim executive 
boards where this is agreed as a way to effect school improvement; 

 

• facilitating the development and work of Professional Learning Communities, 
lesson study and other means for teachers to work together within and across 
schools to review and improve their pedagogical practice; 

 

• working with university education departments to provide access to knowledge 
about teaching and learning and to support research projects based in schools; 
and 

 

• co-ordinating support and training for teaching assistants and newly qualified 
teachers. 

 
In relation to supporting the development of school leadership regional consortia 
will, in partnership with leading headteachers: 
 

• commission from schools, universities and other specialist providers development 
and training programmes for middle leaders to better equip them to analyse and 
use data, assess the quality of classroom learning and coach other colleagues – 
reflecting the work of the National Leadership Development Board as it develops; 
 

• support succession planning by working with local authorities to aggregate data 
on projected turnover and retirements of senior school leaders; 

                                                 
2
 This support should come from a serving headteacher (and the wider leadership team) of a 
strongly performing school – for example, a Lead Practitioner school 

Tudalen 105



10  

 

• commission from schools, universities and other specialist providers development 
and training programmes for emerging senior leaders – reflecting the 
requirements and work of the National Leadership Development Board as it 
develops; 

 

• commission programmes that will empower and enable effective heads to 
support other schools through leading a Lead Practitioner School, acting as an 
executive headteacher, leading a federation or working for part of the week as a 
system leader; 

 

• encourage and co-ordinate opportunities for emerging leaders to have access to 
leadership secondments in other schools; and 

 

• ensure that every new headteacher in their first year of headship shall have 
access to an effective headteacher mentor.  

 
Through the challenge process regional consortia will assess the general and 
specific needs of schools in each local authority area with regard to the specific 
literacy and numeracy training and development they require. In consultation with 
headteachers and the Welsh Government’s contractor for literacy and numeracy 
training, consortia will commission and facilitate the delivery of a strategy that will 
deliver the range of support required at classroom level. 
 
Early Years Foundation Phase support will involve providing challenge to leaders of 
Foundation Phase settings and liaising with headteachers and other providers to 
audit training needs and commission and quality assure an appropriate range of 
programmes.  
 
The consortia will co-ordinate and quality assure the delivery of the aims of the 
Welsh-medium Education Strategy by ensuring the alignment of the Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plans (WESP) and the Welsh in Education Grant (WEG) across 
each of the local authorities within the regional consortia, so that there is consistency 
in the development of excellence in pedagogy, and the meeting of agreed targets, 
not only across both the Welsh-medium and bilingual sectors, but also in the delivery 
of Welsh as a second language. 
 
Co-ordination of the regional dimension of the ICT Strategy will include school 
ICT self-evaluation, leadership and planning of ICT for learning; safeguarding, 
emerging technologies, virtual learning environments, learning technology and the 
national literacy and numeracy framework, running networks for heads of 
departments and ICT co-ordinators, support for pedagogy and curriculum 
development (with reference to the Learning and Digital World Strategy). 
 
Strategic overview of the regional 14-19 offer, including allocation of resources to 
programmes in line with Welsh Government priorities, will include: 
 

• support for planning the use of grants; 
 

• ensuring school and provider provision is in line  to deliver the expected impact 
inherent in these grants; 

 

Tudalen 106



11  

• working with local authorities to provide a strategic overview to challenge and 
support all providers, including FE Colleges and private training providers, to 
ensure equality of access to the development opportunities; 

 

• administering the relevant grants and co-ordinating and supporting bids for 
emerging grant opportunities. 

 
Regional consortia will commission and quality assure delivery of governor support 
services  and training for governors including the mandatory training programmes 
required for new governors, training for chairs of governors and, in respect of 
understanding and applying data effectively for all governors. Consortia will also 
encourage and facilitate governor networks, enable governors to observe each 
other’s meetings and deploy able chairs of governors to mentor other governing 
bodies that are struggling to undertake their role effectively. Consortia will jointly 
develop, in consultation with local authorities, governors and headteachers a 
performance data template for headteachers to use to report to governors on a 
termly or half termly basis a school’s in-year performance on: 
 

• pupil attendance; 
 

• pupil exclusions; 
 

• staff sickness absence; 
 

• quality of teaching (as assesses through classroom observations); and 
 

• progress and attainment data relative to targets. 
 
Consortia will also identify a pool of able candidates that are willing to serve on 
governing bodies where there is weak governance. 
 
In exercising these roles account will need to be taken of funding for governor 
support being delegated to schools in some authorities. 
 
Specialist human resource advice for schools would typically include training for 
headteachers and chairs of governors on performance management and advice on 
managing those occasions when a teacher’s performance is such that the capability 
procedures have to be invoked or a teacher’s absence or sickness record is such 
that it requires serious action to be considered.  Welsh Government recognises that 
consortia may need to move to this model in stages during their first year of operation 
where currently the specialist resources to deliver this requirement do not exist.   
 
Regional consortia and local authorities will not duplicate the work of each other. 
 
Regional consortia will consider urgently recommendations on statutory school 
interventions from local authorities and unless there are exceptional circumstances, 
local authorities will implement them. 
 
The responsibilities of local authorities 
 
Local authorities will retain statutory accountability for school performance together 
with the responsibility for the exercise of statutory powers of intervention and 
organisation of schools.  
 

Tudalen 107



12  

Local authorities will designate a lead officer (‘an intelligent client’) to act as the main 
point of contact with the regional consortium, in accordance with the arrangement 
described below. 
 
Local authorities and regional consortia will have open discussions together about 
their plans which should be clear about the respective roles, functions and intended 
actions of each. These processes will remove any risk of regional consortia or 
authorities duplicating effort. In particular local authorities should share with regional 
consortia information on their proposals and decisions in relation to: 
 

• the overall vision and social and economic development priorities for their area, 
having particular regard to issues that are likely to affect schools; 
 

• school organisation, including plans for federations, amalgamations, closures and 
delivery of their 21st century school strategies; 
 

• supporting the delivery of those having special educational and additional 
learning needs; 

 

• the organisation of behaviour support and education welfare services;  
 

• their youth engagement strategy;  
 

• safeguarding arrangements for children and young people; and 
 

• arrangements to promote effective procurement and the development of business 
support services within schools.  

 
Local authorities will provide regional consortia with access to relevant data systems, 
including anonymised data sets on pupil performance where this is held at local 
authority level, and other information to facilitate their work. 
 
Local authorities will not duplicate the work or activity of regional consortia.   
 
The development of secure local authority and consortia relationships will mean that 
both parties will consider urgently and jointly recommendations on statutory school 
interventions from any source and, unless there are exceptional circumstances, 
agree to implement them. Local authorities and consortia will follow the jointly agreed 
‘escalation’ protocol that is currently being developed.  
 
Local authorities will consider the progress of schools within their area through their 
member-level scrutiny arrangements, having regard to the procedures described 
below.  
 

Tudalen 108



13  

Section 4: Governance and accountability 
 
Joint committees 
 
The work of regional consortia will be overseen by a joint committee3 of the 
constituent local authorities or an arm’s length company, depending upon the form 
which best suits a region’s requirements in order to carry out the functions and to 
deliver the outcomes set out within this report. The form is less important than the 
capacity and drive to deliver improved outcomes and the ability to have the consortia 
functioning in the way agreed by 1st April 2014.  The joint committee will have 
responsibility for approving the consortia budget (including remuneration), business 
planning and performance management of the consortia 
 
The membership of a joint committee or a board will comprise the leader of each 
constituent local authority (or as outlined below this function may be fulfilled by a 
nominated deputy of the leader)4. They will be supported by the lead chief executive. 
The membership of the company board, where the arm’s length company option is 
adopted, should reflect these arrangements. 
 
For the remainder of this section, the focus will be on joint committee governance, 
given the expectation that three of the four regional consortia are likely to follow this 
model. The expectation is that if the arm’s length company model is 
adopted/retained, then the principles articulated below will apply equally to a 
company structure in as far as they are able too. 
 
The joint committee will normally meet no more than once a school term to oversee 
the work of the consortium. The autumn meeting will focus on considering and 
agreeing the draft business plan and the accompanying budget.  The business plan 
will also include a report from the consortium’s managing director on the consortium’s 
outcomes (based on the factors as outlined at page 14).  The spring and summer 
meetings will focus on scrutinising progress with delivery of the plan. These meetings 
may also pick out particular themes or aspect of the consortium’s work – such as 
closing gaps in attainment or leadership development – for more detailed scrutiny. 
The managing director of the board and a lead chief executive shall, after 
consultation with the chair of the committee, agree the agenda and papers to be 
prepared for each joint meeting.  
 
Meetings of joint committees will be open to the public.  
 
The executive board 
 
Joint committees (and arm’s length company boards) will delegate the operational 
oversight of the consortium to an executive board whose role will be to oversee, 
support and challenge the work of the consortium5. The membership of the executive 
board appointed by joint committees will comprise: 

                                                 
3
 Sections 101 and 102 of the LGA 1972 (and in the case of Executive Functions sections 19 
and 20 of the LGA 2000 and relevant Regulations made under these sections) enable the 
work of authorities to be discharged through a variety of internal arrangements, and, in this 
context, external arrangements involving, and working with, other authorities. In particular 
these powers include the ability of two or more authorities to discharge any of their functions 
jointly, and where this occurs, to do so via a joint committee, and/ or by their officers. 
4
 Where a leader is unable to attend he or she would nominate a named deputy. 

5
 The legal provisions referred in footnote 4 above also provide for joint committees to 
delegate their functions in whole or in part to sub committees. The executive board would be 

Tudalen 109



14  

 

• one representative of the joint committee who will also act as the champion of the 
consortium in the region; 

 

• a nominee of Welsh government;  
 

• a lead director of education; and 
 

• no more than [five] individuals who will be appointed, with the approval of the joint 
committee, for their expertise in school improvement drawn from an approved 
pool of individuals assembled by the WLGA and Welsh Government. Those 
nominated shall include at least one serving headteacher drawn from a school 
within the consortium area. 

 
The executive board will have delegated responsibility for the implementation of: 
 

• strategy – executive board members will constructively challenge and contribute 
to the development of strategy to enact the organisation achieving its goals; 

 

• business planning – executive board members will consider and recommend an 
annual business plan to the joint committee; 

 

• budget – executive board members will ensure that the business plan agreed is 
in line with the budget;  

 

• performance – executive board members will scrutinise the performance of 
management in meeting assigned goals and objectives and monitor the reporting 
of performance; 

 

• risk – executive board members will satisfy themselves that financial information 
is accurate and that the financial controls and systems of risk management are 
robust; 

 

• people – executive board members will recommend to the joint committee 
appropriate levels of remuneration for the managing director and top team and 
have the prime role in appointing/removing the managing director. 

 
The chair of the executive board shall come from one of the nominees nominated for 
their expertise in school improvement. The role of the chair will be to:  
 

• set the agenda for the executive board in conjunction with the managing director 
and ensure that the board operates effectively; 

 

• ensure the provision of accurate, timely and clear information for other executive 
board members; 

 

• ensure that the executive board operates effectively in all aspects of its role; 
 

• ensure the provision of accurate, timely and clear information for other executive 
board members;  

                                                                                                                                            
constituted as a sub committee of the joint committee where authorities chose to operate 
though this option. Where they chose to operate through an arm’s length company the 
executive board would be constituted as a subcommittee of the main board.  

Tudalen 110



15  

 

• support effective communication with constituent local authorities and Welsh 
Government; and 

 

• facilitate effective contributions from all executive board members and ensure 
appropriate relationships between executive board members and between 
executive board members and officers. 

 
The managing director and chair of the executive board shall attend meetings of the 
joint committee/company board. 
 
An illustration of the governance model can be found in Annex A. 
 
The overall consortium business plan 
 
Each regional consortium will produce an annual business plan, using a standard 
template that will set out: 
 

• a summary of the consortium’s strategic objectives; 
 

• a report summarising the performance of the schools in the consortium over the 
previous 12 months and an analysis of the main areas of strength and weakness 
within the consortium; 
 

• the priorities for improvement – both in terms of particular schools and cross-
cutting issues; 

 

• the work programmes to be undertaken over the following 12 months, supported 
by budget costings; and 
 

• the measurable improvement in school performance to be achieved over the 12 
months. 

 
The draft business plan will be submitted to the joint committee which will approve it. 
The managing director will report to the joint committee the outcome of discussions 
on the draft plan with individual local authorities and schools, which will take place as 
set out below. The business plan as agreed by the joint committee will be submitted 
to the Welsh Government for confirmation by the Minister for Education and Skills by 
February of each year.  
 
The process of submitting and signing off a business plan should be completed by 
the end of March of each year.  
 
A business plan for each local authority  
 
Alongside the overarching business plan regional consortia will produce draft 
annexes for each respective local authority within the consortium. The draft annexes 
will explain what the overarching business plan means in terms of schools, school 
improvement priorities, school improvement services and school improvement 
targets for each constituent authority.  
 
Each local authority will provide for their consortium a statement of any changes they 
propose to make over the coming 12 months in school organisation and their planned 
arrangements for delivering services for special educational and additional learning 

Tudalen 111



16  

needs, behaviour support and education welfare and wider children services that 
could relate to schools. 
 
The annex and the statement will be discussed individually with each authority 
through a meeting with the lead officer/intelligent client and the elected member with 
responsibility for children’s and education services.  
 
The business plan annex will need to dovetail with other local authority corporate 
plans and the Single Plan. 
 
Any local authority concerns or requests in relation to the content of the draft 
business plan that cannot be agreed between the managing director and a 
constituent authority will be reported to the joint committee as part of their 
consideration of the draft plan.  
 
The business plan annex for each local authority will, once it is agreed, form a 
Service Level Agreement, between the consortium and the local authority.  
 
Scrutiny and liaison between local authorities and regional consortia 
 
Regional consortia will nominate a senior system leader/member of staff to liaise with 
the each authority’s lead officer/intelligent client. It shall be for the respective officers 
to agree on the scope and frequency of their meetings, with contact being more 
intensive the greater the number of schools in the authority that come into one of the 
categories of concern. A note of meetings, recording issues discussed and decisions 
agreed, will be made.  
 
In addition to the meeting in the autumn term to discuss the draft consortium 
business plan as it relates to their area, the authority’s scrutiny committee for 
children’s and education services will meet at least once a year to consider 
performance and progress in their schools. Senior employees of the regional 
consortia will attend these meetings and answer questions.  
 
Local authorities undertake to be reasonable in their expectation of consortia staff 
and resources and ensure that senior leaders are not required to spend a 
disproportionate amount of their time on reporting and scrutiny work.  
 
Accountability and relations with Welsh Government 
 
The Welsh Government, through the Minister for Education and Skills, will be 
responsible for approving annual consortia business plans. 
 
The managing director of each consortium will meet jointly with lead officials of the 
Welsh government on a half-termly basis in the sprit of co-construction, to 
 

• review progress against consortia business plans; 
 

• exchange information on consortia working; 
 

• identify factors that are enabling or holding back progress on school 
improvement; and 

 

Tudalen 112



17  

• liaise on the implementation of government programmes and initiatives such 
as the literacy and numeracy programme or the work of the School 
Leadership board. 

 
Stocktakes 
 
The current round of stocktakes will be replaced by challenge and review sessions.  
The initial intelligence gathering process will include drawing together the 
performance data, Welsh Government and Estyn intelligence on each region.  These 
findings will then inform a discussion with all four Managing Directors building on the 
region’s self-knowledge and the expertise available regionally. This will then lead to a 
challenge and review event with each consortium, the scope and regularity of which 
will vary according to need and risk but as a minimum will be twice a year. 
 
Furthermore, once a year the Minister for Education and Skills will chair a challenge 
and review session for each consortium to review progress on school improvement in 
each region.  The annual report of the consortium’s Managing Director will form part 
of this process. The consortium will be represented by the chair of the executive 
board, the managing director and the joint committee.   
 
Priorities and action agreed as a result of these challenge and review sessions 
will be actioned by consortia and local authorities as appropriate and be reflected in 
the business plan for the next 12 months.  
 
The Minister for Education and Skills reserves the right to make alternative 
arrangements for school improvement and consortium functions, in consultation with 
the Joint Committee, where a consortium clearly lacks the capacity or will to deliver 
its functions. 
 
Relations with schools 
 
Each consortium will establish two panels to consult respectively with school leaders 
and school governors. The purpose of the panels will be to discuss plans and 
proposals for developing school improvement and to receive feedback on the quality 
of service received in respect of both consortia’s’ challenge and support functions. 
 
The panel shall include representatives of primary, secondary and special schools.   
 
These user panels will meet at least termly and the meeting in the autumn term will 
consider the draft business plan for the coming year. Significant concerns from 
school leaders and governors regarding the content of the draft business plan will be 
reported to the joint committee as part of their consideration of the draft plan.  
 
Consortia should also make arrangements for collecting systematic feedback from 
participants on their programmes and this information should be collated and 
presented to the user panels.  
 
Estyn inspection  
 
Estyn has agreed with the Minister for Education and Skills that it will undertake a 
remit on the progress being made by consortia. This remit will begin in late summer 
2014 and be published in spring 2015.  
 
The inspection of consortia will begin in late autumn 2015 through to autumn 2016.  
Estyn will focus primarily on the impact of consortia upon the standards that learners 

Tudalen 113



18  

achieve, the quality of service provided to schools and on the quality of leadership 
and management of consortia.   
 
Estyn has an Advisory Forum on the inspection of regional consortia with which it 
consults representatives from SOLACE, ADEW, four consortia, DfES and Wales 
Audit Office (WAO) about the development of its inspection framework.  
 
Estyn is working jointly with WAO about their role in the inspection of consortia as 
part of Estyn’s inspection team.  
 
By the end of November 2013, Estyn will have carried out an inspection of local 
authority education services for children and young people in all 22 local authorities. 
Between 2013 through to 2016, Estyn will continue follow up activity through the 
monitoring of authorities in the category of Estyn monitoring, in need of significant 
improvement or special measures. However Estyn reserves the right to re-inspect 
any authority that causes significant concern. Estyn will take particular account of 
how effectively a local authority uses its regional consortia to address school 
performance issues in the authority’s schools.  
 
Estyn’s framework for the inspection of local authority education services from 2016 
through to 2022 will need to take account of the outcomes of the Williams 
Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery, as well as the future 
development of regional consortia and the statutory functions of local authorities not 
being delivered through consortia or other collaborative arrangements. 

 

Tudalen 114



19  

Section 5: The organisation and operation of consortia 
 
The central organisation of the consortium 
 
Consortia may decide, because of the geographical size of the region or the need to 
reflect cultural and language differences, to organise delivery of their services 
through hubs. That will be a matter for executive boards to determine. However, all 
consortia should ensure that they retain sufficient expertise at the centre in order to 
manage the following functions on a cross-consortium basis: 
 

• data collation, analysis and application – which is defined as collating from local 
authorities and schools the data on school and pupil performance and progress 
across each region (based on the core data sets established by the Welsh 
Government and Fischer Family Trust projections); 
 

• planning and coordination of the improvement service, quality assurance of the 
challenge function and performance management of its effectiveness in 
delivering improved outcomes; 

 

• strategic leadership of key strands of work such as leadership development, 
literacy and numeracy and Welsh medium; 

 

• business planning including management of financial resources, risk assessment, 
human resource management of consortia staff and commissioning of services; 

 

• commissioning, coordinating and quality assuring delivery of high quality 
governor training and advice services including the national requirements for 
mandatory governor training; and 

 

• specialist human resources advice to support headteachers and governing 
bodies in dealing with performance management and capability issues.   

 
The role of the managing director  
 
The key roles of the managing director will include: 
 
1. Strategic relationship management and collaborative leadership – the managing 

director will need to navigate the development of increased autonomy for schools 
alongside reporting to and working with constituent local authorities (which retain 
statutory responsibilities for education and school improvement), liaising with the 
Welsh Government and reporting to an executive board. The complexity of the 
arrangements will mean that the managing director will need to be able to build 
strong personal relationships while staying focused on delivering the highest 
standards and performance for the region.  
 

2. Ability to analyse data rapidly, read situations, understand and interpret different 
local and political contexts and communicate well. In addition, the managing 
director must guide and lead innovation, seek and take advantage of 
opportunities and take calculated risks in order to strive for continuous 
improvement. 

 
3. Leadership of school improvement services – the managing director will provide 

the strategic leadership and delivery of a sharp and well-defined model of 
diagnosis and support for schools.  This includes, but is not limited to, leading a 

Tudalen 115



20  

high performing team to work alongside school leaders, teachers and others 
engaged in education service delivery in the rigorous challenge and support for 
improvement activity based on strong analysis of data and evidence. The impact 
of this work can be seen by the sharp and sustained improvement in outcomes 
and in the range of appropriate services included within the consortia.  

 
4. Development of system wide school-to-school capacity building measures – we 

believe that in the long-term the capacity for system-wide improvement rests 
within and across schools. The managing director must be capable of galvanizing 
and leading outstanding heads, middle leaders and teachers and, more broadly, 
to design a system of school led capacity building and improvement.  

 
5. Development of and engagement with an improvement service which is flexible 

and meets the needs of its stakeholders – in line with the changing demands and 
needs of schools and local authorities, the managing director will lead the 
development of a flexible approach to procuring school improvement services.  
The role will require a commercial sensitivity and an ability to construct a mixed 
economy of high quality expertise on which schools will be able to draw.   

 
6. Leadership and management of a lean and dynamic central organisation – the 

managing director will provide visible and inspiring strategic leadership and 
management of the consortium. This will require recognition of the history and 
achievements of the organisation to date, whilst reviewing the staffing and 
delivery model to ensure it is as efficient and effective as possible and compliant 
with Welsh Government and Estyn expectations. Critical to this is sound and 
effective people management skills providing high quality professional 
development for staff as well as effective brand management, communication 
management of resources and building relationships with stakeholders. In 
addition, the managing director must guide and lead innovation, seek and take 
advantage of opportunities and take calculated risks in order to strive for 
continuous improvement. 

 
7. The Managing Director shall produce an annual report of performance in the 

following year’s business plan. 
 
The skills and experience needed to be a managing director will, therefore, be of a 
senior strategic leader, with a strong track record of making an impact in leading a 
school improvement organisation that has significantly improved educational 
outcomes. He or she will be ambitious for schools to improve, capable of providing 
and managing challenge and willing and able to lead and steer a coalition of school 
leaders, staff and local authorities through school improvement.   
 
The salary and conditions will be set by the joint committee and the line management 
and accountability will be to the chair of the executive board. 
 
Where managing directors are appointed (including those about to be appointed) 
regions will enable a representative of the Welsh Government to observe the 
appointment process and the opportunity to comment on the proposed appointment. 
Where the Welsh Government does not support the proposed appointment, no 
appointment offer shall be made until the chair of the joint committee) has met with 
the Minister for Education and Skills to discuss the matter. 
 
Where a managing director is already in post, the chair of the executive board shall 
advise the joint committee on the fitness of the post holder for the post, as described 

Tudalen 116



21  

above, and the joint committee will notify the Minister for Education and Skills 
accordingly.  
 
Funding and finance 
 
Regional consortia will obtain their funding from three sources: 
 
1. It has been agreed that the school improvement element within the RSG will be 

identified separately and ring fenced. Local authorities have given a commitment6 
to protect this funding and transfer it directly to the consortia. Local authorities 
have signed up to this agreement formally and this agreement has the same 
status as other agreements such as the Simpson Compact and the delegation 
rates targets of 80 per cent and 85 per cent. The quantum identified will be based 
on the methodology and funding identified in the papers submitted to the 
Distribution Sub Group and Finance Sub Group (see Annex B). For 2014/15 this 
sum amounts to a minimum of £18.6 million core funding for the four regional 
consortia in Wales.  

 
From 1st April 2014 the transferred funding will be lodged with the lead financial 
authority on behalf of the consortium and made available in full to the consortium. 
Further financial resources would be added if further functions were transferred 
into the consortium. 
 
For future years lead financial officers from each consortium will each December 
calculate the figures in line with the agreement between the WLGA and the 
Welsh Government. The level of funding that is proposed to be transferred to 
consortia will also be subject to consultation with Welsh Government. 
 

2. Dedicated funding for schools and school improvement routed through consortia 
by the Welsh Government. The major Welsh Government grants and associated 
Local Authority match-funding will be passported via the lead authority to the 
consortium, apart from those elements that are delegated directly to schools. 
Centrally retained elements of the major grants issued on a regional basis will be 
passported in full and retained by the consortium.  

 
All funding intended to be delegated to schools must be delegated to schools. 
Where schools require additional guidance and support in spending the funding 
efficiently, consortia will provide that guidance and support. 

 
3. Funding generated by consortia as a result of charging for some of the 

programmes and interventions that they commission – i.e. some services may be 
traded and charged to schools. There should be clarity about traded services and 
a forecast over three years of how this will be developed as more schools 
manage their own budgets. 

 
The consortia will identify the full financial quantum to be utilized in the delivery of 
their services. The total funding, apart from those elements which are delegated to 
schools, will be made available to consortia. The consortia will be expected to 
demonstrate openness and clarity in the use of all elements of funding, using the 
business plans as a vehicle for agreeing the full budget breakdown and the 

                                                 
6
 This commitment refers to the national agreement reached between the WLGA, the 22 leaders of 

local authorities and the Minister for Education and Skills. 

Tudalen 117



22  

Managing Director’s annual report to clearly and transparently report on how funding 
was spent7. 

 
Timescales  
 
The aim in order to begin to deliver improved outcomes is to transition through the 
next few months to the Consortia arrangements set out in this report by 1st April 
2014.  
 
However we recognise that some of the school improvement services contained in 
this model will not be able to be delivered by 1 April 2014 due to timing and/or legal 
constraints.  Therefore, as part of the business plan and to provide an element of 
flexibility, consortia will need to clearly show what will be delivered by April 2014 and 
what by April 2015, along with a clear rationale as to why. 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
7
 Consortia will be expected to provide a full breakdown of funding as part of the business plan and 

updates for scrutiny by the Executive Board, the Joint Committee and in the six-monthly meetings with 

the Minister for Education and Skills. 

Tudalen 118



Adroddiad i'r:    Cabinet 

 

Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   18 Chwefror 2014 

 

Aelod/Swyddog Arweiniol:  Cyng Hugh Evans / Cyng Huw Jones 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Tom Booty, Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd a 

Busnes  

Jamie Groves, Pennaeth Cyfathrebu, Marchnata a 

Hamdden 

 

Teitl:  Adnewyddu Cyfleusterau Arfordirol yn y Rhyl a 

Phrestatyn  

 

 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn? 

Ym mis Ionawr 2013, cytunodd y Cabinet i ymchwilio i opsiynau ar gyfer dyfodol y 

cyfleusterau hamdden a thwristiaeth arfordirol yn y Rhyl a Phrestatyn. Dros y 12 mis 

diwethaf, mae swyddogion wedi gweithio gyda darparwr Fframwaith Hamdden y Cyngor i 

ddeall y cynnig presennol a'r cynnig posibl ar gyfer y cyfleusterau yn y dyfodol ac wedi 

cynnal ymarfer profi'r farchnad meddal.  Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn nodi'r dull a argymhellir i 

sicrhau datblygu Canolfan Ddyfrol newydd yn y Rhyl ac ailddatblygu’r Nova ym 

Mhrestatyn.  

 

2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 

Mae'r adroddiad yn angenrheidiol i alluogi'r Cabinet i wneud penderfyniadau i ddatblygu'r 

prosiectau Cyfleusterau Arfordirol i'r cam nesaf.  

 

3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 

 

1. Canolfan Ddyfrol, Y Rhyl: Mabwysiadu dull 'datblygwr a ffafrir’ i ddarparu gwell 

cyfleusterau twristiaeth a hamdden yn y Rhyl, gan gynnwys Canolfan Ddyfrol 

newydd ac i wahodd datganiadau o ddiddordeb gan ddatblygwyr i'w hystyried gan y 

Cyngor.  

2. Cynnwys cyfleoedd datblygu yn holl gyfleusterau/tir/asedau'r Cyngor ar hyd 

Promenâd y Rhyl (Llyn Morol i Splash Point) yn y gwahoddiad am ddatganiadau o 

ddiddordeb.  

3. Ail-ddatblygu'r Nova: Ar yr un pryd, defnyddio cytundeb fframwaith presennol y 

Cyngor gydag Alliance Leisure i lunio astudiaeth ddichonoldeb busnes fanwl a 

gwerthusiad o opsiynau dylunio ac adeiladu ar gyfer y Nova.   

4. Agwedd Tuag at Gyllid:  Gwneud ymrwymiad mewn egwyddor i neilltuo arbedion 

gweithredol a gynhyrchir o ganlyniad i'r cynigion ail-ddatblygu i gefnogi cyfraniadau 

cyfalaf posibl gan y Cyngor tuag at gyflawni'r ‘prosiect cyfan'.   

Eitem Agenda 8

Tudalen 119



5. Dull cyllid i Lywodraeth Cymru: Cwrdd â Llywodraeth Cymru i archwilio cefnogaeth 

ar gyfer dull partneriaeth 'arbennig' o ran adfywio arfordirol.  

 

Cafodd yr argymhellion hyn i'r Cabinet eu hystyried a’u cefnogi gan y Bwrdd Prosiect 

Cyfleusterau Arfordirol yn ei gyfarfod ar 7 Ionawr.  

 

4. Manylion am yr Adroddiad  

Mae Bwrdd Prosiect wedi ei sefydlu i lywodraethu’r prosiect cyffredinol i adnewyddu’r 

cyfleusterau hamdden a thwristiaeth yn y Rhyl a Phrestatyn. Mae ei aelodaeth yn cynnwys 

cynrychiolwyr o Grwpiau Ardal yr Aelodau o’r Rhyl a Phrestatyn ynghyd ag Aelodau 

Arweiniol a swyddogion perthnasol.  

 

Cyfarfu'r Bwrdd Prosiect Cyfleusterau Arfordirol ym mis Ionawr ac adolygu'r gwaith a 

wnaed hyd yma gan swyddogion yn dilyn penderfyniad y Cabinet ym mis Ionawr 2013.  Ar 

ôl ystyried y cyngor a roddwyd, cefnogodd y Bwrdd yr argymhelliad bod dau ddull caffael 

ar wahân yn cael eu mabwysiadu ar gyfer datblygu'r Cyfleusterau Arfordirol. Maent fel a 

ganlyn: 

 

1. Cytunwyd ar yr argymhelliad i ddilyn y llwybr o wahodd Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb i 

sicrhau datblygwr a ffafrir ar gyfer y Ganolfan Ddyfrol newydd a datblygiadau 

cysylltiedig yn y Rhyl am y rhesymau canlynol: 

 

• Mae'r prosiect Cyfleusterau Arfordirol cyffredinol (ac eithrio datblygiad y Nova) y tu 

hwnt i allu ariannol y Cyngor ar hyn o bryd ac mae angen grant allanol a chyllid y 

sector preifat.  

• Fodd bynnag, mae'r sector preifat ar ei ben ei hun yn annhebygol o weld hyn fel 

cyfle buddsoddi digon deniadol, gydag adenillion ar fuddsoddiad yn gyfyngedig. 

• Felly mae dull partneriaeth preifat a chyhoeddus a rennir yn fwy tebygol o fod yn 

gyraeddadwy.  

• Ond nid yw caffael ffurfiol yn gyraeddadwy o fewn yr amserlenni y mae’r Cyngor yn 

eu hystyried ac yn annhebygol o gyflawni datrysiad cost effeithiol hefyd - mae’r 

llwybr 'datblygwr a ffefrir’ yn rhoi mwy o gyfle ar gyfer creadigrwydd ac arloesed gan 

y sector preifat. 

 

Argymhellir proses dau gam gydag amserlen gyffredinol o tua 2 flynedd: 

• Bydd Cam 1 yn cwmpasu ymarfer profi'r farchnad agored gyda datblygwyr yn 

cael eu gwahodd i gyflwyno cynigion a'r cynigion hynny wedyn yn cael eu 

gwerthuso gan y Cyngor (Ebrill - Medi 2014). 

• Bydd Cam 2 yn gyfnod o drafodaethau unigryw gyda'r datblygwr a nodwyd fel y 

datblygwr a ffefrir ar ddiwedd Cyfnod 1 (o fis Hydref 2014). 

 

2. Argymhellir llwybr caffael gwahanol ar gyfer ailddatblygu’r Nova am y rhesymau 

canlynol: 

• Mae graddfa'r gwaith yn llai ac yn llai cymhleth ac mae’n bosibl felly i'r Cyngor 

symud ymlaen ar ei ben ei hun. 

Tudalen 120



• Byddai cynnwys y Nova o fewn yr ymarfer profi'r farchnad ehangach yn ychwanegu 

cymhlethdodau diangen (ar gyfer cynnig y Rhyl a Phrestatyn) ac mae ganddo'r 

potensial i arafu gwaith ailddatblygu. 

• Mae gan waith ailddatblygu’r Nova y potensial i sicrhau model sy’n gwbl 

hunangyllidol gan ryddhau arbedion refeniw ar gyfer buddsoddi yn y cynnig 

Cyfleusterau Arfordirol y Rhyl. Y prawf fforddiadwyedd hanfodol fydd y gall 

gweithrediad 'Nova newydd' ym Mhrestatyn gyflwyno gwarged net sy’n ddigon i 

dalu am yr adeilad yn ogystal â chostau rhedeg yn y dyfodol. Bydd astudiaeth 

ddichonoldeb i gynnwys dadansoddiad o alw cudd yn llywio arfarniad o opsiynau 

dylunio ac adeiladu ar gyfer Prestatyn. Bydd hwn yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r Grŵp 

Buddsoddi Strategol cyn cael ei ystyried gan y Cabinet.  Amcangyfrifir ar hyn o bryd 

y bydd yr astudiaeth ddichonoldeb yn cael ei chwblhau erbyn dechrau mis Ebrill 

2014 gydag ystyriaeth gan Grwpiau Diddordeb Arbennig a'r Cabinet yn 

ddiweddarach y mis hwnnw. 

 

Nododd y Bwrdd Prosiect y gallai’r Nova fod yn ychwanegiad deniadol i'r dull profi'r 
farchnad yn gyffredinol, ond cytunodd fod y manteision at ei gilydd o’i gynnwys yn debygol 
o gael eu gorbwyso gan yr anfanteision o ran amser a chymhlethdod.  
 
Nododd y Bwrdd Prosiect hefyd y risgiau sydd ynghlwm wrth y dull caffael datblygwr a 

ffafrir - llai / dim rheolaeth dros fanyleb, gallai fod yn cymryd llawer o amser, nid oes 

unrhyw warant o ddiddordeb y farchnad - ond at ei gilydd cytunodd ei fod yn ddull priodol 

ar gyfer y prosiect hwn yn seiliedig ar amgylchiadau presennol. 

 

5. Sut y mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at Flaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 

Mae'r prosiect Cyfleusterau Arfordirol yn elfen hanfodol o'r Strategaeth Uchelgais 

Economaidd a'r Strategaeth y Rhyl yn Symud Ymlaen.  

 

6. Beth fydd yn ei gostio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 

Mae cefnogaeth mewn egwyddor wedi ei rhoi gan y Bwrdd Rhaglen Uchelgais 

Economaidd a Cymunedol i gefnogi costau rheoli prosiect ar gyfer y Prosiect Cyfleusterau 

Arfordirol dros y 6 mis nesaf (h.y. Rheoli prosiect gan Gynllunio Busnes a Pherfformiad 

Cyngor Sir Ddinbych; cyngor arbenigol allanol; cymorth ar gyfer gwasanaethau mewnol y 

codir tâl amdanynt). Awgrymwyd amcangyfrif cychwynnol o £45K, ond mae’n destun 

rhagor o ddadansoddi gan y Rheolwr Prosiect. 

 

Nid oes unrhyw gost i'r Cyngor ar hyn o bryd ar gyfer y gwaith dichonoldeb manwl ar gyfer 

y Nova sy'n wasanaeth a ddarperir o dan y Cytundeb Fframwaith ag Alliance Leisure. 

 

Hyd nes y bydd astudiaeth dichonoldeb ac arfarniad opsiynau ar gyfer y Nova wedi eu 

cwblhau a'r datganiadau o ddiddordeb wedi’u derbyn gan bartneriaid datblygu posibl, nid 

yw'n bosibl mesur y costau posibl llawn i'r Cyngor. Bydd fforddiadwyedd cynigion yn 

ystyriaeth allweddol wrth argymell a ddylid symud ymlaen neu beidio unwaith y bydd 

cynigion wedi eu gwerthuso.  

  

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb a gwblhawyd ar 

gyfer y penderfyniad?   
Tudalen 121



Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb ynghlwm Atodiad 1 

 

8. Pa ymgynghori a gwblhawyd gydag Archwilio ac eraill?  

Bu ymgynghoriadau helaeth drwy gydol 2013 gan gynnwys cyfarfodydd rheolaidd gyda 

Grwpiau Aelodau, sesiynau briffio gyda’r Cabinet a’r Cyngor ac ymgynghoriadau gyda'r 

Sector Preifat a brawdoliaeth Nofio.  Mae'r farn sy'n dod i'r amlwg o'r holl ymgynghoriadau 

hynny wedi helpu i lywio argymhellion. 

 

Tudalen 122



9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid  

Mae'r gwaith o ailddatblygu'r cyfleusterau arfordirol yn rhan bwysig o strategaeth 

ddatblygu'r Cyngor.  Nid yw'r adroddiad yn gofyn am unrhyw gyllid sylweddol.  Bydd y gost 

o ddatblygu'r prosiect yn cael ei gynnwys o fewn y cyllidebau presennol.  Unwaith y bydd y 

gwaith profi'r farchnad a gwaith dylunio wedi ei wneud, byddwn mewn gwell sefyllfa i 

werthuso costau a risgiau'r cynigion.  Bydd unrhyw gynigion yn amodol ar brosesau 

cymeradwyo arferol y Cyngor. 

 

10. Beth yw’r risgiau ac oes yna unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w lleihau? 

Mae hwn yn brosiect mawr, cymhleth sydd angen symud ymlaen yn y cyfnod ariannol 

mwyaf anodd a bydd llawer o risgiau a allai effeithio ar y cynnydd a phenderfyniadau 

cyfnod allweddol e.e.:  

• Nid yw sicrhau cyllid yn syml - mae'n gofyn am ddilyniant i ddefnyddio refeniw a 

lleihau aflonyddwch.  

• Efallai na fydd y cynigion datblygu’r Nova yn darparu digon o elw gweithredol i 

sicrhau'r arbedion refeniw angenrheidiol a thalu am y costau cyfalaf. 

• Efallai na fydd y Gwahoddiad am Ddatganiadau o Ddiddordeb yn sicrhau partner 

datblygu priodol ac mae risgiau eraill sy'n gysylltiedig â dull caffael datblygwr a 

ffafrir a allai gynnwys bod llai neu ddim rheolaeth dros y fanyleb, yn ogystal â bod 

cyfnod hir sy’n cymryd llawer o amser ar gyfer y datblygu’r cysyniad. 

• Bydd cynnal parhad y gwasanaeth yn anodd ei gyflawni e.e.: 

o Efallai y bydd dymchwel yn y pen draw yr Heulfan yn cau'r Pafiliwn am 

gyfnod sylweddol. 

o Bydd y gwaith o adnewyddu'r Nova yn mynnu cyfnod o gau. 

Mae'r Bwrdd Prosiect Cyfleusterau Arfordirol yn adolygu'r gofrestr risg a chynllun rheoli 

prosiect ar sail barhaus a bydd yn gyfrifol am sicrhau bod yr holl fesurau lliniaru priodol yn 

cael eu rhoi ar waith. Y sefyllfa wrth gefn yn y senario achos gwaethaf fyddai cadw'r cynnig 

dyfrol Canolfannau Hamdden a chyflwyno am y tro yr hyn sy'n fforddiadwy o fewn 

adnoddau'r Cyngor ei hun 

 

11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad  

12. Adran 2 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 

13. Adran 111 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 

 

Tudalen 123



Tudalen 124

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Prosiect Cyfleusterau Arfordirol  

18 Chwefror 2014 
 
 

Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 125



 

 

Rhaglen y Rhyl yn Symud 
 

Cysylltwch: 
 

Tom Booty
Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd a Busnes
 

Diweddarwyd: 18 Chwefror 2014
 

 
 
1. Pa fath o gynnig / penderfyniad sy’n cael ei asesu?
 

Cynnig prosiect 

 
 

2. Beth yw pwrpas y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn, a pha newid (i 
staff neu’r gymuned) fydd yn digwydd yn sgil ei weithredu?

 

Mae’r Prosiect Cyfleusterau Arfordirol yn rhaglen f
gyfer adfywio a datblygu’r cyfleusterau hamdden ar Arfordir y Rhyl a Phrestat
Llyn Morol i Splash Point. Mae’r Prosiect yn 
Symud Ymlaen a’r Strategaeth Uchelgais Economaidd.
 
Mae’r prosiect yn y cam datblygu/dichonoldeb ar hyn o bryd a
gofynnir amdano gan y Cabinet 
chaffael partner datblygu sector preifat a’r dichonoldeb busnes ar gyfer ail
ddatblygu’r Nova. 
 
Yn y cam hwn, ni fydd y prosiect yn cael unrhyw effaith ar y gymuned na staff ar 
wahân i’r rhai sy’n ymwneud â chefnog
fydd ymgynghori â’r gymuned yn berthnasol nes bo’r cam cynigion cynllunio wedi’i 
gyrraedd. 
 

 

3. A oes angen cynnal asesiad o effaith ar gydraddoldeb ar y 
cynnig / penderfyniad hwn?

 Nodwch: Os bydd y cynnig yn cael effaith ar bobl (staff neu’r gymuned) yna 
bydd rhaid cynnal asesiad o effaith ar gydraddoldeb

 

Oes       

 
 

4. Rhowch grynodeb o’r camau a gymerwyd, a'r wybodaeth a 
ddefnyddiwyd, i gynnal yr asesiad hwn, gan gynnwys unrhyw 
ymgysylltu a fu 
(Gweler adran 1 yn y pecyn gwaith i gael cyfarwyddyd)

 

Mae’r cynigion Prosiect Arfordirol wedi bod yn destun ymgynghoriad helaeth gyda 
Grwpiau Ardal yr Aelodau a Chynghorau Tref drwy 2013, gan gynnwys 

Rhaglen y Rhyl yn Symud Ymlaen 

Tom Booty 
Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd a Busnes
 
18 Chwefror 2014 

 

Pa fath o gynnig / penderfyniad sy’n cael ei asesu? 

Beth yw pwrpas y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn, a pha newid (i 
gymuned) fydd yn digwydd yn sgil ei weithredu?

eusterau Arfordirol yn rhaglen fuddsoddi a datblygu mawr ar 
gyfer adfywio a datblygu’r cyfleusterau hamdden ar Arfordir y Rhyl a Phrestat

int. Mae’r Prosiect yn elfen allweddol o Strategaeth y Rhyl yn 
Strategaeth Uchelgais Economaidd. 

Mae’r prosiect yn y cam datblygu/dichonoldeb ar hyn o bryd ac mae'r penderfyniad y
gan y Cabinet yn canolbwyntio ar gymeradwyaeth i barhau â 

chaffael partner datblygu sector preifat a’r dichonoldeb busnes ar gyfer ail

Yn y cam hwn, ni fydd y prosiect yn cael unrhyw effaith ar y gymuned na staff ar 
wahân i’r rhai sy’n ymwneud â chefnogi rheoli prosiectau a chyngor technegol. Ni 
fydd ymgynghori â’r gymuned yn berthnasol nes bo’r cam cynigion cynllunio wedi’i 

A oes angen cynnal asesiad o effaith ar gydraddoldeb ar y 
cynnig / penderfyniad hwn?  Os nac ydyw, eglurwch pam.

Os bydd y cynnig yn cael effaith ar bobl (staff neu’r gymuned) yna 
cynnal asesiad o effaith ar gydraddoldeb 

Rhowch grynodeb o’r camau a gymerwyd, a'r wybodaeth a 
ddefnyddiwyd, i gynnal yr asesiad hwn, gan gynnwys unrhyw 

(Gweler adran 1 yn y pecyn gwaith i gael cyfarwyddyd) 

Mae’r cynigion Prosiect Arfordirol wedi bod yn destun ymgynghoriad helaeth gyda 
Grwpiau Ardal yr Aelodau a Chynghorau Tref drwy 2013, gan gynnwys 

Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd a Busnes 

  

 

Beth yw pwrpas y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn, a pha newid (i 
gymuned) fydd yn digwydd yn sgil ei weithredu? 

uddsoddi a datblygu mawr ar 
gyfer adfywio a datblygu’r cyfleusterau hamdden ar Arfordir y Rhyl a Phrestatyn – o 

elfen allweddol o Strategaeth y Rhyl yn 

c mae'r penderfyniad y 
canolbwyntio ar gymeradwyaeth i barhau â 

chaffael partner datblygu sector preifat a’r dichonoldeb busnes ar gyfer ail-

Yn y cam hwn, ni fydd y prosiect yn cael unrhyw effaith ar y gymuned na staff ar 
a chyngor technegol. Ni 

fydd ymgynghori â’r gymuned yn berthnasol nes bo’r cam cynigion cynllunio wedi’i 

A oes angen cynnal asesiad o effaith ar gydraddoldeb ar y 
Os nac ydyw, eglurwch pam. 

Os bydd y cynnig yn cael effaith ar bobl (staff neu’r gymuned) yna 

Rhowch grynodeb o’r camau a gymerwyd, a'r wybodaeth a 
ddefnyddiwyd, i gynnal yr asesiad hwn, gan gynnwys unrhyw 

Mae’r cynigion Prosiect Arfordirol wedi bod yn destun ymgynghoriad helaeth gyda 
Grwpiau Ardal yr Aelodau a Chynghorau Tref drwy 2013, gan gynnwys 

Tudalen 126



 

 

ymgynghoriad allanol gyda grwpiau nofio am opsiynau dylunio pyllau.
 
Mae’r prosiectau wedi codi’n unigol o bro
flynyddoedd yn ogystal ag ymchwil dichonoldeb er mwyn pennu angen. Bydd gan 
bob prosiect unigol sy’n dod i’r amlwg o’r dichonoldeb ei strategaeth ymgynghori ei 
hun yn ogystal â bod yn destun Safonau Cynllunio ac Adeil
 

 
 

5. A fydd y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn yn cael effaith bositif ar 
unrhyw un o’r nodweddion a ddiogelwyd (oed; anabledd; ail 
aseinio rhyw; priodas a phartneriaeth sifil; beichiogrwydd a 
mamolaeth; hil; crefydd neu gred; rhyw; a thueddfryd rhywiol)?
(Gweler adran 1 yn y pecyn gwaith i gael disgrifiad o’r nodweddion a ddiogelir)

 

Nod y prosiectau yw bod wrth galon
economaidd, cymdeithasol a ffisegol
nodweddion a ddiogelir. Bydd prosiectau a gaiff eu harwain gan Gyngor Sir 
Ddinbych yn cael eu datblygu a’u darparu yn unol â methodoleg Rheoli Prosiectau 
Corfforaethol Sir Ddinbych; wrth i’r prosiectau a’r
bydd Asesiad penodol o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb yn cael ei gynnal ar y cam priodol 
a gyda hyn bydd asesiad manylach o’r effaith benodol ar nodweddion a ddiogelir yn 
cael ei gynnal. 
 

 
 

6. A fydd y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn yn cael effaith anghymesur 
ar unrhyw un o’r nodweddion a ddiogelwyd (oed; anabledd; ail 
aseinio rhyw; priodas a phartneriaeth sifil; beichiogrwydd a 
mamolaeth; hil; crefydd neu gred; rhyw; a thueddfryd rhywiol)? 

 

Nod y prosiectau yw bod wrth galon adfywio’r ardal a mynd i’r afael â dirywiad 
economaidd, cymdeithasol a ffisegol ac felly dylai gael effaith gadarnhaol ar rai o’r 
nodweddion a ddiogelir. Bydd prosiectau a gaiff eu harwain gan Gyngor Sir 
Ddinbych yn cael eu datblygu a’u darparu yn unol â methodoleg Rheoli Prosiectau 
Corfforaethol Sir Ddinbych; wrth i’r prosiectau a’r mentrau hyn gael eu datblygu 
bydd Asesiad penodol o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb yn cael ei gynnal ar y cam priodol 
a gyda hyn bydd asesiad manylach o’r 
cael ei gynnal. 
 

 

7. A yw’r cynnig / penderfyniad wedi’i ddiwygio i ddileu neu 
leihau unrhyw effaith negyddol bosibl?
pam. 

 

Na Nid oes tystiolaeth o unrhyw effaith negyddol yn y cam cynnar
hwn yn natblygiad y prosiect
 

 

ymgynghoriad allanol gyda grwpiau nofio am opsiynau dylunio pyllau. 

Mae’r prosiectau wedi codi’n unigol o broses o adolygiadau helaeth dros nifer o 
flynyddoedd yn ogystal ag ymchwil dichonoldeb er mwyn pennu angen. Bydd gan 
bob prosiect unigol sy’n dod i’r amlwg o’r dichonoldeb ei strategaeth ymgynghori ei 
hun yn ogystal â bod yn destun Safonau Cynllunio ac Adeiladu.  

A fydd y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn yn cael effaith bositif ar 
unrhyw un o’r nodweddion a ddiogelwyd (oed; anabledd; ail 
aseinio rhyw; priodas a phartneriaeth sifil; beichiogrwydd a 
mamolaeth; hil; crefydd neu gred; rhyw; a thueddfryd rhywiol)?
(Gweler adran 1 yn y pecyn gwaith i gael disgrifiad o’r nodweddion a ddiogelir)

Nod y prosiectau yw bod wrth galon adfywio’r ardal a mynd i’r afael â dirywiad 
ffisegol ac felly dylai gael effaith gadarnhaol ar rai o’r 

nodweddion a ddiogelir. Bydd prosiectau a gaiff eu harwain gan Gyngor Sir 
Ddinbych yn cael eu datblygu a’u darparu yn unol â methodoleg Rheoli Prosiectau 
Corfforaethol Sir Ddinbych; wrth i’r prosiectau a’r mentrau hyn gael eu datblygu 
bydd Asesiad penodol o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb yn cael ei gynnal ar y cam priodol 
a gyda hyn bydd asesiad manylach o’r effaith benodol ar nodweddion a ddiogelir yn 

A fydd y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn yn cael effaith anghymesur 
ar unrhyw un o’r nodweddion a ddiogelwyd (oed; anabledd; ail 
aseinio rhyw; priodas a phartneriaeth sifil; beichiogrwydd a 
mamolaeth; hil; crefydd neu gred; rhyw; a thueddfryd rhywiol)? 

rosiectau yw bod wrth galon adfywio’r ardal a mynd i’r afael â dirywiad 
economaidd, cymdeithasol a ffisegol ac felly dylai gael effaith gadarnhaol ar rai o’r 
nodweddion a ddiogelir. Bydd prosiectau a gaiff eu harwain gan Gyngor Sir 

lygu a’u darparu yn unol â methodoleg Rheoli Prosiectau 
Corfforaethol Sir Ddinbych; wrth i’r prosiectau a’r mentrau hyn gael eu datblygu 
bydd Asesiad penodol o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb yn cael ei gynnal ar y cam priodol 
a gyda hyn bydd asesiad manylach o’r effaith benodol ar nodweddion a ddiogelir yn 

A yw’r cynnig / penderfyniad wedi’i ddiwygio i ddileu neu 
leihau unrhyw effaith negyddol bosibl? Os nac ydyw, eglurwch 

Nid oes tystiolaeth o unrhyw effaith negyddol yn y cam cynnar
hwn yn natblygiad y prosiect. 

 

ses o adolygiadau helaeth dros nifer o 
flynyddoedd yn ogystal ag ymchwil dichonoldeb er mwyn pennu angen. Bydd gan 
bob prosiect unigol sy’n dod i’r amlwg o’r dichonoldeb ei strategaeth ymgynghori ei 

A fydd y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn yn cael effaith bositif ar 
unrhyw un o’r nodweddion a ddiogelwyd (oed; anabledd; ail 
aseinio rhyw; priodas a phartneriaeth sifil; beichiogrwydd a 
mamolaeth; hil; crefydd neu gred; rhyw; a thueddfryd rhywiol)?  
(Gweler adran 1 yn y pecyn gwaith i gael disgrifiad o’r nodweddion a ddiogelir) 

adfywio’r ardal a mynd i’r afael â dirywiad 
ac felly dylai gael effaith gadarnhaol ar rai o’r 

nodweddion a ddiogelir. Bydd prosiectau a gaiff eu harwain gan Gyngor Sir 
Ddinbych yn cael eu datblygu a’u darparu yn unol â methodoleg Rheoli Prosiectau 

mentrau hyn gael eu datblygu 
bydd Asesiad penodol o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb yn cael ei gynnal ar y cam priodol 
a gyda hyn bydd asesiad manylach o’r effaith benodol ar nodweddion a ddiogelir yn 

A fydd y cynnig / penderfyniad hwn yn cael effaith anghymesur 
ar unrhyw un o’r nodweddion a ddiogelwyd (oed; anabledd; ail 
aseinio rhyw; priodas a phartneriaeth sifil; beichiogrwydd a 
mamolaeth; hil; crefydd neu gred; rhyw; a thueddfryd rhywiol)?  

rosiectau yw bod wrth galon adfywio’r ardal a mynd i’r afael â dirywiad 
economaidd, cymdeithasol a ffisegol ac felly dylai gael effaith gadarnhaol ar rai o’r 
nodweddion a ddiogelir. Bydd prosiectau a gaiff eu harwain gan Gyngor Sir 

lygu a’u darparu yn unol â methodoleg Rheoli Prosiectau 
Corfforaethol Sir Ddinbych; wrth i’r prosiectau a’r mentrau hyn gael eu datblygu 
bydd Asesiad penodol o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb yn cael ei gynnal ar y cam priodol 

effaith benodol ar nodweddion a ddiogelir yn 

A yw’r cynnig / penderfyniad wedi’i ddiwygio i ddileu neu 
Os nac ydyw, eglurwch 

Nid oes tystiolaeth o unrhyw effaith negyddol yn y cam cynnar 

Tudalen 127



 

 

8. A ydych chi wedi nodi unrhyw gamau pellach i fynd i’r afael ag 
unrhyw effaith(iau) negyddol bosibl ac / neu eu monitro?

 
Do       

 

Camau Gweithredu 

      

Cynhelir Asesiad unigol o Effaith ar 
Gydraddoldeb ar y cam priodol a gyda hyn 
bydd asesiad manylach o’r effaith benodol ar 
nodweddion a ddiogelir yn cael ei gynnal.
 

<Disgrifiwch> 

<Disgrifiwch> 

<Datgyfyngu golygu i ychwanegu rhesi 
ychwanegol> 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------
 
9. Datganiad 
 
Gwnaed pob ymdrech resymol i ddileu neu leihau unrhyw effaith anghymesur bosibl ar 
bobl sy’n rhannu nodweddion a ddiogelir.
hadolygu yn y cam priodol. 
 

Dyddiad 
adolygu: 

18.02.2014

 

Enw’r Swyddog Arweiniol ar gyfer yr Asesiad o Effaith ar 
Gydraddoldeb 

Tom Booty, Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd a Busnes
 
 

Nodwch y bydd angen i
gydraddoldeb os byddwch yn nodi effaith debygol sylweddol.

A ydych chi wedi nodi unrhyw gamau pellach i fynd i’r afael ag 
unrhyw effaith(iau) negyddol bosibl ac / neu eu monitro?

Perchennog Erbyn pryd?

<Nodwch Enw> 
 

<DD.MM.YY>

Cynhelir Asesiad unigol o Effaith ar 
Gydraddoldeb ar y cam priodol a gyda hyn 
bydd asesiad manylach o’r effaith benodol ar 
nodweddion a ddiogelir yn cael ei gynnal. 

Tom Booty/Sian 
Lloyd Price 

Rhagfyr 2014

<Nodwch Enw> 
 

<DD.MM.YY>

<Nodwch Enw> 
 

<DD.MM.YY>

<Datgyfyngu golygu i ychwanegu rhesi <Nodwch Enw> 
 

<DD.MM.YY>

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Gwnaed pob ymdrech resymol i ddileu neu leihau unrhyw effaith anghymesur bosibl ar 
bobl sy’n rhannu nodweddion a ddiogelir. Caiff union effaith y cynnig / penderfyniad ei 

18.02.2014 

Enw’r Swyddog Arweiniol ar gyfer yr Asesiad o Effaith ar 

Tom Booty, Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd a Busnes 18.02.2014

Nodwch y bydd angen i chi gyhoeddi canlyniad yr asesiad o effaith ar 
gydraddoldeb os byddwch yn nodi effaith debygol sylweddol.

A ydych chi wedi nodi unrhyw gamau pellach i fynd i’r afael ag 
unrhyw effaith(iau) negyddol bosibl ac / neu eu monitro? 

Erbyn pryd? 

<DD.MM.YY> 
 

Rhagfyr 2014 

<DD.MM.YY> 
 

<DD.MM.YY> 
 

<DD.MM.YY> 
 

-------------------------------- 

Gwnaed pob ymdrech resymol i ddileu neu leihau unrhyw effaith anghymesur bosibl ar 
effaith y cynnig / penderfyniad ei 

Dyddiad 

18.02.2014 

chi gyhoeddi canlyniad yr asesiad o effaith ar 
gydraddoldeb os byddwch yn nodi effaith debygol sylweddol. 

Tudalen 128



 

 

Adroddiad i'r:    Cabinet 

 

Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   18 Chwefror 2014 

 

Aelod/Swyddog Arweiniol:         Y Cynghorydd Hugh Evans a'r Cynghorydd Huw L  

Jones 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Tom Booty, Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd a 

Busnes  

  

Teitl:       Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal  

 

 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  
 

Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn cyflwyno’r cam nesaf yn natblygiad y Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal, fel 

y cytunwyd gan y Cabinet yn 2013. 

 

2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn? 
 

Cytunodd y Cabinet yn flaenorol y dylid ehangu Cynlluniau Tref i fod yn Gynlluniau Ardal 

yn ymgorffori cymunedau gwledig. Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn galluogi’r Cabinet i 

gymeradwyo ail gam y Cynlluniau Ardal newydd (Rhuthun a Phrestatyn) a chytuno ar y 

blaenoriaethau gwariant o gyllideb Arian Blaenoriaeth y Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal. Mae’r 

adroddiad hefyd yn rhoi diweddariad i’r Cabinet ar y gwariant hyd yma yn erbyn y 

Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal. 

 

3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 
 

 Yr argymhellion yw bod y Cabinet yn: 
 

1. Cymeradwyo mabwysiadu'r Cynlluniau Ardal (sy’n cynnwys y Cynlluniau Tref 

presennol) ar gyfer Rhuthun a Phrestatyn; 

2. Cymeradwyo'r cyllid ar gyfer y blaenoriaethau a nodir yn y Cynlluniau Ardal a 

gyfeirir atynt uchod; 

 

4. Manylion am yr Adroddiad  
 

4.1 Cynllun Tref ac Ardal Rhuthun 
 

Atodwyd Cynllun Tref ac Ardal Prestatyn fel Atodiad 1. Cymeradwywyd y Cynllun hwn gan 

Grŵp Aelodau Ardal Rhuthun ar 27 Ionawr, 2014, ac rydym rŵan yn gofyn am 

gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i’r Cynllun a’r blaenoriaethau a’r ymrwymiadau ariannu 

cysylltiedig canlynol: 

 

Blaenoriaeth: Gofyniad 

Ariannu: 

Gwelliannau i Neuadd Bentref Llanbedr    £8,400 

Gwelliannau i Gae Chwarae Llanarmon yn Iâl £24,250 

Prosiect ar y Cyd Clawddnewydd £40,000 

Eitem Agenda 9

Tudalen 129



 

CYFANSWM A OFYNNWYD AMDANO O GYLLIDEB Y CYNLLUN TREF £72,650 

 

D.S. Bydd pob prosiect yn amodol ar gadarnhad o arian cyfatebol. 

 

Tudalen 130



 

4.2 Cynllun Tref ac Ardal Prestatyn 
 

Atodwyd Cynllun Tref ac Ardal Prestatyn fel Atodiad 2. Cymeradwywyd y Cynllun hwn gan 

Grwpiau Aelodau Ardal Prestatyn ar 14 Tachwedd, 2013, ac rydym rŵan yn gofyn am 

gymeradwyaeth y Cabinet i’r Cynllun a’r blaenoriaethau a’r ymrwymiadau ariannu 

cysylltiedig canlynol: 

 

Blaenoriaeth: Gofyniad 

Ariannu: 

Sied Nwyddau Gallt Melyd  £50,000 

Ystafelloedd Newid Clwb Pêl-droed Gallt Melyd £25,000 

Gwelliannau Amgylcheddol Ffordd Talargoch £25,000 

CYFANSWM A OFYNNWYD AMDANO O GYLLIDEB Y CYNLLUN TREF £100,000 

 

Bydd y dyraniadau hyn yn cael eu defnyddio i sicrhau'r cyllid cyfatebol sydd ei angen i 

gyflawni'r prosiectau. Er enghraifft, mae prosiect Sied Nwyddau Gallt Melyd yn ceisio 

sicrhau arian cyfatebol sylweddol gan Gronfa Treftadaeth y Loteri. 

 

4.3 Gwariant hyd yma ar Gynlluniau Tref ac Ardal 
 

Mae trafodaethau blaenorol y Cabinet ar y Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal wedi arwain at beth 
ddryswch o ran yr arian sydd ar gael ar gyfer y Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal. Mae aelodau 
hefyd wedi mynegi rhywfaint o bryder am y gyfradd araf o wariant. Mae'r adran ganlynol yn 
ceisio egluro’r sefyllfa bresennol.  
 
Mae’r Tîm Gweithredol Corfforaethol hefyd wedi ystyried y sefyllfa ariannol bresennol ac 
wedi cytuno ar gynnal adolygiad o'r broses i gynorthwyo gyda phenderfynu ar y camau 
nesaf unwaith mae’r Cynlluniau Ardal terfynol wedi eu cymeradwyo gan y Cabinet ym mis 
Mawrth. 
 
Ffynhonnell Arian 
Mae'r tabl isod yn crynhoi'r dyraniadau cyllideb a wnaed gan Gyngor Sir Ddinbych er 
mwyn datblygu a chyflwyno Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal: 
 
Tabl 1: Cyfanswm Cyllid ar gyfer Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal (hyd at 31 Mawrth 2016): 
 

 Refeniw Cyfalaf Cyfanswm 

Cyfalaf  £680,000 £680,000 

Tanwariant 2011/12 £191,000  £191,000 

Cyllideb Refeniw 2012/13 £356,000  £356,000 

Cyllideb Refeniw 2013/14 £356,000  £356,000 

Is-gyfanswm hyd at 31 
Mawrth, 2014 

£903,000 £680,000 £1,583,000 

    

Cyllideb Refeniw 2014/15 £356,000  £356,000 

Cyllideb Refeniw 2015/16 £356,000  £356,000 

Cyfanswm £1,615,000 £680,000 £2,295,000 

 
Un o amcanion craidd proses y Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal oedd gallu denu cyllid o 
ffynonellau eraill y tu allan i'r Cyngor. Mae llawer o waith y swyddogion sy'n cefnogi 
datblygiad y Cynlluniau wedi canolbwyntio ar ganfod a sicrhau cyllid cyfatebol ychwanegol 
ar gyfer prosiectau/mentrau’r Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal.  
 

Tudalen 131



 

Hyd yma, amcangyfrifir y bydd arian cyfatebol posib o £1.7 miliwn (yn amodol ar gyflwyno 
ceisiadau llwyddiannus ) ac mae rhai prosiectau mawr (fel y cynigion ar gyfer Amgueddfa 
yn Ninbych) angen swm sylweddol o’r arian cyfatebol yma.    
 
Proffil gwariant hyd yma 
Mae'r tabl isod yn amlinellu'r dyraniadau a wnaed hyd yma yn erbyn y gyllideb hyd at 
ddiwedd mis Mawrth 2014. Mae'r rhain yn cynnwys y dyraniadau arfaethedig ar gyfer 
blaenoriaethau ardaloedd Rhuthun a Phrestatyn a gynhwysir yn yr adroddiad hwn. 
Rhagwelir dyraniadau pellach pan fydd Cynlluniau Ardal Rhuddlan, Y Rhyl a Dinbych yn 
cael eu cyflwyno ym mis Mawrth: 
 
Tabl 2: Y Gyllideb bresennol yn erbyn Cyllideb y Cynlluniau Tref 
 

Cyfanswm y dyraniad ariannol i Gynlluniau Tref ac Ardal hyd at 31 
Mawrth 2014 

£1,583,000 

Dyraniadau hyd yma £875,170 

Balans heb ei ddyrannu hyd at 31 Mawrth, 2014 £707,830 

 
Mae dyraniadau wedi eu gwneud ar sail y blaenoriaethau Blwyddyn 1 ar gyfer adrannau 

Tref ac Ardal y Cynlluniau. Ar gyfer y blaenoriaethau Ardal, mae cyllid wedi ei ddyrannu ar 

gyfer y 3 blaenoriaeth gyntaf a gytunwyd gan bob Grwpiau Aelodau Ardal.  

 

Gan fod y Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal yn gysyniad cymharol newydd, roedd llawer o'r 

prosiectau a gynhwysir ynddynt angen gwaith paratoi a datblygu pellach, gwerthusiadau 

opsiynau neu geisiadau arian cyfatebol cyn y gallent symud ymlaen. Hefyd mewn rhai 

achosion mae Grwpiau Aelodau Ardal wedi ailddyrannu, neu yn y broses o ailddyrannu 

cyllid lle mae blaenoriaethau wedi newid neu le nad yw’r prosiectau a luniwyd yn wreiddiol 

yn hyfyw neu'n addas. O ganlyniad, bu llithriad yn y gyfradd gwariant ac mae'n annhebygol 

y bydd y dyraniadau a wneir yn cael eu gwario’n llawn cyn diwedd y flwyddyn ariannol. 

Mae'r gyfradd wariant yn gwella ac mae'n werth nodi bod y rhan fwyaf o'r prosiectau 

blaenoriaeth Blwyddyn 1 sy'n weddill wedi eu hamserlennu i ddechrau yn 2014/15.  

 

Tabl 3: Gwariant hyd yma ac Arian Cyfatebol 
 

Tref:  Cynllun Tref 
a 
gymeradwywyd 
hyd yma 

Gwariant 
hyd yma 

Balans 
Cynllun 
Tref 
 

 Arian 
Cyfatebol 
hyd yma 

Arian 
Cyfatebol 
a 
Ragwelir  

Cyfanswm 
Arian 
Cyfatebol 

Prestatyn £245,000 £0 £245,000  £0 £7,000 £7,000 

Llanelwy £84,800 £8,420 £76,380  £0 £283,500 £283,500 

Rhuddlan £47,000 £1,726 £45,274  £700 £21,300 £22,000 

Dinbych £135,800 £50,000 £85,800  £0 £561,200 £561,200 

Rhuthun £169,070 £41,420 £127,650  £41,420 £187,000 £228,420 

Corwen £95,000 £25,426 £69,574  £18,426 £52,500 £70,926 

Llangollen £98,500 £50,000 £48,500  £3,000 £501,000 £504,000 

Y Rhyl £0 £0 £0  £0 £0 £0 

Bodelwyddan £0 £0 £0  £0 £0 £0 

Cyfanswm £875,170 £176,992 £698,178  £63,546 £1,613,500 £1,677,046 

 

Mae dadansoddiad mwy manwl o’r ffigurau hyn ar gael yn Atodiad 3. 

 

5. Sut mae'r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 

Tudalen 132



 

Blaenoriaeth – Datblygu’r Economi Lleol - Bydd y Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal yn 

ddogfennau creiddiol o ran y modd y darperir y flaenoriaeth hon ar lefel ardal, a bydd eu 

Cynlluniau Gweithredu cysylltiedig yn manylu ar y mecanweithiau cyflwyno i roi hwb i 

hyder a buddsoddiad y sector preifat a chreu cyfleoedd ar gyfer swyddi newydd a busnes. 
 

 Blaenoriaeth - Gwella ein Ffyrdd - bydd y cynlluniau’n helpu canfod meysydd lle mae 

problemau i sicrhau y caiff adnoddau eu cyfeirio at y lleoliadau cywir a bod gwelliannau i 

ffyrdd yn cael eu gwneud yn y mannau cywir. 
 

Blaenoriaeth - Strydoedd Glân a Thaclus 

Bydd y cynlluniau’n helpu nodi meysydd lle mae problemau i sicrhau y cyfeirir adnoddau at 

y lleoliadau cywir ac y gwneir gwelliannau i’r parth cyhoeddus yn y mannau cywir. 
 

Blaenoriaeth - Moderneiddio'r Cyngor i sicrhau arbedion effeithlonrwydd a gwella 

gwasanaethau i’n cwsmeriaid - bydd y cynlluniau’n creu mecanwaith allweddol ar gyfer 

alinio adnoddau gwasanaethau’r Cyngor i gyflawni blaenoriaethau a nodwyd gan 

gymunedau lleol mewn ffordd effeithlon ac effeithiol. 

 

6. Faint fydd yn ei gostio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 

Mae’r Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal yn nodi materion, camau gweithredu a blaenoriaethau a 

ddatblygwyd drwy ymgynghori â’r cymunedau hynny, a dylai fod yn ddogfen allweddol wrth 

ddylanwadu ar weithgareddau a blaenoriaethau holl Wasanaethau Sir Ddinbych. 

 

7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb a gwblhawyd ar 

gyfer y penderfyniad? 
 

Bydd Asesiadau o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb unigol ar gyfer prosiectau neu weithgareddau 
penodol a nodir yn y Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal yn cael eu cynnal ar yr adeg briodol. 
 

8. Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi eu cynnal?  
 

Datblygir Cynlluniau Tref ac Ardal mewn partneriaeth â’r Cyngor Tref neu Gymuned 

perthnasol. Cynhaliwyd ymgynghoriadau gyda Phenaethiaid Gwasanaeth CSDd, 

sefydliadau trydydd sector (drwy CGGSDd), trigolion a’r gymuned fusnes (drwy gynnal rhai 

cyfarfodydd wyneb yn wyneb a drwy arolygon ar y we). 

 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid  
 

Mae’r gwariant bwriedig wedi’i gynnwys o fewn y dyraniadau cyllid presennol. Ni ddylai 

unrhyw brosiect cyfalaf ddechrau heb werthusiad priodol a dylid cynnal oblygiadau refeniw 

unrhyw brosiectau o fewn y cyllidebau presennol. 

 

10. Beth yw’r risgiau ac oes yna unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w lleihau? 
 

Mae risg y bydd datblygu’r cynlluniau’n cynyddu disgwyliadau ac y gallai methiant i 

gyflawni niweidio enw da’r Cyngor ymysg Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned a budd-ddeiliaid 

eraill. Bydd hyn yn cael ei reoli drwy gyfranogiad a chyfathrebu parhaus gyda budd-

ddeiliaid perthnasol ynglŷn â’r broses o ddatblygu a chyflwyno’r cynlluniau. 

 

11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad  
 

Adran 2 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 

Tudalen 133



 

Adran 111 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 

 

 

 

Tudalen 134



Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 
 

RUTHIN 

TOWN & AREA PLAN 
 

“LOOKING FORWARD TOGETHER” 

 

2013 – 2020 

 

 

November 2013 

 
 

T
udalen 135



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RUTHIN 

TOWN PLAN 
 

“LOOKING FORWARD 

TOGETHER” 

2012 – 2020 

 

T
udalen 136



Last updated 19.11.13 

1 

 

Vision for Ruthin 

 
We want Ruthin  

 

• to be ‘a town for life’ 

 

 

• to be a thriving medieval market town 

 

 

• to be a seven day week experience 

 

 

• to be a Wikipedia town 

 
 
We want Ruthin to be ‘a town for life’ – a place where people enjoy living and where they want to remain living, working and 
bringing up their own families, to be a thriving medieval market town with a vibrant local and visitor economy helping it become a 
‘town for life’ and a place attractive to visitors, to be a seven day week experience where the local community has what it needs 
from living and working in Ruthin available through the week and where visitors have activities to partake in, entertainment 
available, places of interest to visit and accommodation and restaurants, bars and cafes to choose from throughout their stay, and to 
be a Wikipedia town to encourage visitors to come and stay in Ruthin and the surrounding area, promoting its history and attractions 
thereby giving reasons to visit and stay.  
 
Ruthin has many strengths in that it is steeped in history and heritage, is surrounded by beautiful countryside and has places of 
interest for both its local community and visitors. It provides good education for our younger community and has several good sports 
teams. However, we now need to build on this and determine exactly what Ruthin’s offer is and how we take that forward. 

T
udalen 137



Last updated 19.11.13 

2 

 

Background 
 
 
 

Denbighshire County Council has adopted a strategic aim of being “a high performing council closer to the community”. 
 
To help achieve this aim, the County Council is inviting the town and community councils and the businesses, community and 
voluntary sectors in each of its main towns and the smaller outlying communities which relate to them to join together to develop 
“town plans”. These will be living documents which will set out 
 

• The current situation 
• The key challenges and opportunities which they will face over the next decade 
• A vision for each town which will provide it with a sustainable future, and 
• Realistic and achievable actions which will deliver the vision 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The name Ruthin comes from the Welsh words ‘rhudd’ (red) and ‘din’ (fort) and refers to the colour of the red sandstone which 
forms the geological basis of the area and from which the castle was built as a strategic lookout over the River Clwyd in 1277 to 
1284.  
Ruthin has a lively and interesting history - which has provided a rich architectural heritage and there are around 230 listed buildings 
in the Ruthin area, with the majority of that number being in the town itself.  
 

T
udalen 138



Last updated 19.11.13 

3 

 

The town is currently an administrative and service centre for its rural hinterland. It is the home of Denbighshire County Council's 
headquarters, bringing a knock-on benefit to the retail and service industries in the town, and is now home to one of the largest 
cattle and sheep auction markets in Wales. The town is also home to Ruthin Craft Centre which was recently redeveloped with a £4.3 
million scheme into the Centre for the Applied Arts, housing 3 galleries, six artists’ studios, a retail gallery, education and residency 
workshops and a café. The galleries attract world renowned artists who exhibit there. 
 
 
There are a number of primary and secondary schools serving the town and its surrounding area. Brynhyfryd School is a bilingual co-
educational school and Ruthin School is a public, co-educational school for day and boarding students open to applications from all 
over the world. The people of Ruthin and its surrounding area also have access to a community hospital, a leisure centre, a 
community theatre and the further education college at Llysfasi (now part of Deeside College) giving access to vocational and higher 
education courses for school leavers and students over 19. 
 
During the summer, the Ruthin Festival provides a week long programme of events and concerts and the town hosts the MTB 
Marathon mountain biking event with competitors starting and finishing in Ruthin having ridden through the Clwydian Range Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 
 
The town is home to 5,218 people and a further 11,639 people live in the surrounding rural hinterland in the Llandyrnog, Llanbedr 
Dyffryn Clwyd/Llangynhafal, Llanarmon yn Iâl/Llandegla, Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd/Gwyddelwern, Efenechtyd and Llanrhaeadr-yng-
Nghinmeirch wards. 

T
udalen 139



Last updated 19.11.13 

4 

 

 

 

Map showing the wards in the Ruthin Area

T
udalen 140



Last updated 19.11.13 

5 

 

 

Where we are now 
 
People 
 

Compared to the county as a whole, the town of Ruthin has 
 

• more people aged over 65,  
 

• higher percentage of over 85’s,  
 

• fewer young people under 15, 
 

• fewer households claiming housing or Council Tax benefit, and 
 

• a lower proportion of households which are overcrowded. 
 
Community 

 
Compared to the county as a whole, more people in the town of Ruthin  

 
• were born in Wales, and 

 
• can speak Welsh. 

 
The crime rate in Ruthin is lower than the average rate for the County, particularly for incidences of violence against the person, 
theft and handling and criminal damage.  
 
The Welsh Government uses a formula to measure deprivation called the “Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation”. Wales is split into 
1896 areas which are smaller than County Council wards. Each area is then ranked with the most deprived given a score of 1 and 
the least deprived as score of 1896. The scores in different years are not directly comparable because the way in which the index 
is calculated changes over time, but nevertheless give an indication of the Welsh Government’s view about the deprivation in the 
town at various points in time. All of the areas in Ruthin town are amongst the 30% least deprived in Wales. 

 
 

T
udalen 141



Last updated 19.11.13 

6 

 

 
Part of the index which relates to how easy it is for people to access services such as schools, clinics, shops and leisure centres 
and in the surrounding rural area, the Efenechtyd, Llanarmon yn Iâl/Llandegla, Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd/Gwyddelwern and 
Llanrhaeadr yng Nghinmeirch, wards are considered to be amongst the 10% most deprived in Wales in this regard with the 
Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd/Llangynhafal and Llandyrnog wards being in the 20% most deprived.  

 
 
 
 

T
udalen 142



Last updated 19.11.13 

7 

 

Map showing the Lower Super Output Areas in Ruthin 
 
 
 

T
udalen 143



Last updated 19.11.13 

8 

 

 
Jobs 

Compared to the county as a whole,  
 

• more people who live in Ruthin work in the public sector (and more people in Denbighshire work in this sector than in any 
other local authority area in Great Britain),  

 
• a lower percentage of people work in manufacturing, retail and hotels & restaurants 

 
• a higher percentage of people who live in Ruthin are managers and professionals 

 
• more residents of the town commute more than 20km to work  

 
• more people commute more than 20km to work in the town, and 

 
• lower percentage of people of working age claim Job Seekers’ Allowance   

 
• the average annual household income in Ruthin is slightly higher although the percentage of households in Ruthin below the 

60% GB median is also higher 
 

 
Place 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Vacancy rates for retail premises – Autumn 2012 
 

Ruthin has one of the highest percentages of vacant town centre units in the 
county, although this is still broadly similar to the average level for the UK. 

 

Ruthin 14%  (25 units) 

UK 14.5%  (Local Data Company) 

 

T
udalen 144



Last updated 19.11.13 

9 

 

The County Council runs the town's key tourism assets - namely Ruthin Craft Centre (with support from Arts Council for Wales), 
Nantclwyd y Dre and Ruthin Gaol. The Craft Centre gets around 90,000 visitors through its doors annually, whilst Ruthin Gaol has 
around 10,000 and Nantclwyd y Dre around 4,000.  
 
There are 165 graded bed spaces in visitor accommodation within the town. 
 

T
udalen 145



Last updated 19.11.13 

10 

 

What we want to do and how we’re going to do it 

 

People 
 
There is capacity to provide a wider choice of higher education. 
  
There are more people coming to live in Ruthin at the Glasdir residential development. 
 
The Welsh primary school is located on a site not fit for purpose. 
 
There is a higher proportion of people aged over 85 in Ruthin. This is an age group that is projected to increase as a proportion of 
the population, creating both more demand for local services and opportunities for local businesses and the local economy. 
 
There are fewer young people living in Ruthin. 
 
 
What we will do…… 
……….We will liase with local colleges and DCC’s School Improvement and Inclusion Team to discuss the skills required in the area, 
the courses that could and/or should be offered by the colleges to help young people to stay and work in the area that in turn will 
help attract new employers to the area as the right skill base is available. We also will review the primary school provision within 
Ruthin and its surrounding communities and agree the future investment. We will need to ensure that services are appropriate for 
the local population and that housing needs are met. 

 
  

We will achieve this by Led by When this will start 
and finish 

Completing area review of existing primary provision and 
agreeing pattern for future provision and improvement 
works 

County Council Modernising Education 1 April 2012 
31 Mar 2017 

 

Improving primary education provision to serve Ruthin and 
surrounding communities by securing funding to invest in 
schools 

County Council Modernising Education 1 April 2013 
31 Mar 2017 

 

Looking into providing more extra care housing for older County Council Social Services 1 Apr 2012 

T
udalen 146



Last updated 19.11.13 

11 

 

people 31 Mar 2017 
Holding discussions about cafes and shops being open at 
times when older teenagers can use them and looking into 
the feasibility of offering activities for their age group 

County Council Strategic, Regeneration, 
Town Council, Business Groups 

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2013 

 

Meet with Head of Llysfasi College to discuss future plans 
and skills base 

County Council Strategic Regeneration with 
School Improvement and Inclusion Team 

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2013 

 

Liasing with Housing Services to identify any potentially 
missing provision for young people’s / affordable housing 

County Council Housing and Community 
Development  

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2013 

 

 
 

T
udalen 147



Last updated 19.11.13 

12 

 

Community 
  

There is a lack of allotments. 
 
There are several successful sports teams in Ruthin; rugby, football, cricket, tennis and hockey with many of the members coming 
from outside the town. Outdoor leisure provision will therefore need to be sustainable. 
 
An all weather pitch is to be built in Ruthin at Brynhyfryd School. 
 
 
What we will do…… 
………We will aim to provide more allotments through Planning gain. We will bring sports together as part of the branding for Ruthin 
to bring the community together and allow families to spend time together. This will allow Ruthin to be ‘a place to come and play and 
compete’, encouraging sports teams from out of town to come to Ruthin which in turn will bring an economic benefit. It will mean 
that we need to ensure that the leisure facilities are high quality and sustainable. 
 
 

We will achieve this by Led by When will this start 
and finish 

Providing more allotments County Council Finance & Assets 1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2015 

Providing more flexible public transport for people living in 
outlying communities to make it easier for them to access 
the facilities in the town ie in time to take part in sports and 
other activities 

County Council 
Highways  

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

 

Identifying ways of bringing families together through sport Town Team 1 Apr 2013 
31 Mar 2014 

 

 

T
udalen 148



Last updated 19.11.13 

13 

 

Jobs 
 

Local shops are in direct competition with internet shopping and out of town shopping centres. 
 
Ruthin serves its hinterland with the livestock market and professional services. 
 
A large number of visitors go to the Craft Centre but they do not go into the town centre. 
 
Ruthin’s night time economy is limited. 
 
Ruthin shops offer a number of well known, high quality brands. A new branded leisure offer provided by Wetherspoons has recently 
opened in town. 
 
There is limited employment land ready to build on which could constrain both the growth of current businesses and new investment 
on the industrial estate. 
 
There is a national mountain bike event held in the area (that starts and finishes in Ruthin) and surrounding countryside for road 
cycling and walking which could help sustain tourism as part of the wider visitor offer. 
 
 
What we will do….. 
………….We will need to support local business owners need to work out how we can encourage people to shop locally and not on the 
internet or out of town. There must be something that shoppers experience/receive locally that encourages them to shop in their 
town centre and not on line or out of town. It is increasingly important for shop owners to work together. We need to consider what 
impact any changes to the Common Agricultural Policy will have on farmers in the surrounding area.  
 

We will achieve this by Led by When will this 

start and finish 

Looking into the feasibility of a town centre manager Ruthin Town Team, County Council 
Strategic Regeneration 

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

Installing an Art Trail to enhance the art offer in the town 
and also to encourage visitors to the Craft Centre to go to 
the town centre 

County Council Environment 1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

 

Providing signage to let visitors at the Craft Centre know County Council Environment 1 Apr 2012 

T
udalen 149



Last updated 19.11.13 

14 

 

about the town centre 
 

31 Mar 2014 
 

Securing the future of the Open Doors weekend  County Council Strategic Regeneration 1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2013 

 

Reviewing the position of the Ruthin visitor offer including 
assets such as the medieval castle in order to gain greater 
recognition of Ruthin as a centre for applied arts 
 

County Council  Strategic Regeneration 
with 
Leisure, Libraries & Community 
Development 

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

 

Encouraging signposting between shops  Town Team 1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

 
Developing part of the marketing and branding strategy for 
Ruthin using the fact that many high quality brands are 
available for sale in Ruthin – branding the town centre as a 
‘department store’ 

County Council Strategic Regeneration, 
Business Support and Tourism, Town Team 

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

 

Understanding any changes made to the Common 
Agricultural Policy and the potential impact 

County Council Strategic Regeneration and 
Business Support 

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2013 

 

T
udalen 150



Last updated 19.11.13 

15 

 

Place 
 
St Peter’s Square is not used to its best potential. 
 
Ruthin has a key role to play in the wider Vale of Clwyd and AONB offer to visitors. 
 
There is a Safer Routes in the Community project being run in Ruthin.  
 
A successful bid for funding has been submitted to the Heritage Lottery Fund for restoring the Lords Garden at Nantclwyd y Dre. 
 
A feasibility study has been commissioned for the renovation of the West Wing of Nantclwyd Y Dre. 
 
 
What we will do….. 
………..We will need to improve the town square by looking at its layout and traffic flows. We need to find funding to restore and 
renovate the final part of Nantclwyd Y Dre to widen its appeal as a visitor attraction. We need to ensure the places of interest are 
open and that there are activities on in the town seven days a week in order to make Ruthin a more vibrant place attractive to its 
residents and visitors alike. This will mean working with Ruthin Town Team and the business and community groups to ensure a 
coordinated approach. We will continue and further develop work already done by Bro Rhuthun for the marketing and branding of 
Ruthin and to work out what Ruthin’s ‘offer’ is to visitors coming to Ruthin alone and as part of the Vale of Clwyd destination 
package.  
 

We will achieve this by Led by When will this start 

and finish 

Carrying out full signage audit 
 

County Council Highways and Strategic 
Regeneration 

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

 

Reviewing tourist information  provision  
 

County Council Strategic Regeneration 1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

 

Improving signage at Ruthin Gaol County Council Environment 1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

Making ‘residents only’ parking signs in Market Street more 
obvious to visitors 

County Council Highways 1 Apr 2012 

31 Mar 2013 

T
udalen 151



Last updated 19.11.13 

16 

 

 Instruction 
submitted 

Providing extra town trail boards 
 

County Council Environment 1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2013 

 

Securing funding to renovate the West Wing at Nantclwyd y 
Dre 

County Council Strategic Regeneration 1 Apr 2013 
31 Mar 2014 

 
Providing a consistent style of benches in and around town 
centre and more bins on the Cunning Green footpath 
 

Town Council 1 Apr 2013 
31 Mar 2017 

Removing unauthorised A boards and signs at entrance to 
Lon Parcwr and on Clwyd Street 
 

County Council Environment 1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2013 

 
Removing and/or replacing the banners on street lighting 
columns 
 

County Council 
Leisure, Libraries and Community 
Development 

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

 

Replacing the current bridge at Cae Ddol with a more 
attractive alternative 
 

Friends of Cae Ddol 1 Apr 2013 
31 Mar 2017 

 
Looking into ways of funding the removal of the roundabout 
in St Peter’s Square and /or reconfiguring the space to 
make it more suitable for events. 

County Council 
Planning, Regeneration and Regulatory 
Services 

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

 

Further developing and publishing a marketing and branding 
strategy for Ruthin 

County Council Strategic Regeneration and 
Business Support, Town Council, Town 
Team 

1 Apr 2012 
31 Mar 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

T
udalen 152



Last updated 19.11.13 

17 

 

The links between the town & the associated communities 

 

Ruthin and its surrounding communities are closely linked with Ruthin town centre serving the majority of villages in the area.  The area 
around Ruthin is large and has several important features. Several of the communities are located within the designated Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty. The Offa’s Dyke path also runs through some of these communities. Loggerheads Country Park is the biggest 
attraction in the Ruthin area and is popular with both local residents and visitors from further afield. 
 

The area is becoming increasingly popular for holding high quality, high profile events such as the Etape Cymru cycle event, the MTB 
mountain bike and cycling event, the Wales GB rally. The area offers a wealth of outdoor activities such as walking, horseriding, cycling, 
orienteering as well as educational opportunities such as the Duke of Edinburgh awards. 
 

There are several active community councils and groups in the area all working towards the well being of their local communities and 
economies. The communities covered by this Area Plan include Bontuchel, Cyffylliog, Rhewl, Llanynys, Llangynhafal, Gellifor, Llanbedr 
Dyffryn Clwyd, Llanferres, Maeshafn, Eryrys, Llanarmon yn Ial, Llandegla, Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd, Graigfechan, Pentrecelyn, Pwllglas, 
Clocaenog, Derwen and Bryn Saith Marchog. 

 

T
udalen 153



Last updated 19.11.13 

18 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

RUTHIN AREA 

PLAN 
 

“LOOKING FORWARD 

TOGETHER” 

2013 – 2020 

T
udalen 154



Last updated 19.11.13 

19 

 

 Making it happen...  
For People & Community 
 

ACTIVITY 

ECON. 

AMB. 

STRAT. 

REF. 

OUTPUT LED BY 

 

START 

 

FINISH 

Improving broad band access 
and mobile phone coverage to 
rural area surrounding Ruthin 

1.2a 
Superfast broadband to all 
properties 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jan 2014 Dec 2017 

Supporting the community 
council on the Llanferres 
Community Garden project 

5.2c 

Funding identified and secured Llanferres Community Council Jan 2014 Jun 2014 

Work to garden carried out Llanferres Community Council Jul 2014 Jul 2015 

Agreement with school for 
maintenance in place 

Llanferres Community Council Jul 2015 Oct 2015 

Supporting voluntary run Siop 
Pwllglas to help sustain the 
local community that it serves 

5.2c 

Needs of the community identified 
by meeting with voluntary run and 
local ward members 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Report / Business case DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Project up and running by voluntary 
run centre 

Voluntary group Jan 2015 Dec 2015 

Supporting voluntary run 
Llanarmon yn Ial Village Siop 

to help sustain the local 
community that it serves 

5.2c 

Needs of the community identified 
by meeting with voluntary run and 
local ward members 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Report / Business case DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Project up and running by voluntary 
run centre 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jan 2015 Dec 2015 

Supporting voluntary run Siop 
Clawddnewydd to help sustain 

5.2c 
Needs of the community identified 
by meeting with voluntary run and 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

T
udalen 155



Last updated 19.11.13 

20 

 

the local community that it 
serves 

local ward members 

Report / Business case DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Project up and running by voluntary 
run centre 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jan 2015 Dec 2015 

Supporting voluntary run 
Raven Inn, Llanarmon yn Ial,  

to help sustain the local 
community that it serves 

5.2c 

Needs of the community identified 
by meeting with voluntary run and 
local ward members 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Report / Business case DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Project up and running by voluntary 
run centre 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jan 2015 Dec 2015 

Amalgamating the community 
shop and pub in 
Clawddnewydd 

5.2c 

Requirements to amalgamate the 
community shop and the pub 
identified 

Derwen Community Council Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured Derwen Community Council Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Local services being provided by 
the community run shop and pub 

Derwen Community Council Jan 2015 Dec 2015 

Supporting rural communities 
without voluntary run centres 
to become more sustainable 

5.2c 

Work with other communities and 
the local ward member to determine 
if voluntary run centres eg village 
shops would be of benefit  

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Report / business case DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

New voluntary run centre open Voluntary group Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Working with the local ward 
member and the community 
council to assist them in 

seeking funding opportunities 
for improvements to Llanbedr 

DC Village Hall 

5.2c 

Meet with ward member and 
community council 

Llanbedr Community Council 
Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Funding identified and secured Llanbedr Community Council  Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Improvements completed Llanbedr Community Council Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

T
udalen 156



Last updated 19.11.13 

21 

 

Working with the local ward 
member and the community 
council to assist them in 

seeking funding opportunities 
for improvements to 

Llangynhafal Village Hall 

5.2c 

Meet with ward member and 
community council 

Llangynhafal Community Council 
Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Funding identified and secured Llangynhafal Community Council  Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Improvements completed Llangynhafal Community Council Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Working with the local ward 
member and the community 
council to assist them in 

seeking funding opportunities 
for improvements to Llanfair 

DC Village Hall 

5.2c 

Meet with ward member and 
community council to identify 
improvements 

Llanfair DC Community Council Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Funding identified and secured Llanfair DC Community Council  Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Improvements completed Llanfair DC Community Council Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Working with the local ward 
member and the community 
council to assist them in 

seeking funding opportunities 
to expand Clawddnewydd 

community centre 

5.2c 

Meet with ward member and 
community council to identify 
improvements 

Derwen Community Council Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Funding identified and secured Derwen Community Council  Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Improvements completed Derwen Community Council Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Working with the local ward 
member and the community 
council to assist them in 

seeking funding opportunities 
to allow Pwllglas community 

centre to expand 

5.2c 

Meet with ward member and 
community council to identify 
improvements 

Efenechtyd Community Council Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Funding identified and secured Efenechtyd Community Council Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Expansion completed Efenechtyd Community Council Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Working with the local ward 
member and the community 
council to assist them in 

seeking funding opportunities 
to improve the facilities at 

Rhewl Pavilion 

5.2c 

Meet with ward member and 
community council to identify 
improvements 

Llanynys Community Council Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Funding identified and secured Llanynys Community Council Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Improvements completed Llanynys Community Council Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Building a skate park in 
Llanarmon yn Ial playing field 

5.2c 

Site identified Llanarmon yn Ial Community 
Council 

Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Necessary permissions  Llanarmon yn Ial Community 
Council 

Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured Llanarmon yn Ial Community 
Council  

Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Skate park built Llanarmon yn Ial Community Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

T
udalen 157



Last updated 19.11.13 

22 

 

Council 

Develop an affordable housing 
scheme in Llanferres for local 

people 
5.2c 

The development of  two affordable 
housing units 

DCC Community Housing/local 
RSL 

Apr 2013 Mar 2016 

Looking into providing more 
affordable housing to help 
retain the local population, 
especially for young families 

 
 

5.2c 

Report/Business Case DCC Community Housing Apr 2014 Mar 2015 

Funding identified & secured DCC Community Housing tbc - 
Dependent 

upon outcome 
of business 

case 

tbc 

Provision of affordable housing 
(subject to Business case). 

DCC Community Housing tbc tbc 

Supporting Llandegla 
Community Council to 

purchase land in the village 
from DCC to create a 

community open space in the 
village 

5.2c 

Funding identified and secured Llandegla Community Council  Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Land purchased Llandegla Community Council Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Open space created Llandegla Community Council Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Improving the safety of 
residents in Llanbedr DC by 
providing safer walking routes 
from the top to the bottom of 
the village and through the 

village to the school 

 

Walking routes identified DCC Highways Jan 2014 Mar 2014 

Report / Business Case DCC Highways Jun 2014 Jul 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Highways Jul 2014 Oct 2014 

Footpaths installed DCC Highways Nov 2014 Feb 2015 

Developing a first responders 
scheme in the Llangynhafal 

area 
5.2c 

Skills and training identified by 
meeting with local ward member 
and/or community council/group 

Llangynhafal Community Council Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Training provider identified Llangynhafal Community Council Sept 2014 Oct 2014 

Funding identified and secured Llangynhafal Community Council  Oct 2014 Jan 2015 

Training delivered  Llangynhafal Community Council Feb 2015 Mar 2015 

Providing resource and/or 
youth workers to encourage 

5.2c 
Areas where this is a priority 
identified 

DCC Youth Service Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

T
udalen 158



Last updated 19.11.13 

23 

 

community development and 
event organising for young 

people including the provision 
of a funding pot that young 
people can apply in to  

Report / business case DCC Youth Service Sept 2014 Oct 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Youth Service Oct 2014 Jan 2015 

Youth workers and/or development 
programme and funding pot in place 

DCC Youth Service Feb 2015 Mar 2015 

Allowing young people to 
participate in local decision 

making 
 

Ways to include young people in 
town and community councils 
identified 

DCC Youth Service Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Report / Business Case DCC Youth Service Sept 2014 Oct 2014 

Funding identified and secured (if 
required) 

DCC Youth Service Oct 2014 Jan 2015 

Young people participating in local 
decision making 

DCC Youth Service Feb 2015 Mar 2015 

Providing better, safer rural 
play areas 

5.2c 

Business Case for feasibility study DCC Public Realm Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Feasibility study carried out  DCC Public Realm Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Business case for installing new / 
replacement play areas (depending 
on outcome of feasibility study) 

DCC Public Realm Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Public Realm Jan 2015 Mar 2015 

Play areas improved / installed DCC Public Realm Mar 2015 Jul 2015 

Providing a new play area in 
Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd 

5.2c 

Site identified for a playground in 
Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd 

Llanbedr DC Community Council Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Necessary permissions in place  Llanbedr DC Community Council Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured Llanbedr DC Community Council  Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Playground built Llanbedr DC Community Council Jan 2015 Mar 2015 

Providing a new playing field in 
Cyffylliog 

5.2c 

Site identified for a playing field in 
Cyffylliog 

Cyffylliog Community Council Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Necessary permissions in place to 
establish a playing field 

Cyffylliog Community Council Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured Cyffylliog Community Council  Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Playing field open Cyffylliog Community Council Jan 2015 Mar 2015 

T
udalen 159



Last updated 19.11.13 

24 

 

Providing a new play area in 
Clawddnewydd 

5.2c 

Site identified for a play area in 
Clawddnewydd 

Derwen Community Council Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Necessary permissions in place to 
establish a playing field 

Derwen Community Council Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured Derwen Community Council Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Play area open Derwen Community Council Jan 2015 Mar 2015 

Ensuring well signposted and 
mapped walking routes 

6.2a 

Business Case for feasibility study DCC Rights of Way Apr 2014 May 2014 

Feasibility study carried out  DCC Rights of Way Jun 2014 Sept 2014 

Business case (depending on 
outcome of feasibility study) 

DCC Rights of Way Oct 2014 Nov 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Rights of Way Dec 2014 Mar 2015 

Walking routes improved / opened DCC Rights of Way Jun 2015 Dec 2015 

Supporting the youth club in 
Llanynys / Rhewl 

5.2c 

Needs identified by meeting with 
youth workers and local ward 
member 

DCC Youth Service Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Report / Business Case DCC Youth Service Sept 2014 Oct 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Youth Service  Oct 2014 Jan 2015 

Project(s) being delivered Youth Club Feb 2015 Mar 2015 

Installing a bench at the river 
bridge in Llanynys to improve 
the local offer to walkers and 

visitors 

6.2a 

Necessary permissions in place Llanynys Community Council Sept 2014 Oct 2014 

Funding identified and secured Llanynys Community Council Oct 2014 Jan 2015 

Bench in place Llanynys Community Council Feb 2015 Mar 2015 

Ensuring the education 
network within the Ruthin area 
has a sustainable mix of town 

and rural provision 

5.2c 

To progress proposals for an area 
school for the Clocaenog / Cyffylliog 
area 

DCC Customers and Education 
Support 

Jun 2013 Sept 2014 

To progress proposals for a robust 
and sustainable faith primary 
provision to serve the town of 
Ruthin and surrounding areas 

DCC Customers and Education 
Support 

Jun 2013 Sept 2014 

To progress proposals for joint 
working between Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

DCC Customers and Education 
Support 

Jun 2013 Sept 2014 

T
udalen 160



Last updated 19.11.13 

25 

 

and Ysgol Llanfair 

Improving the parking at 
Gellifor school 

5.2c 

Report / Business case DCC Education Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Education Sept 2014 Nov 2014 

Land purchased DCC Education Dec 2014 Mar 2015 

Additional parking available DCC Education Apr 2015 Jun 2015 

Ensuring the transport links to 
and from Ruthin are 

appropriate for the needs of 
the outlying communities 

1.1c 

Business case for feasibility study DCC Traffic and Transportation Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Feasibility study carried out DCC Traffic and Transportation Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Report / Business case (if f/study 
identifies extra need) 

DCC Traffic and Transportation Jan 2015 Feb 2015 

Funding identified and secured DCC Traffic and Transportation Mar 2015 Jun 2015 

Transport service altered/improved DCC Traffic and Transportation Jun 2015 Jul 2015 

Supporting church led initiative 
in Llanelidan Parish to become 
a hub for the community where 
there are no local services 

5.2c 

Project details identified Llanelidan Parish Council Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured Llanelidan Parish Council  Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Project being delivered Llanelidan Parish Council Jan 2015 Dec 2015 

Providing free or subsidized 
transport to events held locally 
or in the town centre for people 

who cannot otherwise get 
there – elderly people, young 

people, families 

5.2c 

Report / Business case DCC Traffic and Transportation Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Traffic and Transportation Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Transport available DCC Traffic and Transportation Jan 2015 Dec 2015 

Helping communities to 
establish a programme of 
social events using local 
community buildings 

particularly for older people, 
young families and people 
living in isolated places 

5.2c 

Needs identified Local ward member, community 
councils, youth workers, social 
services 

Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured Community Councils Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Programme of events in place Community Councils Jan 2015 Dec 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 161



Last updated 19.11.13 

26 

 

Making it happen...  
For jobs 

 

ACTIVITY 

ECON. 

AMB. 

STRAT. 

REF. 

OUTPUT LED BY 

 

START 

 

FINISH 

Improving broad band access 
and mobile phone coverage to 
rural area surrounding Ruthin 

1.2a 

Superfast broadband to all 
properties 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jan 2014 Dec 2017 

Developing initiatives to 
support and develop the new 
rural cottage industry of high 

tech home working 

2.2d 

Identify number of workers in the 
area 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Apr 2014 Jul 2014 

Establish how well they can work 
remotely in this area / who and 
where they need to be connected 
with 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jul 2014 Oct 2014 

Identify ways forward – using this to 
promote the area for investment by 
individuals and businesses  

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Nov 2014 Feb 2015 

Developing initiatives to 
support other rural economies 

providing local services 
2.2a 

Report / Business case for a pilot 
rural business networking event 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jan 2014 Mar 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Rural business network event 
hosted and benefits reported 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jul 2014 Aug 2015 

Exploring the development of 
social enterprises to employ 

local people and offer services 
to allow people to participate in 

volunteering, training and 
employment  

 

Identify needs of local people and 
barriers to employment, training and 
volunteering eg. crèche / babysitting 
needs, transport 

DCC Economic and Business 
Development  

Apr 2014 Jul 2014 

Report / Business case DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Economic and Business 
Development  

Oct 2014 Feb 2015 

Pilot projects up and running Social Enterprise(s) Mar 2015 Mar 2016 

T
udalen 162



Last updated 19.11.13 

27 

 

Supporting tourism and other 
businesses by developing 
guided walks – linking 

communities, businesses, 
schools, churches etc 

3.1Aa 

Route identified with local members 
and /or community councils 

DCC Countryside Services  Jan 2014 Feb 2014 

Added value elements identified – 
eg use of QR codes, waterproof 
boxes for information provision, 
ideas and comments from users. 
Consider the use of local artists. 

DCC Countryside Services  Jan 2014 Feb 2014 

Report / Business case DCC Countryside Services  Jan 2014 Feb 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Countryside  Feb 2014 Apr 2014 

Study of route, check with Rights of 
Way and new / replacement 
signposts, gates, stiles identified 

DCC Countryside Services  Apr 2014 May 2014 

New signposts and furniture 
installed and route opened up as 
required 

DCC Countryside Services  Jun 2014 Aug 2014 

Texts, maps, photos produced and 
approved 

DCC Countryside Services  Jun 2014 Aug 2014 

Leaflets printed and walking route 
open 

DCC Countryside Services  Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Assisting with tourism 
marketing, promotion and 

development in the rural areas 
6.1a 

Identify what is missing in the 
current marketing and promotion 
campaign, including brown signs 
and scenic routes 

DCC Destination Marketing and 
Communications  

Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Report / Business case DCC Destination Marketing and 
Communications  

Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Destination Marketing and 
Communications  

Sept 2014 Nov 2014 

Future work programme identified DCC Destination Marketing and 
Communications  

Dec 2014 Feb 2014 

Restoring the old toilet block in 
Llanelidan for visitor use 

5.2c 

Report / Business case DCC Environment Services Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Costed design DCC Environment Services Sept 2014 Nov 2014 

T
udalen 163



Last updated 19.11.13 

28 

 

Funding identified and secured DCC Environment Services Dec 2014 Feb 2014 

Toilets restored and open DCC Environment Services Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Developing initiatives or 
providing incentives for 

businesses to set up in the 
rural area – subsidised rent, 
low cost housing with small 
business unit attached etc 

5.2a 

Business case DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Apr 2014 Jun 2014 

Feasibility study DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Sept 2014 Dec 2014 

Initiative / incentives in place DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Jan 2015 Dec 2015 

Allowing young people to 
access jobs and colleges using 
public transport more easily 
and at affordable prices to 

allow them to remain living in 
the rural area 

4.2f 

Barriers identified – eg ID cards to 
prove age, affordable prices for 
young people travelling to work and 
college, discount cards 

DCC Passenger Transport Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Report / business case DCC Passenger Transport Sept 2014 Nov 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Passenger Transport Dec 2014 Mar 2015 

Access and affordability in place DCC Passenger Transport Apr 2015 Jun 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 164



Last updated 19.11.13 

29 

 

Making it happen...  
For the place 

 

ACTIVITY 

ECON. 

AMB. 

STRAT. 

REF. 

OUTPUT LED BY 

 

START 

 

FINISH 

Improving the rural 
infrastructure  

 

Identify priority routes with ward 
members 

DCC Highways Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Report / Business case DCC Highways Sept 2014 Nov 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Highways Dec 2014 Jan 2015 

Improvements carried out DCC Highways Jan 2015 Mar 2015 

Installing traffic calming 
scheme on Denbigh – Ruthin 
road to reduce the speed of 
the traffic in Llanynys / Rhewl 

 

Report / Business case DCC Highways Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Funding identified and secured DCC Highways Sept 2014 Nov 2014 

Traffic calming scheme installed DCC Highways Dec 2014 Jan 2015 

Helping to address 
maintenance issues in the rural 
communities eg churchyard 

maintenance 

 

Issues identified at Llanelidan Llanelidan Community Council Jul 2014 Sept 2014 

Report / Business Case Llanelidan Community Council  Sept 2014 Nov 2014 

Funding identified and secured Llanelidan Community Council / 
DCC Economic and Business 
Development 

Dec 2014 Mar 2015 

Maintenance programme for 
Llanelidan Churchyard in place 

Llanelidan Community Council Apr 2015 Mar 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 165



Last updated 19.11.13 

30 

 

Priorities for the Rural Area 
 

 

 

Three projects have been prioritised for the rural area: 

 

1. Improvements to Llanbedr Village Hall 

Work – improvements to kitchen, cloakroom, entrance and hall 

Total Cost Estimate - £18,400 
Amount Requested - £8,400 

 

2. Improvements to Llanarmon yn Ial Playing Field 
Work – purchase of land, parking, outdoor gym, pathways, bowling green, sensory garden, children’s play 

area 
  Total Cost Estimate - £97,000 

  Amount Requested - £24,250 
 

3. Clawddnewydd Joint Venture Project 

Work – refurbish kitchen and bar, demolish toilet and rebuild new shop facility, refurbish cellar and create 

children’s area and sport TV provision, refurbish old shop unit into small business units 
  Total Cost Estimate - £128,000 

  Amount Requested - £40,000    
 

 
NB. These projects are subject to confirmation of the match funding secured 

 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 166



Last updated 19.11.13 

31 

 

 
Statistical Appendix 

 
Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation 

 
“Lower Super Output Area” 2005 2008 2011 

Town    

Ruthin 1 1148 1187 1316 

Ruthin 2 1632 1694 1669 

Ruthin 3 1847 1859 1863 

Surrounding rural area    

Efenechtyd 1431 1497 1482 

Llanarmon yn Iâl/Llandegla 1539 1622 1642 

Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd/Llangynhafal 1627 1653 1686 

Llandyrnog 1428 1301 1384 

Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd/Gwyddelwern 1541 1431 1435 

Llanrhaeadr yng Nghinmeirch 1359 1300 1422 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Source: Office for National Statistics - 2011 Census 
Rural Area covered:  Llangynhafal, Gellifor, Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd,, Llanferres, Maeshafn, Llanarmon yn Ial,  
Llandegla, Pentre Celyn, Graigfechan, Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd, Efenechtyd, Pwllglas, Rhydymeudwy, Llanelidan, 
Gwyddelwern, Betws Gwerfil Goch, Melin y Wig, Derwen, Bryn Saith Marchog, Clawddnewydd, Clocaenog, 

Percentage of… In Ruthin 

town 

In 

Denbighshire 

In the 

surrounding 

Rural Area 

Young people aged 15 or 
under 

18.3 18.1 17.6 

All people aged 65 or over 
 

21.9 21.1 21 

 People aged 85 or over 
 

3.9 2.8 2.3 

People claiming housing or 
Council Tax benefit 
 

6.8 7.3 4.3 

Overcrowded households 
 

2.0 4.5 0.9 

People born in Wales 
 

67.8 58.1 59.0 

People over 3 years of age 
who can speak, read or 
write Welsh 
 

 
32.3 

 
27.0 

 
43.0 

Working residents who are 
managers or professionals 
 

10.0 9.9 12.5 

Working residents 
employed in the public 
sector  

36.1 35.7 34.1 

  Working residents 
employed in agriculture,  
 

1.9 2.3 7.9 

Working residents 
employed in hotels and 
restaurants,  

8.6 6.9 5.2 

Working residents 
employed in manufacturing 
 

8.3 9.1 9.0 

Working residents 
employed in retail  
 

13.1 14.4 10.7 

T
udalen 167



Last updated 19.11.13 

32 

 

Cyffylliog, Rhewl and Llanynys 

 

How will we know if we are on track? 
 
Annual reviews of progress will be undertaken by the County Council together with the Community Council. More regular updates will also be provided 
to the County Council’s Member Area Groups and to the Town Council, and also to the wider community through County Voice and through press 
releases made by Denbighshire County Council. The Plan will be treated as a living document in which aspirations can be added or removed according 
to changes in circumstances. 
 
 
 

Who was involved in the production of this plan? 
 
This plan was produced by Denbighshire County Council following consultations with County Council Councilors and services, ward members, 
community councils, businesses, schools and the wider community.  

 

 

 

 

For further information contact:  
 
econ.dev@denbighshire.gov.uk  
 

T
udalen 168



 

            Appendix 2   
 

 

 

 
 

 

PRESTATYN & MELIDEN 

TOWN & AREA PLAN 

“LOOKING FORWARD TOGETHER” 

2012 – 2020 
NOVEMBER  2013 EDITION 

T
udalen 169



 

 2 

Introduction 
 

Denbighshire County Council has adopted a strategic aim of being “a high performing 

council closer to the community”.  
  

To help achieve this aim, the County Council invited the town and community councils and 

the businesses, community and voluntary sectors in each of its main towns and the smaller 

outlying communities which relate to them to join together to develop “town plans”.  These 

will be living documents which will be subject to regular reviews and will set out  
 

• the current situation in the towns  
 

• the key challenges and opportunities which they will face over the next decade  
 

• a vision for each town which will provide it with a sustainable future, and  
 

• realistic and achievable actions which will deliver that vision.  
 
The County Council’s Cabinet acknowledged at its meeting on 15

th
 January 2013 that the 

Town Plans had not considered the needs and priorities of smaller and more rural 
communities and agreed to broaden the Town Plans into wider Town & Area Plans to 
address this deficit. The Cabinet subsequently agreed at its meeting on 16

th
 April 2013 that 

the new Town & Area Plans would have three sections and these would be 
 

• one identifying the vision and priorities for each Town, 
 

• a second identifying how smaller and more rural communities relate to the main Town, and  
 

• a third setting out any specific needs or priorities for the smaller and more rural communities. 
 
This then is the new Town & Area Plan for Prestatyn & Meliden. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 170



 

 3 

Section One 
 
Vision and priorities for Prestatyn 
 
 
Prestatyn, originally a Roman settlement, is the gateway to the North Wales coastal area, and the most easterly of the North Wales coastal resorts. The town centre 
is nestled between the hillside and the sea and has a unique location at one end of the Offa’s Dyke trail which is popular with visitors from elsewhere in the UK and 
overseas. 
 
Prestatyn town saw its first major growth when the railway was built between Chester and Holyhead in 1848 and became established as a holiday resort when 
Thomas Cook built Tower Beach in the 1930’s.  Pontin’s has since built a holiday camp on the former trotting stadium and track. 
 
Prestatyn was home to the national headquarters for Kwik Save until the company was taken over by Somerfield. 
 

Prestatyn has several public facilities including a secondary 
school (Prestatyn High School) with a leisure centre on site, the 
Scala Cinema, the Nova, the North Wales Bowls Centre, and a 
Territorial Army unit. The town is a hub to a number of rural 
villages and settlements. 
 

 

The population of the town of Prestatyn is 16,783. 

 

. 

T
udalen 171



 

 4 

Where we are now 
(The actual figures are shown in the Statistical Appendix.)  

 
People  

 
Compared to the county as a whole, the town of Prestatyn has 

 
• more people aged over 65, 

 
•  a higher percentage of over 85’s, 
 
•  fewer young people under 15, 
 
•  a lower proportion of households which are overcrowded 
 

Community 

  
Compared to the county as a whole, fewer people in the town of Prestatyn 
 
• were born in Wales, and                                                   

 
•  can speak  Welsh. 

 
The crime rate in the town is lower than the average rate for the county, except for incidences of criminal damage. The crime rate in the Prestatyn East ward is 
higher than the county average with incidences of criminal damage and theft & handling being higher than average and violence against the person being lower than 
average. Crime in this ward is generally concentrated in the High Street and at Pontin’s. The crime rate in the town’s other wards is lower than the average for the 
county with the rate in the Prestatyn South West ward being particularly low. 
 
The Welsh Government uses a formula to measure deprivation called the “Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation”. Wales is split into 1896 areas which are smaller 
than County Council wards. Each area is then ranked with the most deprived given a score of 1 and the least deprived as score of 1896. 
 
The scores in different years are not directly comparable because the way in which the index is calculated changes over time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 172



 

 5 

In the 2011 edition of the Index, all the “Lower Super Output Areas” in the town are considered by the Welsh Government to more deprived than they were in 2005, 
with the exception of Prestatyn North 2 and Prestatyn East 1. 
 
 
The Prestatyn Central 2 area is considered to be the most 
deprived in  the town in the Indices for 2005, 2008 and 2011 
because they were all calculated using data from the 2001 
Census for the proportion of housing with no central heating or 
double glazing. At the time of the 2001 census, many of the 
Council houses in this particular area had neither central 
heating nor double glazing. The subsequent investment by the 
County Council to bring its housing up to the Welsh Housing 
Quality Standard should mean that by the time that the 2011 
Census data is used to calculate the Index, this area should not 
receive such a high ranking for this reason. 

 
Statistics for the Maes Y Groes and Victoria Avenue area 
indicated that they could have qualified for Housing Renewal 
Area status had funding still been available. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
          Map showing the Lower Super Output Areas in Prestatyn 

T
udalen 173



 

 6 

Jobs  
 

Compared to the county as a whole,  
 

• fewer people of working age who live in Prestatyn work in the public sector (although more people in Denbighshire work in this sector than in 

any other local authority area in Great Britain), 
 

• more people work in retail 
 

• more people work in hotels and restaurants 
 

• a lower percentage of people work in manufacturing, and 
 

• a lower percentage of people of working age claim Job Seekers’ Allowance. 
 

Median annual household incomes in Prestatyn are lower than they are for Denbighshire as a whole except in Prestatyn East ward. 

 

 

 

The place  
 

•  The railway presents a physical barrier between the town centre and the beach. 
 

• Prestatyn is at one end of the Offa’s Dyke trail. 
 

• There are about 150 bed spaces in graded hotels and bed & breakfasts and over 8,000 in self-catering accommodation. 
 

• Central Beach has been awarded Blue Flag status. 
 

Whilst there are some vacant units in the town centre in prominent locations, the vacancy rate is actually a lot lower than the national average. 

T
udalen 174



 

 7 

Vacancy rates for retail premises – Autumn 2012 
 

Prestatyn 7.8% (14 units) 

UK 16.3% 
(Colliers 
International) 

 

Some of the properties in the town centre have been poorly maintained which detracts from its overall appearance. 

 
Future challenges and opportunities 

 
People  

 
The number of people aged over 65 and 85 is higher than average for Denbighshire and growing. 
 
There are no longer any major providers of year round employment based in the town itself. 
 
The number of people in the town grows considerably in the summer months with the influx of visitors. 
 
 

 
Community  

 
The Nova would require investment to remain viable in the longer term. 
 
Prestatyn will be eligible for further community funds from the Gwynt y Mor off shore windfarm, and additional funds if Burbo Bank windfarm extension goes ahead. 
 
The deposit Local Development Plan (LDP) for Denbighshire suggested no new allocation of greenfield land for housing in the town. A small site was subsequently 
identified at Mid Nant Farm which could be developed if other sites cannot be delivered. If adopted, this would mean no significant numbers of new homes being 
built in the town over the next ten years. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

T
udalen 175



 

 8 

 
 
Ysgol y Llys school is to be extended and refurbished. 
 
The statutory process to merge Bodnant Infants and Juniors has been completed but they are still on two sites until funding becomes available to accommodate both 
on one site. 
 
Secondary school numbers are reducing which will lessen the need for the currently large number of mobile classrooms. 
 
The vicarage, and in particular its grounds which are used for town centre events, was offered for sale.  
 
Prestatyn has successful football and cricket clubs, but the cricket club needs a new pavilion. 
 
There could be an impact on the Scala Cinema following the upgrade and refurbishment of the Apollo Cinema in Rhyl but the Shopping Park will provide up to 3 
hours free parking which could be advantageous for cinema goers. 
 
If North Wales Police were to reduce the number of administrative staff based in Victoria Road as has been suggested, there could be an opportunity to relocate the 
remaining officers to a base in the town centre. 

 

 

Jobs 
 

Retailers were given support whilst the Stadium development building work was in progress and this will need to continue once it opens. 
 
The Stadium development will see the original station buildings façade restored. 
 
The Stadium development will bring high street brands to Prestatyn. 

 
There is a new owner at Pontin’s which provides an opportunity to invest in the upgrading of the site. 
 
The Holyhead to Chester railway line offers a sustainable means of travelling to centres of employment further afield. 
 
The urban nature of the A548 coast road through Flintshire and the unsuitability of other links to the A55 makes travelling by road to centres of employment further 
afield more difficult than it need be. 

 
There is an opportunity to make more use of Prestatyn’s natural assets for cycling, walking and beach holidays/activities. 

T
udalen 176



 

 9 

 

The urban nature of the A548 coast road through Flintshire and the unsuitability of other links to the A55 makes traveling by road to centres of employment further 
afield more difficult than it need be. 
 
There is an opportunity to make more use of Prestatyn’s natural assets for cycling, walking and beach holidays / activities. 

 

The Place 
 
There are several vacant sites, namely; the former Kwik Save headquarters and warehouse, the former Avimo factory, the former Camelot factory and the Former 
Gas Works site. 
 

Prestatyn is not an easy place to get to by road. 
 

Coronation Gardens is being entered for a Green Flag award which recognizes the best green spaces in the United Kingdom. 
 
 
 

Vision for Prestatyn 
 

We want Prestatyn 
  

• to be able to sustain quality employment opportunities in the town itself  
 

• to be a key retail destination for high street brands on the coast between Chester and Llandudno, 
 

• to provide a high quality experience for residents and visitors alike who want to use the Blue Flag beach, walk the Offa’s Dyke and Wales 
Coastal Paths, and cycle along National Cycle Route 5 which also runs along the sea front, and 

 

• to offer environmentally sustainable easy access to centres of employment further afield. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 177



 

 10 

 

 
Making it happen ... 
for people 

 
 
What we want to achieve 
 

We will achieve this by This will be led by By when 

 
 
An improvement in educational 
attainment 

 
Improving facilities for Welsh medium education at Ysgol y Llys 
 

County Council - 
Modernising Education 

1 – 5 years 
 

Consolidating provision by Bodnant Community School on to a single 
site 

County Council - 
Modernising Education 

1 – 5 years 
 

Reviewing condition of other primary and secondary schools 
 

County Council - 
Modernising Education 

1 – 5 years 
 

 

T
udalen 178



 

 11 

Making it happen ... 
for the community 

 
 
What we want to achieve  
 

We will achieve this by  This will be led by  By when  

Improved local services 

Looking at the feasibility of operating a shared one stop shop 
for public services in the town centre 

Town Council 1 – 5 years 

Improving the signage and access at the Scala to increase 
the footfall and link in with the Stadium development 

County Council 
Communications, Marketing & 
Leisure 

1 year 

Looking at the feasibility of providing additional cinema and 
training facilities on the 3

rd
 floor of the Scala 

Scala Prestatyn Company 1 – 5 years 

Providing a replacement skate park / BMX pump track Town Council 1 – 5 years 

Continued provision of a venue for shows 
such as classic car event and flower show 

Requesting a provision in any development proposals for the 
vicarage 

Private Sector 1 – 5 years 

 
 
 
Improved leisure facilities 

Continuing with the upgrading of the indoor facilities at 
Prestatyn Leisure Centre 

County Council 
Communications, Marketing & 
Leisure 

1- 5 years 

Working to improve swimming facilities in the coastal area 
including access to a pool for community use in the town 

County Council 
Communications, Marketing & 
Leisure 

5-10 years 

Supporting the provision of a new cricket pavilion Cricket Club 5-10 years 

Development of watersports facilities at Barkby Beach 
County Council 
Communications, Marketing & 
Leisure 

5-10 years 

Residents and visitors not feeling intimidated 
by people consuming alcohol in public 
places 

Implementing a Designated Public Place Order within the 
part of the town covered by the 30 mph speed limit 

County Council Planning, & 
Public Protection 

1 year 

A reduction in the amount of dog mess in 
public places 

Developing a Council strategy on dog fouling including 
arrangements for consulting on the introduction of a Dog 
Control Order within the part of the town covered by the 30 
mph speed limit 

County Council Planning, & 
Public Protection 

1 year 

 

T
udalen 179



 

 12 

Making it happen ... 
for the economy 

 
 
What we want to achieve  
 

We will achieve this by  This will be led by  By when  

 
 
Improved retail offer 

Completing Stadium retail development  
 

Private Sector  1 – 5 years  

Bringing retailers in the High Street and on the new Stadium 
development together with the County Council and Town 
Council to work in partnership through a “Town Team” 
approach for the wider benefit of the town centre  
 

County Council Highways & 
Environmental Services 

1 – 5 years  

Looking into the possibility of the Retail Sector Skills Council 
undertaking a “Location Modelling” exercise for the town 
centre  
 

County Council Housing & 
Community Development 

1 – 5 years  

Developing and implementing an events programme  
 

Business & Community Forum  1 – 5 years  

 
 
Additional employment in the town 

Redeveloping the old station buildings  
 

Private Sector  1 – 5 years  

Working with the new owners of Pontin’s to maximise the 
economic benefit of the holiday park for the town  
 

County Council Housing & 
Community Development  

1 – 5 years  

Working with the owners to bring the former Avimo, Camelot 
and Kwik Save headquarters and warehouse sites back into 
productive use  
 

County Council Housing & 
Community Development  

5 – 10 years  

Reviewing the use of County Council assets in the town 
centre including the previous library site in Nant Hall Road 
and 6/8 Nant Hall Road 
 

County Council Finance & 
Assets 

5 – 10 years 

Better road connection to centres of 
employment further afield  
 

Lobbying for improvements to the A548 coast road through 
Flintshire and other links  

County Council Highways & 
Environmental Services 

5 – 10 years  

 

 

 

T
udalen 180



 

 13 

Making it happen ... 
for the place 

 
 
What we want to achieve  
 

We will achieve this by  This will be led by  By when  

 
 
 
 
 
Visitors to the town will have a better experience 

Implementing a programme of environmental improvements to the 
sea front including tidying up the outside of the Nova  

County Council Housing & 
Community Development 

1 year  

Looking into the feasibility of undertaking further environmental 
improvements at the sea front including the sea wall, the 
amusement arcade and Ffrith Beach  

County Council Housing & 
Community Development  

1 – 5 years  

Refurbishing the bus station  
County Council Highways & 
Environmental Services 

1 year  

Resurfacing the High Street  
County Council Highways & 
Environmental Services 

1 – 5 years  

Looking into the feasibility of improving the appearance of town 
centre pedestrian areas  

County Council Highways & 
Environmental Services 

1 – 5 years  

Carrying out a full signage audit both in the town and from the A55 
to replace missing signs, restore damaged signs and provide new 
signs (including signs to the beach) once the Stadium development 
is complete  

County Council Highways & 
Environmental Services 

1 – 5 years  

Reviewing the extensive parking restrictions around Central Beach  
County Council Highways & 
Environmental Services 

1 – 5 years  

Improving the look of prominent sites and structures including the 
shopping precinct and other untidy High Street properties, the 
former library site in Nant Hall Road, the outdoor market, the former 
Avimo factory, the former Kwik Save warehouse, the Morfa and the 
parapets of the Bodnant and Penrhwylfa railway bridges using 
enforcement action if necessary  

County Council Housing & 
Development Services  

1 – 5 years  

The vitality of the town centre is retained 
Making empty shops look attractive  

County Council Housing & 
Community Development 

1 – 5 years  

Being flexible about the uses allowed  
County Council Planning, & Public 
Protection 

1 – 5 years  

 
 
 
An improved experience for the visitors joining or 
leaving the path on Prestatyn hillside 

Creating a path between the view point car park and Hillside 
Gardens which will allow walkers to avoid having to use the road to 
Gwaenysgor  

County Council Highways & 
Environmental Services 

1 year  

Creating a further path from below the Hillside Shelter to the quarry 
car park which will allow walkers on the National Trail to avoid 
having to use the road to Gwaenysgor  

Offa’s Dyke Path Community 
Interest Company  

1 – 5 years  

Improving the appearance of the Hillside Gardens through new 
planting  

Offa’s Dyke Path Community 
Interest Company  

1 – 5 years  

Installing traffic calming measures in Fforddlas  County Council Highways & 1 – 5 years  

T
udalen 181



 

 14 

Environmental Services 

Restoring the Hillside Shelter  
Offa’s Dyke Path Community 
Interest Company  

1 – 5 years  

 
 

 

Section Two 
 
How Meliden relates to Prestatyn  
 
Meliden lies very close to Prestatyn with the developed areas of the two communities now 
barely 300 metres apart at their nearest point.  

However, the village of Meliden has its own important historical and cultural past. The 
Domesday Book says that there was a church in the village in 1086 but the circular 
churchyard would suggest that it may have been a burial site even before Christian times. 
Mining contributed greatly to the economy of the village until the activity ceased in 1884 and 
the track bed of the former branch line which passed through the village on the quarry at 
Dyserth now forms a relatively easy walking and cycling route.  

The village is today situated in the area which is served by Prestatyn Town Council but it 
has continued to maintain its distinct character and independent spirit with residents 
accessing services in other nearby towns as well. For example, the village has its own 
primary school and children go to the High School and other primary schools in Prestatyn 
but some go to schools in other towns such as Rhyl, St Asaph and Denbigh. In relation to 
health care, the village surgery is operated by the Pendyffryn Medical Group which has its 
base in Prestatyn but it is intended that the future community hospital provision serving the 
village will be located in Rhyl. Similarly, whilst all of the bus services running through the village serve Prestatyn, they also run directly to other major centres 
including Rhyl and Llandudno. 

There is a relatively limited amount of employment within Meliden itself with just 116 people working in the village (other than from home) at the time of the 2001 
census. The wider area does however attract a substantial number of visitors with 8,000 self-catering bed spaces in nearby Prestatyn alone, up to 8,000 cars a day 
parking at the town’s Shopping Park and 26,000 people per annum using the Prestatyn-Dyserth Way. With many of these visitors passing through Meliden, this 
presents a significant opportunity for growing the village’s visitor economy by promoting its fabulous historic and natural environment to them. 
 

 

 

T
udalen 182



 

 15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section Three 
 
Needs and priorities for Meliden 
 
At the time of the 2011 census, Meliden had 2,066 residents which was a slight reduction compared to the 2,175 recorded during the census in 2001.  

 
Compared with Denbighshire as a whole, Meliden has  
 

• a larger proportion of young people aged 15 or under; 
 

• a smaller proportion of older people aged 65 or over; 
 

• a larger proportion of people who work in the retail and tourism sectors; and  
 

• a smaller proportion of residents who work in the manufacturing and public sectors. 
 
Like the rest of the county, in the ten years since the last census, there has been 
 

• a reduction in the proportion of young people aged 15 or under; 
 

• an increase in the proportion of older people aged 65 or over; and 
 

• an increase in the proportion of residents working in the public sector. 
 
In the adopted Local Development Plan for Denbighshire 2006-21, there are two sites allocated for new housing in the village to the rear of Maes Meurig, and to the 
rear of Ffordd Hendre (which was not proposed for allocation by the County Council), which would significantly increase its population if both were to be developed. 
These would be in addition to the 3 new dwellings in Graham Avenue, the 8 new affordable dwellings for local people on the disused garden centre site in Ffordd 
Talargoch which the County Council’s Housing & Community Development service are seeking to develop in conjunction with Cymdeithas Tai Clwyd, the 30 
proposed for the former Caravan Park and the 12 proposed for the land behind the car showroom. 

 

 

T
udalen 183



 

 16 

 
 
 
 
Needs 
 
With this context in mind, the needs identified for the village area are as follows: 
 
For people 
 
With a relatively young age profile already, any new residential developments in the village would need to include enough housing which young people from the 
village would be able to afford.   
 
Leisure facilities are required which meet the needs of all the village’s young people and the play areas should have the right equipment for the age groups which 
they serve. 
 
If the two additional sites allocated for housing were to be developed, the facilities at the village’s primary school which are already at capacity would need to be 
enhanced to cater for any increase in the school age population. 
 
For the community 
 
The community centre is a superb asset for the village but it needs to be well maintained. 
 
The village has a thriving football club playing in the Welsh Alliance League which raises the profile of the village across North Wales, but it needs better changing 
facilities at its ground. 
 
As a community with a significant population, facilities like the chemist, the post office, the pubs and the doctors’ surgery need to be retained and preferably 
enhanced to include additional services like dental care. 
 
For the economy 
 
The village has a fascinating history and fantastic setting which would enable it to attract more visitors and support additional jobs in the tourism sector if assets like 
the Goods Shed and Caravan Park could be returned to use and if more information was available to visitors. 
 
For the place 
 
There is a free car park in the centre of the village but it is not actively managed which often makes it difficult for people calling at the Post Office, attending services 
at the church and Blue Badge holders to find a parking space. 
 

T
udalen 184



 

 17 

The area around the main A547 road through the village is generally very attractive but there are some places where both its appearance and the highway could be 
enhanced which would make the village a more inviting place for visitors to stop. 

 
 
 
 
Making this happen ... 
for people 

 

Activity 

Economic 
Ambition 
Strategy  
reference 

This will be 
led by 

Output Start Finish 
Cost in 
£000’s 

Based upon local housing need, seek to achieve 
appropriate affordable housing provision in sites allocated 
for residential development in the village in Local 
Development Plan for Denbighshire to provide enough 
housing for young people in the village which they can 
afford 

5.3 

County Council - 
Development 
Control & Planning 
Compliance 

Affordable housing 
provision included in 
approved schemes 
 

1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2021 

 

Developing a range of housing options for local people of 
all ages to enable their housing needs to be better met 

5.3 
County Council - 
Community Housing  

8 affordable housing units 
developed on the former 
Garden Centre site 

1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2016 

 

Working with the children of the village to find out what 
equipment they would like to see in the play areas to meet 
their needs and using funding from Commuted Sums and 
Community Housing to provide it 

5.3 

County Council  -
Economic & 
Business 
Development 

Improved play areas  
1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2017 

£20,000 

Ensuring that the facilities at the village’s primary school 
are enhanced using funding obtained through the 
Community Infrastructure Levy imposed on the 
developers of new housing or elsewhere to accommodate 
the additional numbers of children in the village which will 
result from the development of the sites allocated for 
housing in the Local Development Plan 

5.3 
County Council - 
Modernising 
Education 

Improved facilities at 
Ysgol Melyd 

1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2021 

 

 
 
 
 

T
udalen 185



 

 18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Making this happen ... 
for the community 

 

Activity 

Economic 
Ambition 
Strategy 
Reference 

This will be led 
by 

Output Start Finish Cost 

Making adequate provision for maintenance of the centre 
to ensure that it continues to provide an excellent facility 
for the village 

5.3 
Prestatyn Town 
Council 

Satisfactory condition 
survey 

1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2017 

 

Helping the football club to access funding to provide 
better changing facilities at its ground to help it develop 
and raise the profile of the village across North Wales 

5.3 

County Council  - 
Economic & 
Business 
Development 

Funding secured  
1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2017 

£25,000 

Encouraging residents to make use of village facilities like 
the chemist, Post Office, pubs and surgery to ensure that 
they continue to thrive 

5.3 
Meliden Residents 
Action Group 

Campaign  
1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2021 

 

 
Making this happen ... 
for the economy 

 

Activity 

Economic 
Ambition 
Strategy 
Reference 

This will be led 
by 

Output Start Finish Cost 

Restoring the Goods Shed as a visitor attraction to 
provide more jobs in the tourism sector 

3.1 
Meliden Residents 
Action Group 

Building restored 
1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2017 

£50,000 

T
udalen 186



 

 19 

Encouraging the caravan park being returned to use to 
provide more jobs in the tourism sector 

3.1 

County Council  - 
Destination 
Marketing & 
Communication 

Opportunity promoted to 
potential operators 

1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2017 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Making this happen ... 
for the place 

 

Activity 

Economic 
Ambition 
Strategy 
Reference 

This will be led 
by 

Output Start Finish Cost 

Actively managing the village car park  to make it easier 
for people calling at the Post Office, visiting the church 
and Blue Badge holders to find a space to park 

5.3 
County Council  - 
Traffic, Parking & 
Road Safety 

Car park actively 
managed 

1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2017 

 

Improving the appearance of properties in the area around 
the A547 road through the village  to make it a more 
inviting place for visitors to spend time in 

5.1 

County Council  - 
Development 
Control & Planning 
Compliance 

Untidy land notices 
served 

1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2017 

 

Supporting the improvement of the appearance of the 
public realm in the area around the A547 road through the 
village  to make it a more inviting place for visitors to 
spend time in 

6.2 
Prestatyn Town 
Council 

Improved planting 
1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2017 

 

Improving the on-street parking on the A547 road through 
the village  to make it a more inviting place for visitors to 
spend time in 

6.2 
County Council  - 
Traffic, Parking & 
Road Safety 

Better parking bays 
1
st
 April 

2014 
31

st
 March 
2021 

£25,000 

 

T
udalen 187



 

 20 

How will we know if we are on track? 
 
Annual reviews of progress will be undertaken by the County Council 
together with Prestatyn Town Council. More regular updates will also 
be provided to the County Council’s Member Area Groups and to the 
Town Council, and also to the wider community through County Voice 
and through press releases made by Denbighshire County Council. 
The Plan will be treated as a living document in which aspirations can 
be added or removed according to changes in circumstances. 
 

Who was involved in the production of this plan? 

 
This plan was produced by Denbighshire County Council following 
consultations with County Council Councillors and Services, the Town 
Council, the Business Group, secondary schools and the wider 
community. 
 

For further information:  
econ.dev@denbighshire.gov.uk  
 

 

 

 

T
udalen 188



 

 21 

 
Statistical Appendix 
2011 census data 

 Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation 

Percentage of… In 
Prestatyn 
town 

In the village 
of Meliden 

In 
Denbighshire 

 Lower Super 
Output Area 

Ranking in 
2005 

Ranking in 
2008 

Ranking in 
2011 

Young people aged 15 or 
under 

17.7 21.19 18.1  Prestatyn 
North 1 

1006 843 830 

All people aged 65 or over 25.0 20.5 21.1  Prestatyn 
North 2 

677 815 745 

People aged 85 or over 3.5 2.3 2.8  Prestatyn 
North 3 

609 547 571 

Overcrowded households 3.4 3.9 4.5  Prestatyn 
Central 1 

1694 1578 1592 

People born in Wales 47.7 56.3 58.1  Prestatyn 
Central 2 

516 330 335 

People over 3 years of age 
who can speak, read or 
write Welsh 

16.9 21.7 27.0  Prestatyn 
South West 1 

978 769 695 

Working residents 
employed in hotels and 
restaurants 

8.1 7.7 6.9   
Prestatyn 
South West 2 

 
1119 

 
907 

 
925 

Working residents 
employed in manufacturing 

8.3 6.6 9.1   
Prestatyn 
East 1 

 
835 

 
725 

 
848 

Working residents in retail 
 

16.6 15.4 14.4   
Prestatyn 
East 2 
 

 
1843 

 
1851 

 
1833 

Working residents 
employed in the public 
sector 

34.7 34.4 35.7  Prestatyn 
East 3 

1062 1123 1020 

     Meliden 928 801 766 

 
 

 

    

T
udalen 189



T
udalen 190

M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



Prestatyn Shopping precinct makeover- 

implementation

50.0 50.0 70 49,930 0 The scope of the project has been agreed by the MAG and Major Projects 

Group are currently seeking tenders with a view to completion during the 

first quarter of 2014. The works are expected to take 2-3 weeks to complete 

once on site. The total cost is £52,000 with £2,000 from Proceeds of Crime 

Act funding and £50,000 from the corporate priority budget.

Central beach arcade makeover - 

implementation

50.0 50.0 0 50,000 0 Designs have been completed and are  currently being costed with a view 

to going out to going out to tender and completing the works by Easter.

New sailing Club - design 30.0 30.0

Contribution to construction of new 

Sailing Club

Environmental improvements at the 

Hillside Gardens and Shelter

20.0 15.0 0 15,000 0 The scope of the work has been agreed with the Major Projects Group and 

tenders are currently being sought with completion expected during the 

first quarter of 2014. The total budget is £20,000 with £5,000 from Town 

Council and £15,000 from the corporate priority budget.

Sub Total 150.0 145.0 70 144,930 0 145,000

St Asaph Install additional town trail board 2.0 0.8 0 800 0 Cadwyn to match fund - completed, funding not required

Red Hill steps - install handrail & 

address root damage

10.0 10.0 8,420.3 1,579.7 0 Final payment invoice received.  Project closure imminent

Provision for the construction of 

improvements and rebuilding the 

flood damaged Cricket Club

500.0 50.0 Previously  allocated 

for the Community 

Centre

0 50,000 0 Offer letter sent out but Group not claimed this as yet.

Lower St Toilets - makeover & 

improved security

50.0
50.0

0 0 0 Work not due to start until post April 2014 - 100% corporate allocation

Contribution to construction of 

Cathedral visitor centre

300.0

50.0

0 0 0 £520,000 required to fund project. Heritage Lottery bid for £365k 

submitted. Fundraising to date £63k. Further bids to be submitted early 

2014

Legal and other costs for transfer of 

Rhuallt Playing Fields to Community 

Council

12.0 0 12,000 0 New project - added as part of the Area Plan process

Extension of double yellow lines at 

Trefnant

2.0 0 2,000 0 New project - added as part of the Area Plan process

Extension of layby at Cefn Meiriadog 5.0 0 5,000 0 New project - added as part of the Area Plan process

Fingerposts for historic sites in 

Bodelwyddan

5.0 0 5,000 0 New project - added as part of the Area Plan process

Sub Total 862.0 84.8 100.0 8,420 76,380 0 84,800

Rhuddlan Finger posts to the Castle & Twt Hill 3.0 1.2 222.22 977.78 0 Cadwyn to match fund.  Project submitted to Major projects for quotes so 

application to Cadwyn can be completed

Install additional town trail board 2.0 0.8 65.35 734.65 0 Cadwyn match funded, project completed

Installation of illumination for 

wooden sculpture of knights in Tan yr 

Eglwys Road

3.0 1.2

0 1,200 0

Cadwyn to match fund. Legal transfer of ownership underway.  Upon 

completion, application to Cadwyn will be submitted

Installation of interpretation at 

ditched defences in Gwindy Street

2.0 0.8

0 800 0

Cadwyn to match fund.  Meeting with Cadw due to take place to discuss. 

Application to Cadwyn to follow.

Marsh Road Pavement - feasibility 

study

4.0 2.0 333.46 1,666.54 0 Cadwyn to match fund.  Awaiting approval of Cadwyn Clwyd application.  

Currently with Major Projects for quotes for works

Marsh Road pavement - construction 25.0 25.0

0 25,000 0

To follow study

Dropped kerb between Parliament 

Street and King's Head car parks

1.0 1.0 1,105.00 0.00 105 Project completed with £105 overspend

50.0 15.0 Contribution to design 

of changing rooms at 

Admiral's Playing 

Fields

0 15,000.0 0 Cadwyn to match fund.  On hold

Cylch Meithrin 1.5 1.50

Open the Box Study 2.85 2.85

Benches 0.5 0.5

Parking review 2.5 2.5

Cemetry review 2.0 2.0

Mobile toilets at Admirals Playing 

Fields
2.0

2.0

Remainder to be re-allocated 3.65 3.65

Contribution to a One Stop Shop hub 

for learning and information

250.0 50.0 Contribution to 

construction of 

changing rooms at 

Admirals's Playing 

Fields

0 0 0

Sub Total 340.0 47.0 50.0 1,726.03 45,274 105 47,000

Denbigh Design guide 5.0 2.0 0 2,000 0 Cadwyn to match fund

Implementation of design guide 

recommendations for street furniture 

etc

50.0 20.0 0 0 0 Cadwyn to match fund

Chapel quarter feasibility study 10.0 3.0 0 3,000 0 Cadwyn to match fund

Install additional town trail board 2.0 0.8 0 800 0 Cadwyn to match fund

New toilets at Lower Park 50.0 50.0 0 50,000 0

Gap funding for eye sore sites 100.0 100.0 0 0 0

Rhyl Road & Barkers Well Lane 

congestion - traffic study

30.0 30.0 0 30,000 0

Rhyl Road & Barkers Well Lane 

congestion - implementation of study 

recommendations

200.0 200.0 0 0 0

Contribution to restoration of Gwasg 

Gee building

1300.0 50.0 0 0 0

Contribution to conversion & fitting 

out of museum

600.0 50.0 50,000 0 0 Application form completed awaiting signed copy of Cllr Gwyneth Kensler.  

Project approved. Payment made 16/12/2013

Sub Total 2347.0 135.8 370.0 50,000 85,800 0 135,800

Ruthin St Peter's Square channelisation of 

traffic - detailed design

30.0 30.0 0 30,000 0

St Peter's Square - channelisation of 

traffic - implementation

200.0 200.0 0 0 0

Art Trail 200.0 20.0 0 20,000 0

Town Marketing Strategy 12.0 5.0 0 5,000 0 Potential for Cadwyn to match fund

Cyfenter - Cwrw Ial Brewery 23.4 23,394 0 0 DCC match funding element

Cyfenter - Llanarmon Shop 18.0 18,026 0 0 DCC match funding element

Sub Total 442.0 96.4 200.0 41,420 55,000 0 96,420

DCC Spent to 

date 

2013/14

Total cost 

inc match 

funding   

£000

Development of water 

sports at Barkby 

Beach

0

TOWN PLAN BUDGET ALLOCATIONS

Contribution from          

Corporate Policy

2012/13 & 

2013/14

Later 

years

ProjectTown

Re-allocation of funds Projected 

over or 

underspend

CommentsDCC Sum 

remaining in 

budget

0 The scope for this project was widened from the original focus on the 

sailing club by the MAG and the Harbour Master is to attend a future 

meeting of the MAG to further develop the concept. As a consequence, 

30,000

Tudalen 191



Corwen Railway Phase II extension feasibility 

study

90.0 40.0 Rural Development Plan Lead Body to fund an economic case for Phase 2 

(approx cost 15-20K 100% funded through RDP). 

Improvements to derelict land near 

Royal Oak

10.0 4.0 Awaiting on cost code form Countryside on transfer of 8.5K, DCC 

environmental services getting cost on refurbishment of toilets. Awaiting on 

proposal for £4K Arts in Residency - invoice rec'd. Town Plan Champion 

wants to roll over underspent monies to developing Pavilion site.  Including 

any underspend on Gritter makeover. 

Contribution to Phase I station 

platform

100.0 20.0 18,426 1,574 0 Cyfenter to match fund - Total project cost £59,074 (DCC £18,426, ERDF 

£40,648)

Gritter garage makeover 10.0 10.0 0 10,000 0 Work to be done in Spring  Revised Cost - £5,448

Survey of community buildings 10.0 3.0 3,000 0 0 Total project cost £6,000.  Cadwyn to match fund.  Awaiting invoice. Paid 

18/12/2013 - £6k - Glyndwr University 

Contribution to future community 

building 

500.0 50.0 0 0 0

Match funding for Feasibility Study 

on Community Uses for redundant 

School buildings

5.0 0 5,000 0 Grant application to cadwyn submitted by Group. 

Youth Club Provision 3.0 0 3,000 Transfer of funding to Youth service early new year. 

Training & Business Support for 

development of new businesses

10.0 0 10,000 Possible linking to outdoor providers

Sub Total 720.0 95.0 50.0 25,426 69,574 0 95,000

Llangollen Contribution to pre-school building 30.0 0 30,000 0 Potential for Cyfenter to match fund, following meeting with CIC this has 

been re-assigned as Cadwyn match funding as unable to meet Cyfenter 

timescales.    Awaiting info from CIC

Contribution to Sports Association 

car park

30.0 30,000 0 0 Offer letter sent out 17.6.2013.  Signed and returned T&C 8.7.2013.  

Awaiting Claim from Sports association. 

Contribution to Chain Bridge 

restoration

180.0 20.0 14,500 5,500 0 Town & Community Councils & Heritage Lottery to match fund.  Offer letter 

sent out 25.9.2013, Upfront payment of £14,500 made on 16/12/13 

Contribution to stimulate 

construction of business units

1200.0 200.0 0 0 0

Engineer’s Report on feasibility of 

providing footway on dangerous 

stretch of A542

5.0 0 5,000 Initial meeting with Hughways to progress study.  

Valuation Report for Burial Ground 

in Llantysillio

0.5 0 500 Progressing with DCC Valuation & Estates - Initial meeting to be held in 

Janaury 2014. 

Purchasing gritter attachment for 

tractors (includes £500 for report 

and 5 years revenue costs)

13.0 0 13,000 Initial discussion held with highways. 

Sub Total 1380.0 98.5 200.0 44,500 54,000 0 98,500

Total for initial allocations 702.5 171,563 530,957 702,520

=

8.5k -  Climate Control 

Garden                    15k 

- Toilet refurbishment          

4k - Arts in Residency 

25k - matching for 

future programme

4,000 040,000

Tudalen 192



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Town and Area Plans  

2 December 2013 

 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 193



 

 

Town and Area Plans 
 

Contact: 
 

Tom Booty 
Economic & Business Development Manager 
 

Updated: 2 December 2013 
 
  

 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A strategic or service plan 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

The Town and Area Plans outline the needs and aspirations of Denbighshire's 
communities, identifies priority projects and initiatives to be progressed and 
allocates funding for their implementation. 
  

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes       

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

The Town and Area Plans have been developed initially from a desk -based 
needs assessment, but followed by a comprehensive consultation process that 
involved local Members, Community Councils, third sector organisations, and 
local businesses.  The projects and activities detailed in the plans have arisen 
from this process of research and consultation, and therefore should broadly 
reflect the aspirations of those communities and individual gropus within those 
communities. 
 
 

 
 

Tudalen 194



 

 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

The projects and actions arising from the Town and Area Plans are 
enhancements to current provision, and on this basis should have a positive 
impact on some of the protected characteristics.  The projects and activities 
identified within the Town and Area Plans are at a high level with further work on 
their development and justifcation required.  As these projects and initiatives are 
developed a specific Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken at the 
appropriate stage and with this a more detailed assessment of impact on 
protected characteristics undertaken. 
  

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

The projects and actions arising from the Town and Area Plans are 
enhancements to current provision, and on this basis will not have any 
disproportionate negative impact on any of the protected characteristics.  The 
projects and activities identified within the Town and Area Plans are at a high level 
with further work on their development and justifcation required.  As these projects 
and initiatives are developed a specific Equality Impact Assessment will be 
undertaken at the appropriate stage and with this a more detailed assessment of 
impact on protected characteristics undertaken. 
 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

No       

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
Yes Individual Equality Impact Assessments for specific projects or 

activities detailed within the Town and Area PLans will be 
developed at the appropriate stage to provide a more detailed 
understanding of, and action to address, any negative impact on 
the protected characteristics. 
 

Tudalen 195



 

 

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

      <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 2 December 
2013 

 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Tom Booty 02/12/13 
 
 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 196



  

 
Adroddiad i’r:    Cabinet 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   18 Chwefror 2014 
 
Aelod / Swyddog Arweiniol:  Y Cyngh. Julian Thompson Hill – Aelod 

Arweiniol dros Gyllid ac Asedau 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:   Bryn Williams 
 
Teitl:      Symud o Dŷ Nant 
 

 
1. Ynglŷn â beth mae’r adroddiad?  
 
1.1 Mae’r adroddiad yn amlinellu’r sefyllfa gyfredol mewn perthynas â symud o 

Swyddfeydd Tŷ Nant.  
 
2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  
 
2.1 Mae angen penderfyniad pa un a yw’r Cabinet yn cefnogi’r penderfyniad i 

symud o Dŷ Nant heb i ddefnydd arall fod wedi cael ei ganfod. 
 
3. Beth yw’r Argymhellion? 
 
3.1 Bod y Cabinet yn cefnogi ac yn cymeradwyo’r cynnig i symud o adeilad Tŷ 

Nant a’i gynnal a’i gadw mewn cyflwr saff a diogel a pharhau i farchnata’r 
adeilad ar gyfer ei waredu ar lesddaliad, tra’r ydym yn disgwyl i friff cynllunio 
gael ei ddatblygu i hwyluso’r cynllun datblygu hirdymor ar gyfer Safle Ffordd 
Nant Hall. 

 
4. Manylion yr adroddiad. 
 
4.1     Ar 30 Gorffennaf 2013 ac mewn perthynas ag adroddiad a oedd yn dwyn y teitl 
 ‘Adolygiad Swyddfeydd Gogledd Sir Ddinbych’, rhoddodd y Cabinet 
 gymeradwyaeth i symud o Dŷ Nant ar yr amod y doir o hyd i ddefnydd arall ar 
 gyfer yr adeilad. Rhoddodd y Cyngor gymeradwyaeth hefyd i gynnal ymarfer 
 marchnata i roi Tŷ Nant ar brydles yn y tymor canolig, ar y ddealltwriaeth, pe 
 na ellid dod o hyd i denant addas, y byddai’r mater yn cael ei gyflwyno i’r 
 Cabinet drachefn er mwyn iddo’i ystyried ymhellach (gweler y detholiad o’r 
 cofnodion yn Atodiad 1).  
 
4.2  Ym mis Medi 2013 cysylltodd y Gwasanaethau Eiddo ag asiant gosod 

masnachol er mwyn canfod faint o alw oedd am y math yma o eiddo ym 
Mhrestatyn. Rhoddwyd Tŷ Nant ar y farchnad agored yn ffurfiol gyda golwg ar 
ei osod yn y tymor canolig. Hyd yma ni fu unrhyw ddiddordeb ystyrlon. 

 
4.3 Ers mis Gorffennaf 2013 mae gwaith wedi cael ei wneud gan swyddogion yn y 
 Gwasanaethau Eiddo i ganfod defnyddiau eraill ar gyfer Tŷ Nant gan Gyngor 
 Sir Ddinbych. Mae’r tabl isod yn dangos y canfyddiadau; 

Eitem Agenda 10

Tudalen 197



  

 Opsiynau a Ystyriwyd Canlyniad 

 
Swyddfeydd 
 

 

• O ganlyniad i’r Rhaglen 
Foderneiddio barhaus, mae’r 
angen am y math yma o ddefnydd 
yn Nhŷ Nant yn lleihau. 

• Yn y deuddeng mis diwethaf ni 
chafwyd cais gan Wasanaeth am 
swyddfeydd yn ardal Prestatyn. 

 
Cyfleusterau Cyfarfod 
 

 

• Yn yr un modd â swyddfeydd, 
mae’r angen am gyfleusterau 
cyfarfod ym Mhrestatyn yn lleihau. 

• Cwblhawyd astudiaethau o’r 
defnydd o gyfleusterau cyfarfod 
presennol yn y gogledd ac maent 
wedi dangos na fyddai colli’r ddwy 
ystafell gyfarfod yn Nhŷ Nant yn 
effeithio ar y ddarpariaeth ar y 
cyfan. 

 
Cyfleusterau Hyfforddi 
 

 

• Nid oes hyfforddiant yn cael ei 
ddarparu o Dŷ Nant ar hyn o bryd. 

• Mae gan yr Awdurdod ddigon o 
gyfleusterau hyfforddi sydd wedi 
ennill eu plwyf ledled y sir ar hyn o 
bryd. 

• Ni chafwyd unrhyw gais gan 
Wasanaeth i leoli cyfleusterau 
hyfforddiant yn ardal Prestatyn. 

 
Ystorfa Gorfforaethol 
 

 

• Mae’r Ystorfa Gorfforaethol yn 
Rhuthun yn ddigonol ar gyfer 
anghenion yr awdurdod. 

• Nid yw cynllun ffisegol Tŷ Nant yn 
addas ar gyfer defnyddio’r adeilad 
fel ystorfa. 

 
 
 
4.4 Ym mis Tachwedd fe adleolodd y Gwasanaeth Desg Arian o Dŷ Nant i Lyfrgell 

newydd Prestatyn ac o ganlyniad nid oes gwasanaeth ar gyfer y cyhoedd 
bellach yn Nhŷ Nant. Mae gwaith yn mynd rhagddo gan; y Gwasanaethau 
Eiddo, TGCh, Adnoddau Dynol a’r Gwasanaethau perthnasol i ddatblygu 
cynllun adleoli ar gyfer y staff sy’n weddill fel a gytunwyd yn y Cabinet. 

 
 
 

Tudalen 198



  

5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 
5.1 Mae cysylltiad uniongyrchol rhwng rhesymoli’r Portffolio Swyddfeydd 
 Corfforaethol a Blaenoriaeth y Cyngor ar gyfer Moderneiddio, Effeithlonrwydd 
 a Chyflenwi Gwasanaethau’n Well. Mae’r Cynllun Corfforaethol yn datgan 
 “Byddwn yn gostwng cost gwasanaethau trwy ostwng nifer yr adeiladau 
 swyddfa, swm y teithio ar gyfer busnes a chostau eraill megis argraffu” 
 
5.2 Mae datblygiad posib safleoedd yng nghanol y dref ar y cyd â strategaethau 
 adfywio’n cyfrannu at flaenoriaeth y Cyngor i ddatblygu economïau lleol. 
 
6. Faint fydd yn ei gostio a sut fydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
 
6.1 Mae bras amcan o gostau adleoli wedi cael eu pennu trwy ymgynghori â’r holl 

wasanaethau yr effeithir arnyn i bennu’r anghenion, tra bo gwaith yn mynd 
rhagddo i bennu achos busnes terfynol. Mae’r costau dros dro fel a ganlyn; 

• Dodrefn newydd                                               £ 15,000     

• Ystorfa, cloeriau ac ati ar gyfer staff                  £ 5,000 

• Ceblau a chysylltiadau pyrth TGCh      £ 16,000 

• Costau trydan cysylltiedig                                 £   5,000 

• Costau symud ffisegol                                       £   4,000    

• Gwaith Adeiladu                                                £ 10,000 

• Lwfans Aflonyddu        £ 17,000 
 
                 Cyfanswm                                                                    £ 72,000       
 
                 Cronfa hapddigwyddiadau + 10 %                               £ 79,200      
 

Rhaid nodi bod y ffigyrau uchod yn seiliedig ar yr wybodaeth sydd ar gael ar 
hyn o bryd a’u bod wedi cael eu haddasu tuag i fyny i adlewyrchu’r senario 
gwaethaf. Rhagwelir na fydd y costau ar y cyfan yn uwch na chostau rhedeg 
blynyddol adeilad Tŷ Nant (Tua £88,000 y flwyddyn).  

 Bydd y costau symud yn cael eu hariannu o’r gronfa gwario i arbed i’w 
 gwneud yn bosib gwireddu’r arbedion yn 2014/15. 
 
6.2 £88,558 (gan gynnwys Ardreth Annomestig Genedlaethol) oedd cyfanswm 

costau rhedeg Tŷ Nant yn 2011/12 ac ar hyn o bryd mae ôl-groniad o waith 
cynnal a chadw gwerth £42,531. Pe bai’r Cyngor yn gadael yr adeilad byddai’n 
costio tua £10,000 y flwyddyn (heb gynnwys Ardreth Annomestig 
Genedlaethol) i’w gadw’n wag ac yn ddiogel, ar yr amod na fyddai costau 
anrhagweladwy h.y. difrod gan storm neu fandaliaeth a.y.b. £17,854 y 
flwyddyn yw’r ardreth ar hyn o bryd ond pe bai’n cael ei adael yn wag byddem 
yn gymwys ar gyfer rhyddhad 100% am y tri mis cyntaf, felly yn y flwyddyn 
gyntaf byddem yn arbed £65,168 ac yn y blynyddoedd dilynol y byddai’r 
adeilad yn dal yn wag byddem yn arbed £60,704. 

 
6.3 Rhagwelir mai tua £8,000 fydd y costau marchnata a bydd y briff cynllunio 

cychwynnol a’r gwaith dichonoldeb yn costio tua £10,000 ar gyfer y ddwy 
astudiaeth. Y Gwasanaethau Eiddo fydd yn cwrdd â chostau’r gwaith 
dichonoldeb. 

Tudalen 199



  

6.4 Y gwasanaethau yr effeithir arnynt yw: Gwasanaethau Oedolion; 
Gwasanaethau Plant; Gwasanaethau Tai; Refeniwiau a Budd-daliadau, 
Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a TGCh. Bwriedir canfod yr effeithiau manwl 
trwy ymgynghori â gwasanaethau a chymhwyso egwyddorion moderneiddio i 
feysydd cyflenwi gwasanaethau penodol. 

 
7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o’r Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb (EqIA) a 

gwblhawyd ar y penderfyniad? Dylid atodi’r templed EqIA wedi’i gwblhau 
fel atodiad wrth yr adroddiad. 

 

7.1 Ni ragwelir unrhyw effeithiau cadarnhaol nac anghymesur negyddol. Bydd 
unrhyw faterion yn cael eu canfod trwy ymgynghoriadau â staff a 
gwasanaethau ac yn cael eu dileu/lliniaru lle y bo’n bosib. EqIA wedi’i 
gynnwys yn Atodiad 2. 

 
8. Pa ymgynghoriadau sydd wedi cael eu cynnal gyda’r Pwyllgorau 
 Archwilio ac eraill?  
 

8.1 Mae’r cynigion wedi cael eu cyflwyno yng Ngrwpiau Ardal Aelodau’r Rhyl a 
Phrestatyn. Mae’r ymatebion wedi’u cynnwys yn Atodiad 3. 

 
8.2 Cynhaliwyd ymgynghoriadau cychwynnol gyda nifer o Benaethiaid 
 Gwasanaeth perthnasol (Gwasanaethau Oedolion, Gwasanaethau Plant a 
 Gwasanaethau Tai) ynghyd â staff sydd wedi’u lleoli yn Nhŷ Nant ar hyn o 
 bryd. Mae’r sylwadau/ymatebion wedi’u cynnwys yn Atodiad 3. 
 
8.3 Mae diweddariadau’n cael eu rhoi i Aelodau Prestatyn yn y Grwpiau Ardal 

Aelodau. 
 
9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
 

9.1 O ganlyniad i gynnydd parhaus gyda gweithio hyblyg, nid oes angen yr 
adeilad mwyach. Mae ymgeisiau i’w osod wedi bod yn aflwyddiannus, ac mae 
angen symud o’r adeilad. Mae symud o’r adeilad yn rhoi cyfleoedd eraill i’r 
Cyngor pan fo’r adeilad yn cael ei ystyried ochr yn ochr â safle gwag y llyfrgell 
a’r maes parcio. 

 
10. Pa risgiau sydd ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ni ei wneud i’w lleihau? 
 

10.1 Y risg mwyaf amlwg yw os yw’r adeilad yn aros yn wag tra bo cynllun busnes 
ar gyfer y safle cyfan yn cael ei lunio. Gallai’r rhain gynnwys; fandaliaeth, 
canfyddiad y cyhoedd am eiddo gan y Cyngor yn aros yn wag. 
Y camau y gallwn eu cymryd i fynd i’r afael â’r risg yw parhau â’r ymarfer 
marchnata ac ystyried unrhyw anghenion newydd gan CSDd am yr adeilad.  
 

10.2 Fel a nodir yn 6.2, mae risg o golli arbediad posib o tua £60,000 mewn costau 
rhedeg blynyddol. Ystyrir bod hyn yn risg gan y byddem yn cadw adeilad heb i 
ni fod wedi canfod defnydd gweithredol iddo. 

 
11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 

11.1 Adrannau 111,120,123 a 132 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 
 

Tudalen 200



Appendix 1 
 
9 NORTH DENBIGHSHIRE OFFICE ACCOMMODATION REVIEW  
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for Finance and Assets presented the 
report seeking Cabinet’s approval of the office rationalisation proposals for North 
Denbighshire together with the formulation of long term development plans. 
  
The report outlined the work undertaken in respect of the North Denbighshire Office 
Accommodation Review together with an outline of the strategic considerations and 
recommendations. Councillor Thompson-Hill elaborated upon the rationale behind the 
final proposals which involved the vacation of Prestatyn Ty Nant offices subject to 
alternative use being identified. Long term proposals included potential development for 
the Prestatyn site and a new office building in Rhyl. Reference was also made to the 
consultation exercise and concerns raised together with the responses thereto. 
Councillor Barbara Smith advised that the review was part of the modernisation strategy 
and highlighted the involvement of the Modernisation Board within the process and the 
importance of progressing with the proposals as soon as possible. 
  
Cabinet was pleased that progress was being made in reviewing assets and addressing 
the issue of surplus buildings. Members questioned various aspects of the office 
accommodation review process and findings in order to satisfy themselves that the final 
proposals presented the best way forward. In commenting on the report members 
expressed specific concern regarding the poor condition and high costs associated with 
6 – 8 Nant Hall Road. Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill and officers responded to 
members’ questions and comments as follows –  
acknowledged concerns regarding the poor condition and high cost of 6 – 8 Nant Hall 
Road detailing the reasons why it had not been included within the initial phase but 
would be addressed as part of the longer term proposals  

under current practice relocation expenses would be paid to affected staff who would 
travel further to work as a result of the proposals  

agreed that uncertainties surrounding the proposals could be unsettling for staff and if 
Cabinet approved the recommendations they would be progressed as soon as possible 
with sensitivity to staff and minimum disruption  

elaborated upon the role of Property Services, HR and ICT within the process to ensure 
a smooth transition and facilitate alternative working practices  

provided assurances regarding the leasing arrangements for Brighton Road whose 
landlord wished to retain the Council as tenant  
provided some indicative savings arising from the proposals in terms of operating and 
leasing costs but more definite figures would be produced following the marketing 
exercise and formulation of the business case.  
 
Councillor Hugh Irving considered Ty Nant an asset showing the Council’s commitment 
and presence in the town and raised concerns regarding the economic impact of the 
proposals. He felt it did not make business sense to continue to lease 64 Brighton Road 
when the Council owned Ty Nant outright and suggested that Brighton Road could be 
partially vacated and relocated to Prestatyn to reduce rental costs. He also expressed 
doubts about finding a tenant for Ty Nant and sought assurances that, if the proposals 
were approved, Ty Nant would remain in commission until a tenant had been found. The 
following responses were provided: 
  

Tudalen 201



assurances were given that Ty Nant would remain in commission until the marketing 
exercise had been undertaken to determine interest and value  

it was anticipated that, providing the Council was flexible, a tenant could be found quickly 
– however, if a tenant could not be found the matter would be brought back to Cabinet 
for further consideration  

it was submitted that staff based in Ty Nant did not contribute significantly to the town’s 
economy which would be mitigated in any event by securing a new tenant and potential 
significant investment from future development of the site  

the leasing of 64 Brighton Road represented good value for money.  
 
During debate it was accepted that the Council had too much office space and needed to 
reduce it in line with service delivery needs and in order to make cost savings. In light of 
the findings of the accommodation review the consensus was that there was no business 
case to retain Ty Nant and Cabinet supported the recommendations as set out in the 
report as the best option for rationalisation of office accommodation in the North of the 
county. 
  
RESOLVED that Cabinet – 
  
(a) approves the vacation of the Prestatyn Ty Nant offices (subject to alternative use 
being identified and implemented) as the preferred option (option 3 as outlined in 
paragraphs 4.7 – 4.9 as set out in the report) for office rationalisation in the North of the 
County;  
 
(b) approves the undertaking of a marketing exercise for the Prestatyn Ty Nant building 
on a medium term leasehold basis to facilitate the vacation of the building by 
Denbighshire County Council staff, and  
 
(c) approves the formulation of a Planning Brief to facilitate a long term development plan 
for the Prestatyn site outlined in red in Appendix 1 to the report and the development of a 
design brief and feasibility study for the provision of a new office building in Rhyl.  
 

Tudalen 202



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
North DCC Office Accommodation Review.  

  
28

th
 January 2014 

 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Tudalen 203



 

 
 

Vacation of Prestatyn Ty Nant 
 

Contact: 
 

David Lorey. Property 

Updated: 28/01/14 
  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A project proposal 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

Relocation of staff from Prestatyn offices to alternative accommodation within the 
existing office portfolio. 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes <If no, briefly summarise the reasons for this decision here, 
and skip ahead to the declaration at the end> 

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

Due to the nature of the service provided by the staff currently located in the Ty 
Nant building, there will be minimal disruption to service users - service provision 
is undertaken through home visits. Relocated staff will be accommodated in 
existing DCC accommodation already utilsed as office space. 
Initial staff consultation has taken place and issues recorded. The proposed 
relocations and accommodation allocations will be planned through further staff 
consultation to determine specific service and individual needs and accommodate 
where possible.  

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-

Tudalen 204



 

reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

None 

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

None. It is unlikley that the relocation from one office environment to another 
would create a negative impact. Any emerging issues will be identified through 
further staff consultation and eliminated or mitigated where possible. 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

No None identified or anticipated. 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
No       

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 28/01/14 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

David Lorey 28/01/14 

Tudalen 205



 

 
 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 206



Appendix 3 
 
Consultation Responses: 
 
Prestatyn Member Area Group: 
 

Response Issue Mitigation 

Detrimental economic impact on the Town 
Centre 

Alternative use to be secured for the building 
prior to vacation of DCC staff; 

Development opportunity for whole site 
represents a potentially significant level of 

inward investment. 

Cheaper to bring 6-8 Nant Hall Road back into 
use as office accommodation 

The building is unsuitable for modern office 
accommodation. There are equality issues, the 
maintenance backlog is significant and heating 
the building is uneconomical. Not economically 

viable. 

Questionable demand for office space within 
the town if not used by DCC 

The marketing exercise will determine this. 
Good quality commercial accommodation 
close to the town centre is in short supply – 
this has been notable when trying to relocate 
private businesses to facilitate the Prestatyn 

Library relocation project. 

Removes a DCC customer facing facility The use of the frontline customer facing 
facilities is low. The new Library will facilitate 

the customer service requirement. 

The building is capable of supporting front line 
staff 

The building is in the wrong location for core 
service need. This is Rhyl – which is why the 
64 Brighton Road building is so fully utilised 

The 64 Brighton Road building is leased (Circa 
£100K p/a lease cost), this can’t be cost 

effective 

The building represents the lowest cost per 
staff member of all the locations under 
consideration. The accommodation is of 

relatively poor standard, but extremely cheap. 
Negotiations with the landlord will be 

undertaken pending the development of a 
proposal for a new office building in Rhyl. 

Generally unacceptable to the Prestatyn 
Members (voted against 7 – 2) 

None – noted. 

 
Rhyl Member Area Group 
 

Response Issue Mitigation 

Need to ensure staff are not “shoe horned” in All teams will be consulted with (Ty Nant, 
Brighton Rd & Russell Hse) to determine 
needs. Principles of modernisation will be 
applied and a spatial efficiency of 30% is 
anticipated. This should be more than 

adequate to accommodate the Ty Nant staff. 
The H&S at Work regulations will apply and 
Corporate H&S will have an overview of all 

proposals. 

Car Parking could be an issue with the 
generation of additional visitors 

The service delivered is generally off site – 
staff parking pressures should be minimal and 
no additional visitors to the buildings are 

Tudalen 207



anticipated. DCC has no obligation to provide 
free car parking for staff and there are 

adequate car parking facilities within walking 
distance. 

 
Ty Nant Staff: 
 

Response Issue Mitigation 

Need to give clear messages about how it all 
fits together e.g. proposals re Ty Nant with 
mobile working pilot in Brighton Road 

Agreed – all proposed pilots and 
accommodation changes should be developed 

through the Modernisation Board. 

Some concerns from admin - seems to be 
about whether they might have to travel 

e.g. to Ruthin 

This will be determined by service need 
through consultation. 

Timescales i.e. when is move likely to 
happen x several enquirers 

To be determined – all staff will be kept 
informed through their management channels 

Having time to prepare- boxing up, sorting 
out technology, using opportunity to move 
from paper heavy environment. Need as 

much notice as possible 

Decluttering exercises will be arranged prior to 
moves. Service departments should be 

working toward more efficient ways of working 
irrespective of physical moves. 

some staff already work considerably from 
home and don’t experience problems 

N/A 

Have experience also of moving from paper to 
electronic files- v much in favour 

N/A 

What will mobile working look like? 
Contracts/Commissioning Team 

Need to have time, as a team, to 
think about what form of mobile 
working could work 
Different needs for different 
individuals ie some have space at 
home so OK, others have family at 
home which would interfere with 
work 
Whole of team will need to come 
together regularly to be able to 
bounce ideas off each other; team 
time is really important 
Questions about storage and where 
will all the paper go- was an issue 
about how personal files would work 
in flex office environment 
Carrying laptop around- weight- 
particular problem potentially in 
Brighton Road where no lift. Need 
lightweight technology 
How would confidentiality issues 
work if working from home- 
protecting individual details, details 
in invoices 
Concerns about loss of meeting 
rooms, needing to make sure teams 
have opportunities to meet 

 

These are service/individual specific needs 
which will be taken into consideration when 
developing the best service delivery and 

accommodation model. 
 

All subject to discussions with each service 
team. 

Tudalen 208



Need to make better use of community and 
church spaces- Trefnant and Llanrhaeadr 
given as examples- excellent local facilities 
on main road N/S- with good disabled 
access as have been refurbished with grant 

 

The Council does not need the levels of 
purpose built accommodation it currently 

utilises for office space – there is no need to 
utilise other space unless there is a specific 

geographical need. 

Will all staff go to Rhyl? To be determined by service needs. 

Issue from member of staff in Russell 
House- how to work through the issues of 
having fewer desks than people though 
accept the need to work out a solution 

 

Studies have shown that desk utilisation is, on 
average, below 50%. Where implemented, 
DCC teams are managing adequately with 

desk/staff ratios of 7 – 10. 
Analysing service needs will be key to 
determining desk/staff ratios per team. 

- Where is the business case esp bearing 
in mind good quality of Ty Nant cp 
Brighton Road? 

 

The business case is being developed. Ty 
Nant is not capable of accommodating 

sufficient numbers to facilitate rationalisation. 
The geographic location is also not crucial to 

service needs. 

Why not use Warren Drive? 
 

This was utilised previously – too expensive 
and part of the rationale for moving to Brighton 

Rd. 

Why use Brighton Road- poor 
quality, poor facilities, no disabled 
access, rats and infestations…..will 
there be improvements? 

 

Negotiations will be undertaken with the 
landlord to determine the best value solution 
for the Council – reduced rents allowing DCC 
to invest or market rent with the landlord 
undertaking improvements. All pending a 
feasibility study into a new office building in 

Rhyl 

What is evidence that there is 
demand for town centre 
development to  replace Council 
occupation 

Full development potential may take 3-5 years 
to be realised. However, this is not adequate 
justification for retaining a building which could 

be vacated and realise income. 

Car parking will be big issue in Rhyl- 
how will that be managed? 
 

No additional visitors to the buildings in Rhyl 
are anticipated – the Ty Nant building has low 

levels of customer service. There are 
adequate car parking facilities within walking 

distance. 

 

Tudalen 209



Tudalen 210

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Adroddiad i'r:              Cabinet  
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   18 Chwefror 2014 
 
Aelod/Swyddog Arweiniol:  Cynghorydd David Smith, Aelod Arweiniol y 

Parth Cyhoeddus  
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Steve Parker, Pennaeth Gwasanaethau  

Amgylcheddol 
 
Teitl:   Cymeradwyo Cynigydd o Ddewis, a'r ail Gytundeb Rhwng 
Awdurdodau - Prosiect Gwastraff Gweddilliol Gogledd Cymru (PTGGGC) 

1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  

Ym mis Chwefror 2008 rhoddodd y Cabinet ei gymeradwyaeth i Gyngor Sir 
Ddinbych fynd i bartneriaeth ffurfiol â phedwar cyngor arall yng ngogledd 
Cymru, i gaffael contract 25 mlynedd ar y cyd ar gyfer darparu cyfleusterau 
gwaredu gwastraff gweddilliol.  Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn ceisio cefnogi dau 
gam pwysig yn y broses. 

2. Beth yw’r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  

Er mwyn hwyluso'r broses gaffael, mae pob cyngor sy'n rhan o'r bartneriaeth 
wedi arwyddo i fyny i Gytundeb Rhwng Awdurdodau ffurfiol (IAA1). O dan y 
cytundeb hwn, rhoddwyd yr awdurdod i wneud penderfyniadau i Fwrdd y 
Prosiect a Pwyllgor y Prosiect, ond yn cadw nifer o benderfyniadau allweddol 
yn y cynghorau unigol.  Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn ymwneud â dau o'r materion 
a gadwyd, hy cadarnhad ynglŷn â’r cynigydd o ddewis terfynol, a 
chymeradwyo’r ail Gytundeb Rhwng Awdurdodau (IAA2). Mae'r adroddiad 
hwn yn darparu gwybodaeth sy'n caniatáu’r Cabinet i gymeradwyo gweithred 
(oedd) awgrymedig. 

3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 
a)  Gofynnwyd i aelodau gymeradwyo’r penderfyniad o gael Wheelabrator 
Technologies Inc (WTI) fel y cynigydd o ddewis ar yr amod y ceir deialog a 
thrafodaeth fanwl gyda WTI, bod WTI yn cyflwyno cais am gynnig Tendr 
Terfynol (CFT) sy’n cynrychioli gwerth am arian ar gyfer y bartneriaeth; a 
bod gwerthusiad ariannol, cyfreithiol a thechnegol manwl o gais CFT WTI i 
ddilyn a bod y bartneriaeth yn fodlon â’r cydbwysedd o risg arfaethedig gyda'r 
'Cytundeb Prosiect') 
b) Bod yr Aelodau’n rhoi awdurdod i Gyd Bwyllgor Gweddilliol Gogledd Cymru 
ar y Cyd i gymryd yr holl gamau angenrheidiol i symud y broses ymlaen gyda 
WTI o'r cam Cynigydd o ddewis hyd at orffen y broses Ariannol a dyfarnu 
contract.  
c) Ymrwymo i'r Bartneriaeth a'r Prosiect drwy fabwysiadu, ynghyd â'r  
4 cyngor arall, yr egwyddorion yn yr 2il Gytundeb Rhwng Awdurdodau 
sy'n adlewyrchu telerau allweddol y Cytundeb Prosiect i’r Prif Gyngor ei 
wneud â’r Cynigydd o Ddewis ar Ddyfarnu Contract.  
d) Dirprwyo awdurdod i'r Prif Weithredwr Arweiniol i gwblhau'r 2il  
Gytundeb Rhwng Awdurdodau ac i’r awdurdodau cyfansoddol ei arwyddo,   
a dosbarthu’r cytundeb terfynol i’r Swyddogion Monitro ar gyfer y 5 
Awdurdod er mwyn cymryd barn yr holl Awdurdodau cyfansoddol i ystyriaeth 

Eitem Agenda 11

Tudalen 211



a chyfeirio'n ôl at y Cydbwyllgor  i gymeradwyo unrhyw wyriadau perthnasol o  
egwyddorion y cytunwyd arnynt. 
e) Cytuno i arwyddo'r ail Gytundeb Rhwng Awdurdodau unwaith y bydd wedi’i  
gwblhau yn unol â'r drefn uchod 

4. Manylion yr adroddiad. 

4a) dethol cynigydd o ddewis. 
Wedi ymgymryd â’r broses caffael trwy "ddeialog cystadleuol".  Fel arfer 
ystyrir dau gynigydd a byddai hynny’n golygu gwneud penderfyniad ar ddad-
ddethol.  Fodd bynnag, yn achos prosiect NWRT, dyma’r ail gynigydd  yn 
tynnu’r cais yn ôl ym mis Ionawr 2013, gan adael y cynigydd presennol mewn 
sefyllfa monopoli.    

Ers i’r cynigydd arall dynnu'n ôl, mae'r tîm prosiect (a'r ymgeisydd sydd ar ôl) 
yn awyddus i ddangos bod y prosiect yn parhau i gyflawni gwerth am arian 
(GAA).  Mae'r ymgyrch gwerth am arian wedi arwain at nifer o newidiadau 
sylweddol i’r hyn a fwriedir ei gaffael.  Y canlyniad yn gyffredinol o'r 
newidiadau hyn yw bod y sefyllfa’n well i Sir Ddinbych, hy cymharu “cynnig” 
cytundeb IAA1 yn erbyn y canlyniad a ragwelir ar hyn o bryd (gweler 4b am 
fanylion).   

 Mae hynny'n bwysig, oherwydd o dan IAA1, roedd y cyngor o dan yr argraff 
mai dim ond os y bydd y pris yn “anfforddiadwy” y caniateir tynnu'n ôl o'r 
prosiect.  Ar ben hynny; nodwyd hefyd y byddai unrhyw gyngor a fyddai’n 
tynnu’n ôl o’u hochr nhw yn gorfod ad-dalu'r cynghorau sy'n weddill ar gyfer yr 
holl gostau canlyniadol hyd yma (yn debygol o fod yn sawl miliwn o 
bunnoedd). 

Mewn gwirionedd mae'r prosiect yn hollol fforddiadwy (gweler Atodiad Un).  Ar 
ben hynny, mae'n ymddangos bod yr achos busnes terfynol yn dangos gwerth 
gwirioneddol am arian.  Mae'r cwmni hefyd wedi bodloni gofynion arbenigwyr 
cyfreithiol, technegol, ac ariannol y bartneriaeth.   

O ganlyniad, mae'n ymddangos nad oes unrhyw reswm nawr pam na ddylai'r 
cynigydd sy'n weddill gael y "statws cynigydd o ddewis".     

4b) Cytundeb Rhwng Awdurdodau Rhif 2 

"Cytundeb i gaffael" yw IAA (Rhif 1), sy’n ymwneud â phopeth hyd at 
ddyfarnu’r contract terfynol. Mae IAA2 yn ymwneud â gweithredu’r contract ei 
hun, hy o’r cyfnod y dyfernir y contract a thu hwnt.  Mae drafft IAA2 yn cael ei 
gynnwys fel Atodiad i'r adroddiad hwn.  Mae'r cytundeb yn ddogfen gyfreithiol 
cymhleth sy'n ymwneud â phob agwedd o sut y rheolir y contract.  Mae'r 
nodweddion hanfodol fel a ganlyn: 

i) Y prif gyfleuster gwaredu gwastraff fydd ynni gwastraff o ffatri ym mharc 
diwydiannol Glannau Dyfrdwy, a weithredir gan Wheelabrator 
Technologies Ltd (WTI).   Telir am y gwaith dros gyfnod o 25 mlynedd 
drwy "ffioedd giât".   Yr un mecanwaith codi tâl a ddefnyddir gan bob 
cyngor. 

ii) Bydd ffioedd giât yn amrywio’n ôl y tunelli a drosglwyddir.  Mae 
posibilrwydd y bydd cynnig ar gael  i’r cynghorau o estyniad o 5 mlynedd 
arall. 

Tudalen 212



iii) Bydd Cyngor Sir y Fflint mynd i mewn i'r prif gontract gyda WTI, ac yna’n 
ail godi ffi ar y cynghorau eraill am eu gwasanaethau.  Cyflogir tîm 
bychan i wneud y gwaith hwn. 

iv)  O dan IAA1, cytunwyd ar egwyddor fod y cynghorau’n rhannu costau 
cludiant, hy rhwng y gwahanol orsafoedd trosglwyddo ym mhob sir a’r 
ffatri newydd.   Yn Sir Ddinbych defnyddir y gorsafoedd yn Rhuthun, a 
lleoliad (eto i'w benderfynu); y bwriad yw disodli'r safle tirlenwi yn 
Llanddulas.   

v) Bydd y cynghorau yn talu costau eu hunain mewn perthynas â 
gweithredu’r gorsafoedd trosglwyddo.  Mae'r egwyddor hon yn amrywiad 
ar yr egwyddor a nodir yn IAA1. Fodd bynnag, nid yw'n ffactor 
arwyddocaol yng nghyfrifiad gwerth am arian Sir Ddinbych.   Yn fras 
mae'n gost niwtral ar gyfer Sir Ddinbych. 

vi)  O dan IAA1 fe gytunodd y cyngor i ddarparu lleiafswm tunelledd 
gwarantedig o wastraff, a chodir ffi amdano, hyd yn oed os nad oedd y 
cyngor yn gallu ei gyflawni am ryw reswm.  Yn 1AA2 mae’r tunelledd a 
bennir yn is na IAA1.  Hynny yw, fod y sefyllfa wedi altro ar gyfer Sir 
Ddinbych. 

vii) O dan IAA1 mae'r atebolrwydd am y gost cludo ar y cyd yn llawer uwch 
nag yn IAA2. Unwaith eto, mae’n sefyllfa well i Sir Ddinbych. 

Ar y cyfan mae'r IAA2 yn cynnig gwell sefyllfa i’r cyngor na IAA1. Mae 
swyddogion technegol yn fodlon â'r prif nodweddion, ac mae'r cymalau 
cyfreithiol wedi eu drafftio i foddhad swyddogion cyfreithiol y cyngor.   Felly 
mae’r swyddogion yn argymell y dylid cefnogi’r drafft. 

Mae un eitem newydd arfaethedig yn IAA2 (heb ei gynnwys yn IAA1), hy 
"taliad er budd y gymuned".  Byddai'r arian yn cael ei wario ar brosiectau 
cymunedol lleol y cytunwyd arnynt.   Mae'r swm yn adlewyrchiad o’r ffaith bod 
Sir y Fflint wedi cynnig defnydd o'u tir yn rhad ac am ddim.  Dylai’r dull o 
ddosrannu taliadau (hy y cyfraniadau gan gynghorau unigol) fod ar sail “sawl 
tunnell a ddosbarthwyd”.  Dyma'r dull gorau ar gyfer Sir Ddinbych. Golygai fod 
derbyn IAA2 yn golygu derbyn y tâl.    

4c) Cymeradwyo’r gyllideb caffael sydd ar ôl  
 Mae costau caffael wedi rhagori ar y rhai a awdurdodwyd yn flaenorol o 
ganlyniad i oedi a ffactorau eraill. Felly, mae angen Cymeradwyo’r cais i 
ganiatáu gwariant ar drwydded rhwng Ebrill a Mehefin 2014 (cau’n ariannol), 
gan y byddwn yn rhagori ar y gyllideb IAA wreiddiol o 5% ac mae angen 
cymeradwyaeth gan bartner awdurdod i ragori ar hynny (manylion wedi eu 
hesbonio mewn adroddiad ar wahân - Atodiad 3). Mae'r ail argymhelliad yn 
adroddiad 1 yn cynnig pennu nenfwd ar gyfer y gwariant ar reoli contract yn y 
dyfodol o £359,000 y flwyddyn. Bydd cyfran Sir Ddinbych yn seiliedig ar y 
tunelli a ddosberthir yn y dyfodol, felly yn debygol o fod tua 11 i 13% o'r swm 
hwn (oddeutu £43,000 y flwyddyn ar y mwyaf). 
 

5. Sut mae'r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau 
Corfforaethol? 
Bydd y contract hwn yn helpu i gyflawni'r agenda cynaliadwyedd.  Bydd ynni’n 
cael ei adennill o’r gwastraff a fyddai fel arall yn mynd i safleoedd tirlenwi. 

Tudalen 213



 
6. Beth fydd yn ei gostio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau 
eraill? 
a) Mae cwmpas yr adroddiad hwn yn cael ei gyfyngu i ddethol cynigydd o 

ddewis, cefnogaeth i'r ddogfen drafft IAA2, a thalu costau caffael.   Fodd 
bynnag, mae'r achos busnes terfynol ar gyfer y prosiect yn dangos bod yr 
ateb a ddewisir yn rhatach na "busnes fel arfer".   

b)  Nod y contract yw gwaredu swmp o wastraff cartref felly nid oes unrhyw 
effaith uniongyrchol ar y cyhoedd o ran cydraddoldeb., ac nid oes unrhyw 
ffactorau bioamrywiaeth berthnasol.   Mae effeithiau Amgylcheddol y 
prosiect yn fuddiol, bydd ynni’n cael ei adennill o’r gwastraff a fyddai fel 
arall yn mynd i safleoedd tirlenwi. 

7. Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb (EIA) 
Nid oes unrhyw ganlyniadau uniongyrchol ar gyfer gwasanaethau a ddarperir 
i'r cyhoedd, neu ar y trefniadau gwaith ar gyfer staff y cyngor (gweler atodiad 
9).  
  
8. Pa ymgynghori sydd wedi digwydd?  
Swyddogion cyfreithiol Cyngor Sir Ddinbych wedi cymryd rhan gwbl 
weithredol yn y gwaith o ddrafftio'r cytundeb. Cynhaliwyd sesiwn anffurfiol yn 
hysbysu’r cyngor ar 4 Chwefror.  Mae’r Pwyllgor Craffu Partneriaethau wedi 
ystyried y mater ar 6 Chwefror 2014. Roedd yr aelodau’n hyderus bod y 
Prosiect wedi’i werthuso'n llawn ar bob lefel ac felly’n gadarn.  Roedd y 
Pwyllgor hefyd yn gefnogol o'r cais i ddirprwyo’r pwerau angenrheidiol i’r 
Cydbwyllgor i gynnal trafodaethau a'r holl drefniadau sydd eu hangen i allu 
dyfarnu'r contract. 
 
9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
Mae'r newidiadau i'r cynigion a wnaed ers i’r ail gynigydd dynnu’n ôl wedi 
arwain at gynnig ariannol gwell ar gyfer Cyngor Sir Ddinbych. Er y bydd y 
penderfyniad terfynol ar yr achos busnes terfynol yn destun adroddiad yn y 
dyfodol, mae'r achos busnes ar hyn o bryd yn dangos bod yr ateb arfaethedig 
yn rhatach na chost y gwaith presennol hefyd. Mae hyn yn cefnogi derbyn y 
ddau argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad hwn. 
 
10. Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w 
lleihau? 
Os byddai’r cyngor yn methu â mynd i gytundeb, byddai'r cynghorau eraill yn 
dioddef costau canlyniadol, a byddai Sir Ddinbych yn atebol amdanynt.  
Efallai y bydd y prosiect cyfan yn cael ei beryglu.    

 
11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad  

O dan Adran 2 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, hy hyrwyddo neu wella'r 
amgylchedd er lles yr ardal.  

 

Atodiadau 

1. Adroddiad IAA2  
2. Crynodeb o bapur IAA2 (papur Pinsent Mason)  

Tudalen 214



3. Drafft Ddiwygiedig o IAA2 
4. Polisi Diogelu Data (sy'n cyd-fynd â'r drafft IAA2)  
5. Adroddiad y Gyllideb (yn dilyn y papurau IAA2)  
6. Adroddiad Cynigydd o Ddewis (drafft ynghlwm) EITEM RHAN 2  
7. Adroddiad Gwerthuso ymgynghorwyr cyfunol (Atodiad A i'r Adroddiad 

Cynigydd o Ddewis) EITEM RHAN 2 
8. Crynodeb o'r Cytundeb Prosiect (Atodiad C i'r Adroddiad Cynigydd o 

Ddewis) EITEM RHAN 2 
9. Asesiad Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb  

Tudalen 215



Tudalen 216

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Appendix 1                                                                                
REPORT TO:      [INSERT RELEVANT COMMITTEE NAME]  
 
DATE:         [DATE] 
 
REPORT BY: PROJECT MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:   2nd INTER-AUTHORITY AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 For the INSERT RELEVANT COMMITTEE NAME to approve the key 

principles for the 2nd Inter-Authority Agreement for adoption by all 
constituent Authorities. 

 
1.2 To delegate authority to the Lead Chief Executive to finalise the 2nd 

Inter-Authority Agreement to be signed by all 5 Authorities. If there are 
to be any material departures from the agreed principles, in the 
finalisation of the Agreement, these would be referred back to the Joint 
Committee for approval. 

 
2.  BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The NWRWTP is currently governed by an Inter-Authority Agreement, 

signed by all partner authorities, which takes the partnership through to 
the stages of financial close and contract award.  Once these stages 
are reached a second Inter-Authority Agreement (IAA2) will be required 
to take the partnership through the subsequent stages: 

• seeking planning and environmental consents; 

• construction;  

• managing the contract for the operation of the facility over the 
life of the contract; and 

• concluding the contract on expiry. 
 
2.2 During late 2013 and January 2014 discussions have been held with 

the officer groups advising and supporting the project (legal, financial 
and technical) on the content of the second Inter Authority Agreement. 
At the Joint Committee on 29th January 2014, agreement was reached 
on the remaining key areas. The key principles that have been agreed 
at the Joint Committee are set out in the table at 3.2 below. 

 
2.3 A summary of the IAA2 principles produced by the project’s legal 

advisors, Pinsent Masons, is highlighted within the draft second Inter 
Authority Agreement appendix 1 (separate document) and as set out in 
a Report at appendix 2 (separate document). It is intended that these 
reflect the key terms of the Project Agreement that Flintshire as Lead 
Authority will be entering into with the Preferred Bidder on Contract 
Award. 

Tudalen 217



 
 
 
3. CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Appendix 1 is still a working draft of the IAA2, which makes provision 

for: 
 

• the principles and key objectives of the agreement 

• the duties of the Lead Council ( Flintshire) and Partners  

• decision making processes  

• site issues  

• termination events and consequences  

• roles of the Project Board and Joint Committee  

• the commitments and liabilities of each partner constituent 
council and their contributions.  

       
It now contains all of the agreed principles recommended by the Joint 
Committee with a view to the detail behind those principles to now be 
finalised. A completed document will then be sent to all 5 Authorities 
before Contract Award and the Lead Authority Chief Executive will take 
into account the observations of all constituent Authorities. 

 
The constitutional and governance arrangements of the second IAA are 
intended to reflect those of the first IAA:- namely that the Project Board 
and Joint Committee decisions are to be by majority vote and the 
matters reserved to the individual Councils are to be unanimous 
decision; the quorum for the Project Board would be a senior officer 
from each participating Council in person (or if in an emergency by 
telephone) and for the Joint Committee, the quorum would be 
attendance by one member (voting or non-voting member) from each 
participating Council.  

 
 
3.2 The table below summarises the key areas of cost sharing principles 

and other significant issues within the IAA2 which were put to the Joint 
Committee on the 29th January 2014 for recommendations. Points 14 
and 15 of that table were additional recommendations made by the 
Joint Committee for incorporation into the IAA2. 

 
Liabilities of the Councils are set out at paragraph 6 of Pinsent Mason’s 
Report at appendix 2. On termination liability essentially follows the 
cost sharing agreed principle, that if any liabilities/termination payments 
are incurred whilst the facility is operational then those costs are to be 
borne by the Councils pro rata per the tonnage delivered. If however, 
the facility has not yet been built then those costs are to be borne 
equally. If the Councils were not equally at fault for termination and one 
Council bears more responsibility for that event then that Council shall 
bear a greater proportion for any payment due. For any other defaults, 
then the responsible Council will pay this or if there is more than one, 

Tudalen 218



will share this accordingly. Any Council withdrawing or being 
terminated will have to pay in accordance with the Liability Report set 
out at Schedule 7 of the IAA2.This reflects the Liability Report 
appended to the 1st Inter-Authority Agreement. 
 
 

 Issue Agreement at Project Board 

1. 1. A general 
overarching 
agreement on 
cost sharing.  
 

a) Where any costs apply to a period when the facility 
is operational that they are split pro rata based on  
the tonnage delivered (i.e. actual not forecast) subject 
to paragraph 14 of this table below, and 
 
b) In any other situation the costs are to be divided 
equally between the councils 
 
See 3 below for after the site has been operational 
and is being wound down. 
 

2. What happens 
to the site on 
early 
termination?  
 

The cost sharing principle above is to be applied to 
any early termination payments and liabilities. 
 
In relation to the facility site: 
 
a) If the facility had been built and still had the 
potential to be used, then it should be made available 
to the Partnership for the duration of the term of the 
proposed Project Agreement. The rationale for this is 
that on early termination, the Partnership as a whole 
will have invested in the capital and operating 
expenditure incurred up to the termination date. If 
Flintshire alone were to have the benefit of a “working 
facility”, then this would be inequitable and there 
would have to be some payment by them to offset 
any valuation of the facility which would probably be 
punitive to meet. 
 
b) If the facility had not been built i.e. because of 
planning failure, then there would be no obligation to 
tie the site to the project. 
 
c) If the facility was built but not operational or had a 
negative value (i.e. on a re-tender for a Contractor 
default situation) then all Councils should contribute / 
share any liability such as decommissioning costs or 
alternatively share any additional costs of making the 
facility operational for the term of the Project 
Agreement. 
 

Tudalen 219



3. Decommission
ing costs.  
 

These are to be divided equally at expiry. However, if 
Flintshire were to opt to continue using the facility 
solely it would take on the decommissioning liability in 
full. A share of these costs is to be included in the 
liability report for any Council withdrawing or being 
terminated early.  
 
For reference current estimates provided by AMEC 
are that decommissioning could cost in the region of 
£1.1 million (with a 10% contingency to be built in) 
and could take up to 6 to 12 months to deal with the 
Planning and EIA requirements and a potential further 
12 to 18 months for the actual decommissioning itself 
(subject to any complications that could arise). 
 

4. Contract 
Management 
Costs   
 

These are to be divided equally up to operation of the 
Facility and thereafter pro rata based on the tonnage 
delivered as per the general cost sharing principle. 

5. The 
Community 
Benefit Fund 
 

This is to be paid into by all 5 Councils pro rata based 
on the tonnage delivered 

6. Loss of WG 
funding 
 

Any loss of funding for which the Contractor is not 
responsible will be shared and paid by the Councils 
pro rata based on the tonnage delivered 

7. New build 
Waste 
Transfer 
station (if 
required) 
 

This is to be divided equally as a capital expenditure. 
The parcel of land provided is to revert to the 
donating authority if owned by them, or if funded by 
the partnership then the councils would jointly decide 
what happens to that facility at the end of the contract 
term and how its proceeds/assets are to be 
distributed. 
 

8. Decision 
making 
 

All decisions to be made by the Project Board and 
Joint Committee are to be by majority vote with any 
matters that are reserved to Individual Councils to be 
made unanimously by all Councils (save for when 
one Council has defaulted in which case the four non-
defaulting Councils only, would have to make any 
decision unanimously ie to terminate the defaulting 
Council). 
 

Tudalen 220



9. Extension of 
the Project 
Agreement 
 

This is to be a matter that all five councils are 
required to agree on (without allowing for any Council 
to withdraw at this stage) and if the decision cannot 
be unanimous then any Council(s) who do wish to 
continue to use the facility can agree to do so outside 
of the Project Agreement. Those councils could 
decide to agree a new procurement amongst 
themselves. 

10. Cost Sharing 
during 
operation 
(waste 
treatment, 
haulage / 
transport and 
“excess 
payments”) 
 
 
 
 

a) Each authority is bound by its own Guaranteed 
Minimum Tonnage and the price bands as charged 
by the contractor. 
 
b) Payments to the contractor for the treatment and 
transport of waste will be based on the actual 
tonnages delivered subject to not exceeding the 
forecast tonnages. 

c) Where tonnage delivered by an authority exceeds 
the forecast tonnages, the authority delivering such 
excess tonnage shall be solely responsible for the 
costs associated with the treatment and transport of 
such tonnage. 

d) Where the tonnages are below the guaranteed 
minimum tonnage the guaranteed minimum tonnage 
as applicable to each authority will be deemed to be 
the tonnage delivered by the relevant authority. 

e) In the event where the tonnages delivered are 
below the guaranteed minimum tonnage, the 
authority not meeting its requirements will pay on the 
basis of the guaranteed minimum tonnage and this 
will result in an 'excess payment' to be managed as 
per paragraph 12.a) below. 

Tudalen 221



11. Cost of 
managing 
waste prior to 
haulage and 
treatment (e.g. 
waste transfer 
stations) 

a) Where WG do not provide a grant for that element, 
each authority would be responsible for their own 
transfer station operating costs, with no recourse to 
other authorities;  

 
b) Where WG do provide a grant for that element, all 
partner authorities will pay in to the Partnership an 
agreed amount per tonne for the waste being 
managed within each authority area, and all partner 
authorities receive an equitable share of the payment 
back, with the addition of the Welsh Government 
Grant. The amount paid “in” to the partnership per 
tonne will be an amount agreed between the partner 
authorities (the starting point for the discussion would 
be the rate identified by the market testing / 
procurement exercise for the intended Conwy transfer 
station; this will ensure that the amount is based on a 
market rate). 
 

12.  Benefit 
Sharing 

a) The application of the overall contract level 
tonnage limits on an authority level could result in an 
overall overpayment by the authorities in total 
compared to the payment to the contractor and such 
excess will be termed as 'excess payments'  but is in 
actuality arises as a result of the benefits of being in a 
partnership. Such “Excess” payments should be 
placed in a reserve to be used to fund project 
expenses, or be shared on a periodic basis or at the 
end of the project utilising the percentages used to 
allocate the tonnage bandings. This will be 
administered by the Joint Committee at its discretion. 
 
b) The Excess Payments will be reviewed after the 
first year of the contract to take into account the 
likelihood of amounts that may regularly be accrued 
on an annual basis. 
 
c) Dealing with additional income and windfall gains: - 
the project has the potential to deliver increased 3rd 
party income over and above that guaranteed by the 
contractor. Examples include electricity and 3rd party 
waste income. There could also be circumstances 
where windfall payments also arise (for instance if 
there are electricity  or heat generation subsidies  not 
envisaged at this time that subsequently come to 
pass).  Such income is to be split pro rata per tonne 
delivered. 

Tudalen 222



13. Ability to 
“trade” 
tonnage 
allocations. 

The project will be operational for 25 years, and 
during this time it is likely that proportions of wastes 
arising will change between authorities during the 
project period.  The IAA2 is to have a method 
included within it to ensure some flexibility to allow 
readjustment on the tonnage bands to more closely 
reflect any changes in the proportions of waste 
arisings between authorities. 
 

14. Commitment 
to Guaranteed 
Minimum 
Tonnages/Pay
ments 

The Councils agree to make a commitment to make 
payments for not less than the Guaranteed Minimum 
tonnages of Contract Waste to the Contractor each 
year, whether they deliver their share of the Minimum 
Tonnage or not. Their share will be set out in an 
appendix to the 2nd Inter Authority Agreement.  

15. Additional air 
quality 
Monitoring 

The Councils agree that there will be additional air 
quality monitoring undertaken for the period of 1 year  
from the date of service commencement at the 
discretion of the Joint Committee .Costs will be 
shared on a pro rata basis per actual tonnages 
delivered. Thereafter the said monitoring will be 
subject to review by the Joint Committee." 

 
 
4.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1  To commit to the Partnership and the Project by adopting, along with 

the other 4 councils, the principles in  the 2nd Inter-Authority Agreement 
which reflect the key terms of the Project Agreement to be entered into 
by the Lead Council with the Preferred Bidder on Contract Award.  

 
4.2  To delegate authority to the Lead Chief Executive to: 

• finalise the 2nd Inter-Authority Agreement for signing by the 
constituent authorities; 

• circulate the finalised agreement to the Monitoring Officers of all 5 
Authorities  

• take into account the views of all constituent Authorities and to refer 
back to the Joint Committee for approval any material departures 
from the agreed principles. 
 

4.3  To agree to sign the 2nd Inter Authority Agreement once it has been 
finalised in accordance with the above procedure 

 
 
5.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are financial implications and risk for all five constituent 

authorities as a consequence of entering into an Agreement. These are 
summarised in this and accompanying reports. 

 

Tudalen 223



 
6.  ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT 
 
6.1  None 
 
 
7.  ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
7.1  None  
 
 
8.  EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 
8.1  None 
 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  None 
 
 
10. CONSULTATION REQUIRED 
 
10.1  None 
 
 
11. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 
11.1  A number of meetings have taken place of the Technical Officers’ 

Group, Finance Officers’ Group and the Legal Officers’ Group to 
discuss the key issued raised in the draft IAA2,  at the Project Board on 
12 December 2013, and 16 January 2014 and the Joint Committee on 
29 January 2014. 

 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
 
Background Documents: 
 
None 
 

Contact Officer: Louise Pedreschi (FCC) 
Gareth Owens (FCC) 
Steffan Owen (NWRWTP) 

 

Tudalen 224



48775605.3\MW16  

Appendix 2 

REPORT ON THE  

DRAFT SECOND INTER-AUTHORITY AGREEMENT 

Note: This report is intended to provide a high level summary of the current draft form Inter 
Authority Agreement. The report includes details of issues that have been discussed and 
agreed in principle by the Project Board at a meeting on the 16 January 2014. 

The Inter Authority Agreement is currently only in draft form. In the event that the Partnership 
wish to change any of the principles set out below, or wish to include any additional project 
specific partnering elements, then this can be accommodated.   

The Partnership should also note that this report is only intended to be a high level summary of 
the content of the draft Inter Authority Agreement and should not be relied upon in lieu of the 
Inter Authority Agreement itself. 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 At the beginning of the procurement, Conwy County Borough Council, Denbighshire 
County Council, Flintshire County Council, Gwynedd Council and the Isle of Anglesey 
County Council (together the "Partnership") agreed to work together in a partnering 
relationship to jointly procure a residual waste treatment facility and deliver residual 
waste treatment services in the project known as the North Wales Residual Waste 
Treatment Project (the "Project"). The Partnership signed the first Inter Authority 
Agreement on 24 June 2010, to regulate working arrangements and decision making 
among each of the Councils during the procurement of the Project up to financial 
close.  

1.2 The Partnership has agreed that Flintshire County Council will take on the role as 
'Lead Council' and will sign and enter into all the legal documents to the Project on 
behalf of the Partnership; the main document being the agreement with the 
Contractor, involving the design, construction, installation, commissioning, operation 
and maintenance of the facility for the treatment of residual waste (the "Project 
Agreement"). Following the commencement of the Project Agreement, the rights, 
liabilities and obligations of each Council set out in the first Inter Authority Agreement 
will be superseded by the rights, liabilities and obligations set out in the second Inter 
Authority Agreement (the "IAA"). 

1.3 As the Lead Council will take on the full contract responsibility on behalf of the 
Partnership, it requires assurances that each Council will meet its obligations in a 
timely manner to ensure that the Lead Council is never exposed to unreasonable 
contractual liabilities. Also, each Council needs assurance that they will receive all the 
contractual benefits that they are entitled to – even though they have not directly 
signed a contract with the Contractor. This is one of the primary objectives of the IAA. 

2. PURPOSE OF THE SECOND INTER-AUTHORITY AGREEMENT 

2.1 The overarching purpose of the IAA is to ensure that the five Councils are able to work 
effectively together in true partnership and with the Contractor to get maximum benefit 
from the Project. The IAA tries to balance the potential conflicts: that the Lead Council, 
as the Project Agreement counter-party, is not over-exposed in terms of risk and 
liability; and that the other Councils get their fair share of the contractual rights and 
benefits. The IAA is based on the principles of fairness and partnership working and is 
intended to manage the interests of all the Councils equitably. 

2.2 The IAA attempts to reflect, where appropriate, the Project Agreement between the 
Partnership and the Contractor. 

Tudalen 225



48775605.3\MW16  

2.3 The IAA accommodates a structure to ensure that the Lead Council isn’t exposed to 
disproportionate liability and that the contractual rights and obligations appropriately 
flow down to all the Councils. 

2.4 At its most basic level, having signed the Project Agreement, the Lead Council is 
committed to the delivery of all the Partnership's waste and the full payment for its 
treatment. The Contractor, for its part, is obliged to accept and treat the waste. 

2.5 Given this commitment, the IAA needs to ensure that each Council is committed to 
deliver its waste to the Contractor and pay to the Lead Council the correct amount in 
advance of the Lead Council having to pay the Contractor. 

2.6 The IAA sets out the duties of the Lead Council. These duties include (but are not 
limited to);  

2.6.1 acting on behalf of the Councils for the management and supervision of the 
Project Agreement,  

2.6.2 acting under the direction of the Joint Committee; 

2.6.3 being responsible for liaising with the Contractor, and  

2.6.4 entering into any contracts that may be required (for example, the 
appointment of consultants) and liaising with Welsh Government. 

2.7 The IAA also regulates such things as:- 

2.7.1 Decision making; 

2.7.2 Termination and Withdrawal from the IAA;  

2.7.3 Flexibility to Contract Changes; and  

2.7.4 Liabilities of the Councils. 

3. DECISION MAKING 

3.1 Contract Manager 

3.1.1 The Partnership will appoint a suitably qualified Contract Manager for the 
day-to-day management of the Project. The Contract Manager will be 
responsible to all the Councils but will be employed by or seconded to the 
Lead Council and shall report to the Project Board. The Contract Manager 
shall act as the Authority's Representative (as such term is defined in the 
Project Agreement.) 

3.1.2 The Contract Manager will have sufficient authority to make day-to-day 
decisions and will liaise on a regular basis with key personnel at each 
Council and with the Project Board and the Joint Committee. 

3.1.3 For those decisions with a budgetary impact, the Contract Manager will have 
authority up to an annual financial threshold of [£          ], over which the 
decision would have to be escalated to the Project Board. It is noted 
however, that regardless of financial threshold, the Contractor Manager has 
the ability to refer any matter to the Project Board. 

3.2 Project Board 

3.2.1 The Councils shall form the Project Board for the purpose of the day-to-day 
management and the implementation and monitoring process and to carry 

Tudalen 226



48775605.3\MW16  

out those specific Project Tasks as indicated in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks) 
of the IAA and any matters referred to the Project Board by the Contract 
Manager. 

3.2.2 The Project Board will have authority to decide on a matter at a quorate 
meeting of the Project Board by those present and entitled to vote in respect 
of a matter that will have (or is reasonably expected to have) an annual 
financial threshold of up to [£    ], over which the matter would need 
to escalate to the Joint Committee, provided always that the Project Board 
has the ability to refer any matter of any financial value to the Joint 
Committee to decide. 

3.2.3 Any such decision of the Project Board will be binding on all the Councils. 

3.3 Joint Committee 

3.3.1 The Councils shall form the Joint Committee, (which shall supersede and 
replace the Joint Committee formed pursuant to the fist Inter Authority 
Agreement), to carry out the functions set out in Schedule 2 (Joint 
Committee Terms of Reference) of the IAA and to carry out the Project 
Tasks as indicated in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks). 

3.3.2 The proposed annual threshold for Joint Committee matters is up to [£     ]. 
Any decisions to be made on a matter in excess of these parameters shall 
be referred as a 'Matter Reserved To The Councils' and decisions would 
have to be taken by each individual Council.  

3.3.3 The Joint Committee may determine that any Joint Committee Matter or 
Project Board Matter may be referred back to each Council for a decision as 
a Matter Reserved to the Councils and/or make a decision to delegate any 
matter to the Project Board for decision. 

3.4 A general principle of decision making under the Project Board and the Joint 
Committee structure is that decisions should be by majority voting. For Matters 
Reserved To The Councils, such decisions shall not be implemented unless approved 
by all of the Councils on a unanimous basis.  

3.5 It is agreed that there is no requirement for Council Lead Officers to be included within 
the IAA and the necessity and appointment of Project Officers for the purposes of the 
Project will be for the Joint Committee to determine from time to time as required. 

4. TERMINATION, WITHDRAWAL AND EXTENSION 

The IAA shall continue in full force and effect from the date upon which the IAA is 
entered into by the Partnership, until the earlier of the following dates: 

(a) all the Councils agree in writing to its termination; or 

(b) there is only one remaining Council who has not withdrawn from 
the IAA; or 

(c) the date falling six (6) months after the expiry or earlier termination 
of the Project Agreement (subject to any agreed period of time in 
respect of the decommissioning of the Site as noted below). 

4.2 Termination 

4.2.1 The IAA makes provision for terminating one of the Councils in the event of 
an unresolved breach of a Council's obligations under the IAA. The decision 

Tudalen 227



48775605.3\MW16  

to terminate the participation of a Council shall be treated as a Matter 
Reserved To The Councils. 

4.2.2 The defaulting Council would be liable to the other Councils for any 
increased cost and losses suffered as a result of the default and agreed 
pursuant to a Liability Report (as defined in the IAA), prepared by the Lead 
Council and agreed by the Joint Committee. 

4.3 Withdrawal 

4.3.1 It is possible for a Council to withdraw from the Project if it chooses. Any 
Council wishing to withdraw from the Project shall provide written notice to 
the other Councils.  

4.3.2 The withdrawing Council would be liable to the other Councils in accordance 
with the Liability Report as prepared by the Lead Council and agreed by the 
Joint Committee. 

4.3.3 If the Lead Council is the withdrawing Council then the Lead Council shall be 
required to novate each of the Contract Documents (including the Project 
Agreement, Independent Certifier's Appointment, Parent Company 
Guarantee and the Lease of the Site) to the new lead council selected by the 
remaining Councils.  

4.4 Extension 

4.4.1 The Project Agreement contains an option for the Councils to extend the 
Contract Period by a period of up to five years. It is agreed in principle that 
this will be a Matter Reserved To The Councils and decided by way of a 
unanimous decision. 

5. FLEXIBILITY TO CHANGE 

5.1 The IAA reflects the flexibility embedded in the main Project Agreement to 
accommodate any variations under the Project Agreement (whether the proposed 
variation is required due to a change in law or a contract change required by one or 
more of the Councils or the Contractor or any other matter affecting the Project which 
may have an equivalent effect). 

5.2 The Councils agree to be bound by the obligations on the Lead Council set out in 
Clause 43 (Authority and Contractor Changes) and Schedule 21 (Change Protocol) of 
the Project Agreement.  

5.3 The Councils will work with the Contractor to achieve the best value solution for the 
Project.  

5.4 If the Councils decide to support a proposed variation under the Project Agreement, 
the Lead Council will seek an Authority Change (as defined in the Project Agreement) 
with the Contractor in the Project Agreement, and where the proposed Authority 
Change is agreed to have a mutual benefit to the Project, the costs of such proposed 
Authority Change shall be shared between the Councils. Where the Authority Change 
does not have a mutual benefit, the Council seeking the change in the Project 
Agreement shall bear responsibility for the payment of the costs of the Authority 
Change. 

5.5 It is noted that with the recent publication of the Williams Commission Report and on 
the understanding that Flintshire County Council and Wrexham County Council, 
Denbighshire County Council and Conwy County Council, and Gwynedd Council and 
the Isle of Anglesey County Council are to potentially amalgamate over the next 
couple of years, the Councils acknowledge that any new "successor Council" following 

Tudalen 228



48775605.3\MW16  

any such amalgamation shall automatically succeed the original Councils for the 
purposes of the IAA. However, it is further acknowledged by the Councils that any 
amalgamation shall not have the ability to automatically alter the Administrative Area 
(as defined in the Project Agreement), and the only way for the Councils to amend this 
(so as to capture the geographical area of any new "successor Council" for the 
purposes of the Project) shall be to implement a variation under the Project 
Agreement by way of an Authority Change as noted above. 

6. LIABILITIES OF THE COUNCILS 

6.1 General Indemnities 

6.1.1 The Lead Council shall indemnify each of the Councils against any losses, 
claims, expenses, actions, demands, costs and liability suffered, to the 
extent arising from any wilful default, wilful breach or negligent act or 
omission by the Lead Council of its obligations under the Contract 
Documents (as defined under the IAA (including the Project Agreement and 
the IAA). 

6.1.2 Each of the other Councils (acting severally), shall indemnify the Lead 
Council against any losses, claims, expenses, actions, demands, costs and 
liability suffered, to the extent arising from any wilful default, wilful breach or 
negligent act or omission by a Council of its obligations under the IAA. 

6.1.3 The Councils agree that the amount to be paid to the Lead Council shall be 
borne by each of the Councils to the extent that they were responsible, 
however, in the event that responsibility is shared between two or more 
defaulting Councils, then the amount to be paid will be divided between 
those Council's responsible in such proportions as the Joint Committee may 
determine. 

6.1.4 The Councils shall ensure that adequate insurance cover is effected and 
maintained in respect of any liabilities they may have in the event of any 
neglect or default on their part. 

6.2 Early Termination  

6.2.1 The Councils' liability on early termination of the Project Agreement shall be 
defined by reference to the Lead Council's obligation to pay compensation 
on early termination to the Contractor under the Project Agreement. 

6.2.2 The Councils shall be liable (and shall indemnify each other) for equal 
proportions of the termination sum payable to the Contractor following an 
early termination of the Project Agreement where the early termination 
occurs during the works period of the Project prior to completion of the 
Facility. If termination occurs when the Facility is operational then liability 
shall be determined on a pro rata basis in respect of the actual tonnage 
delivered by each of the Councils. 

6.2.3 If the Councils are not equally at fault for such early termination, the 
Councils agree that the Council or Councils whose acts or omissions gave 
rise to the termination shall be liable for a greater proportion of the 
termination sum or all of the termination sum. 

6.2.4 It is noted that the Lead Council shall not be entitled to issue a notice of 
voluntary termination of the Project Agreement unless such action has been 
approved by all of the Councils as a Matter Reserved To The Councils. 

 

Tudalen 229



48775605.3\MW16  

7. SITE AND DECOMMISSIONING 

7.1 Upon expiry of the Project, the Site shall be retained by Flintshire County Council. 
However, as noted above, in the event of a Lead Council termination or withdrawal 
from the IAA, then the Site will transfer to the new Lead Council (as selected by the 
remaining Councils) for the duration of the Project and upon expiry of the Project the 
Site shall then return to Flintshire County Council.  

7.2 It is agreed in principle that on early termination of the Project if the Facility is 
operational then the Partnership should agree appropriate arrangements to continue 
the use of the Facility for the remainder of the 25 years. If however the Facility has not 
been built (due to eg. a planning/permitting failure) then the Site shall be retained by 
Flintshire County Council and there shall be no further obligation for the Site to be 
utilised for the purposes of the Project. If the Facility has been partly built but is not yet 
operational then the Councils shall agree to discuss and decide upon appropriate 
arrangements and the Councils shall equally share liability in respect of any costs. 

7.3 Upon expiry of the Project, the cost of decommissioning will be split equally between 
the five Councils, unless Flintshire County Council (in its absolute discretion) elects 
not to undertake decommissioning of the Site, in which case, Flintshire County Council 
shall be solely liable for any future decommissioning costs. 

7.4 It is noted that the cost of decommissioning the Site should be included in the Liability 
Report as a payment to be made by any withdrawing or terminated Council. 

8. COMMUNITY BENEFIT FUND 

8.1 The Councils have agreed in principle to payments in respect of a Community Benefit 
Fund. Each of the Councils shall contribute towards the fund and the payments shall 
be determined on a pro rata basis in proportion to the tonnage provided by each of the 
Councils. 

9. WELSH GOVERNMENT FUNDING 

9.1 It is agreed in principle that in the event that Welsh Government funding is withdrawn 
from the Project then the Councils shall be required to cover the lost Welsh 
Government funding on a pro rata basis in proportion to the actual tonnage provided 
by each of the respective Councils. 

10. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT COSTS 

10.1 During the works period of the Project up until the Facility being completed and 
operational, the Contract Management Costs associated with the Project shall be split 
equally between the Councils. During the operational period of the Project the 
Contract Management Costs shall be on a pro rata basis and payments will be 
proportional to the actual tonnages delivered by each of the Councils. 

11. NEW WASTE TRANSFER STATION 

11.1 It is agreed in principle that the costs of building a new Waste Transfer Station will be 
a capital expenditure to be split equally between each of the five Councils. 

11.2 If it is determined that the new Waste Transfer Station shall be built on a site that is to 
be provided by Conwy County Council then upon expiry or termination of the Project 
the site will be retained by Conwy County Council. If however, the Partnership jointly 
fund and provide a site on which to build the new Waste Transfer Station, then upon 
expiry or early termination of the Project the IAA will contain provisions which shall 
allow the Councils to agree at the time how they would like to deal with the site and 
the new Waste Transfer Station. 

Tudalen 230



1 
44267940.7\gh01 

Appendix 3 
DATED 2014 

(1) CONWY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

(2) DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

(3) FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

(4) GWYNEDD COUNCIL 

(5) ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL  

SECOND INTER-AUTHORITY AGREEMENT 
in relation to the joint procurement of  

a Residual Waste Treatment Facility pursuant to  
the North Wales Residual Waste Partnership Agreement  

 
 

 

DRAFT 
 
 
 

 
The Draft IAA is subject to a cross referencing and definitions check. The 
Agreement will need to be further monitored and updated in line with the final 
agreed form Project Agreement. 

 

 
 

Tudalen 231



 

44267940.7\gh01 

CONTENTS 

Clause Page 

1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 5 

2 COMMENCEMENT, DURATION AND TERMINATION 13 

3 PRINCIPLES AND KEY OBJECTIVES 15 

4 DUTIES OF THE LEAD COUNCIL AND OTHER COUNCILS 17 

5 DECISION MAKING 19 

6 JOINT COMMITTEE 20 

7 ANNUAL BUDGET 22 

8 PROJECT BOARD 23 

9 PROJECT OFFICERS 25 

10 BUSINESS PLAN AND WORK PROGRAMME 25 

11 SITES AND DECOMMISSIONING 26 

12 PAYMENTS 27 

13 ACCOUNTS 30 

14 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 31 

15 LIABILITY OF THE COUNCILS 32 

16 WITHDRAWAL 34 

17 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 35 

18 DATA PROTECTION 36 

19 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION 37 

23 COUNCILS' OBLIGATIONS FOLLOWING EXPIRY OR EARLIER 
TERMINATION 40 

24 POLICIES 41 

25 CONFIDENTIALITY AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 41 

26 CONTRACTS (THIRD PARTY RIGHTS) 42 

27 NOTICES 42 

28 GOVERNING LAW 43 

29 ASSIGNMENTS 43 

30 WAIVER AND COSTS 43 

Tudalen 232



 

3 
44267940.7\gh01 

31 ENTIRE AGREEMENT 44 

32 COUNTERPARTS 44 

33 RELATIONSHIP OF COUNCILS 44 

34 MITIGATION 44 

35 STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITIES 44 

36 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (CONTRACTS) ACT 1997 44 

37 VARIATIONS 45 

38 SEVERABILITY 45 

SCHEDULE 1 – PROJECT TASKS 46 

 SCHEDULE 2 - JOINT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 56 

 SCHEDULE 3 - PROJECT BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 61 

 SCHEDULE 4 - ADDRESSES OF THE COUNCILS 62 

 SCHEDULE 5 - ANNUAL BUDGET 63 

 SCHEDULE 6 - ACCOUNTING PERIODS 64 

 SCHEDULE 7 - LIABILITY REPORT 65 

 SCHEDULE 8 - SITES 67 

 SCHEDULE 9 - PAYMENT PROPORTIONS 68 

 

Tudalen 233



 

4 
44267940.7\gh01 

THIS AGREEMENT is made on 2014 

BETWEEN 

(1) CONWY COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL of Bodlondeb, Conwy, North Wales, LL32 
8DU ("Conwy Council"); 

(2) DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL of Environmental Services, Kinmel Park Depot, 
Bodelwyddan, Denbighshire, LL18 5UX ("Denbighshire Council"); 

(3) FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall, Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6NB 
("Flintshire Council"); 

(4) GWYNEDD COUNCIL of Council Offices, Shirehall Street, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 
1SH ("Gwynedd Council"); and 

(5) ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL of Council Offices, Llangefni, Anglesey, 
LL77 7TW ("Isle of Anglesey Council") 

(together referred to as the "Councils" and individually as a "Council") 

BACKGROUND 

(A) The Councils have agreed to work together in a partnering relationship to jointly 
procure a residual waste treatment facility and deliver residual waste treatment 
services (the "Solution") in furtherance of the objectives of the North Wales Residual 
Waste Treatment Partnership (the "Partnership") and the project known as the North 
Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project (the "Project"). 

(B) The Councils (pursuant to the powers conferred on them by Sections 51 and 55 of 
The Environmental Protection Act 1990, Section 19 of the Local Government Act 2000 
and all other enabling powers) entered into the first Inter-Authority Agreement on 24 
June 2010 (the "First Inter-Authority Agreement") to formalise their respective roles 
and responsibilities in relation to the joint working arrangements for the procurement 
of the Project and the appointment of Flintshire Council as Lead Council in carrying 
out the procurement in accordance with the terms of the Outline Business Case and 
the common decision made by each Council to approve the affordability envelope for 
the Project and commence the procurement. 

(C) The Councils acknowledge that the First Inter-Authority Agreement regulated the 
procurement of the Project up to Financial Close.  Pursuant to the First Inter-Authority 
Agreement, the Councils have agreed to enter into this second Inter-Authority 
Agreement (the "Agreement") which will set out the respective rights and obligations 
of each Council in relation to the implementation and operational phases of the 
Project. 

(D) The Councils have agreed that the Lead Council shall enter into a contract (the 
"Project Agreement") with [Name of Contractor]

1
, (Company No. [                    ]), a 

private sector contractor, of [                    ] (the "Contractor") involving the design, 
construction, installation, commissioning, financing, operation and maintenance of the 
Facilities and the provision of the Services (including the Interim Services and the 
Commissioning Services). 

(E) Following the successful entry into the Project Agreement, the Councils have agreed 
to enter into this Agreement to formalise their respective roles and responsibilities in 
relation to the joint working arrangements for the operational phase of the Project 
following financial close and the appointment of Flintshire Council as Lead Council. 

                                                      
1
 Details to be included when confirmed in respect of the Project Agreement. 

Tudalen 234



 

5 
44267940.7\gh01 

(F) The Councils acknowledge that this Agreement sets out the basis on which risks and 
liabilities are apportioned between the Councils in relation to the implementation and 
operational phases of the Project. Such agreement is intended to reflect the terms of 
the Project Agreement. 

(G) The Councils agree to work together in the implementation and contract management 
of the Project Agreement and acknowledge that all decisions relating to the Project 
and the operation of the Project Agreement shall be made in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement and shall be implemented by the Lead Council under the 
Project Agreement for and on behalf of itself and the other Councils. 

(H) The Councils wish to enter into this Agreement and implement the Project pursuant to 
the powers conferred on them by sections 51 and 55 of the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990, sections 19 and 20 of the Local Government Act 2000, and all other 
enabling powers.  

(I) Under Section 113 of the Act the Councils may enter into an agreement with each 
other for the placing at their disposal the services of officers employed by them. 

(J) By virtue of Section 111 of the Act, each of the Councils has power to do anything 
which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of any of 
its functions. 

(K) By virtue of Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 substituted by the Local 
Government and Public Involvement Health Act 2007, each of the Councils has a duty 
to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. 

(L) By virtue of Section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000, each of the Councils has 
power to do anything that it considers is likely to achieve the promotion or 
improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being of its area. 

(M) The Councils have agreed to establish and participate in a joint committee (whose 
remit is presently limited to the Project but may be extended to cover other activities 
by agreement) to facilitate the delivery and management of the Project from the date 
of financial close of the Project when the Project Agreement and supporting 
documentation is completed. 

(N) The Councils acknowledge that this Agreement shall be certified for the purposes of 
the Local Government (Contracts) Act 1997. 

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 

[DN: Definitions to be reviewed and updated.] 

1.1 In this Agreement and the Recitals, unless, the context otherwise requires the 
following terms shall have the meaning given to them below:- 

"AB Accounts" has the meaning given in Clause 14 (Accounts) 

"Accounting Period" means those periods set out in Schedule 6 (Accounting 
Periods) as may be amended from time to time in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement 

"Act" means the Local Government Act 1972 

"Allocated Site" means a site (or sites) offered to the Project by a 
Council; 

Tudalen 235



 

6 
44267940.7\gh01 

"Annual Budget" means the sum set out in Schedule 5 (Annual Budget) 
which represents the upper limit of the financial 
threshold calculated by the Project Board for each 
Council's annual contribution to the necessary funding 
of the Lead Council to discharge its functions on behalf 
of all the Councils under this Agreement as managed 
by the Project Board, notified to the Joint Committee 
and approved by each Council in respect of this 
Project (and the Councils acknowledge that the Annual 
Budget does not include the Unitary Charge payment 
made under the Project Agreement) 

"Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or a 
public or bank holiday in England and Wales 

"Chair" means the chair of the Joint Committee (duly 
appointed pursuant to paragraph 11 of Part 2 of 
Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference)) or 
the Project Board (duly appointed pursuant to Clause 
8.4 (Project Board) (as the case may be)) 

"CIWM" means the Chartered Institute of Wastes Management 

"Commencement Date" means the date of this Agreement 

"Confidential Information" means all know-how and other information whether 
commercial, financial, technical or otherwise relating to 
the business, affairs or methods of all or any Council, 
which is contained in or discernible in any form 
whatsoever (including without limitation software, data, 
drawings, films, documents and computer-readable 
media) whether or not marked or designated as 
confidential or proprietary or which is disclosed orally 
or by demonstration and which is described at the time 
of disclosure as confidential or is clearly so from its 
content or the context of disclosure 

"Contract Documents" means the Project Agreement, the [Collateral 
Warranties, the Independent Certifier's Appointment 
and the Parent Company Guarantee, the Haulage 
Sub-Contract (each as defined in the Project 
Agreement)]

2
 and any other document entered into 

between the Lead Council and the Contractor or an 
Affiliate of the Contractor in respect of the Project 

"Contract Manager" means the person appointed to manage the Project  

"Contract Procedure Rules" means the Lead Council's contract procedure rules 

"Contractor" Is the term used to define the Contractor in the Project 
Agreement 

"Conwy's Payment 
Proportion" 

has the meaning given in Clause 12 (Payments) 

"Core Policies" means those policies set out at Schedule 13 
(Authority's Policies) of the Project Agreement 

                                                      
2
 List to be reviewed in line with the final solution. 

Tudalen 236



 

7 
44267940.7\gh01 

"Cost Sharing Formula" means, when the Councils are responsible for the cost 
of any item and payment is due from the Lead Council 
to the Contractor, that costs shall be shared between 
each of the Councils in the proportions set out in Part 
1 of Schedule 9 (Payment Proportions) (and 
subsequently reconciled on an annual basis) 

"Council Procedure Rules" means the Lead Council's procedure rules 

"Counternotice" has the meaning given in Clause 2.2.2 (Breaches of 
this Agreement and Remediation) 

"Decision Period" means the period of [fourteen (14) Business Days]
3
 

from the date of the Liability Report or such other time 
as is unanimously agreed by all the Councils 

"Project Officer" has the meaning given in Clause 9 (Project Officers) 

"Deductions" means the deductions imposed by the Lead Council 
pursuant to Schedule 4 (Payment Mechanism) of the 
Project Agreement 

"Default Interest Rate" means two per cent (2%) above the base rate of 
Barclays Bank plc 

"Default Notice" has the meaning given in Clause 2.2.1 (Breaches of 
this Agreement and Remediation) 

"Defaulter" has the meaning given in Clause 2.3.1 (Termination) 

"Denbighshire's Payment 
Proportion" 

has the meaning given in Clause 12.8 (Payments) 

"Dispute" means any difference or dispute between the Councils 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement 
and/or the Project  

"DPA" means the Data Protection Act 1998 

"Due Date" has the meaning given in Clause 12.7 (Payments) 

"EIR" has the meaning given in Clause 19 (Freedom of 
Information and Environmental Information) 

"EU Procurement Rules" means the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 

"Facility" means the waste management facility (or facilities) 
procured as the Solution under the Project designed 
for processing residual waste, waste being defined in 
the Waste and Emissions Trading Act 2003 

"Final Business Case" or 
"FBC" 

means the final business case for the Project, 
prepared by the Councils and subject to the Council's 
delegated approval before submission to the Welsh 
Government for funding to support the Project 

                                                      
3
 Time period to be agreed by the Councils. 

Tudalen 237



 

8 
44267940.7\gh01 

"FoIA" has the meaning given in Clause 19 (Freedom of 
Information and Environmental Information) 

"Gwynedd's Payment 
Proportion" 

has the meaning given in Clause 12.9 (Payments) 

"Intellectual Property" means any and all patents, trade marks, trade names, 
copyright, moral rights, rights in design, rights in 
databases, know-how and all or other intellectual 
property rights whether or not registered or capable of 
registration and whether subsisting in the United 
Kingdom or any other part of the world together with all 
or any goodwill relating to them and the right to apply 
for registration of them 

"IP Material" means the Intellectual Property in the Material 
 

"Isle of Anglesey's Payment 
Proportion" 

has the meaning given in Clause 12.10 (Payments) 

"JC Unresolved Matter" has the meaning given in Clause 6.3 (Joint 
Committee) 

"Joint Committee" shall have the meaning given to it in Clause 6.1 (Joint 
Committee) being the joint board of members of the 
Councils with delegated power to discharge the 
functions of the relevant Council as provided for in this 
Agreement in relation to the Project established under 
the provisions of Part VI of the Act 

"Joint Committee Meeting" means a meeting of the Joint Committee duly 
convened in accordance with Clause 6 (Joint 
Committee) 

"Key Facility" means the key residual waste treatment facility 
procured as part of the Solution under the Project 

"LAS" means the Landfill Allowance Scheme (LAS) 
Regulations (Wales) 2004 

"LAS Allowances" means the annual allowances for each local authority 
pursuant to the LAS 

"Lead Council" means the Council appointed under Clause 4 (Duties 
of the Lead Council and Other Councils) as the lead 
administering authority for the Project whose duties 
are set out in this Agreement 

"Lead Finance Officer" means the person so appointed from time to time by 
the Lead Council to represent the interests of the 
Councils in respect of financial matters of the Project 
and to ensure the provision of regular update reports 
are provided to the Project Board from time to time and 
who shall be called the Lead Finance Officer reporting 
to the Project Section 151 Officer 

Tudalen 238



 

9 
44267940.7\gh01 

"Liability Report" means a report prepared by the Lead Council (or such 
other Council nominated under Clause 2.3.4(b) 
(Termination) in the event that the Lead Council is a 
Defaulter or Clause 16.3 (Withdrawal) in the event that 
the Lead Council issues the Withdrawal Notice) acting 
reasonably setting out the financial and resource 
commitments of the relevant Council under Clause 
2.3.4(b) (Termination) upon termination or Clause 16.6 
(Withdrawal) upon withdrawal including the items set 
out in 7 (Liability Report) 

"Local Authority" means a principal council (as defined in section 270 of 
the Act) or any body of government in Wales 
established as a successor of a principal council 
 

"Market Value" means the best price at which the Allocated Site in 
question might reasonably be expected to have been 
disposed of unconditionally for cash consideration at 
the relevant time assuming:- 

(a) a willing seller; 

(b) that prior to the relevant time there has been a 
reasonable period for the proper marketing of 
such Allocated Site and for the agreement of 
price and terms for completion of the disposal of 
such Allocated Site; 

(c) the state of the market, levels of values and other 
circumstances are on any earlier assumed date 
of exchange of contracts the same as at the 
relevant time; 

(d) the relevant Council has good and marketable 
title to such Allocated Site; 

(e) all necessary consents for any building or other 
works at such Allocated Site have been obtained 
and such Allocated Site can be lawfully used; 

(f) any damage to such Allocated Site caused by 
any insured risk has been made good; 

 (g) that where the Project (or one of the Councils in 
furtherance of the Project) has made an 
investment into improving an Allocated Site 
(whether by obtaining planning permission or 
other permits or necessary consents, regardless 
of whether they are used or capable of being 
used for the Project, or otherwise) to confer an 
advantage on the value of such Allocated Site 
compared to its pre-Project value then such 
enhancement shall be taken into account, 

Tudalen 239



 

10 
44267940.7\gh01 

 and otherwise taking into account of the actual 
circumstances as shall exist at the time including the 
results of any site investigation survey, ground 
conditions survey or ground contamination survey to 
identify any pre-existing abnormal issues or 
contamination, 

provided further that for the purposes of calculating 
valuation to determine whether proposed Allocated 
Site disposals under the terms of the Act any Council 
willing to dispose of its land at less than Market Value 
as established under the RICS Valuation Standards 
will have regard to the Local Government Act 1972: 
General Disposal Consent (Wales) 2003 
 

"Material" means all data, text, graphics, images and other 
materials or documents created, used or supplied by a 
Council in connection with this Agreement (unless 
before the first use or supply, the Council notifies the 
other Councils that the data, text supplied is not to be 
covered by this definition) 
 

"Matter Reserved To The 
Councils" 

means those actions, matters and/or functions as 
defined in Clause 5 (Decision Making) 

"Model Procedure" means the Centre for Dispute Resolution Model 
Mediation Procedure 

"Non-Defaulting Councils" has the meaning given in Clause 2.3.1 (Termination) 

"Notice of Acceptance" has the meaning given in Clause 2.2.2 (Breaches of 
this Agreement and Remediation) 

"Notice of Dispute" has the meaning given in Clause 2.2.2 (Breaches of 
this Agreement and Remediation) 

"Performance and 
Improvement Plan" 

means the plan to be prepared and updated as and 
when necessary by the Contract Manager indicating 
any anticipated Authority Changes under the Project 
Agreement, major milestones and activities, and 
resources required in relation to the Project, to be 
presented annually to the Project Board in accordance 
with Clause 10 (Business Plan and Work Programme); 

"Personal Data" means personal data as defined in the DPA 

"PB Unresolved Matter" has the meaning given in Clause 8 (Project Board) 

"Project Board" has the meaning given to it in Clause 8 (Project Board) 

"Project Board Meeting" means a meeting of the Project Board duly convened 
in accordance with Clause 8 (Project Board) 

"Project" means as defined in Recital (A) 

Tudalen 240



 

11 
44267940.7\gh01 

"Project Agreement" means the contract for the preferred Solution to 
dispose of the Councils' residual waste to be entered 
into by the Lead Council (acting on behalf of itself and 
the Councils) and the Contractor in connection with the 
Project 

"Project Section 151 Officer" means the person so appointed by the Lead Council 
(as their officer appointed pursuant to section 151 of 
the Act) as the officer responsible for the proper 
administration of the financial affairs under the Project 
and who shall manage the Lead Finance Officer and 
collate regular reports on Project accounting matters 
(provided that for the avoidance of doubt each 
Council's own officer appointed pursuant to section 
151 of the Act shall be entitled to attend Project Board 
Meetings and Joint Committee Meetings from time to 
time as non-voting members pursuant to Clauses 8 
(Project Board) and 6.18 (Joint Committee) 
respectively) 

"Project Tasks" means as defined in Clause 4.1 (Duties of the Lead 
Council and other Councils) being the administrative 
tasks as set out in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks) as may 
be amended from time to time by the Councils in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement 

"Solution" means as defined in Recital (A) 

"Statutory Officer" means each Council's head of paid service, monitoring 
officer (both as defined pursuant to the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989) and Chief Finance 
Officer (section 151 officer) as defined in the Act 

"Termination Sum" means any sum payable for Project assets by the 
Lead Council to the Contractor as compensation on 
termination caused due to Lead Council default or 
voluntary termination or relevant discharge terms paid 
due to the Lead Council acting ultra vires, Contractor 
default on a no retendering basis (fair market 
valuation), Contractor default due to breach of the 
refinancing provisions, force majeure, uninsurability 
consequences or corrupt gifts and fraud early 
termination of the Project Agreement 

"Vice-Chair" means the vice-chair of the Joint Committee (duly 
appointed pursuant to paragraph 10 of Part 2 of 
Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference)); 
and 

"WG" means the Welsh Government. 

1.2 The principles set out in Clause 1.1 above shall be borne in mind and applied so far as 
appropriate in the interpretation of this Agreement and in the resolution of any dispute 
under this Agreement.  

1.3 Interpretation 

In this Agreement, except where the context otherwise requires:- 

1.3.1 each gender includes all genders; 

Tudalen 241



 

12 
44267940.7\gh01 

1.3.2 except as where expressly defined within the Agreement, all words and 
expressions used throughout this Agreement shall have the same meaning 
as given under the Project Agreement; 

1.3.3 the singular includes the plural and vice versa; 

1.3.4 a reference to any clause, sub-clause, paragraph, Schedule, recital or annex 
is, except where expressly stated to the contrary, a reference to such clause, 
sub-clause, paragraph, schedule, recital or annex of and to this Agreement; 

1.3.5 any reference to this Agreement or to any other document shall include any 
permitted variation, amendment or supplement to such document; 

1.3.6 any reference to legislation (including subsidiary legislation), determinations 
and directions shall be construed as a reference to any legislation, 
determinations, directions and statutory guidance as amended, replaced, 
consolidated or re-enacted; 

1.3.7 a reference to a public organisation (to include, for the avoidance of doubt, 
any Council) shall be deemed to include a reference to any successor to 
such public organisation or any organisation or entity which has taken over 
either or both of the waste disposal functions and responsibilities of such 
public organisation; 

1.3.8 a reference to a person includes firms, partnerships and corporations and 
their successors and permitted assignees or transferees; 

1.3.9 any reference to a requirement for "consent" or "approval" shall be taken to 
be the prior written consent or approval of the relevant body or person; 

1.3.10 the schedule, clause, sub-clause and (where provided) paragraph headings 
and captions in the body of this Agreement do not form part of this 
Agreement and shall not be taken into account in its construction or 
interpretation; 

1.3.11 words preceding "include", "includes", "including" and "included" shall be 
construed without limitation by the words which follow those words; 

1.3.12 any reference to the title of an officer or any of the Councils shall include any 
person holding such office from time to time by the same or any title 
substituted thereafter or such other officer of the relevant Council as that 
Council may from time to time appoint to carry out the duties of the officer 
referred to; and 

1.3.13 in this Agreement, save where otherwise provided, references to amounts 
expressed to be “indexed” are references to such amounts, multiplied by: 

Index1 

Index2 

1.3.14 where "Index1" is the value of RPIX most recently published prior to the 
relevant calculation date and "Index2" is the value of RPIX on [       ]. 

1.4 Schedules 

The Schedules to this Agreement form part of this Agreement. This Agreement and its 
Schedules shall be read and taken together. In the event of any inconsistency or 
conflict between these terms and conditions in this Agreement and the contents of any 
of the Schedules these terms and conditions shall prevail. 

Tudalen 242



 

13 
44267940.7\gh01 

2. COMMENCEMENT, DURATION AND TERMINATION 

2.1 Duration of Agreement 

2.1.1 Subject to Clause 2.1.2 this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect 
from the Commencement Date until the earlier of the following dates:- 

(a) all the Councils agree in writing to its termination; or 

(b) there is only one (1) remaining Council who has not withdrawn 
from this Agreement in accordance with Clause 16 (Withdrawal); or 

(c) the date falling six (6) months after the expiry or earlier termination 
of the Project Agreement. 

2.1.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of Clause 2.1.1, Clause 17 (Dispute 
Resolution) of this Agreement shall continue in respect of any Dispute 
arising prior to the expiry of this Agreement until the date upon which such 
Dispute has been finally agreed or determined.  

2.1.3 The Councils agree that following the Commencement Date the rights, 
liabilities and obligations of each Council set out within the First Inter-
Authority Agreement shall be superseded by the rights, liabilities and 
obligations set out in this Agreement.  

2.2 Breaches of this Agreement and Remediation 

[DN: The process and time limits for dealing with failures to comply with this 
Agreement should be discussed and agreed between the Councils] 

2.2.1 At any time the Chief Executive of any of the Councils (the “First Council”) 
may serve a notice on one of the other Councils (the “Other Council”) a 
notice (the “Default Notice”), alleging that the Other Council has failed to 
comply with its obligations under this Agreement, setting out any suggested 
remedial action and any damage which the First Council has or is likely to 
suffer as a result of the alleged failure. 

2.2.2 A Council in receipt of a Default Notice shall have [ten (10) Business Days] 
(or such longer period as agreed between the Parties (acting 
reasonably)),within which to serve on the Chief Executive of the First Council 
who served the Default Notice a “Counternotice”, setting out in respect of 
every matter contained in the Default Notice proposals for the remediation of 
the alleged failure including a proposed timescale in which the remediation 
will be completed and making good any loss which the First Council has 
suffered or may suffer as a result of the failure or the reasons why that 
alleged failure is disputed. 

2.2.3 Within [ten (10) Business Days] (or such longer period as agreed between 
the Parties (acting reasonably)) of receipt of a Counternotice, the Chief 
Executive of the First Council shall send to the Chief Executive of the Other 
Council a notice (the “Notice of Acceptance”) of any proposals contained in 
the Counternotice in so far as those proposals are accepted by the First 
Council, and may send a notice (the “Notice of Dispute”) of any proposals 
contained in the Counternotice insofar as those proposals are not accepted 
and setting out in respect of each proposal which is not accepted by the First 
Council why it is considered to be unacceptable. 

2.2.4 Where any proposal in a Counternotice is accepted in a Notice of 
Acceptance, the Other Council shall implement that proposal as soon as 
reasonably practicable. 

Tudalen 243



 

14 
44267940.7\gh01 

2.2.5 Where any matter is contained in a Notice of Dispute, it shall fall to be dealt 
with under the disputes procedure set out in Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution). 

2.3 Termination of Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council 

2.3.1 Without prejudice to any other rights or remedies, this Agreement may be 
terminated in relation to any Council ("Defaulter") by the other Councils 
("Non-Defaulting Councils") acting unanimously in giving written notice to 
the Defaulter effective on receipt where the Defaulter breaches any of the 
provisions of this Agreement and in the case of a breach capable of remedy 
fails to remedy the same within [sixty (60) Business Days] (or such other 
period as agreed by the Councils) of being notified of each breach in writing 
by the Non-Defaulting Councils and being required to remedy the same.  

2.3.2  The Councils acknowledge that a decision to terminate the participation of a 
Council shall be treated as a Matter Reserved To The Councils. 

2.3.3 If this Agreement is terminated in accordance with Clause 2.1 (Duration of 
Agreement), Clause 2.3.1 (Termination of Participation of a Partner Council 
or Lead Council), save for the obligations set out in [Clause 11 (Sites)], 
Clause 23 (Councils' Obligations Following Expiry or Earlier Termination), 
Clause 25 (Confidentiality and Announcements) and Clause 2.4 (Effects of 
Termination of the Lead Council), the Councils shall be released from their 
respective obligations described in this Agreement

4
. 

2.3.4 The Councils acknowledge and agree that: 

(a) the Project has been modelled on the basis of participation by the 
Councils and that there are considerable economic benefits to be 
achieved as a result of such joint working; and  

(b) accordingly, in the event that this Agreement is terminated in 
relation to any Council pursuant to Clause 2.3.1 (Termination of 
Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council) such Defaulter 
shall, subject to Clause 23 (Councils' Obligations Following Expiry 
or Earlier Termination), be liable to the Non-Defaulting Council or 
Councils for their consequential loss as set out in a Liability Report 
issued to the Defaulter within [fourteen (14)] days of the notice of 
termination (such Liability Report being prepared by the Contract 
Manager and provided to all the Councils which shall be discussed 
and agreed by the Joint Committee at its next meeting or a 
specially convened meeting if the next meeting falls more than two 
(2) weeks after the issue of the Liability Report). The Non-
Defaulting Councils shall have a duty, acting reasonably, to 
mitigate any losses which they suffer due to the financial and 
resource implications set out in the Liability Report. 

(c) pursuant to Clause 23 (Councils Obligations Following Early 
Termination of the Project Agreement), if a Defaulter causes the 
early termination of the Project Agreement, such Defaulter shall be 
liable to the other Councils in accordance with Clause 
[                    ] and the Liability Report (prepared in accordance 
with Clause [                    ] above) shall reflect such liabilities;  

(d) any amounts payable by a Defaulter set out in a Liability Report 
shall be paid by the Defaulter within [[     ] Business Days]

5
 

                                                      
4
 To draft out and list any continuing obligation/survivorship clauses. 

5
 Time period to be agreed. 

Tudalen 244



 

15 
44267940.7\gh01 

following agreement of the Liability Report by the Joint Committee 
or determined under Clause 2.8.5; and 

(e) any failure by the Joint Committee to agree the amounts payable 
as set out in the Liability Report within [    ] Business Days

6
 shall be 

referred under Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution) as a dispute for 
resolution. 

2.4 Effects of Termination of the Lead Council 

The Councils acknowledge and agree that if the Lead Council (or any subsequent lead 
council) is terminated in accordance with the provisions of Clause 2.3 (Termination of 
Participation of a Partner Council or Lead Council), then the Lead Council (or any 
subsequent lead council), shall, prior to their termination from the Project:- 

2.4.1 novate each of the Contract Documents (including but not limited to the 
Project Agreement, Independent Certifiers' Appointment, Parent Company 
Guarantee) to the new lead council as selected by the remaining Councils; 
and  

2.4.2 comply with the obligations set out at Clause 11.2.  

3. PRINCIPLES AND KEY OBJECTIVES 

3.1 The Councils intend this Agreement to be legally binding. 

3.2 The Councils agree to work together to carry out the Project Tasks and activities in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

3.3 Each of the Councils hereby represents to each other Council that it has obtained all 
necessary consents sufficient to ensure the delegation of functions provided by this 
Agreement for the Project. 

3.4 The Councils commit to share data and knowledge relevant to the Project where 
appropriate and in accordance with their duties under the DPA. 

3.5 Without prejudice to the terms of this Agreement, the Councils agree that they will 
conduct their relationship in accordance with the following principles:- 

3.5.1 Openness and Trust 

in relation to this Agreement the Councils will act in accordance with a duty 
of good faith to each other, be open and trusting in their dealings with each 
other, make information and analysis available to each other, use such 
information to support the Project, discuss and develop ideas openly and 
contribute fully to all aspects of making the joint working successful.  Whilst 
respecting the mutual need for commercial confidentiality, the Councils will 
willingly embrace a commitment to transparency in their dealings and in 
particular a need to comply with statutory access to information 
requirements including the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (SI 
2004/3391) and the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and supporting codes 
of practice.  The Councils will be aware of the need for and respect matters 
of commercial confidentiality and potential sensitivity; 

                                                      
6
 As above. 

Tudalen 245



 

16 
44267940.7\gh01 

3.5.2 Commitment and Drive 

the Councils will be fully committed to working jointly, will seek to fully 
motivate employees and will address the challenges of the Project with 
drive, enthusiasm and a determination to succeed; 

3.5.3 Skills and Creativity 

the Councils recognise that each brings complementary skills and 
knowledge which they will apply creatively to achieving the Councils' 
objectives, continuity, resolution of difficulties and the development of the 
joint working relationship and the personnel working within it.  It is 
recognised that this will involve the appreciation and adoption of common 
values; 

3.5.4 Effective Relationships 

the roles and responsibilities of each Council will be clear with relationships 
developed at the appropriate levels within each organisation with direct and 
easy access to each other's representatives; 

3.5.5 Developing and Adapting 

the Councils recognise that they are engaged in what could be a long term 
business relationship for mutual benefit through the achievement of the 
Project which needs to develop and adapt and each Council will use 
reasonable endeavours to develop and maintain an effective joint process to 
ensure that the relationship develops appropriately and in line with these 
principles and objectives including ensuring that the Lead Council's 
obligations within the Project Agreement are met at all times; 

3.5.6 Reputation and Standing 

the Councils agree that, in relation to this Agreement and the Project 
generally, they shall pay the utmost regard to the standing and reputation of 
one another and shall not do or fail to do anything which may bring the 
standing or reputation of any other Council into disrepute or attract adverse 
publicity to any other Council; 

3.5.7 Reasonableness of Decision Making 

the Councils agree that all decisions made in relation to this Agreement and 
the Project generally shall be made by them acting reasonably and in good 
faith; and 

3.5.8 Members and Officers' Commitments  

each Council shall use its reasonable endeavours to procure that their 
respective members and officers who are involved in the Project shall at all 
times act in the best interests of the Project, devote sufficient resources to 
the Project and respond in a timely manner to all relevant requests from the 
other Councils. 

3.5.9 Welsh Language Measure 

the Councils agree to cooperate in good faith with each other in the 
compliance of their obligations under the Welsh Language Measure. 

Tudalen 246



 

17 
44267940.7\gh01 

4. DUTIES OF THE LEAD COUNCIL AND OTHER COUNCILS 

4.1 Subject to section 101(4) of the Act, the Councils (acting severally) have agreed, with 
effect from the Commencement Date, that Flintshire Council acting through its Chief 
Executive will be the Lead Council for the carrying out of the Project administrative 
and representative functions (following, where relevant, any approvals required from 
the Councils) (the "Project Tasks") which shall be carried out for and on behalf of 
itself and the other Councils and Flintshire Council agrees to act in that capacity 
subject to and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  

4.2 The Councils shall recognise the existence of and comply with the decisions that have 
been delegated to the Joint Committee. For the avoidance of doubt the Councils shall 
have the right to and shall make individual independent decisions on matters referred 
to each of them by the Joint Committee for decision and on matters not delegated or 
referred to the Joint Committee. 

4.3 The Joint Committee shall decide: 

4.3.1 the detailed scope and authority of the Lead Council role; 

4.3.2 by reference to the Contract Documents the administrative and 
representative functions of the Lead Council being: 

(a) administrative functions which can be undertaken by the Lead 
Council without the need for consultation with the Joint Committee; 
or 

(b) representative functions which will be instructed by the Joint 
Committee (whether in accordance with the established standing 
orders of the Joint Committee or otherwise) and communicated to 
the Contractor by the Lead Council; 

4.3.3 consultation and reporting requirements between the Lead Council and the 
Joint Committee. 

4.4 For the avoidance of doubt the Councils have agreed that the role of Lead Council 
includes (but is not limited to):- 

4.4.1 acting on behalf of the Councils in the management and supervision of the 
Project; 

4.4.2 acting under the direction of the Joint Committee provided always that the 
Joint Committee can only direct in accordance with terms of the Project 
Agreement; 

4.4.3 for any function the Lead Council shall act on behalf of and in the interests of 
the Partnership; 

4.4.4 liaising with the Contractor and the Contractor's Representative; 

4.4.5 participating in the Liaison Committee (and co-ordination of the ten (10) 
Council representatives, being two representatives from each of the 
Councils, who are appointed to the Liaison Committee for the purposes of 
Schedule 18 (Liaison Procedure) of the Project Agreement)); 

4.4.6 subject to indemnities acting as the employing authority for any staff involved 
in the administration of the Project who shall report to the Project Board in 
accordance with this Agreement (including the Contract Manager); 

4.4.7 being the legal point of contact for the purposes of managing the Project; 

Tudalen 247



 

18 
44267940.7\gh01 

4.4.8 providing such additional administrative resources and office facilities that 
may be necessary for the purpose of discharging the Project and holding all 
central funds; 

4.4.9 responsibility for liaison and communication with WG and co-ordination of 
communication and public relations;  

4.4.10 responsibility for conducting an internal audit and reporting on its findings to 
the Joint Committee; 

4.4.11 managing the application of the Annual Budget in respect of the Project and 
reporting on expenditure to the Joint Committee; and 

4.4.12 having powers to enter into contracts for consultants as required for the 
purposes of the Project following prior approval from the Project Board. 

4.5 If the Lead Council defaults and the Agreement is terminated in respect of it pursuant 
to Clause 2.3.1 (Termination) or the Lead Council withdraws pursuant to Clause 16 
(Withdrawal), then a replacement Lead Council will be appointed by the Joint 
Committee and the withdrawing Lead Council or Lead Council as Defaulter (as the 
case may be) voting members on the Joint Committee will not have the right to vote in 
regard to any such appointment. 

4.6 The Councils acknowledge that the Lead Council role in the administration of the 
Project Agreement shall be largely discharged by the Contract Manager acting as the 
Authority's Representative as defined under the Project Agreement. 

4.7 The Contract Manager shall: 

4.7.1 be employed by or seconded to the Lead Council and report to the Project 
Board as line manager; 

4.7.2 conduct all day to day business for the Project to satisfy the Lead Council's 
obligations to the Contractor under the Project Agreement; 

4.7.3 potentially have staff reporting to him or her who may be seconded from the 
other Councils (not being the Lead Council); 

4.7.4 notify the Lead Council (without undue delay) of any matter that may 
reasonably be expected to have a local and/or political significance to any 
Council. 

[DN: The Councils acknowledge and agree that under the terms of the Project Agreement 
there will be a commitment to make payments for not less than the Minimum Tonnage of 
Contract Waste to the Contractor per year.  Accordingly, if any Council fails to deliver its 
Minimum Tonnage guarantee of Contract Waste in any year, such Council shall still be 
liable for its Minimum Payment. Details in respect of each Councils Minimum Tonnage 
guarantee/Minimum Payment will be set out in Schedule 9 (Payment Proportions).] 

4.8 The Councils agree and undertake to commit to the Project in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement and not to commission and/or undertake any procurement 
and/or Project that seeks or would procure the delivery of all or any part of the Project 
outside the terms of this Agreement (including (without limitation) wilfully diverting 
Contract Waste away from the Project) unless and until it shall have withdrawn from 
the Project in accordance with Clause 16 (Withdrawal). The Councils acknowledge 
that their commitment to a minimum tonnage guarantee for residual waste remains 
whether they consider alternative waste collection or recycling programmes and that 
pursuant to [Part 3 of Schedule 9 (Payment Proportions) they shall be collectively 
liable for the minimum tonnage guarantee payments where there is an overall shortfall 
by the Councils collectively in supplying sufficient waste to the Key Facility (and that 

Tudalen 248



 

19 
44267940.7\gh01 

the terms of Part 3 of Schedule 9 (Payment Proportions) shall address any intra-
Councils commercial arrangements in meeting the Project's minimum tonnage 

guarantee).] 

4.9 Each Council warrants to the other Councils that it shall observe and comply with the 
terms of each of the Contract Documents and shall, subject to the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement, indemnify the other Councils in respect of any loss, 
damage or expense caused as a result of its breach of any of the Contract 
Documents. 

4.10 Each Council shall co-operate with the other Councils in good faith in order to facilitate 
the performance of their respective obligations under the Contract Documents and to 
avoid and/or mitigate any additional costs, expenses, delays or disruption to the 
Project provided that (subject to the specific obligations within this Agreement) no 
Council shall be under any duty to fulfil obligations which are the responsibility of any 
other Council. 

4.11 Each Council acknowledges that it shall not exercise or waive any right under any of 
the Contract Documents where such exercise or waiver has not first been approved in 
accordance with this Agreement.  

4.12 Each Council in entering into the Contract Documents shall be deemed to have 
satisfied itself of all relevant matters and shall not rely on any representations made by 
any other Council in respect of the Contract Documents. 

4.13 For the duration of this Agreement, the Lead Council shall act as the primary interface 
with the Contractor, WG, Infrastructure UK and any other body necessary to carry out 
the Project Tasks in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  

4.14 For the duration of this Agreement, the Lead Council shall act diligently and in good 
faith in all its dealings with the Contractor and the other Councils and it shall use all 
reasonable endeavours to carry out the Project Tasks in accordance with any WG 
guidance and any other applicable legislation. 

5. DECISION MAKING 

5.1 In terms of the need for decisions and other actions to be taken and carried out for the 
Project Tasks, the Councils have identified the following four (4) categories together 
with the means by which they will be taken:- 

5.1.1 "Contract Manager Matter" – being the day to day management of the 
Project (in accordance with the terms of the Project Agreement) pursuant to 
Clause [4.7] which shall include any decision which has (or is reasonably 
expected to have) an annual financial impact on the Project of up to (and 
including) [£     ]

7
, except in circumstances where such decision could 

reasonably be expected to have local and/or political significance to any of 
the Councils, in which case such decision shall be elevated to the Project 
Board, provided always that the Contact Manager may refer any matter to 
the Project Board; 

5.1.2 "Project Board Matter" - being a matter which is to be decided upon 
[(pursuant to Clause 8 and Schedule 3 (Project Board Terms of Reference))] 
at a quorate meeting of the Project Board by those present and entitled to 
vote and which shall have (or is reasonably expected to have) an annual 
financial impact on the Project of up to [£      ] or be a matter referred to the 
Project Board by the Contract Manager.  Any decision made by the Project 
Board in relation to a Project Board Matter within these financial parameters 
shall be binding on all of the Councils.  Any decision to be made on a matter 

                                                      
7
 Appropriate figure to be determined. 

Tudalen 249



 

20 
44267940.7\gh01 

with an impact (or expected impact) in excess of these parameters shall be 
elevated to the Joint Committee, provided always that the Project Board can 
refer any matter of any financial value to the Joint Committee if they so 
decide; 

5.1.3 "Joint Committee Matter" – being a matter which is to be decided upon at a 
quorate meeting of the Joint Committee by those present and entitled 
pursuant to Clause (Joint Committee Terms of Reference) to vote and which 
shall have (or is reasonably expected to have) an annual financial impact on 
the Project of up to [£            ] or be a matter referred to the Joint Committee 
by the Project Board.  Any decision made by the Joint Committee in relation 
to a Joint Committee Matter within these financial parameters shall be 
binding on all of the Councils.  Any decision to be made on a matter with an 
impact (or expected impact) in excess of these parameters shall be referred 
as a Matter Reserved To The Councils.  The Joint Committee may 
determine that any Joint Committee Matter or any Project Board Matter may 
be referred back to each Council for decision as a Matter Reserved To The 
Councils and/or make a decision to delegate any matter to the Project Board 
for decision; and 

5.1.4 "Matter Reserved To The Councils" – being a matter which will have to be 
referred to each Council for decision (at a meeting of either the relevant 
cabinet or full Council at the discretion of each Council) and, for the 
avoidance of doubt, any such matter will not be dealt with by the Project 
Board or the Joint Committee (as the case may be) until the matter has been 
determined by all of the Councils.  If the Councils fail to reach the same 
decision in respect of such matter then the matter shall be referred under 
Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution) as a dispute for resolution. 

and in each case, such matters are identified in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks). 

5.2 [The Councils agree that in due course, should they elect to set up a joint scrutiny 
committee, each Council shall seek the necessary approvals in order to set up such a 
committee.]

8
 

5.3 Each Council acknowledges and agrees that the Lead Council shall have the power 
and the entitlement to require a decision that in its opinion (acting reasonably) shall 
either: 

5.3.1 mean a substantive change to the size or nature of the Facilities; or 

5.3.2 mean a substantive change to the size or nature of the Project, 

to be referred as a Matter Reserved To The Councils and such decision shall not be 
implemented unless approved by all of the Councils. 

6. JOINT COMMITTEE 

6.1 The Councils shall form the joint committee ("Joint Committee"), which shall, for the 
avoidance of doubt, supersede and replace the "Joint Committee" formed pursuant to 
the First Inter-Authority Agreement to carry out the functions set out in Schedule 2 
(Joint Committee Terms of Reference).   

6.2 The Joint Committee shall not have power to approve any Matter Reserved To The 
Councils pursuant to Clause 5.1.4. 

                                                      
8
 It is noted that whilst the Councils would prefer to determine 
their own Scrutiny process internally, would Councils prefer to leave the above wording in to 
cover the possibility of a joint scrutiny committee being set up at some point in the future or 
should this be removed? 

Tudalen 250



 

21 
44267940.7\gh01 

6.3 At meetings of the Joint Committee each elected member from each Council shall 
have one vote.  Subject to the Lead Council's right to refer a decision pursuant to 
Clause 5.3 as a Matter Reserved To The Councils, decisions at meetings of the Joint 
Committee will be taken by a majority vote.  The Contract Manager shall not have a 
vote. 

6.4 If, at a meeting of the Joint Committee, a matter is not determined by a majority vote 
pursuant to Clause 6.3, that matter ("JC Unresolved Matter") shall be deferred for 
consideration at the next Joint Committee Meeting which shall be convened within 
[ten (10) Business Days] of that meeting.  If at the reconvened Joint Committee 
meeting the JC Unresolved Matter is not determined by a majority vote, the 
Chairperson shall have a casting vote in respect of that JC Unresolved Matter. 

6.5 Without prejudice to Clause 6.4, if one Council requests that a decision of the Joint 
Committee be deferred, the Chairperson shall defer such decision until the next Joint 
Committee Meeting which shall be convened within the next [ten (10) Business Days] 
of that meeting.  

6.6 Each Council shall provide all relevant information reasonably required upon request 
by the Joint Committee and shall comply with any decisions of the Joint Committee to 
request such information. 

6.7 Each Council shall consult with the other Councils to ensure the diligent progress of 
the day to day matters relating to any Joint Committee Matters. 

6.8 The administrative costs and expenses of the Joint Committee incurred in accordance 
with the Annual Budget for setting up and conducting meetings of the Joint Committee 
shall be reimbursed by the Councils and arrangements for such reimbursement shall 
be agreed between the Councils and reviewed each year when the draft Annual 
Budget is prepared by the Project Board, considered by the Joint Committee and 
approved by the Councils. 

6.9 The costs and expenses of the Joint Committee for the Contract Year [2014-2015] 
(which will precede the preparation of the first Annual Budget and be a transitional 
Contract Year) will be reimbursed as follows: 

6.9.1 each of the Councils agrees in principle to pay any costs required in 
accordance with the cost sharing arrangements agreed by the Councils in 
place immediately prior to the completion of this Agreement; and 

6.9.2 the costs shall be met by the Councils (following recommendations by the 
Project Board) as the Joint Committee may decide, else in absence of 
agreed recommendations shall be met equally. 

6.10 When working as a member of a Joint Committee, the members shall be deemed to 
be working on behalf of their own Council even where the particular matter under 
consideration relates to or also relates to one of the other Councils. 

6.11 When working on behalf of the Project, officers shall be deemed to be working on 
behalf of all their employing Councils, and made available and working on behalf of 
the other Councils under section 113 of the Act. 

6.12 In consequence of the above, both members and officers shall be treated as falling 
within the statutory immunity provided by section 265 of the Public Health Act 1875, as 
amended, in respect of the Project.  

6.13 None of the Councils shall have any liability to the other Councils in respect of any 
loss which those other Councils may suffer as a consequence of any action or 
omission by any officer whilst working on the Project on behalf of the Joint Committee. 

Tudalen 251



 

22 
44267940.7\gh01 

6.14 The Lead Council will provide clerical support for the Joint Committee including 
convening meetings and maintaining minutes. 

6.15 Constitutional arrangements for the Joint Committee are set out in Part 2 of Schedule 
2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference). 

6.16 The Joint Committee shall delegate such operational functions to the Project Board as 
specified in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks) which may in turn delegate appropriate 
matters to the Contract Manager. 

7. ANNUAL BUDGET 

[It is agreed in principle that during the Works Period of the Project the Contract 
Management Costs associated with the Project shall be split equally between 
the Councils.  During the Services Period of the Project when the Facility is 
operational and up until expiry or early termination, the Contract Management 
Costs shall be on a pro-rata basis proportional to the actual tonnages delivered 
by each Council.] 

7.1 The Joint Committee shall by not later than November in each Contract Year consider 
and recommend a draft Annual Budget prepared by the Project Board for the following 
Contract Year which, in its opinion and based on the preceding Contract Year’s actual 
spend and the Project plan prepared pursuant to Clause 10.1 (Business Plan and 
Work Programme), it reasonably requires to achieve its objectives in relation to the 
Project and to secure the funding requirement for the Lead Council to fulfil its 
obligations under this Agreement on behalf of the Councils. For the avoidance of 
doubt the Joint Committee has no budget setting or managing responsibility and the 
approval of the Annual Budget (as part of the Councils' wider budget setting 
procedure) is a Matter Reserved To The Councils. 

7.2 The draft Annual Budget shall contain draft estimates of revenue income and 
expenditure of the Joint Committee for or in relation to the discharge of the Joint 
Committee's agreed functions. The estimates shall include details as to how the 
expenditure is to be financed including a breakdown of the contributions required from 
each Council. 

7.3 [The Councils each agree and undertake to contribute an annual sum for each "Spend 
year". 

7.4 Each of the Councils shall irrevocably make available to the Lead Council their share 
of the Annual Budget.

9
 The Annual Budget (including any contingency sum) shall not 

be exceeded without the prior approval of the Councils. 

7.5 The Lead Council shall be the accountable body for the Annual Budget and shall, 
pursuant to Clauses 13.1 to 13.4 (Accounts), prepare and keep accounts and shall 
make all accounts records and other documents available for inspection by any 
Council on request. The Joint Committee role is to oversee and procure the monitoring 
of the Annual Budget for the purposes of Councils' scrutiny. 

7.6 Whenever any sum of money is recoverable from or payable by a Council it may be 
deducted from any sum then due to that Council under this Agreement and vice versa. 

7.7 The Lead Council shall within twenty-eight (28) days of the conclusion of an 
Accounting Period prepare and serve on each Council a schedule of payments 
itemised by reference to the Heads of Expenditure set out in Schedule 5 (Annual 
Budget) and certified by the Lead Finance Officer as being in respect of that Council’s 

                                                      
9
 For the avoidance of doubt these costs will include the Lead Councils costs including any 
recruitment, legal and financial costs incurred by the Lead Council associated with its role of 
management and supervision of the Project (see Schedule 5 for further details). 

Tudalen 252



 

23 
44267940.7\gh01 

proportion of the costs which have been properly incurred in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement for that Accounting Period. Such schedule of payments shall 
be payable by the Councils within thirty-five (35) days.    

7.8 The costs associated with providing internal resources in relation to the Project Tasks 
shall (if not included within the Annual Budget and shared between the Councils), 
subject to Clause 7.10, be borne by the Council providing that internal resource.  
However, any additional costs and external costs required shall be shared equally by 
the Councils provided that such costs have received prior written approval from the 
Project Team (subject to where such additional costs and/or external costs exceed or 
are anticipated to exceed an aggregate total of five thousand pounds (£5,000) 
(indexed) in value in any single Contract Year they shall require the Project Team to 
secure prior written approval from the Project Board) and that such sums fall within the 
Project spend profile agreed by the Councils set out at Schedule 5 (Annual Budget). 
Any additional costs and external costs sought from Project funds which are not 
included in the spend profile at Schedule 5 (Annual Budget) will be dealt with pursuant 
to Clause 7.9 below. 

7.9 The Councils hereby agree that:- 

7.9.1 if one of the Councils wishes to carry out any work or incur any cost or 
expenses in relation to the Project exceeding an aggregate total of one 
thousand pounds (£1,000) (indexed) in any single Contract Year or requests 
the Joint Committee, the Project Board or any member or officer appointed 
to or engaged to support the Project to carry out any work or to incur any 
cost or expense that is not envisaged by the spend profile set out at 
Schedule 5 (Annual Budget) then such Council shall seek the prior written 
approval of the Contract Manager to approve it and allocate Project funding 
else it shall have to bear the cost itself; and 

7.9.2 if one of the Councils carries out any work or incurs any cost or expenses or 
requests the Joint Committee, the Project Board or any member or officer 
appointed to or engaged to support the Project to carry out any work or to 
incur any cost or expense in relation to the Project that is not envisaged by 
the Contract Manager to be an efficient use of time and/or resources, that 
matter shall, at the discretion of the Contract Manager or at the request of 
the relevant Council, be referred to the Project Board for a decision as to 
whether such work, cost or expense is part of the Project or whether such 
work, cost or expense should be the entire responsibility of the Council so 
carrying it out or requesting it (as the case may be), 

subject to such approval or decision not being unreasonably withheld or delayed by 
the Contract Manager and/or the Project Board and in the case of dispute Clause 17 
(Dispute Resolution) shall apply. 

7.10 The Councils hereby agree that if one of the Councils believes it is likely to incur 
disproportionate internal resource costs (compared to the Project spend profile set out 
at Schedule 5 (Annual Budget)) pursuant to Clause 7.8 that matter shall be referred to 
the Project Board for a decision as to whether such costs will be disproportionate and 
whether any contributions should be made to this cost by the other Councils. 

8. PROJECT BOARD 

8.1 The Councils shall form the Project Board ("Project Board") for the purpose of the 
day-to-day management of the Project and the Contract Manager and the 
implementation and monitoring of the process and to carry out those functions set out 
in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks) as being functions of the Project Board and in 
accordance with the Project Board’s Terms of Reference as set on in Schedule 3 
(Project Board Terms of Reference). 

Tudalen 253



 

24 
44267940.7\gh01 

8.2 The Project Board shall have the powers to make decisions and recommendations 
within its Terms of Reference as set out in Schedule 3 (Project Board Terms of 
Reference) but shall not have power to approve any Joint Committee Matter or any 
Matter Reserved To The Councils pursuant to Clause 5.1.4. 

8.3 Notwithstanding the above, the following specific functions are given to the Project 
Board:- 

8.3.1 prior approval of all reports for decision by the Joint Committee save if 
impractical in the case of a special meeting; and 

8.3.2 monitoring of: 

(a) the Annual Budget as agreed by the Joint Committee and 
approved by the Councils; 

(b) the costs expended against the Annual Budget to ensure that the 
Project remains within budget; and 

(c) the Unitary Charge payments or other payments to the Contractor 
for Services (including the Commissioning Services and the Interim 
Services) delivered against the overall forecast Unitary Charge for 
each Contract Year. 

8.4 Each Council shall appoint one senior officer representative [(being a director or head 
of service)]

10
 to the Project Board. The Chairperson of the Project Board shall be a 

director of the Lead Council appointed by the Project Board from time to time.  Each 
such representative shall have one vote on any matter to be determined by the Project 
Board.  Decisions at meetings of the Project Board will be taken by a majority vote. 

8.5 The quorum necessary for a Project Board Meeting shall be a senior officer 
representative each Council unless such a quorum is not reached in which case the 
relevant meeting shall be re-convened and the required quorum shall be a senior 
officer representative from each of the five (5) Councils (in person or by telephone or 
video-conference facility).  The Contract Manager, the Lead Finance Officer, the legal, 
procurement and technical officers for each Council shall be entitled to attend the 
meetings of the Project Board but not vote. 

8.6 The section 151 officer and/or the monitoring officer for each Council shall be entitled 
to attend and participate in Project Board Meetings in a non-voting capacity. 

8.7 If, at a meeting of the Project Board, a matter is not determined by a majority vote 
pursuant to Clause 8.4, such matter ("PB Unresolved Matter") shall be deferred for 
consideration at the next Project Board Meeting which shall be convened within [ten 
(10) Business Days] of that meeting.  If at the reconvened Project Board Meeting the 
PB Unresolved Matter is not determined by a majority vote, subject to the Lead 
Council's right to refer a decision pursuant to Clause 5.3 as a Matter Reserved To The 
Councils, that matter shall be referred for a decision by the Joint Committee. 

8.8 The Councils may, at their discretion, replace their representatives appointed to the 
Project Board provided that such replacement shall be on the same basis as the 
original appointed and provided further that no senior technical officer of the Project 
Board shall be removed or replaced by any Council without that Council giving prior 
written notice as soon as reasonably practicable of its intention to remove or replace 
that representative. 

                                                      
10
 Councils to confirm.  

Tudalen 254



 

25 
44267940.7\gh01 

8.9 Each Council shall also appoint one (1) substitute representative in the event that 
appointed representatives to the Project Board are unable or incapable of discharging 
their functions. 

8.10 Each Council's substitute representative shall be entitled to attend meetings of the 
Project Board but shall only be entitled to vote in the absence of his or her 
corresponding voting representative. 

8.11 The Project Board shall meet as and when required in accordance with the timetable 
for the Project. 

9. PROJECT OFFICERS  

9.1 The Joint Committee shall determine from time to time the necessity of the officers set 
out below (the "Project Officers") for the purposes of the Project: 

9.1.1 the Contract Manager; and 

9.1.2 such further officers (including but not limited to financial advisors, legal 
advisors and technical advisors) acting under the direction of the Contract 
Manager in his responsibilities in respect of the Project (insofar as the costs 
of such officers have been identified within the Annual Budget or otherwise 
provided for by one (1) or more of the Councils). 

9.2 The Councils shall make their officers available as necessary for the purpose of the 
Project.   

9.3 As and when requested by the Joint Committee, the Lead Council shall appoint the 
Project Officers (advised by the head of human resources or equivalent officer of the 
Lead Council and shall act within the employment procedure rules and policies of the 
Lead Council): 

9.4 Project Officers may be: 

9.4.1 appointed specifically and exclusively for the purpose of the Project to the 
employment of the Lead Council, on terms and for such duration as may be 
appropriate to that purpose, and the Lead Council shall make them available 
full-time or part-time for the performance of their functions under this 
Agreement; or 

9.4.2 seconded by the Councils for the purpose of the Project to the Lead Council 
on terms and for such duration as may be appropriate to that purpose, and 
the relevant Council shall make them available full-time or part-time for the 
performance of their functions under this Agreement. 

10. BUSINESS PLAN AND WORK PROGRAMME 

10.1 The Contract Manager shall continually monitor all aspects of the Project's 
performance and prepare the Performance and Improvement Plan. 

10.2 No later than [                    ]
11
 in any Contract Year, the Contract Manager shall 

present the draft Performance and Improvement Plan including any resource 
requirements for the Project and the draft Annual Budget to the Project Board to 
enable the Project Board to be made aware of any significant changes which they may 
refer for approval and recommendation to the Joint Committee including any 
anticipated Authority Changes under the Project Agreement. 

                                                      
11
 Date to be agreed and confirmed by Councils.  

Tudalen 255



 

26 
44267940.7\gh01 

10.3 The Performance and Improvement Plan for the Project, as amended where 
necessary and as approved by the Joint Committee, shall form: 

10.3.1 the basis of the Joint Committee’s request to each Council for future 
budgetary provision and for resources pursuant to Clause 7.1 (Annual 
Budget); and 

10.3.2 an instruction from the Joint Committee to the Project Board. 

10A         AIR QUALITY MONITORING 

              The Councils agree that there will be additional air quality monitoring 
undertaken for the period of 1 year from the Service Commencement Date 
at the discretion of the Joint Committee. Costs will be shared on a pro rata 
basis per actual tonnages delivered. Thereafter, the said monitoring will be 
subject to review by the Joint Committee. 

11. SITES AND DECOMMISSIONING 

Arrangements on Expiry or Early Termination 

11.1 The Councils acknowledge that, upon the expiry of the Project the Site shall be 
retained by Flintshire Council.  

11.2 In the event that Flintshire Council is terminated or withdraws from the Project 
(pursuant to Clause 2.3 (Termination of Participation of a Partner Council or Lead 
Council) or Clause 16 (Withdrawal) of this Agreement), then the Site will transfer

12
 to 

the new lead council for the duration of the Project and upon expiry of the Project, the 
remaining Councils shall ensure that the Site is transferred back to Flintshire Council 
as soon as reasonably practicable. 

[DN: It is agreed in principle that on an early termination of the Project if the 
Facility is operational then the Partnership should seek to agree appropriate 
arrangements to continue the use of the Facility for the purposes of the 
remainder of the 25 years.  If however, the Facility has not been built, then the 
Site shall be retained by Flintshire County Council and there shall be no further 
obligation for the Site to be used for the purposes of the Project.   

If the Facility has been partly built but is not yet operational, then the Councils 
shall seek to discuss and agree appropriate arrangements for the Site and the 
Councils shall equally share the liability of any associated costs.] 

Decommissioning 

11.3 Upon expiry or termination of the Project, the cost of decommissioning will be split 
equally between the Councils, unless Flintshire Council (in its absolute discretion) 
elects not to undertake decommissioning at the time of expiry or the early termination 
of the Project, in which case Flintshire Council shall be solely liable for any future 
decommissioning costs.   

11.4 [New Waste Transfer Station 

The Councils acknowledge and agree that the new Waste Transfer Station (the 
"WTS") that is to be built for the purposes of the Project shall be funded by the 
Councils on an equal basis.  If it is determined that the new WTS shall be built on a 
site that is provided by Conwy Council, then upon expiry or early termination of the 
Project the Site shall be retained by Conwy Council.  If, however, the Partnership 
jointly fund and provide a site for the new WTS, then upon expiry or early termination 

                                                      
12
 Details in respect of the transfer to be confirmed by Property advisers. 

Tudalen 256



 

27 
44267940.7\gh01 

of the Project the Councils agree to discuss and determine appropriate arrangements 
in respect of the site and the WTS].   

11.5 Cost of Managing Waste prior to Haulage and Treatment 

[DN: It is agreed in principle that where Welsh Government do not provide a 
grant for the element that covers the cost of managing waste prior to haulage 
and  treatment, each Council would be responsible for their own transfer station 
operating costs, with no recourse to other Councils. 
 
Where Welsh Government do provide a grant for that element, all Councils will 
pay in to the Partnership an agreed amount per tonne for the Waste being 
managed within each Council area, and all Councils will receive an equitable 
share of the payment back, with the addition of the Welsh Government Grant. 
The amount  aid “in” to the Partnership per tonne will be an amount agreed 
between the  Councils (the starting point for the discussion would be the rate 
identified by the market testing / procurement exercise for the intended Conwy 
transfer station; this will ensure that the amount is based on a market rate).] 
 

12. PAYMENTS 

[DN: Provisions setting out the process for receipt of payments from the Welsh 
Government and any banking and interest related provisions to be considered 
and confirmed by Finance.] 

Incoming payment to the Lead Council of WG grant funding and other sums 

12.1 [Any grant funding from WG to the Councils in respect of the Project shall be paid to 
the Lead Council and each of the Councils' entitlement shall be on a pro rata basis in 
proportion to the forecast tonnages delivered by each of the Councils [in accordance 
with Schedule 9 (Payment Proportions), the Lead Council making such payments to 
the other Councils within [five (5) Business Days]. In the event that the Lead Council 
fails to pay a Council within the five (5) Business Day period referred to above the 
Lead Council shall be liable to pay interest to the relevant Council at the Default 
Interest Rate, calculated from the due date for payment until (but excluding) the actual 
date of payment.] 

12.2 [It is agreed in principle that in the event that the WG grant funding is withdrawn from 
the Project (and the Contractor is nor liable to replace the lost WG funding in 
accordance with the provisions of the Project Agreement), then the Councils shall be 
liable to cover the lost WG funding on a pro-rata basis in proportion to the actual 
tonnage provided by each of the Councils.] 

Invoices from Contractor 

[DN: Finance to review and consider the below payment provisions.] 

12.3 The Councils acknowledge that the Lead Council's ability to agree and make 
payments to the Contractor is governed by the terms of the Project Agreement 
(specifically the Payment Mechanism). 

12.4 The Councils acknowledge that Clause 45 (Payment and Invoicing) of the Project 
Agreement governs the process by which the Contractor invoices the Lead Council in 
respect of the Monthly Contract Payment and that, for the purposes of Clause 45 
(Payment and Invoicing) of the Project Agreement, Flintshire Council (as Lead 
Council) will be responsible for making payment to the Contractor following receipt of 
such invoices.  

Tudalen 257



 

28 
44267940.7\gh01 

12.5 The Councils acknowledge that the Lead Council's payment of the Monthly Contract 
Payment assumes a one hundred per cent (100%) availability and performance 
model. 

12.6 On a monthly basis the Contract Manager (on behalf of the Lead Council) shall be 
responsible for taking decisions as to the appropriateness of any adjustments or 
Deductions (and contract default points or other remedies of the Lead Council) to be 
applied and made to the Contractor's invoice to the Lead Council due to poor 
performance or non-performance. 

12.7 Within fifteen (15) Business Days of receipt of the Contractor's invoice in accordance 
with Clause 45.4 (Payment and Invoicing) of the Project Agreement, Conwy Council 
shall pay to Flintshire Council on receipt of a schedule of payments its proportion of 
the Monthly Contract Payment and any other relevant payments ("Conwy's Payment 
Proportion"), in each case calculated by reference to the relevant financial liabilities 
of the Councils as set out in Schedule 10 (Payment Proportions). In the event that 
Conwy Council fails to pay Conwy's Payment Proportion within the fifteen (15) 
Business Day period referred to above (the "Due Date") Conwy Council shall be liable 
to pay interest to Flintshire Council at the Default Interest Rate, calculated from the 
Due Date until (but excluding) the actual date of payment. 

12.8 Within fifteen (15) Business Days of receipt of the Contractor's invoice in accordance 
with Clause 45.4 (Payment and Invoicing) of the Project Agreement, Denbighshire 
Council shall pay to Flintshire Council on receipt of a schedule of payments its 
proportion of the Monthly Contract Payment and any other relevant payments 
("Denbighshire's Payment Proportion"), in each case calculated by reference to the 
relevant financial liabilities of the Councils as set out in Schedule 10 (Payment 
Proportions). In the event that Denbighshire Council fails to pay Denbighshire's 
Payment Proportion within the fifteen (15) Business Day period referred to above (the 
"Due Date") Denbighshire Council shall be liable to pay interest to Flintshire Council at 
the Default Interest Rate, calculated from the Due Date until (but excluding) the actual 
date of payment. 

12.9 Within fifteen (15) Business Days of receipt of the Contractor's invoice in accordance 
with Clause 45.4 (Payment and Invoicing) of the Project Agreement, Gwynedd Council 
shall pay to Flintshire Council on receipt of a schedule of payments its proportion of 
the Monthly Contract Payment and any other relevant payments ("Gwynedd's 
Payment Proportion"), in each case calculated by reference to the relevant financial 
liabilities of the Councils as set out in Schedule 10 (Payment Proportions). In the event 
that Gwynedd Council fails to pay Gwynedd's Payment Proportion within the fifteen 
(15) Business Day period referred to above (the "Due Date") Gwynedd Council shall 
be liable to pay interest to Flintshire Council at the Default Interest Rate, calculated 
from the Due Date until (but excluding) the actual date of payment. 

12.10 Within fifteen (15) Business Days of receipt of the Contractor's invoice in accordance 
with Clause 45.4 (Payment and Invoicing) of the Project Agreement, Isle of Anglesey 
Council shall pay to Flintshire Council on receipt of a schedule of payments its 
proportion of the Monthly Contract Payment and any other relevant payments ("Isle of 
Anglesey's Payment Proportion"), in each case calculated by reference to the 
relevant financial liabilities of the Councils as set out in Schedule 10 (Payment 
Proportions). In the event that Isle of Anglesey Council fails to pay Isle of Anglesey's 
Payment Proportion within the fifteen (15) Business Day period referred to above (the 
"Due Date") Isle of Anglesey Council shall be liable to pay interest to Flintshire 
Council at the Default Interest Rate, calculated from the Due Date until (but excluding) 
the actual date of payment. 

12.11 The Councils shall ensure that there are always cleared funds paid in accordance with 
their respective share of contributions set out in a schedule of payments such that, 
subject to each Council fulfilling its payment obligations, the Lead Council shall always 
be capable of meeting its payment obligations to the Contractor. The Councils shall 

Tudalen 258



 

29 
44267940.7\gh01 

not withhold payment of any intra-Councils sum due to the Lead Council which may be 
due to intra-Council disputes. 

12.12 The Councils shall procure that, as regards this Project, the Lead Council is to remain 
cost and cash neutral for the planned term of the Project only insofar as the Lead 
Council satisfies its payment proportion and the payment obligations of the other 
Councils are set out in the Annual Budget. 

12.13 The Councils agree that Flintshire Council as Lead Council shall (with the agreement 
of Conwy Council, Denbighshire Council, Gwynedd Council and Isle of Anglesey 
Council) be entitled to withhold payment of any disputed amounts as between the 
Lead Council and the Contractor in accordance with Clause 45 (Payment and 
Invoicing) of the Project Agreement but that  the Lead Council shall not be entitled to 
withhold payment on the basis of a dispute solely between the Councils (any such 
dispute to be resolved in accordance with the provisions of Clause 17 (Dispute 
Resolution). 

12.14 Flintshire Council as Lead Council shall not agree to set-off any amounts owed by the 
Contractor to the Lead Council in accordance with Clause 46 (Set-Off) of the Project 
Agreement without the agreement of Conwy Borough Council, Denbighshire Council, 
Gwynedd Council and Isle of Anglesey Council (such agreement to include an 
agreement as to how Conwy's Payment Proportion, and/or Denbighshire's Payment 
Proportion and/or Gwynedd's Payment Proportion and/or Isle of Anglesey's Payment 
Proportion shall be amended as a result of such set-off). 

12.15 [Subject to Clause 12.16 the Councils shall review their payment proportions as 
defined in Schedule 9 (Payment Proportions) for the items set out in Schedule 10 
(Payment Proportions) (using fair and objective criteria supplied by the Project Board 
and recognising the principle of mutual benefit) on [30 September] following the 
Services Commencement Date (as defined in the Project Agreement) and at one (1) 
yearly intervals thereafter (or such other period as is agreed by the Councils) and shall 
agree any necessary amendments to  this Clause 12. In default of such agreement, no 
amendment shall be made. 

12.16 The Lead Council shall (following agreement by the Project Board and notification to 
the Joint Committee) be authorised to make adjustments, reconciliations or payments 
to recompense for significant anomalies in Project mutual benefit between the 
Councils (and for the avoidance of doubt where an anomaly between the Councils' 
modelled contributions exceeds [fifty thousand pounds (£50,000)] (indexed) per 
Accounting Period it shall be construed as significant).] 

Payments from Contractor 

12.17 Any payments to be made by the Contractor to the Lead Council in accordance with 
the terms of the Project Agreement (whether via an indemnity or through the 
imposition of Deductions or sanctions whose effects as between the Councils are set 
out in Part 2 of Schedule 9 (Payment Proportions) or otherwise) shall be apportioned 
between the relevant Councils to reflect the respective effects on each Council which 
are the subject of such payment: 

12.17.1 where related to a [Performance Management Framework] item set out in 
Schedule 9 (Payment Proportions) in such proportions as defined in Part 2 
of Schedule 9 (Payment Proportions); or 

12.17.2 where not related to a [Performance Management Framework] item set out 
in Schedule 9 (Payment Proportions) by the Project Board in proportion to 
the level of cost incurred by each Council as a consequence of the actions 
and obligations pertaining to that Council's administrative area and works or 
services carried out under the Project Agreement in relation to that Council's 
administrative area. 

Tudalen 259



 

30 
44267940.7\gh01 

12.18 The Lead Council shall, where Deductions apportioned to a Council exceed fifty 
thousand pounds (£50,000) (indexed) at the end of an Accounting Period, pay the 
sum of the Deductions to a Council within twenty (20) Business Days, unless 
otherwise agreed by the Project Board. 

Taxation 

12.19 Each Council shall bear its own liability for any taxation or duty chargeable in the 
United Kingdom in respect of its participation in the arrangements under this 
Agreement and each Council undertakes to indemnify the other Councils in respect of 
any such taxation assessed on and paid by the other in respect of which the former is 
primarily liable. 

12.20 Any supply made by one (1) Council to any other Council pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be exclusive of any value added tax chargeable on it, which shall (where 
required by law), be paid by the Council to whom the supply is made in addition to the 
payment for the supply, subject to the provision to it of a valid value added tax invoice. 

12.21 All payments to be made by one (1) Council to another Council under this Agreement 
shall be made in full without deduction of or withholding for or on account of any 
present or future taxes, levies, duties, charges, fees, deductions or withholdings of any 
nature unless the Council making the payment is required by law to make any such 
deduction or withholding. If such withholding or deduction is so required by law, then 
the Council making the payment shall increase the amount of the payment so that the 
other Council receives the same amount as it would have received in the absence of 
the requirement to make the withholding or deduction, and the Council making the 
payment shall give to the other Council an appropriate certificate as may be required 
by law showing the amount. 

12.22 If the Council receiving the payment subsequently obtains relief or credit in respect of 
the withholding or deduction, then it shall promptly repay to the Council which made 
the payment an amount equal to the credit or relief obtained up to a maximum of the 
amount by which the payment was increased to take account of the withholding or 
deduction. The Councils shall co-operate with a view to allowing each Council to 
obtain any available relief or credit in respect of any such withholding or deduction in 
respect of taxation and in particular but without prejudice to the foregoing generality 
shall give any information reasonably required by the other Council in connection with 
the making of a claim for relief under an applicable double taxation treaty. 

Community Benefit Fund 

[DN: It is noted that the Councils have agreed in principle to payments in 
respect of a Community Benefit Fund. Each of the Councils shall pay into the 
fund and the payments shall be determined on a pro-rata basis in proportion to 
the tonnage provided by each of the respective Councils.]  

13. ACCOUNTS
13
 

Accounts to reconcile Annual Budget 

13.1 Clauses 13.2 to 13.4 shall apply to Conwy Council, Denbighshire Council, Gwynedd 
and Isle of Anglesey Council only where Clause 7.9 applies. 

13.2 Each Council shall be required to prepare accounts including (reporting by exception) 
details of any expenditure incurred pursuant to Schedule 5 (Annual Budget) (the "AB 
Accounts") in respect of each Accounting Period and for such further and/or other 

                                                      
13
 Drafting to be incorporated to capture 3 year accounting cycle plans, with agreed accounts for 

the following year and then 2 year projections/indicators for subsequent years. 

Tudalen 260



 

31 
44267940.7\gh01 

accounting periods as the Project Board shall determine and which shall be 
incorporated into Schedule 6 (Accounting Periods). 

13.3 Each Council shall:- 

13.3.1 in the AB Accounts make true and complete entries of all relevant payments 
and receipts made by it during the previous Accounting Period; 

13.3.2 within ten (10) Business Days of the end of the Accounting Period, the 
Councils shall provide to the Lead Council unaudited AB Accounts for such 
Accounting Period together with certification that such AB Accounts comply 
with this Clause 13.3;   

13.3.3 nominate an individual to be responsible for ensuring that Council's own 
compliance with this Clause 14 and the name, address and telephone 
number of each individual nominated pursuant to this Clause 13.3 shall be 
notified to the other Councils in accordance with Clause 27 (Notices); and 

13.3.4 acknowledge that the Lead Council shall within ten (10) Business Days of 
receipt of the AB Accounts submitted by each of the Councils, in accordance 
with Clause 13.3.2 prepare a reconciliation statement identifying the 
payments made by each Council and the balance due from or owing to each 
Council.  The Lead Council shall within twenty (20) Business Days of the 
preparation of the reconciliation statement send out a copy of the 
reconciliation statement together with either a balancing schedule of 
payments or credit payment to each Council.  A Council receiving a 
schedule of payments for payment shall pay it in full within twenty (20) 
Business Days.  Any error in a balancing schedule of payments must be 
notified to the Lead Council within five (5) Business Days of such balancing 
schedule of payments being sent out.  An amended balancing schedule of 
payments will be issued by the Lead Council and the Council receiving such 
schedule of payments shall pay it in full within twenty (20) Business Days. 

13.4 If an individual nominated by a Council pursuant to Clause 13.3.3 changes, that 
Council shall notify the other Councils forthwith of the replacement nominees. 

Audits 

13.5 Subject to ensuring compliance with each Council's audit requirements, the Councils 
agree that the auditor for the Lead Council shall carry out the audit of the Project. 

13.6 The Lead Council shall at all times maintain an up to date register of the assets and 
committed liabilities of each of the Councils in relation to the Joint Committee and the 
Councils will each advise the Lead Council of any such assets and committed 
liabilities. 

13.7 The books of account for the Joint Committee shall be the subject of the audit 
arrangements of the Lead Council and shall be open to inspection by the Councils. 

14. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

14.1 Each Council will retain all Intellectual Property in its Material.  

14.2 Each Council will grant all of the other Councils a non-exclusive, perpetual, 
non-transferable and royalty free licence to use, modify, amend and develop its IP 
Material for the Project Tasks and any other purpose resulting from the Project Tasks 
whether or not the party granting the licence remains a party to this Agreement or the 
Project Tasks. 

Tudalen 261



 

32 
44267940.7\gh01 

14.3 Without prejudice to Clause 14.1, if more than one (1) Council owns or has a legal or 
beneficial right or interest in any aspect of the IP Material for any reason (including  
without limitation that no one (1) Council can demonstrate that it independently 
supplied or created the relevant IP Material without the help of one (1) or more of the 
other Councils), each of the Councils who contributed to the relevant IP Material will 
grant to all other Councils to this Agreement a non-exclusive, perpetual, 
non-transferable and royalty free licence to use and exploit such IP Material as if all 
the other Councils were the sole owner under the Copyright Design and Patents Act 
1988 or any other relevant statute or rule of law. 

14.4 For the avoidance of doubt, any entity or person who is at the date of this Agreement 
a party to this Agreement and who has licensed any Intellectual Property under this 
Agreement will have a non-exclusive, perpetual right to continue to use the licensed 
Intellectual Property. 

14.5 Each Council warrants that it has or will have the necessary rights to grant the 
licences set out in Clauses 14.2 and 14.3 in respect of the IP Material to be licensed. 

14.6 Each Council shall indemnify the other Councils against any loss arising out of any 
dispute or proceedings brought by a third party alleging infringement of its Intellectual 
Property rights by use of that Council's Intellectual Property for the purposes of the 
Project. 

14.7 Each Council agrees to execute such further documents and take such actions or do 
such things as may be reasonably requested by any other Council (and at the 
expense of the Council(s) making the request) to give full effect to the terms of this 
Agreement concerning management and control of Intellectual Property. 

15. LIABILITY OF THE COUNCILS 

15.1 The Lead Council shall indemnify and keep fully indemnified each of the other 
Councils to this Agreement against any losses, damage, claims, proceedings, 
expenses, actions, demands, costs and liabilities suffered by or incurred in respect of 
or in connection with: 

15.1.1 any damage to property, real or personal; and/or 

15.1.2 any injury to, or the death of, any person whomsoever; and/or 

15.1.3 any third party actions, claims or demands 

to the extent such damage, injury, death, third party actions, claims or demands arise 
from any breach by the Lead Council of its obligations under the Contract Documents 
or any negligent act, omission or default in relation to such obligations and the Lead 
Council shall make payment to the other Councils sums for which it becomes liable 
under this Clause 15.1 within twenty (20) Business Days of the date of another 
Council's written demand. 

15.2 No claim shall be made against the Lead Council to recover any loss or damage which 
may be incurred by reason of or arising out of the carrying out by the Lead Council of 
its obligations under this Agreement unless and to the extent such loss or damage 
arises from any breach by the Lead Council under Clause 15.1. 

15.3 Each of the other Councils (acting severally) shall indemnify and keep fully 
indemnified the Lead Council against any losses, damage, claims, proceedings, 
expenses, actions, demands, costs and liabilities suffered by or incurred in respect of 
or in connection with: 

15.3.1 any damage to property, real or personal; and/or 

Tudalen 262



 

33 
44267940.7\gh01 

15.3.2 any injury to, or the death of, any person whomsoever; and/or 

15.3.3 any third party actions, claims or demands 

if to the extent such damage, injury, death, third party actions, claims or demands 
arise from breach of the Contract Documents or from negligence or other act, 
omission or default on the part of the indemnifying party in relation to the Project and 
each Council shall make payment to the Lead Council sums for which it becomes 
liable under this Clause 15.3 within twenty (20) Business Days of the date of the Lead 
Council's written demand. 

15.4 The Councils agree and acknowledge that the amount to be paid to the Lead Council 
by any of the other Councils under Clause 15.3 shall be borne by each of the Councils 
to the extent of its responsibility, however in the event that the responsibility is a 
shared one between the Councils (so that it is not reasonably practicable to ascertain 
the exact responsibility between the Councils) then the amount to be paid shall be 
divided between the Councils who share such responsibility in such proportions as the 
Joint Committee may decide. 

15.5 In the event of a claim under this Clause 15 in which it is not reasonably practicable to 
determine the extent of responsibility as between the Councils (including the Lead 
Council), then the amount shall be divided between the Councils (including the Lead 
Council) as the Project Board may decide. 

15.6 A Council (including the Lead Council) who receives a claim for losses, expenses, 
actions, demands, costs and liabilities shall notify and provide details of such claim as 
soon as is reasonably practicable to the other Councils. 

15.7 Criminal fines or sanctions of individual Councils incurred through Council activities 
which are not in furtherance of the Project shall not be apportioned and the liability 
shall remain with the Council responsible for such fine or sanction. 

15.8 No Council shall be indemnified in accordance with this Clause 15 unless it has given 
notice in accordance with Clause 15.6 to the other Council against whom it will be 
enforcing its right to an indemnity under this Agreement. 

15.9 Each Council ("Indemnifier") shall not be responsible or be obliged to indemnify the 
other Councils (including the Lead Council) ("Beneficiary") to the extent that any 
insurances maintained by the Beneficiary at the relevant time provide an indemnity 
against the loss giving rise to such claim and to the extent that the Beneficiary 
recovers under such policy of insurance (save that the Indemnifier shall be 
responsible for the deductible under any such policy of insurance and any amount 
over the maximum amount insured under such policy of insurance).  

15.10 Any liability to the Contractor in respect of any indemnity (which for the avoidance of 
doubt shall include Compensation Events and any other remedy of the Contractor 
under the Project Agreement which results in a financial obligation on the Lead 
Council) contained within the Project Agreement shall be for the account of the 
Council in breach of the indemnity in question (and where such breach has not been 
caused wholly by one (1) Council in such proportions as are agreed or determined by 
the Joint Committee else in accordance with Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution) to reflect 
the respective liability of each Council). 

15.11 The Lead Council will have regard to, and to the extent not dealt with by the 
Contractor, administer all Project insurances in accordance with the provisions of the 
Project Agreement. 

15.12 The Councils shall ensure that adequate insurance cover is effected and maintained in 
respect of any liabilities they may have in the event of any neglect or default on their 
part. 

Tudalen 263



 

34 
44267940.7\gh01 

15.13 The Lead Council acting through the Project Board shall ensure that adequate 
insurance cover is effected and maintained in respect of any property and assets held 
by them for the purposes of the Joint Committee. 

16. WITHDRAWAL 

Termination by a Council is not Withdrawal 

16.1 For the avoidance of doubt Clause 2.3.1 (Termination) addresses early termination for 
breach by a Council. 

Withdrawal 

16.2 If for any reason any Council (including the Lead Council) determines to withdraw from 
this Agreement then Clauses 16.3 to 16.6 shall apply.  

16.3 If any Council wishes to withdraw from the Project it shall provide written notice to all 
the other Councils as soon as reasonably practicable ("Withdrawal Notice").  The 
Lead Council (or such other Council as nominated by the Joint Committee in the event 
that the Lead Council issues the Withdrawal Notice) shall within fourteen (14) days of 
receipt of the Withdrawal Notice provide to all the Councils a Liability Report which 
shall be discussed by the Joint Committee at its next meeting or a specially convened 
meeting if the next meeting falls more than two (2) weeks after the issue of the Liability 
Report. Those Councils who do not wish to withdraw from the Project shall have a 
duty, acting reasonably, to mitigate any losses which they suffer due to the financial 
and resource implications set out in the Liability Report. 

16.4 Within the Decision Period each Council shall indicate either:- 

16.4.1 that it withdraws from the Project and this Agreement; or  

16.4.2 that it wishes to continue with the Project and this Agreement. 

16.5 Where a Council does not indicate its intentions as required by Clause 16.4 then it 
shall at the expiry of the Decision Period be taken to have indicated that they wish to 
continue with the Project and this Agreement. 

16.6 Where a Council indicates that it wishes to withdraw from the Project in accordance 
with Clause 16.4.1 then:- 

16.6.1 the Council who shall have indicated its wish to withdraw shall pay all 
amounts due to be paid by it in accordance with the Liability Report within 
twenty (20) Business Days of the date of its notification under Clause 16.4.1 
and comply with its obligation to contribute to the Project up to the date of its 
withdrawal; and 

16.6.2 if in the event of such a withdrawal the Project timetable is delayed then the 
Council who shall have indicated its wish to withdraw may be responsible for 
any increased costs associated with such delay (as determined by the Joint 
Committee and notified as the sum payable in full and final settlement of 
such Council's liability, subject always to that Council meeting any additional 
antecedent liabilities incurred prior to the date of withdrawal). 

Effects of Withdrawal 

16.7 Unless agreed otherwise by the remaining Councils, the Council who shall have 
indicated its wish to withdraw from the Project shall not remove its appointees to the 
Project Board for a period of three (3) months commencing on the date of such 
Council's withdrawal, [provided that the costs associated with those appointees to the 
Project Board shall be borne by the remaining Councils to the Project and this 

Tudalen 264



 

35 
44267940.7\gh01 

Agreement in equal shares].  For the avoidance of doubt, the Council who shall have 
indicated its wish to withdraw from the Project acknowledges that its voting members 
shall remain on the Joint Committee but shall be unable to vote on matters pertaining 
to the Project with effect from the date of its confirmation under Clause 16.4.1. 

16.8 If the Lead Council is the withdrawing Council, then the Lead Council shall be 
required, prior to its withdrawal from the Project, to novate each of the Contract 
Documents (including but not limited to the Project Agreement, Independent Certifier's 
Appointment, Parent Company Guarantee) to the new lead Council as selected by the 
remaining Councils. 

16.9 [The Lead Council (and any subsequent lead council) (agrees that if it exercises its 
rights to withdraw from the Project pursuant to this Clause 16 (Withdrawal) then it shall 
transfer its interest in the Site to the new lead council (as selected by the remaining 
Councils), for use for the purposes of the Project only, in accordance with Clause [    ]. 

16.10 Any Council to which the Site is transferred acknowledges and agrees that upon 
expiry of the Project the Site shall be transferred back to Flintshire Council (at no cost 
to Flintshire Council.)] 

17. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

17.1 Subject to section 103 of the Act, any dispute arising in relation to any aspect of this 
Agreement shall be resolved in accordance with this Clause 17. The Councils 
undertake and agree to pursue a positive approach towards dispute resolution which 
seeks (in the context of this partnership between the Councils) to identify a solution at 
the lowest operational level that is appropriate to the subject of the dispute which 
avoids legal proceedings and maintains a strong working relationship between the 
Councils. Any interim determination will be applied but will be subject to the full 
dispute resolution procedure. 

General disputes or disagreements 

17.2 in the event of any dispute, disagreement or difference between the Councils relating 
to this Agreement (whether this may be a matter of contractual interpretation or 
otherwise) then save in relation to disputes or disagreements relating to a Matter 
Reserved To The Councils, the matter shall be dealt with by referral in the first 
instance to the Project Board who shall meet within ten (10) Business Days of 
notification of the occurrence of such dispute and attempt to resolve the disputed 
matter in good faith. 

Elevation of disputes 

17.3 If the Project Board fails to resolve a dispute or disagreement within [five (5) Business 
Days] of meeting pursuant to [Clause 17.2], or fails to meet in accordance with the 
timescales set out in [Clause 17.2], the dispute shall be referred to the Joint 
Committee for resolution at the next programmed meeting (or a special meeting of the 
Joint Committee shall be called to resolve the dispute as agreed by the Councils). 

17.4 In relation to a dispute or disagreement relating to a Matter Reserved To The 
Councils, or if the Joint Committee fails to resolve a dispute or disagreement within 
[five (5) Business Days] of meeting pursuant to Clause 17.3, then the Councils in 
dispute or the Joint Committee (as the case may be) may refer the matter for 
resolution to the Chief Executive(s) or equivalent officer(s) (as appropriate) of each of 
the Councils as a pre-condition to mediation followed by:  

17.4.1 a mediation facilitated by the President of the CIWM or his nominated 
representative or such other party as the Councils may agree (or the CIWM 
may direct) for resolution by them; or 

Tudalen 265



 

36 
44267940.7\gh01 

17.4.2 the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of England and Wales where a 
dispute or disagreement relates specifically to the vires of the Councils; 

and on referral to mediation or the Courts of England and Wales the Project 
Board shall furnish the Joint Committee with a briefing report on the dispute 
or disagreement for information. 

17.5 Any dispute and/or disagreement to be determined by the Chief Executives (as 
appropriate), CIWM or the Courts of England and Wales or such other body as agreed 
by the Councils (as the case may be) under this Agreement shall be promptly referred 
for determination to them and in any event within thirty (30) Business Days of the 
Project Board's failure to reach agreement. 

17.6 The Councils shall on request promptly supply to the Chief Executive(s) or CIWM (as 
the case may be) all such assistance, documents and information as may be required 
for the purpose of determination and the Councils shall use all reasonable endeavours 
to procure the prompt determination of such reference. 

17.7 If the CIWM is appointed to determine in dispute pursuant to Clause 17.5, then the 
CIWM shall be deemed to act as an expert and not as an arbitrator and its 
determination shall (in the absence of manifest error) be conclusive and binding upon 
the Councils. 

17.8 The costs of the resolution of any dispute and/or disagreement between the Councils 
under this Agreement shall be borne equally by the Councils to the dispute in question 
save as may be otherwise directed by the Chief Executive(s) (as appropriate), CIWM 
or the Courts of England (as the case may be). 

18. DATA PROTECTION  

18.1 In relation to all Personal Data, each Council shall at all times comply with the DPA,  
(as a data controller if necessary) which includes (but is not limited to) maintaining a 
valid and up to date registration or notification under the DPA covering the data 
processing activities to be performed in connection with the Project Tasks. 

18.2 Each Council:- 

18.2.1 shall process Personal Data belonging to any other Council only on the 
instructions of that Council (subject to compliance with applicable law); 

18.2.2 shall only undertake processing of Personal Data reasonably required in 
connection with the Project Tasks and shall not transfer any Personal Data 
to any country or territory outside the European Economic Area; and 

18.2.3 shall use all reasonable endeavours to procure that all relevant 
sub-contractors and the Contractor comply with this Clause 18.2. For the 
avoidance of doubt a relevant sub-contractor is one which processes 
Personal Data belonging to one or any of the Councils. 

18.3 The Councils shall not disclose Personal Data to any third parties other than:- 

18.3.1 to employees and sub-contractors and the Contractor to whom such 
disclosure is reasonably necessary in order for the Councils to carry out the 
Project Tasks; or 

18.3.2 to the extent required under a court order or to comply with any applicable 
laws including (but not limited to) any statute, bye law, European Directive or 
regulation, 

Tudalen 266



 

37 
44267940.7\gh01 

provided that any disclosure to sub-contractors or the Contractor under Clause 18.3.1 
shall be made subject to written terms substantially the same as, and no less stringent 
than, the terms contained in this Clause 18 and that the Councils shall give notice in 
writing to all other Councils of any disclosure of Personal Data belonging to them 
which they or a sub-contractor or the Contractor are required to make under 
Clause 18.3.2 immediately as they are aware of such a requirement. 

18.4 Any Council may, at reasonable intervals, request a written description of the technical 
and organisational methods employed by any other Council and the relevant 
sub-contractors referred to in Clause 18.3.1. Within five (5) Business Days of such a 
request, the Council requested to do so shall supply written particulars of all such 
measures as it is maintaining detailed to a reasonable level such that the requesting 
Council can determine whether or not, in connection with the Personal Data, it is 
compliant with the DPA.  All Councils shall use all reasonable endeavours to ensure 
that the sub-contractors and the Contractor also comply with such request from any 
other Council.   

18.5 All Councils shall ensure that any Personal Data they obtain and provide to any other 
Council has been lawfully obtained and complies with the DPA and that the use 
thereof in accordance with this Agreement shall not breach any of the provisions of the 
DPA. 

18.6 If:- 

18.6.1 under the DPA any Council is required to provide information to a data 
subject (as defined in the DPA) in relation to Personal Data when such data 
is in the possession or under control of any other Council; and 

18.6.2 the required Council informs the controlling Council in writing that this is the 
case, 

then the controlling Council shall guarantee reasonable and prompt co-operation to 
the required Council in meeting its obligations under the DPA including making copies 
of the relevant Personal Data to the extent the same are in its possession. 

18.7 Each Council shall provide the other as soon as reasonably practicable, with such 
information in relation to Personal Data  and their processing as the other Council may 
reasonably request in writing and the party asked to provide the relevant data may 
reasonably be able to provide in order for the other Council to:- 

18.7.1 comply with its obligations under this Clause and the DPA; and 

18.7.2 assess whether the processing of the relevant Personal Data in connection 
with this Agreement is breaching or may breach the DPA in a manner which 
is material and not effectively sanctioned by any guidance statement issued 
by the Information Commissioner. 

18.8 The Councils shall each take reasonable precautions (having regard to the nature of 
their respective obligations under this Agreement) to preserve the integrity of any 
Personal Data. 

19. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION 

19.1 Each Council acknowledges that the other Councils are subject to the requirements of 
the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (“FoIA”) and the Environmental Information 
Regulations 2004 (“EIR”) and each Council shall where reasonable assist and co-
operate with the other Councils (at their own expense) to enable the other Councils to 
comply with these information disclosure obligations.   

Tudalen 267



 

38 
44267940.7\gh01 

19.2 Where a Council receives a request for information under either the FoIA or the EIR in 
relation to information which it is holding on behalf of any of the other Councils in 
relation to the Project, it shall:- 

19.2.1 transfer the request for information to the other Councils as soon as  
practicable after receipt and in any event within two (2) Business Days of 
receiving a request for information; 

19.2.2 provide the other Councils with a copy of all information in its possession or 
power in the form that the Councils reasonably require within ten (10) 
Business Days (or such longer period as the Councils may specify) of the 
Council requesting that information; and 

19.2.3 provide all necessary assistance as reasonably requested by the other 
Councils to enable the Council to respond to a request for information within 
the time for compliance set out in the FoIA or the EIR. 

19.3 Where a Council receives a request for information under the FoIA or the EIR which 
relates to this Agreement or the Project, it shall inform the other Councils of the 
request for information as soon as practicable after receipt and in any event at least 
two (2) Business Days before disclosure and shall use all reasonable endeavours to 
consult with the other Councils prior to disclosure and shall consider all 
representations made by the other Councils in relation to the decision whether or not 
to disclose the information requested. 

19.4 The Councils shall be responsible for determining in their absolute discretion whether 
any information requested under the FoIA or the EIR:- 

19.4.1 is exempt from disclosure under the FoIA or the EIR; or 

19.4.2 is to be disclosed in response to a request for information. 

19.5 Each Council acknowledges that the other Councils may be obliged under the FoIA or 
the EIR to disclose information:- 

19.5.1 without consulting with the other Councils where it has not been practicable 
to achieve such consultation; or 

19.5.2 following consultation with the other Councils and having taken their views 
into account. 

20. CHANGES AND CHANGE IN LAW 

20.1 The Councils agree to be bound by the obligations on the Lead Council set out in 
[Clause 43 (Authority and Contractor Changes)] and Schedule 21 (Change Protocol) 
of the Project Agreement.  

20.2 In relation to any proposed variations under the Project Agreement (whether the 
proposed variation is a Qualifying Change in Law, an Authority Change, a Contractor 
Change) or any other matter affecting the Project which may have an equivalent 
effect, the Councils shall work with the Contractor to achieve the best value solution 
for the Project in respect of such Qualifying Change in Law, Authority Change, 
Contractor Change or any other such matter as described in this Clause 20.2. 

20.3 If, following a decision of the Contract Manager, the Project Board, the Joint 
Committee or the Councils (in respect of a Matter Reserved To The Councils) (as 
applicable) that the Councils decide to support a proposed variation under the Project 
Agreement, then Lead Council shall seek an Authority Change with the Contractor in 
the Project Agreement then: 

Tudalen 268



 

39 
44267940.7\gh01 

20.3.1 where the proposed Authority Change is agreed by the Contract Manager, 
the Project Board, the Joint Committee or the Councils (in respect of a 
Matter Reserved To The Councils) (as applicable) to have a mutual benefit 
to the Project the costs of such proposed Authority Change shall be shared 
between the Councils by agreement else in absence of agreement according 
to the [Cost Sharing Formula]; 

20.3.2 where the proposed Authority Change is agreed by the Contract Manager, 
the Project Board, the Joint Committee or the Councils (in respect of a 
Matter Reserved to the Councils) (as applicable) to not have a mutual 
benefit to the Project the Council seeking such Authority Change in the 
Project Agreement shall bear responsibility for payment and indemnify the 
other Councils to hold them harmless against losses caused to each other 
Council by such Authority Change; 

20.3.3 in requesting an Authority Change such proposing Council shall consider 
and address the impact on the other Councils; and 

20.3.4 where a potential Authority Change falls within the grounds set out in 
paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 21 (Change Protocol) of the Project 
Agreement such Authority Change shall not be proposed or implemented. 

21. STEP-IN TO THE PROJECT AGREEMENT 

21.1 The Councils acknowledge the provisions of Clause 33 (Authority Step-In) of the 
Project Agreement where the Lead Council has rights to step into service delivery 
where it reasonably believes that it needs to take action in connection with the 
services because a serious risk exists to the health and safety of persons or property 
or to the environment or to discharge a statutory duty.  

21.2 Under the provisions of Clause 33 (Authority Step-In) of the Project Agreement the 
Lead Council shall only be permitted to exercise such step in rights whereby the 
Councils agree to exercise such step in rights together and shall not be permitted to 
adopt differing approaches. 

22. TERMINATION OF THE PROJECT AGREEMENT 

22.1 Should the Lead Council become entitled to terminate the Project Agreement or 
otherwise serve a notice pursuant to Clause 67 (Termination for Contractor Default), 
Clause 69 (Termination on Force Majeure), Clause 71 (Termination on Corrupt Gifts 
and Fraud) and Clause 75 (Termination for Breach of the Refinancing Provisions) of 
the Project Agreement, the Councils shall meet as soon as reasonably practicable 
thereafter to decide as a Matter Reserved To The Councils whether the Project 
Agreement should be terminated (and for the avoidance of doubt no partial termination 
is contemplated, any changes of scope in the Project to be addressed as an Authority 
Change), taking into account: 

22.1.1 the point during the Project term at which termination of the Project 
Agreement would occur; 

22.1.2 the financial consequences of such termination and the rights of the 
Contractor pursuant to Schedule 17 (Compensation on Termination) of the 
Project Agreement; 

22.1.3 the financial consequences of continuing with the Project; 

22.1.4 the views of each Council concerning such termination; 

22.1.5 any alternative providers or means of provision of the works and/or services 
available to the Lead Council (and the other Councils); 

Tudalen 269



 

40 
44267940.7\gh01 

22.1.6 whether the Councils are required to step in to provide the works and/or 
services; and 

22.1.7 any other matters relevant to the termination or continuance of the Project. 

22.2 For the avoidance of doubt, the Lead Council shall not be entitled to issue a notice of 
voluntary termination in accordance with Clause 73 (Voluntary Termination by the 
Authority) of the Project Agreement unless such action has been approved by all of 
the Councils as a Matter Reserved To The Councils. 

23. COUNCILS' OBLIGATIONS FOLLOWING EXPIRY OR EARLIER TERMINATION 
OF THE PROJECT AGREEMENT 

Extension 

23.1 The Councils acknowledge that pursuant to Clause 3.3 of the Project Agreement, 
there is an option for the Authority to extend the Expiry Date by a period of up to five 
(5) years.  The Councils agree that any decision to extend the Expiry Date shall be a 
Matter Reserved To The Councils. 

23.2 The Councils shall determine no later than sixty (60) months prior to expiry of the 
Project Agreement, what information is required (if any) from the Contractor, which will 
enable the Councils to determine if any extension of the Expiry Date is required by the 
Councils.   

23.3 The Councils acknowledge that any decision to extend the Contract Period must be 
determined and notified to the Contractor no later than 36 months prior to the Expiry 
Date in accordance with Clause 3.3 of the Project Agreement. 

After Project expiry or earlier termination 

23.4 The Councils agree that, following expiry or earlier termination of the Project 
Agreement they shall, prior to termination of this Agreement, seek to agree such 
arrangements as are appropriate in respect of the continuing operation or otherwise of 
the Facilities in accordance with Clause 11 (Sites and Decommissioning). The 
Councils acknowledge however that on expiry of the Project there is no obligation on 
Flintshire Council to utilise the Site for any continued arrangements with Partnership 
(or any of the Councils separately) and any arrangements that are agreed in respect 
of the continued utilisation of the Site will need to be agreed and documented in a 
separate agreement.  

23.5 Subject to the provisions at Clause 11. The Councils assume that on early termination 
of the Project Agreement that leases and/or licences shall cross default with the 
Project Agreement and that [Allocated Sites] shall remain in the possession of the 
Council which acquired them and/or contributed them to the Project.     

Termination Payments 

[It is agreed in principle that the Councils shall be liable (and shall indemnify 
each other) for equal proportions of the termination sum payable to the 
Contractor following an early termination of the Project Agreement where the 
early termination occurs during the Works Period and prior to completion of the 
Facility.  If termination occurs during the Services Period, when the Facility is 
operational, then liability shall be determined on a pro-rata basis in respect of 
the actual tonnage delivered by each of the Councils. An exception to this 
principle applies in circumstances where one Council is wholly responsible for 
the termination, or the Councils are not equally at fault, in which case the 
Councils agree that the Council or Councils whose acts or omissions gave rise 
to the early termination shall be liable for a greater proportion of the termination 
sum or all of the termination sum.] 

Tudalen 270



 

41 
44267940.7\gh01 

23.6 The Councils shall be liable for (and indemnify each other) in the proportions 
described in the Cost Sharing Formula for the Termination Sum payable to the 
Contractor following the early termination of the Project Agreement, save in respect of 
any Termination Sum payable in accordance with Clause 66 (Compensation on 
Termination for Authority Default) or Clause 4.4 (Relevant Discharge Terms) and 
Schedule 28 (Relevant Discharge Terms) of the Project Agreement, in which case 
liability for payment of the Termination Sum shall rest with the Council responsible for 
such termination (and where such termination has not been caused wholly by a single 
Council in such proportions as are agreed or determined in accordance with Clause 
20 (Dispute Resolution) to reflect the respective liability of each Council and the 
concept of mutual benefit shall not apply).  

23.7 The Councils' liability on early termination of the Project Agreement shall be defined 
by reference to the Lead Council's obligation to pay compensation on early termination 
to the Contractor as follows: 

23.7.1 Clause 65 (Termination for Authority Default) and Part 2 of Schedule 17 
(Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement; 

23.7.2 Clause 67 (Termination for Contractor Default) and Part 3 of Schedule 17 
(Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement; 

23.7.3 Clause 69 (Termination on Force Majeure) and Part 5 of Schedule 17 
(Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement; 

23.7.4 Clause 71 (Termination on Corrupt Gifts and Fraud) and Part 4 of Schedule 
17 (Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement; 

23.7.5 Clause 73 (Voluntary Termination by the Authority) and Part 2 of Schedule 
17 (Compensation on Termination) of the Project Agreement; 

23.7.6 Any other provision within the Project Agreement that affects liability on 
termination of the Project Agreement; and 

23.7.7 Any other liability that the Lead Council may reasonably incur which flows 
from or is connected to the termination of the Project Agreement. 

23.8 Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement it is agreed that no Council 
shall be entitled to derive any financial or other benefit from an early termination event 
at the cost of any other Council. 

24. POLICIES 

24.1 In respect of the policies referred to in Schedule 13 (Authority Policies) of the Project 
Agreement, the policies of the Lead Council shall apply in relation to the operation of 
the Project Agreement within the Councils' administrative areas and to employees 
operating within those areas. 

25. CONFIDENTIALITY AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

25.1 The Councils shall comply with the confidentiality provisions of the Lead Council set 
out in the Project Agreement as if they were set out in this Agreement. 

25.2 Each Council ("Covenanter") shall, both during the currency of this Agreement and at 
all times following its termination or expiry, keep private and confidential and shall not 
use or disclose (whether for its own benefit or that of any third party) any Confidential 
Information about the business of and/or belonging to any other Council or the 
Contractor which has come to its attention as a result of or in connection with this 
Agreement, in particular (but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing) 
Confidential Information relating to the Project Agreement. 

Tudalen 271



 

42 
44267940.7\gh01 

25.3 The obligation set out in Clause 25.1 shall not relate to information which:- 

25.3.1 comes into the public domain or is subsequently disclosed to the public 
(other than through default on the part of the Covenanter or any other 
person to whom the Covenanter is permitted to disclose such information 
under this Agreement); or 

25.3.2 any disclosure to enable a determination to be made under Clause 17 
(Dispute Resolution); 

25.3.3 is required to be disclosed by law; or 

25.3.4 was already in the possession of the Covenanter (without restrictions as to 
its use) on the date of receipt; or 

25.3.5 is required or recommended by the rules of any governmental or regulatory 
body including any guidance from time to time as to openness and 
disclosure of information by public bodies; or 

25.3.6 is necessary to be disclosed to provide relevant information to any insurer or 
insurance broker in connection with obtaining any insurance required by this 
Agreement. 

25.4 Where disclosure is permitted under Clauses 25.3.3, 25.3.4 or 25.3.5, the recipient of 
the information shall be subject to a similar obligation of confidentiality as that 
contained in this Clause 25 and the disclosing Council shall make this known to the 
recipient of the information. 

25.5 No Council shall make any public statement (which shall include speaking or 
presenting at public conferences or other analogous situations) or issue any press 
release or publish any other public document relating, connected with or arising out of 
this Agreement and/or the Project Agreement (excluding any disclosure required by 
legal or regulatory requirements) without obtaining the prior written approval of the 
other Councils as to the contents thereof and the manner of its presentation and 
publication provided that prior approval shall be required if such public statement 
materially affects any Council. 

25.6 Each Council agrees to make available to the other Councils any books and records 
which may be required for the purposes of an internal audit and the Councils agree 
that any disclosure of such books and records to an appointed external auditor shall 
not breach the provisions of this Agreement. 

26. CONTRACTS (THIRD PARTY RIGHTS) 

The Councils as parties to this Agreement do not intend that any of its terms will be 
enforceable by virtue of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 by any person 
not a party to it. 

27. NOTICES 

27.1 Any notice or demand in connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and may 
be delivered by hand, prepaid first class post, special delivery post, facsimile or email 
(with a copy following by facsimile or post), addressed to the recipient at the address 
or facsimile number as the case may be set out in Schedule 4 (Addresses of the 
Councils) or such other recipient address or facsimile number as may be notified in 
writing from time to time by any of the parties to this Agreement to all the other 
Councils to this Agreement. 

27.2 The notice or demand shall be deemed to have been duly served:- 

Tudalen 272



 

43 
44267940.7\gh01 

27.2.1 if delivered by hand, when left at the proper address for service; 

27.2.2 if given or made by prepaid first class post or special delivery post, forty-
eight (48) hours after being posted (excluding days other than Business 
Days); 

27.2.3 if given or made by facsimile, at the time of transmission; 

27.2.4 if given or made by email, at the time of transmission, 

provided that, where in the case of delivery by hand or transmission by facsimile or 
email such delivery or transmission occurs either after 4.00pm on a Business Day or 
on a day other than a Business Day service shall be deemed to occur at 9.00am on 
the next following Business Day. 

27.3 For the avoidance of doubt, where proceedings to which the Civil Procedure Rules 
apply have been issued, the provisions of the Civil Procedure Rules must be complied 
with in respect of the service of documents in connection with those proceedings. 

27.4 Each Council shall notify the other Councils in writing within five (5) Business Days of 
any change in its address for service. 

28. GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in all respects in accordance with 
the laws of England and Wales.  Subject to Clause 17 (Dispute Resolution), the 
English and Welsh Courts shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes which 
may arise out of or in connection with this Agreement. 

29. ASSIGNMENTS 

29.1 The rights and obligations of the Councils under this Agreement shall not be assigned, 
novated or otherwise transferred (whether by virtue of any legislation or any scheme 
pursuant to any legislation or otherwise) save in circumstances of an amalgamation of 
the Councils to any person other than to any public body (being a single entity) 
acquiring the whole of the Agreement and having the legal capacity, power and 
authority to become a party to and to perform the obligations of the relevant Council 
under this Agreement being:- 

29.1.1 a Minister of the Crown pursuant to an Order under the Ministers of the 
Crown Act 1975; or 

29.1.2 any Local Authority which has sufficient financial standing or financial 
resources to perform the obligations of the relevant Council under this 
Agreement. 

30. WAIVER AND COSTS 

30.1 No failure or delay by any Council to exercise any right, power or remedy will operate 
as a waiver of it nor will any partial exercise preclude any further exercise of the same 
or some other right, power or remedy unless a waiver is given in writing by that 
Council. 

30.2 Each Council shall pay their own respective costs and expenses incurred in 
connection with the preparation, execution, completion and implementation of this 
Agreement, except as expressly provided for in this Agreement. 

30.3 Save where otherwise provided, the Councils will pay interest on any amount payable 
under this Agreement not paid on the due date from that date to the date of payment 

Tudalen 273



 

44 
44267940.7\gh01 

at a rate equal to two per cent (2%) above the base rate from time to time of Barclays 
Bank plc. 

31. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement contains all the terms which the parties have agreed in relation to the 
subject of this Agreement and supersedes any prior written or oral agreements, 
representations, communications, negotiations or understandings between the 
Councils relating to such subject matter.  No Council has been induced to enter into 
this Agreement or any of these documents by statement or promise which they do not 
contain, save that this Clause 31 shall not exclude any liability which one (1) Council 
would otherwise have to the other in respect of any statements made fraudulently by 
that Council. 

32. COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts each of which so 
executed shall be an original but together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

33. RELATIONSHIP OF COUNCILS 

Each Council is an independent body and nothing contained in this Agreement shall 
be construed to imply that there is any relationship between the Councils of 
partnership or (except as expressly provided in this Agreement) of principal/agent or of 
employer/employee. No Council shall have the right to act on behalf of another, make 
any representations or give any warranties to third parties on behalf or in respect of 
any other Council nor to bind (or hold themselves out as having authority or power to 
bind) any other Council by contract or otherwise except to the extent expressly 
permitted by the terms of this Agreement or where a statutory provision otherwise 
requires. In particular for the avoidance of doubt, none of the provisions relating to the 
principles of working in partnership shall create, or be deemed to create, any 
partnership as defined by The Partnership Act 1890. 

34. MITIGATION 

Each Council shall at all time take all reasonable steps to minimise and mitigate any 
loss for which the relevant Council is entitled to bring a claim against the other 
Council(s) pursuant to this Agreement. 

35. STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITIES 

Notwithstanding anything apparently to the contrary in this Agreement, in carrying out 
their statutory duties, the discretion of any Council shall not be fettered or otherwise 
affected by the terms of this Agreement. Nothing contained or implied herein shall 
prejudice or affect the Councils' rights and powers, duties and obligations in the 
exercise of their functions as Local Authorities and/or in any other capacity and all 
rights, powers, discretions, duties and obligations of the Councils under all laws may 
at all times be fully and effectually exercised as if the Councils were not a party to this 
Agreement and as if the Agreement had not been made. 

36. LOCAL GOVERNMENT (CONTRACTS) ACT 1997 

The certificate in respect of this Agreement to be provided by the Councils (not being 
the Lead Council) in respect of their powers to enter into this Agreement and support 
the Lead Council model whereby the Lead Council enters into the Project Agreement 
with the Contractor and accepts a contingent liability for the Relevant Discharge 
Terms (as defined in the Project Agreement) on behalf of itself assuming the other 
Councils are committed to underwriting their proportion of any compensation payable 
under the Relevant Discharge Terms pursuant to section 3 of the Local Government 

Tudalen 274



 

45 
44267940.7\gh01 

(Contracts) Act 1997 shall be provided by the Councils (not being the Lead Council) to 
the Lead Council on or before the date of this Agreement. 

37. VARIATIONS 

37.1 The Councils may vary the terms of this Agreement including admitting additional 
Councils to the Joint Committee, the terms of such admission to be agreed by the 
Councils. 

37.2 Where an additional Council is admitted to the Joint Committee it shall enter a deed of 
variation in a form agreed by the Joint Committee and from the date of its admittance 
to the Joint Committee all provisions of this Agreement shall apply to the admitted 
Council and the definition of “Councils” shall include it. 

37.3 No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by 
the duly authorised representatives of each of the Councils and expressed to be for 
the purpose of such amendment.  

37.4 The Councils shall endeavour to review this Agreement on an annual basis to monitor 
and reflect on the operation of the Project and the performance of the obligations set 
out in this Agreement. 

38. SEVERABILITY 

In the event of any provision of this Agreement being or becoming legally ineffective, 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable as declared by the courts of other competent authority 
the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be invalidated and the Councils 
shall negotiate in good faith in order to agree a mutually satisfactory substitute 
provision. 

AS WITNESSED the duly authorised representatives of the Councils have signed this 
Agreement as a deed on the date written at the beginning of this Agreement. 

Tudalen 275



 

46 
44267940.7\gh01 

 

SCHEDULE 1 – PROJECT TASKS  

[Note: The below table of Project Tasks will need to be monitored and updated to reflect the main body of the IAA as it progresses. Councils will 
need to review and confirm each of the Project Tasks.] 

TASK 

 

CLAUSE/ 

SCHEDULE 

CONTRACT 

MANAGER 

MATTER 

LEAD 

COUNCIL 

MATTER 

PROJECT BOARD 

MATTER 

JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

MATTER 

COUNCILS' 

MATTER/MATTER 

RESERVED TO 

THE COUNCILS' 

CABINETS 

1. Agree to terminate Agreement 2.2     Y 

2. Issue Default Notice for Council breach 
of Agreement 

2.2.1     Y 

3. Respond to Default Notice with 
Counternotice proposing remediation of 
Default Notice matters 

2.2.2     Y 

4. Issue of Notice of Acceptance or Notice 
of Dispute concerning Counternotice 
proposals to remediate beaches of 
Agreement 

2.2.3     Y 

5. Implement Notice of Acceptance 2.2.4      

6. Issue of written notice of termination of 
Agreement by Non-Defaulting Councils 
to Defaulter 

2.3.1      

7. Liability for losses caused due to 
termination by a Defaulter 

2.8.2      

8. Issue of Liability Report by Lead Council 
to Defaulter 

2.8.2      

9. Discussion of Liability Report     Y  

10. All necessary consents obtained      Y 

T
udalen 276



 

47 
44267940.7\gh01 

TASK 

 

CLAUSE/ 

SCHEDULE 

CONTRACT 

MANAGER 

MATTER 

LEAD 

COUNCIL 

MATTER 

PROJECT BOARD 

MATTER 

JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

MATTER 

COUNCILS' 

MATTER/MATTER 

RESERVED TO 

THE COUNCILS' 

CABINETS 

11. Share data and knowledge relevant to 
the Project 

3.4      

12. Conduct relationship in accordance with 
stated principles 

3.5      

13. Agreement that Flintshire Council shall 
be Lead Council 

4.1     Y 

14. Recognition of existence of Joint 
Committee and compliance with 
decisions delegated to Joint Committee 

4.2      

15. Deciding detailed scope of Lead Council 
role 

4.3.1    Y  

16. Deciding administrative and 
representative functions of the Lead 
Council 

4.3.2    Y  

17. Communicate representative functions to 
Contractor 

4.3.2  Y    

18. Consultation and reporting requirements 
between Lead Council and Joint 
Committee 

4.3.3    Y  

19. Act on behalf of Partnership in 
management and supervision of Project 

4.4.1  Y    

20. Acting under direction of Joint Committee 4.4.2  Y    

21. Act on behalf of other Councils 4.4.3  Y    

22. Liaising with Contractor and Contractor's 
representatives 

4.4.4  Y    

23. Participating in Liaison Committee under 
Project Agreement 

4.4.5  Y    

24. Act as employing authority for Lead 
Council staff or supervisor of Councils' 
seconded staff 

4.4.6  Y    

T
udalen 277



 

48 
44267940.7\gh01 

TASK 

 

CLAUSE/ 

SCHEDULE 

CONTRACT 

MANAGER 

MATTER 

LEAD 

COUNCIL 

MATTER 

PROJECT BOARD 

MATTER 

JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

MATTER 

COUNCILS' 

MATTER/MATTER 

RESERVED TO 

THE COUNCILS' 

CABINETS 

25. Legal point of contact for managing 
Project 

4.4.7  Y    

26. Providing additional resources and office 
facilities 

4.4.8  Y    

27. Providing senior officers to Project 4.4.9  Y    

28. Determining level of involvement of 
senior officers 

4.4.9    Y  

29. Responsibility for liaison and 
communication with WG and co-
ordination of communication and public 
relations 

4.4.10  Y    

30. Managing application of Annual Budget 
for Core Project Team and reporting to 
Project Board 

4.4.11  Y    

31. Reviewing Annual Budget expenditure  4.4.11   Y   

32. Having powers to enter into contracts 
with consultants 

4.4.11  Y    

33. Appointing a replacement Lead Council if 
the Lead Council defaults or withdraws 
from the Agreement 

4.5    Y  

34. Performing much of Lead Council role 4.6 Y     

35. Employing Contract Manager 4.7.1  Y    

36. Line manager of Contract Manager 4.7.1   Project Team   

37. No competing procurement to the Project 
unless outside the terms of the 
Agreement 

4.8      

38. Commitment to a minimum tonnage 
guarantee 

4.8     Y 

T
udalen 278



 

49 
44267940.7\gh01 

TASK 

 

CLAUSE/ 

SCHEDULE 

CONTRACT 

MANAGER 

MATTER 

LEAD 

COUNCIL 

MATTER 

PROJECT BOARD 

MATTER 

JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

MATTER 

COUNCILS' 

MATTER/MATTER 

RESERVED TO 

THE COUNCILS' 

CABINETS 

39. Warranty to comply with the Contract 
Documents (and indemnity in respect of 
loss) 

4.9     Y 

40. Co-operate in good faith 4.10     Y 

41. No exercise or waiver of right under 
Contract Documents without approval 

4.11     Y 

42. Primary interface with Contractor, WG, 
IUK and other bodies 

4.13  Y    

43. Overview and scrutiny responsibility 5.2     Y 

44. Provision of information on reasonable 
request of Joint Committee 

6.6     Y 

45. Consultation with Councils to allow 
diligent progress day to day 

6.7     Y 

46. Reimbursement of administrative costs 
and expenses of Joint Committee in 
accordance with Annual Budget 

6.7     Y 

47. Review of administrative costs and 
expenses of Joint Committee each year 
when draft Annual Budget prepared 

6.7   Y   

48. Consideration of administrative costs and 
expenses of Joint Committee each year 
when draft Annual Budget prepared 

6.8    Y  

49. Approval of administrative costs and 
expenses of Joint Committee each year 
when draft Annual Budget prepared 

6.8     Y 

50. Principle of reimbursement of first year 
costs and expenses of Joint Committee 

6.10.1     Y 

51. Recommendation of first year costs and 
expenses of Joint Committee 

6.10.2   Y   

52. Setting first year costs and expenses of 
Joint Committee 

6.10.2    Y  

T
udalen 279



 

50 
44267940.7\gh01 

TASK 

 

CLAUSE/ 

SCHEDULE 

CONTRACT 

MANAGER 

MATTER 

LEAD 

COUNCIL 

MATTER 

PROJECT BOARD 

MATTER 

JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

MATTER 

COUNCILS' 

MATTER/MATTER 

RESERVED TO 

THE COUNCILS' 

CABINETS 

53. Preparing a draft Annual Budget for the 
following Contract Year by 31 December 
in each Contract Year 

7.1   Y   

54. Consider and recommend a draft Annual 
Budget for the following Contract Year by 
31 December in each Contract Year 

7.1    Y  

55. Approval of Annual Budget 7.1     Y 

56. Approval to exceed Annual Budget 
(including contingency sums) 

7.3     Y 

57. Making available share of Annual Budget 
irrevocably to Lead Council 

7.4     Y 

58. Accountable body for the Joint 
Committee 

7.5   Y   

59. Oversee or procure monitoring of Annual 
Budget for Councils' scrutiny 

7.5    Y  

60. Contribute annual sum for Annual 
Budget spend year from spend profile 

7.7     Y 

61. Serve Annual Budget invoice on 
Councils at end of each Accounting 
Period 

7.7  Y    

62. Payment of Annual Budget invoice each 
Accounting Period 

7.7     Y 

63. Costs of providing internal resources  7.8     Y 

64. Approval of additional costs and external 
costs beyond Council internal resources 
approval (all within Annual Budget spend 
profile) 

7.8   Project Team <£5K 

Project Board 
>£5K 

  

65. Approval of additional costs and external 
costs beyond Council internal resources 
approval (not included within Annual 

7.9.1   Project Team   

T
udalen 280



 

51 
44267940.7\gh01 

TASK 

 

CLAUSE/ 

SCHEDULE 

CONTRACT 

MANAGER 

MATTER 

LEAD 

COUNCIL 

MATTER 

PROJECT BOARD 

MATTER 

JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

MATTER 

COUNCILS' 

MATTER/MATTER 

RESERVED TO 

THE COUNCILS' 

CABINETS 

Budget spend profile) 

66. Has Council carried out activity as 
efficient use of time? 

7.9.2   Y   

67. Decision on whether a Council internal 
resource costs are disproportionate 
compared to the Annual Budget spend 
profile 

7.10   Y   

68. Prior approval of all reports for decision 
by Joint Committee (except if 
impracticable due to special meeting) 

8.3.1   Y   

69. Monitor Project to ensure it remains 
within budget 

8.3.2   Y   

70. Make available officers as necessary for 
purposes of the Project 

9.1     Y 

71. Appoint the Project Officers for the 
purpose of the Project 

9.2  Y    

72. Provide necessary support to secure the 
effective achievement of the Project 

10.2     Y 

73. Prepare and keep up to date a draft 
Project Plan, work programme and 
resource plan for the Project 

11.1 Contract Manager     

74. Present the draft Project Plan, work 
programme and resource plan for the 
Project to the Project Board 

 
 

11.2   Project Team   

75. Decision on whether there is any 
significant change to the Project Plan, 
work programme and resource plan for 
the Project to be approved by the Joint 
Committee 

11.2   Y   

76. Approval of the Project Plan, work 
programme and resource plan for the 
Project 

11.3    Y  

T
udalen 281



 

52 
44267940.7\gh01 

TASK 

 

CLAUSE/ 

SCHEDULE 

CONTRACT 

MANAGER 

MATTER 

LEAD 

COUNCIL 

MATTER 

PROJECT BOARD 

MATTER 

JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

MATTER 

COUNCILS' 

MATTER/MATTER 

RESERVED TO 

THE COUNCILS' 

CABINETS 

77. Request to each Council for future 
budgetary provision and for resources 

11.3.1    Y  

78. Cost and terms of the acquisition and/or 
securing of the Allocated Sites 

12.1     Y 

79. Decision on whether to transfer or not to 
transfer a interest in an Allocated Site 
pursuant to Withdrawal or Termination of 
the Project 

12.2     Y 

80. Transfer an interest in a Allocated Site to 
one of the remaining Councils for the use 
for the Project pursuant to Withdrawal or 
Termination of the Project 

12.2.1    Y  

81. Liability for costs of provision of an 
alternative Site for the Project having 
equivalent operational effect  

12.2.2     Y 

82. Conduct a transfer of a interest in any 
Allocated Site at an undervalue of Market 
Value  

 

12.3     Y 

83. Receive any WG grant from 
[                    ] and payment to Councils 
of such credits or grant 

13.1  Y    

84. Payment of contributions towards 
funding the Project's annual unitary 
charge payment 

13.2     Y 

85. Monthly Contract Payment to the 
Contractor 

13.3  Y    

86. Responsibility for any adjustments or 
Deductions to the Contractor's invoice    

13.6 Contract Manager     

87. Payment of proportion of the Monthly 
Contract Payment to Flintshire Council  

13.7/ 13.8     Y 

88. Ensure that there are always cleared 
funds paid 

13.9     Y 

T
udalen 282



 

53 
44267940.7\gh01 

TASK 

 

CLAUSE/ 

SCHEDULE 

CONTRACT 

MANAGER 

MATTER 

LEAD 

COUNCIL 

MATTER 

PROJECT BOARD 

MATTER 

JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

MATTER 

COUNCILS' 

MATTER/MATTER 

RESERVED TO 

THE COUNCILS' 

CABINETS 

89. Review payment proportions as defined 
in Schedule 10 (Payment Proportions) on 
30 September following the Service 
Commencement Date and at one (1) 
yearly intervals thereafter 

13.13     Y 

90. Supply fair and objective criteria for 
review of payment proportions  

13.13   Y   

91. Consider adjustments, reconciliations or 
payments to recompense for significant 
anomalies in Project mutual benefit    

13.14   Y   

92. Power to make adjustments, 
reconciliations or payments to 
recompense for significant anomalies in 
Project mutual benefit    

13.14  Y    

93. Apportion any payment made by the 
Contractor 

13.15  Y    

94. Liability for any taxation or duty 
chargeable in the UK in respect to 
participation the Project 

13.16     Y 

95. Increase payment to negate any 
withholding or deduction required by law 
and provide any appropriate certificate 
as may be required by law showing the 
amount.  

13.17     Y 

96. Obtain any available relief or credit in 
respect of any such withholding or 
deduction regarding taxation and provide 
information reasonably required with 
making a claim for relief 

13.18     Y 

1. Prepare accounts including expenditure 
incurred pursuant to the Annual Budget  

14.2     Y 

2. Determine Accounting Period  in relation 
to AB Accounts 

 

14.2   Y   

T
udalen 283



 

54 
44267940.7\gh01 

TASK 

 

CLAUSE/ 

SCHEDULE 

CONTRACT 

MANAGER 

MATTER 

LEAD 

COUNCIL 

MATTER 

PROJECT BOARD 

MATTER 

JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

MATTER 

COUNCILS' 

MATTER/MATTER 

RESERVED TO 

THE COUNCILS' 

CABINETS 

3. Ensure true and complete entries of all 
relevant payments  and receipts in the 
AB Accounts 

14.3.1     Y 

4. Provide the Lead Council with unaudited 
AB Accounts for an Accounting period 
with certification that such AB Accounts 
comply with this agreement  

14.3.2     Y 

5. Nominate and notify to the other 
Councils the name, address and 
telephone number of an individual 
responsible for ensuring that Council 
complies with Clause 14 of this 
agreement 

14.3.3     Y 

6. Prepare and send a reconciliation 
statement with either a balancing invoice 
or credit payment 

14.3.4  Y    

7. Notify a change to the nominated 
individual pursuant to Clause 14 

 

14.4     Y 

8. Maintain an up to date register of the 
assets and committed liabilities of each 
Council in relation to the Joint Committee 

14.6  Y    

9. Grant a non-exclusive, perpetual, non-
transferable and royalty free licence to 
use, modify, amend and develop its IP 
Material for the Project Tasks 

 

15.2     Y 

10. Indemnify any loss arising out of any 
dispute or proceedings brought by a third 
party alleging infringement of its 
Intellectual Property rights 

15.6     Y 

11. Indemnify against any losses, damage, 
claims, proceedings, expenses, actions, 
demands, costs and liabilities in 

16.1/ 16.3  Y   Y 

T
udalen 284



 

55 
44267940.7\gh01 

TASK 

 

CLAUSE/ 

SCHEDULE 

CONTRACT 

MANAGER 

MATTER 

LEAD 

COUNCIL 

MATTER 

PROJECT BOARD 

MATTER 

JOINT 

COMMITTEE 

MATTER 

COUNCILS' 

MATTER/MATTER 

RESERVED TO 

THE COUNCILS' 

CABINETS 

connection with any damage to property; 
any injury to, or death of any person; and 
any third party actions, claims or 
demands  

12. Determine the extent of responsibility of 
responsibility in the event of a claim 

16.5   Y   

13. Notify and provide details of a claim for 
losses, expenses, actions, demands, 
costs and liabilities 

16.6     Y 

14. Allocate any sums paid by the Contractor 16.11     Y 

15. Administer all Project insurances in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
Project Agreement 

16.2  Y    

16. Ensure that adequate insurance cover is 
effected and maintained in respect of any 
liabilities 

16.14     Y 

17. Ensure adequate insurance cover is 
effected and maintained in respect of any 
property and assets held by them for the 
purposes of the Joint Committee 

16.15  Y Y   

18. Provide written Withdrawal Notice 17.3     Y 

19. Provide a Liability Report that is 
discussed by the Joint Committee  

17.3  Y   Y (If nominated by 
JC) 

 

T
udalen 285



 

56 
44267940.7\gh01 

SCHEDULE 2 - JOINT COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE 

PART 1 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

[DN: The terms of reference of the Joint Committee require review and consideration by 
the Councils.] 

1. The terms of reference of the Joint Committee are:- 

1.1 to promote joint working in the delivery of the Project through:- 

1.1.1 facilitating constructive partnership working; 

1.1.2 engaging with key interested bodies and stakeholders when appropriate; 
and 

1.1.3 carrying out such other activities calculated to facilitate, or which are 
conducive to the successful delivery of the Project; and 

1.2 to ensure that the Project is developed in accordance with good industry practice, is in 
the best interests of all Councils and delivers value for money. 

2. The key functions of the Joint Committee are to:- 

2.1 consider and make recommendations concerning the Councils' collective budget for 
the Project on an annual basis noting: 

2.1.1 the predicted outturn of the Councils' collective payments to the Contractor 
for services received under the Project Agreement as approved by the 
Councils; 

2.1.2 the profile of such payments described as Monthly Payments of Unitary 
Charge; and  

2.1.3 the draft Annual Budget prepared by the Project Board and approved by 
each Council;  

2.2 consider and make recommendations in respect of all Contract Documents in relation 
to the Project; 

2.3 to monitor and manage the risks associated with the Project 

2.4 address at a members' level any issues raised by the Councils' representatives on the 
Liaison Committee (pursuant to the Project Agreement) which require discussion; and 

2.5 to ratify requests for additional funding from individual Councils. 

3. For the avoidance of doubt, the following matters are Matters Reserved To The 
Councils i.e. reserved for an individual Council decision:- 

3.1 approval of inter-Council partnership governance arrangements; and 

3.2 increase of budget over agreed Council contributions. 

4. The key responsibilities of the Joint Committee include those tasks set out in Schedule 
1 (Project Tasks) which are each designated as a "Joint Committee Matter" and in 
addition the following:- 

Tudalen 286



 

57 
44267940.7\gh01 

4.1 providing strategic direction to the Project Board; 

4.2 receiving and reviewing the Contractor's summary of its performance under the 
Project Agreement which is issued each quarter; 

4.3 receiving and reviewing the Project monitoring update which is issued each year; 

4.4 promoting partnership working between the Councils; 

4.5 adherence to the Data Protection Policy as set out at Appendix 1 (Data Protection 
Policy); 

4.6 approval of the annual Governance Statement which shall be published with the 
annual account at the end of each financial year; 

4.7 consideration of the Annual Budget and recommendation of the same to the Councils 
for approval in accordance with Clause [    ]; 

4.8 preparation of statutory accounts pursuant to The Accounts and Audit (Wales) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2010; 

4.9 ensuring that the Lead Council provides all financial and statistical reports on an open 
book basis upon request by the Councils or their internal or external auditors, 
permitting any such authorised persons to inspect, audit and take copies of all reports, 
books, accounting records, vouchers and any other documents considered relevant 
and seek reasonable explanations for any matter under examination; and 

4.10 ensuring that the Lead Council's internal audit service provides an annual statement of 
assurance to the Councils regarding the payment process and Project monitoring 
arrangements which will be provided by 30 June each year. 

 

Tudalen 287



 

58 
44267940.7\gh01 

PART 2 

CONSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS 

1. Subject to Clause 4.5 (Duties of the Lead Council and Other Councils), each Council 
shall appoint two (2) elected members of their [executive or Cabinet], both of whom 
shall be voting members, as their representatives to the Joint Committee.  

2. Members of the Joint Committee shall be appointed in accordance with the standing 
orders of that Council. 

3. In appointing members to the Joint Committee, each Council will include among its 
appointees, unless there are overriding reasons to the contrary, the member of the 
[Cabinet] of that Council who has portfolio responsibility for waste management 
functions within that Council. 

4. Each member of the Joint Committee shall be empowered to have the delegated 
authority of his or her Council to make binding decisions in relation to the Project. In 
the event that any member is unable to make a decision the matter will be referred to 
the respective Council at an appropriate level (including but not limited to Council 
leader or Council [Cabinet]) and a binding decision will be made by such Council as 
soon as reasonably practicable and in any event within forty (40) Business Days. 

5. Each member of the Joint Committee shall have responsibility for championing the 
Project within their own Council and for securing, as far as possible that any matter 
which is recommended to that Council by the Joint Committee for decision shall be 
considered and determined expeditiously and having due regard to the benefits to 
each Council of the joint procurement and implementation of the Project. 

6. Each Council shall also appoint one (1) substitute member in the event that appointed 
members are unable or incapable of discharging their functions. 

7. Each Council's substitute member shall be entitled to attend meetings of the Joint 
Committee but shall only be entitled to vote in the absence of his or her corresponding 
voting member. 

8. Each Council may, at their discretion, replace their representatives appointed to the 
Joint Committee, provided that:- 

(a) at all times, they have representatives appointed to the Joint 
Committee in accordance with the roles identified in  Part 1 of this 
Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference); and 

(b) any such replacement nominated in writing on not less than five (5) 
Business Days' notice shall have no lesser status or authority than 
that set out in Part 1 of this Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms of 
Reference) unless otherwise agreed by the Councils. 

9. The Chair of the Joint Committee shall be an elected Executive or Board member of a 
Council appointed by the Joint Committee pursuant to paragraph 11. 

10. The Vice-Chair of the Joint Committee shall be an elected executive member of a 
Council appointed by the Joint Committee pursuant to paragraph 11.  In the absence 
of the Chair for any reason, the responsibilities of the Chair can be discharged by the 
Vice-Chair. 

11. The Chair and the Vice-Chair of the Joint Committee shall be elected at the annual 
general meeting and appointments shall take effect until the next annual general 
meeting. The Chair will be nominated by annual rotation between the Councils 
commencing with a Flintshire Council member of the Joint Committee and the 

Tudalen 288



 

59 
44267940.7\gh01 

subsequent order of rotation for the following two (2) years shall be agreed by the 
Joint Committee. 

12. The Joint Committee shall meet as and when required to suit the needs of the Project 
in accordance with the Project timetable provided that there shall be a minimum of two 
(2) meetings per year, one (1) of which shall be specified as the annual general 
meeting and, subject to paragraph 13, at appropriate times and on reasonable notice 
(to be issued through the Project Team) to carry out the Joint Committee Matters 
referred to in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks). The venue for the meetings shall be agreed 
by the Joint Committee. 

13. A printed copy of the agenda and reports for each meeting and the minutes of the 
previous meeting shall be despatched at least five (5) Business Days before such 
meeting is to be held to each representative appointed to the Joint Committee. The 
Chief Executive of the Lead Council shall use reasonable endeavour to procure that 
the agenda and all relevant papers meet this deadline. All agendas, reports and 
minutes in relation to the Joint Committee shall be in English. 

14. The quorum necessary for a Joint Committee Meeting shall be five (5) members of the 
Joint Committee comprising at least one (1) member from each of the Councils from 
each Council (in person but not by telephone). 

15. Each Council shall be entitled to invite appropriate third parties to observe Joint 
Committee Meetings and such third parties shall be entitled to be present in support of 
such Joint Committee Meetings at the discretion of the Chair of the Joint Committee. 
Such observers shall not have a vote.  For the avoidance of doubt, the section 151 
officer and/or monitoring officer for each Council shall be entitled to attend and 
participate in Joint Committee Meetings in a non-voting capacity. 

16. Save as is inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement the Council Procedure Rules 
and Contract Procedure Rules of the Lead Council shall apply. 

17. At meetings of the Joint Committee each elected voting member or appropriate deputy 
appointed pursuant to paragraph 1 above from each Council shall have one (1) vote. 
Decisions at meetings of the Joint Committee must be unanimous.  

18. The Joint Committee shall have the powers to make decisions and recommendations 
within its terms of reference as set out in Part 1 of this Schedule 2 (Joint Committee 
Terms of Reference) but shall not have power to approve any Matter Reserved To 
The Councils pursuant to Clause 5.1.4 (Decision Making). 

19. The Joint Committee decisions shall comply with the Core Policies of the Councils. If 
the Joint Committee proposes to make a decision contrary to the Core Policies then 
those decisions must be referred to each Council for resolution as a Matter Reserved 
To The Councils. 

20. Reports to be submitted to the Joint Committee (including those pertaining to the 
Annual Budget) shall be considered by the Project Board prior to submission to the 
Joint Committee. 

21. The Chair may summon a special meeting of the Joint Committee at any time by 
written notice to the Lead Council specifying the business to be considered at the 
special meeting. 

22. A special meeting shall be summoned on the requisition in writing of any Joint 
Committee Members acting on behalf of his or her Council, which requisition shall 
specify the business to be considered at the special meeting. 

23. Arrangements for holding a special meeting will be in accordance with the timetable 
set out in paragraph 12. 

Tudalen 289



 

60 
44267940.7\gh01 

24. In the event that a special meeting is called the Lead Council shall notify all members 
of the Project Board as a matter of urgency. 

Tudalen 290



 

61 
44267940.7\gh01 

SCHEDULE 3 - PROJECT BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

[DN: THE TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE PROJECT BOARD REQUIRE REVIEW AND 
CONSIDERATION BY THE COUNCILS.] 

1. The Project Board will manage the progress and implementation of the Project 
including identifying all works necessary to be carried out and instructing the internal 
and external financial, legal, procurement and technical advisors to carry out the 
same. The Project Team shall be empowered (within pre-agreed parameters) to deal 
direct with the Contractor and other third parties. 

2. The Project Board will act as a representative for each of the Council’s "Corporate 
Officer Management Team" described in Schedule 4 (Addresses of the Councils) to 
ensure consistency with individual Council objectives and visions. 

3. The Project Board will consider and determine those matters allocated to it in 
Schedule 1 (Project Tasks). 

4. The Project Board will as and when necessary report to the Joint Committee and 
provide advice to the Joint Committee on those matters referred to the Joint 
Committee as set out in Schedule 1 (Project Tasks) and Schedule 2 (Joint Committee 
Terms of Reference). 

5. For the avoidance of doubt (as set out in Clause 8.3) the following specific functions 
are given to the Project Board:- 

(a) prior approval of all reports for decision by the Joint Committee 
save if impracticable in the case of a special meeting;  

(b) preparation of the draft Annual Budget; 

(c) monitor the Project to ensure that it remains within budget; 

(d) to provide strategic guidance to the Project to ensure that it 
delivers the desired outcomes for the Councils; 

(e) to ensure that the Project and Partnership is presented positively to 
external stakeholders; 

(f) to oversee the Project’s progress to ensure it is delivered within 
agreed timescales; 

(g) to approve the completion of each stage of the Project before sign 
off; 

(h) to review and approve, as appropriate, key documents relating to 
the Project such as the Contract Documents; 

(i) to ensure that the Project is sufficiently resourced in regard to 
finance and staffing; 

(j) to approve the  scope of work, selection, and terms of engagement 
of advisors; 

(k) to approve Project reviews and ensure that action is taken against 
any recommendations made; and 

(l) to agree items for presentation to Joint Committee for approval or 
information. 

Tudalen 291



 

62 
44267940.7\gh01 

SCHEDULE 4 - ADDRESSES OF THE COUNCILS 

[DN: Details taken from the First Inter-Authority Agreement.  Councils to confirm any 
required amendments.] 

RECIPIENT'S 
NAME 

ADDRESS FAX 
NO. 

EMAIL CORPORATE 
OFFICER 

MANAGEMENT 
TEAM 

Conwy 
County 
Borough 
Council:-    

 

Bodlondeb, 
Conwy, 
North 
Wales LL32 
8DU  

01492 
576116 

Janet.Jones@conwy.gov.uk Executive 
Group 

Denbighshire 
County 
Council:-  

Head of 
Corporate 
Governance 

County 
Hall, 
Wynnstay 
Road, 
Ruthin 
LL15 1YN 

01824 
706293 

Legal@denbighshire.gov.uk Senior 
Leadership 

Team 

Flintshire 
County 
Council:-  

Head of Legal 
and 
Democratic 
Services 

County 
Hall, Mold, 
Flintshire 
CH7 6NB 

01352 
702494 

Gareth.Legal@flintshire.gcsx.gov.uk Corporate 
Management 

Team 

Gwynedd 
Council:-  

Head of 
Democracy 
and Legal 
Service 

Council 
Offices, 
Shirehall 
Street, 
Caernarfon, 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH  

01286 
679466 

IwanGDEvans@gwynedd.gov.uk Leadership 
Group 

Isle of 
Anglesey 
County 
Council:-  

Corporate 
Director, 
Department 
of 
Environment 
and Technical 
Services 

Council 
Offices, 
Llangefni, 
Anglesey 
LL77 7TW  

01248 
752132 

rbxcs@anglesey.gov.uk Corporate 
Management 

Team 

Tudalen 292



 

63 
44267940.7\gh01 

SCHEDULE 5 - ANNUAL BUDGET 

For the avoidance of doubt the Annual Budget is required for the Joint Committee to note the 
Project Board's recommendations for funding the Lead Council's obligations under this 
Agreement. 

The Annual Budget does not include the Unitary Charge payment due under the Project 
Agreement as envisaged by the Final Business Case and as approved by the Councils. 

The following is a non-exhaustive list of the heads of expenditure that may be expected to be 
incurred by the Councils in relation to the Project Tasks: 

1. internal expenditure (staff costs and associated overheads); 

2. internal financial support; 

3. internal legal support; 

4. other professional services (including asset management, architects, quantity 
surveyors, surveyors, procurement and planning); 

5. communications;  

6. external expenditure (staff costs and associated overheads); 

7. Project management/technical and administrative support; 

8. financial advisors; 

9. technical advisors; 

10. insurance advisors; 

11. legal advisors; 

12. other professional services (including asset management, architects, QS, surveyors, 
procurement, site investigation, remediation and planning); 

13. waste analysis; 

14. ICT; 

15. communications advisors; 

16. associated overheads may include such expenses as travel expenses, room hire, 
printing, accommodation and ICT costs; and 

17. agreement to the incurring of costs and the appropriateness of sharing such costs 
between the Councils will be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

Tudalen 293



 

64 
44267940.7\gh01 

SCHEDULE 6 - ACCOUNTING PERIODS 

[DN: Details to be confirmed by the Councils.] 

 

 

 

Start of Accounting 
Period 

End of Accounting 
Period 

1 April 30 June 

1 July 30 September 

1 October 31 December 

1 January 31 March 

Tudalen 294



 

65 
44267940.7\gh01 

SCHEDULE 7 - LIABILITY REPORT 

The Liability Report shall include (but shall not be limited to:- 

 Amount  (all figures in round pounds) 

Staff costs (and associated overheads) 
in progressing the Project:- 

• consultancy and advisors 
fees (legal, financial, 
technical, insurance etc.);   

• internal Project 
management and 
monitoring; 

• internal professional 
advice. 

 

Loss of funding support from Welsh 
Government. 

 

 

Losses incurred due to:- 

• loss of guaranteed Third Party 
Income identified in the 
Contractor's base case 
financial model; 

• liability on the remaining 
Councils to pay an increased 
proportion of the Unitary 
Charge payments due to the 
Contractor under the Project 
Agreement; 

• where a Council withdraws 
from or is terminated from this 
Agreement  a payment in lieu 
of transferring an Allocated Site 
to a nominated Council (that is, 
the reasonably determined 
Market Value or an appropriate 
substitute site or sites from 
which the Contractor can 
deliver an equivalent level of 
service and which holds 
harmless the remaining 
Councils from additional 
payments to the Contractor; 

• loss of non-guaranteed Third 
Party Income; 

• loss of electricity revenues; and 

• the cost of acquiring additional 

 

Tudalen 295



 

66 
44267940.7\gh01 

 Amount  (all figures in round pounds) 

LAS allowances as a 
consequence of the withdrawal 
or termination (as the case may 
be) by a Council. 

Any other losses, costs, claims and 
damages arising from the remaining 
Councils within the Project 
recommissioning alternative service 
provision if the Project is no longer 
viable and the Project Agreement is 
terminated. 

 

Costs incurred by the Lead Council as 
certified by the Project Section 151 
Officer and as approved by the Project 
Board as appropriate. 

 

Recognition of any mitigating factors 
including a substitute waste source 
(whether an additional local authority 
beyond the Councils or otherwise). 

 

 
Certified as correct ___________________________  ________________________ 
 
          (Signed)          (Date) 

Tudalen 296



 

67 
44267940.7\gh01 

SCHEDULE 8 - SITE 

Site  Site Address 
(the Site being 
more 
particularly 
identified 
shown edged 
red on the 
relevant Site 
Plan)  
 

Land Registry 
Title Number(s)  

Freehold/Lease
hold  

Deeside  Land at Deeside 
Industrial Park, 
Deeside, 
Flintshire  

CYM316351  Freehold 

 

Tudalen 297



 

68 
44267940.7\gh01 

SCHEDULE 9 - PAYMENT PROPORTIONS 

 
[DN: Finance to provide details for inclusion. However, agreed principles are noted 
below.  

It is noted that the Schedule shall incorporate a table which identifies in respect of each 
of the Councils, the forecast Contract Waste tonnages and respective cost sharing 
percentages.] 

Cost Sharing Principles in respect of Waste Treatment and Transport  

1. Payments to the Contractor for the treatment and transport of Waste will be based on 
the actual tonnages delivered by each of the Councils, subject to not exceeding the 
forecast tonnages. 

2. Where tonnage delivered by a Council exceeds the forecast tonnages, the Council 
delivering such excess tonnage shall be solely responsible for the costs associated 
with the treatment and transport of such tonnage. 

3. Where the tonnages are below the guaranteed minimum tonnage the guaranteed 
minimum tonnage as applicable to each Council will be deemed to be the tonnage 
delivered by the relevant Council. 

4. In the event that the tonnages delivered to the Contractor are below the guaranteed 
minimum tonnage, the Council not meeting its requirements will pay on the basis of 
the guaranteed minimum tonnage and this will result in an 'excess payment'. 

Excess Payments 

Excess payments shall be 'placed in a reserve' to be used by the Councils (at the Joint 
Committees discretion) to fund project expenses, or be shared on a periodic basis or at the end 
of the Project utilising the percentages used to allocate the tonnage bandings.  

Additional Income and Windfall Gains 

The Councils agree that any additional income shall be shared between each of the Councils on 
a pro-rata basis proportional to the actual tonnage delivered by each Council. 

Mechanism to re-align Tonnage Bands 

It is agreed in principle that the IAA should contain provisions to allow for a readjustment of the 
tonnage bands as and when required to more closely reflect any changes in proportions of 
Waste arising in the Partnership.  An Annual Review of the tonnages shall be conducted and 
the Joint Committee shall decide on any necessary adjustments.  

Tudalen 298



 

69 
44267940.7\gh01 

APPENDIX 1 

DATA PROTECTION POLICY 

 

[Policy to be inserted]

Tudalen 299



 

44267940.7\gh01 70 

The Common Seal of CONWY COUNTY ) 
BOROUGH COUNCIL was   ) 
hereunto affixed in the presence of:-  ) 
 

Authorised Sealing Officer 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Common Seal of DENBIGHSHIRE  )      
COUNTY COUNCIL was   ) 
hereunto affixed in the presence of:-  ) 
 

Chairman 
 
Authorised Signatory (Head of Legal 
Services/Legal Services Manager)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
The Common Seal of FLINTSHIRE  ) 
COUNTY COUNCIL was   ) 
hereunto affixed in the presence of:-  ) 
 

Chairman 
 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The Common Seal of GWYNEDD  ) 
COUNCIL was     ) 
hereunto affixed in the presence of:-  ) 

 
Authorised Signatory 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Common Seal of ISLE OF    ) 
ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL was  ) 
hereunto affixed in the presence of:-  ) 
 

Authorised Signatory 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 300



Appendix 4 
STATEMENT OF DATA PROTECTION POLICY & PRACTICE – NORTH 
WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The North Wales Residual Waste Joint Committee comprises two 

elected Councillors from each of the following North Wales authorities:- 
 

• Conwy County Borough Council 

• Denbighshire County Council 

• Flintshire County Council 

• Gwynedd County Council 

• Isle of Anglesey County Council 
 
1.2 Flintshire County Council is the lead authority and has entered into an 

inter-authority agreement with the other four authorities which sets out 
the constitution of the Joint Committee and its decision making powers.  
In addition to the Data Protection policies in place for each constituent 
authority it has been decided to have a Data Protection policy for the 
Joint Committee. 

 
1.3 The Joint Committee is supported by a project team of officers who use 

a stakeholder management database to track and manage 
communications and engagements with stakeholders and the public.  
The Joint Committee also processes personal information in relation to 
procurement processes whereby the employment details of two 
members of staff likely to be affected is passed to bidding companies 
for pricing purposes.  These examples of the processing of personal 
information have led to the need for this Statement of Data Protection 
Policy & Practice. 

 
1.4 The processing of personal information is regulated by the Data 

Protection Act 1998 (“The Act”) and the Joint Committee regards the 
lawful and correct treatment of personal information as very important 
to its successful operation and in maintaining confidence between it 
and those with whom it carries out business. 

 
2.0 The Principles of Data Protection 

2.1 The Act stipulates that anyone processing personal data must comply 
with Eight Principles of good practice.  These Principles are legally 
enforceable. 

2.2 The Principles require that personal information: 

1. Shall be processed fairly and lawfully and in particular, shall not be 
processed unless specific conditions are met; 

Tudalen 301



2. Shall be obtained only for one or more specified and lawful 
purposes and shall not be further processed in any manner 
incompatible with that purpose or those purposes; 

3. Shall be adequate, relevant and not excessive in relation to the 
purpose or purposes for which it is processed; 

4. Shall be accurate and where necessary, kept up to date; 
5. Shall not be kept for longer than is necessary for that purpose or 

those purposes; 
6. Shall be processed in accordance with the rights of data subjects 

under the Act; 
7. Shall be kept secure i.e. protected by an appropriate degree of 

security; 
8. Shall not be transferred to a country or territory outside the 

European Union Area, unless that country or territory ensures an 
adequate level of data protection. 

3.0 Processing of Personal Information 
 
3.1 The Joint Committee will through the Project Manager and Project 

Team ensure that personal information is processed in accordance 
with the Act and the 8 principles in paragraph 2.2. 

 
3.2 As the lead authority is Flintshire the Joint Committee is covered by 

Flintshire’s notification to the Information Commissioner’s office.  The 
corporate Data Protection procedures applying in Flintshire will also 
apply to the Joint Committee covering such matters as subject access 
requests, violent warning markers and Data Protection complains. 

 
3.3 The responsibility for ensuring compliance rests with the Project 

Manager.  Where advice is needed on Data Protection matters it can 
be obtained from the relevant officers in Flintshire’s Legal & 
Democratic Services department.  Guidance is available on Flintshire’s 
Infonet as well as on the website of the Information Commissioner’s 
office. 

 

Tudalen 302



 

 
Appendix 5 

REPORT TO:  [INSERT RELEVANT COMMITTEE NAME] 
 
DATE:  [DATE] 
 
REPORT BY:   NWRWTP PROJECT MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:   PROJECT BUDGET REVISION 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1. To present the revised budget for 2013/14 for Members’ approval. 

1.2. To present the budget to the procurement stage of Financial Close for 
2014/15 for Members approval.  

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. The contents of this report were considered by the Joint Committee at their 

meeting of 29 January 2014 and it was agreed that it be recommended for 
approval by the partner authorities.  

2.2. The Joint Committee approved a project budget to the stage of Preferred 
Bidder selection at it’s meeting in July 2013. The approved budget for the 
year 2013/14 was £455,862 within a total net projected project expenditure 
of £3,000,367 summarised in the table below. 

 

 

2.3. Before calling for final tender Wheelabrator Technologies Inc (WTI) 
provided a price update paper to the NWRWTP Project team. The paper 
indicated that WTI’s CFT submission would represent a significant increase 
in costs to that set out in WTI’s refined ISDS submission. This unexpected 
development created an extra demand on resources to examine WTI’s 
position in detail and consider alternative options of service delivery. 

 
2.4. At the September 2013 meeting of the NWRWTP Joint Committee the 

Project Manager advised Members that as a result of the additional work 
undertaken there would be an increase in expenditure and the project 
budget would have to be re-visited. 

 
2.5. The first Inter-Authority Agreement (IAA) regulates the procurement project 

up to the position of Financial Close. The projected procurement project net 

Tudalen 303



 

expenditure included in the IAA is £3,198,673. To reach the milestone of 
Financial Close a budget is required that extends into Q1 of 2014/15. 

 
3. CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1. Expenditure to the end of Q3 2013/14 v the approved budget is summarised 

in the following table. The reported overspend of £268,869 is largely due to 
a timing difference on the receipt of grant monies to be received from WG 
and the additional work resulting from WTI’s  price update paper. 

 

 
 
 
3.2. The project procurement programme has been revised. Preferred Bidder 

approval by each of the Partnership Authorities will take place during 
February/March 2014. Financial Close is scheduled to be completed during 
June 2014. 

 
3.3. The approved 2013/14 budget has been reviewed in the light of actual 

expenditure incurred to date (Dec 2013). The project team have also 
assessed the input required from advisors to get to the point of Financial 
Close. The updated procurement project budget to the point of Financial 
Close is shown in the table below. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Total procurement project net expenditure is projected to be £3,437,266 being 
£238,593 (+7.5%) greater than that contained in the IAA. The projected net 
expenditure for the current year is £595,558. The key assumptions that underpin 
these projections are attached in Appendix 1. A more detailed breakdown of the 
expenditure headings is attached in Appendix 2 
 

Tudalen 304



 

3.4. The IAA Agreement provides that where actual costs associated with the 
project are likely to exceed the approved annual Project budget held on 
behalf of the Councils by 5% this will be a Matter Reserved To the Councils. 

 
3.5. Individual Councils will also need to consider budget requirements beyond 

Financial Close noting the following points. 
 

• The second IAA will need to be executed before the JC is able to 
approve budgets beyond the financial close stage. 

• The requirements for the project beyond financial close need to be 
identified and agreed. 

• Individual Councils will need to be able to plan for costs now (at least in 
2014/15) ahead of the second IAA being formally agreed.  

• The Project Director previously identified (May 2011) the potential cost 
of a Contract Management Team plus External Advisors of between 
£307,000 to £359,000 per annum. Further advice is being sought on this 
matter from sources in WG. 

 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Members of [insert partner authority] are asked to:- 

 
4.1. Approve the proposed 2013/14 revised budget it being £595,558 (as set out 

in the report). 
 
4.2. Approve expenditure in 2014/15 to take the procurement process to the 

final stage of Financial Close it being £321,066 (as set out in the report). 
 
4.3. For the Joint Committee members to approve the ongoing project budget 

requirements referred to in point 3.5 above. 
 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. See sections 3.1 to 3.5 above 
 
6. ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT 
 
6.1.   Not applicable. 
 
7. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
7.1.  Not applicable. 
 
8. EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 
8.1.  Not applicable. 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. see Appendix 1 Key assumptions item 3. 
 
10. CONSULTATION REQUIRED 

 
10.1. See above. 

Tudalen 305



 

 
11. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 
11.1. Not applicable. 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
 
Background Documents: 
 
None 
 
Contact Officer: Steffan Owen NWRWTP Project Manager 
 

Tudalen 306



 

Appendix 1 – Key Assumptions 
 
 

1. The successful appointment of Preferred Bidder by individual Councils will 
be completed during the months February/March 2014. 

 
2. Financial Close will be completed on or before 30th June 2014. 

 
3. Staffing 
 

• Project Director 2 days per week 

• Full time Project Manager 

• Full time Administrative Assistant 

• Lead Financial 1day every 2 weeks 

• Lead Technical 1 day every 2 weeks 

• Lead Legal 1 day per week 
 

4. Advisors fees are based on advisors anticipated levels of activity in the run 
up to Financial Close that being most intense during the months April – 
June 2014. An allowance of 1 day’s attendance by the external advisors in 
three out of the five Councils has been provided for.  

Tudalen 307



 

Appendix 2 – Detailed Projected Project Expenditure 
 

 

T
udalen 308



 

 

T
udalen 309



Tudalen 310

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Tudalen 311

Yn rhinwedd Paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 4, Atodlen 12A
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.

Document is Restricted



Tudalen 352

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Tudalen 353

Yn rhinwedd Paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 4, Atodlen 12A
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.

Document is Restricted



Tudalen 556

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



T
udalen 557

Y
n rhinw

edd P
aragraff(au) 14 R

han 4, A
todlen 12A

D
eddf Llyw

odraeth Leol 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



T
udalen 562

M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NWRWTP -  Selection of preferred bidder 

& copntents of draft IAA2  
06/02/2014 

 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Tudalen 563



 

 
 

   
 

Contact: 
 

S.PARKER - HEAD OF SERVICE 

Updated: 24/1/2014 

 
  

 
1. What type of proposal is being assessed? 
 

A project proposal 

 

2. Please describe the purpose of this proposal 
 

a) to select a particular contractor 
b) to establish a legal framework for cost sharing between councils 
 

 

3. Does this proposal require a full equality impact assessment? 
 (Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit above for guidance) 
 

No The proposal has no potential for discrimination against 
protected groups 

 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

Documents studied by head of service 

 

5. Will this proposal have a positive impact on any of the 
protected characteristics? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

no effect 

 

6. Will this proposal have a disproportionate negative impact on 
any of the protected characteristics? 

 

no effect 

 

7. Has the proposal been amended to eliminate or reduce any 
potential negative impact? 

Tudalen 564



 

 

<Please Select> no effect 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
<Please Select> <none 

 

Action(s) Owner Date 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<For additional actions, insert row below> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: <24.01.2014 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

<s.parker 24.1.2014 
 
 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Tudalen 565



Tudalen 566

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Adroddiad i'r:   Cabinet  
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   18 Chwefror 2014 
 
Aelod/Swyddog Arweiniol:  Cynghorydd Hugh Irving  
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: Peter McHugh - Pennaeth Tai 
 
Teitl:                                       Gosod Rhent Cyfrif Refeniw Tai,  

 Cyllidebau Refeniw a Chyllidebau Cyfalaf 2014/15 
 
 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  
 
I geisio cymeradwyaeth gan y Cabinet ar gyfer y cynnydd bwriedig mewn Rhent a 
Thâl Gwasanaeth a chymeradwyo Cyfalaf a Chyllidebau Refeniw’r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 
ar gyfer 2014/15. 
 
2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  
 
Mae'n ofyniad statudol i osod cyllidebau a lefelau rhent cyn dechrau'r flwyddyn 
ariannol newydd ac mae'n rhaid i’r gyllideb gydymffurfio â'r Cynllun Busnes Stoc Tai 
(HSBP) sydd wedi cael ei gynllunio i ariannu gwelliannau i gyrraedd Safon Ansawdd 
Tai Cymru erbyn diwedd mis Ebrill 2014 a’i chynnal tan 2041. 
 
3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 
 
Bod Cyllideb y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai ar gyfer 2014/15 (Atodiad 1) a'r Cynllun Busnes 
Stoc Tai (Atodiad 2) yn cael eu mabwysiadu. 
 
Bod y rhenti ar gyfer anheddau’r Cyngor yn cael eu codi'n unol â'r canllawiau Polisi 
Gosod Rhent gan Lywodraeth Cymru (ar gyfartaledd 4.59% yr wythnos) yn 
weithredol o ddydd Llun 7 Ebrill 2014. 
 
Bod rhenti ar gyfer garejis y Cyngor yn cael eu codi’n unol â Rhenti Awgrymedig 
(cyfartaledd o 4.59% yr wythnos) a Thaliadau Gwresogi o 7.5% yn weithredol o 
ddydd Llun 7 Ebrill 2014. 
 
Bod y blaenoriaethau rhaglen gyfalaf ar gyfer buddsoddi stoc ar gyfer y cyfnod 2014 - 
2019 yn cael eu cymeradwyo. (Atodiad 3) ac yn ddarostyngedig i ymarfer tendro 
llawn.   
 
4. Manylion am yr adroddiad. 
 
Mae'r alldro diweddaraf sy’n cael ei ragweld ar gyfer 2013/14 yn Atodiad 1, yn unol 
â'r adroddiad monitro misol. Rhagwelir y bydd balansau, ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn, yn 
£1,152,000.  

Mae’r gyllideb fwriedig ar gyfer 2014/15 hefyd wedi’i manylu yn Atodiad 1. Mae’r 
gyllideb wedi’i chyfrifo ar y sail ganlynol: 

• Penderfyniadau Cymhorthdal Cyfrif Refeniw Tai;  

• Cynnydd rhent cyfartalog o 4.59%; 

Eitem Agenda 12

Tudalen 567



• Gwariant Rheoli ac Atgyweirio a Chynnal a Chadw yn unol â rhagdybiaeth cost 
sylfaen y Cynllun Busnes Stoc Tai, o gynnydd o 2.0%; 

• Mae 2 Werthiant Hawl i Brynu (RTB) wedi’u gwneud hyd yn hyn gydag un 
gwerthiant pellach cyn 31 Mawrth 2014. Mae dwy weithred hawl i brynu’r 
flwyddyn wedi’i rhagweld ar gyfer y blynyddoedd dilynol, fodd bynnag, bydd hyn 
yn cael ei adolygu bob blwyddyn fel rhan o'r broses cynllunio busnes. 

Mae Penderfyniadau Cymhorthdal Cyfrif Refeniw Tai terfynol wedi dod i law gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru. Mae'r Penderfyniad yn cymryd yn ganiataol bod "Rhenti 
Awgrymedig" yn cael eu codi, bod costau "Rheoli a Chynnal a Chadw" yn sefydlog, a 
bod ad-daliadau cyfalaf hŷn a gynorthwyir yn cael eu gwneud. Mae'r Cyfrif Refeniw 
Tai "tybiannol" a gynhyrchwyd o'r cyfrifiad hwn mewn gwarged ac fe delir y swm hwn 
i Lywodraeth Cymru ac i'r Trysorlys fel cymhorthdal negyddol. Yn dilyn adolygiad 
cenedlaethol o System Cymhorthdal y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai, mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn 
bwriadu diddymu system cymhorthdal y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai a'i disodli â system o 
Hunan Ariannu, lle bydd awdurdodau yn derbyn setliad dyled untro (amcangyfrifir y 
bydd tua £39 miliwn yn achos Sir Ddinbych) ac yn gyfnewid am hyn, bydd 
Awdurdodau yn gallu cadw'r taliad cymhorthdal negyddol a delir i Lywodraeth Cymru 
(sydd yn werth dros £3 miliwn y flwyddyn ar hyn o bryd i Sir Ddinbych) a fyddai'n cael 
ei ddefnyddio i gynnal y ddyled o £39 miliwn. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn ceisio 
ymgorffori'r Setliad Hunan Ariannu yn y Mesur Tai, sydd i fod i gael ei dderbyn gan y 
Senedd yn haf 2014, a dechrau ar y drefn ariannol newydd 1 Ebrill 2015. 
 
Mae canllawiau Llywodraeth Cymru wedi argymell y cynnydd canlynol ar gyfer 
cynlluniau busnes y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai ar gyfer 2014/15: 
 
• Codi Lwfansau Rheoli a Chynnal a Chadw o 6.09% i £2,769 o'i gymharu â 

£2,610 fesul annedd yn 2013/14); 

• Rhent awgrymedig yn cynyddu i £72.40 fesul annedd fesul wythnos, sy'n cyfateb 
i gynnydd wythnosol o £3.18 fesul wythnos. Mae hyn oherwydd bod rhenti yn Sir 
Ddinbych yn gymharol isel ac mae polisi Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer lefelau 
rhent rhwng Awdurdodau Lleol a Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig i 
gydgyfeirio. Bydd hyn yn golygu y bydd lefelau rhent yr awdurdod lleol yn codi ar 
gyfradd fwy na rhenti Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig i hwyluso'r 
cydgyfeirio; 

• Bydd Rhenti Meincnod (RSL) yn cynyddu o £75.21 fesul wythnos i £78.37 fesul 
wythnos, cynnydd o £3.16 sy'n cyfateb i godiad o 4.2%. 
 

Amcangyfrifir y bydd taliad Cymhorthdal Cyfrif Refeniw Tai i Lywodraeth Cymru ar 
gyfer 2014/15 yn gyfanswm o £3,307,000, sy'n cyfateb i gynnydd o 6.5% o'i gymharu 
â 2013/14.  
 
Mae'r gwasanaeth wedi gwneud gwaith sylweddol i helpu i reoli a lliniaru effaith y 
diwygiad lles. Mae pob cartref yr effeithir arnynt wedi cael ymweliad cartref gan eu 
swyddog ystadau, yn egluro'r newidiadau budd-dal a sut y bydd yn effeithio ar eu 
taliadau Budd-dal Tai.  Mae cyfanswm o 353 o bobl wedi’u nodi fel rhai sydd wedi'u 
heffeithio gan y tâl tanfeddiannaeth (treth ystafell wely) ac yn unol ag arfer da, mae 
darpariaeth ar gyfer dyledion drwg wedi’i chynyddu o fewn y cynllun busnes ar gyfer 
2013/14 a 2014/15 i ystyried y goblygiadau diwygio lles. Hyd yn hyn, mae ôl-
ddyledion yn ymwneud â'r "dreth ystafell wely" wedi cynyddu o £17,842 sy'n cael eu 
cynnwys yn y ddarpariaeth ar gyfer dyledion drwg sydd wedi’i gwneud, ac yn is na 
nifer o awdurdodau eraill.   
 
Mae dros draean o'r Stoc Tai yn cael ei ddynodi fel llety gwarchod, neu’n cael eu 

Tudalen 568



rhentu gan bobl sydd wedi ymddeol sydd ag anghenion cyffredinol tai, sydd wedi'u 
heithrio o'r tâl tanfeddiannaeth, ac mae 66% o'r holl denantiaid tai yn derbyn rhyw 
fath o Fudd-dal Tai, felly mae effaith diwygio lles wedi bod yn llai na  rhai ardaloedd 
eraill ac yn parhau i fod o fewn y ddarpariaeth ar gyfer dyledion drwg sydd wedi’i 
sefydlu.  
 
Byddai'r cynnydd mewn Rhent Awgrymedig ar gyfer 2014/15 yn arwain at y taliadau 
a amlinellir isod: 
 
 

  
  

    

Rhent 
Gwirionedd

ol  
 2013/14 

  

Rhent 
Awgrymedig/Gw

irioneddol 
2014/15 

  
  
  
  
  

Fflat un ystafell      £59.01   £61.72 

1 ystafell wely     £62.08   £64.93 

2 ystafell wely     £67.12            £70.20 

3 ystafell wely     £77.43   £80.98 

4 ystafell wely     £85.15   £89.06 

   
 

       

 Cynllun Busnes Stoc Tai (HSBP) 

 
Fel rhan o broses y gyllideb, mae angen adolygu'r Cynllun Busnes Stoc Tai ac mae 
hyn yn cael ei gyflawni drwy ymarfer diwydrwydd dyladwy blynyddol i adolygu'r 
tybiaethau a ddefnyddiwyd ac i ddilysu cadernid y model ariannol. Yn ogystal, mae'r 
adolygiad yn cynnal dadansoddiad sensitifrwydd ac yn cynhyrchu cofrestr risg. 

 
Cynhaliwyd yr adolygiad diweddaraf ym mis Hydref 2013 a oedd yn cadarnhau bod y 
Cynllun Busnes yn hyfyw ac yn gadarn. Mae'n datgan bod y rhagdybiaethau a wnaed 
yn ddarbodus ac mae'r cynllun yn hyfyw dros y 30 mlynedd nesaf. Cafodd yr 
adolygiad ei lywio gan arolwg o gyflwr stoc ffres a gynhaliwyd yn 2012 gan Rand 
Associates a oedd yn nodi anghenion buddsoddi yn y dyfodol o'r stoc, sydd wedi 
llywio'r Rhaglen Gwella ar gyfer y 5 mlynedd nesaf, a fydd yn canolbwyntio ar 
elfennau allanol megis gwaith toi, nwyddau dŵr glaw, rendro allanol, adeiladau 
allanol ac ati nad ydynt yn cael sylw drwy'r Safon Ansawdd Tai Cymru, yn ogystal â 
gwaith diweddaru gyda "methiannau derbyniol". 
 
Garejis 
 
Bydd rhenti am garejis yn cynyddu yn unol â'r cynllun busnes, gan arwain at gynnydd 
o 4.59% ar gyfer 2014/15. Bydd adolygiad o garejys yn digwydd yn 2015, i weld sut y 
maent yn cael eu defnyddio ar hyn o bryd, i gymharu a chyferbynnu costau 
buddsoddi yn erbyn incwm sy'n deillio ohono, ac i ystyried opsiynau tymor canolig 
hyd at dymor hirach ar gyfer safleoedd garej, fel rhan o'r strategaeth rheoli asedau.  
 
Taliadau Gwresogi  
 
Mae gan bedair stad systemau gwresogi cymunedol gyda boeleri canolog heb 
fesuryddion unigol.  Mae’r holl denantiaid eraill yn talu eu costau gwresogi eu hunain 
yn uniongyrchol i'r cyflenwr.   
 

Tudalen 569



Mae costau cyflenwyr ynni wedi bod yn cynyddu ac er na fydd y Gwasanaethau Tai 
yn derbyn cost lawn y cynnydd, argymhellir bod costau gwresogi yn codi 7.5% a fydd 
yn arwain at gostau gwresogi cyfartalog o £9.38 yr wythnos. Mae'n werth nodi bod 
awdurdodau eraill yn draddodiadol wedi derbyn y cynnydd llawn ar gyfer taliadau 
tanwydd. 
 
Mae tîm prosiect wedi’i sefydlu i roi cyngor i denantiaid ar fesurau arbed ynni a ddylai 
helpu i wella effeithlonrwydd ynni a lleihau tlodi tanwydd.  
 
 
Safon Ansawdd Tai Cymru 
Mae'r Cyngor ar y trywydd iawn i gyflawni Safon Ansawdd Tai Cymru i'r holl Stoc Tai 
(ar wahân i nifer fach o "fethiannau derbyniol", er enghraifft, lle mae tenantiaid yn 
gwrthod y gwaith gwella oherwydd salwch ac ati) ar gyfer canol Ebrill 2014, a fydd yn 
sicrhau bod Sir Ddinbych yn un o 4 Cyngor yn unig i gyflawni'r brif flaenoriaeth  hon 
gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  
 
Mae contractau wedi cael eu llunio a'u rhannu'n "Lotiau " 1-8. Yn 2013/14 roedd 
Lotiau 6 a 7 wedi’u cwblhau a disgwylir cwblhau Lot 8 erbyn canol mis Ebrill 2014. Yn 
ystod 2013/14 bydd 589 o gartrefi wedi cyrraedd y safon.  
 
Mae'r arolwg o gyflwr y stoc wedi nodi costau gwaith atgyweirio, cynnal a chadw a 
gwella ar gyfer y 30 mlynedd nesaf sydd wedi cael eu cynnwys yn y cynllun busnes, 
a bydd yn llywio’r cynllun rheoli asedau sy’n cael ei ddatblygu. 
 
5. Sut mae'r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
Mae darparu tai o ansawdd da yn Flaenoriaeth Gorfforaethol a bydd tendro ar gyfer y 
rhaglen gyfalaf 5 mlynedd yn rhoi hwb i'r economi leol drwy wneud y gorau o'r 
cyfleoedd cyflogaeth, hyfforddiant a chadwyn gyflenwi leol ar gyfer pobl a busnesau 
lleol. 
 
6. Faint fydd yn hyn yn costio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
Yn gyffredinol, mae'r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai yn cael ei neilltuo ac mae costau gweithredu 
yn cael eu cwmpasu gan y cynnydd mewn incwm trwy renti a thaliadau gwasanaeth. 
 
7. Beth yw'r prif gasgliadau o'r Asesiad o'r Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb (EqIA) a 
gynhaliwyd ar y penderfyniad? Pa ymgynghori sydd wedi digwydd? 

Mae'r Asesiad Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb wedi tynnu sylw at yr angen i sicrhau fod 
tenantiaid yn cael mynediad at gyngor a chymorth priodol i wneud y gorau o’r 
niferoedd sy'n manteisio ar hawliau. Mae hyn yn cael ei wneud. 
 
8. Pa ymgynghori sydd wedi digwydd?   
Ymgynghorir â Ffederasiwn Tenantiaid a Phreswylwyr Sir Ddinbych ar y cynnydd 
mewn rhent a thâl gwasanaeth a'r rhaglen gyfalaf.  
 
9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid 
Mae adolygiad diweddar o'r Cynllun Busnes Stoc Tai (HSBP) a'r Penderfyniadau 
Cymhorthdal Tai ar gyfer 2014/15 yn dangos bod y Cynllun yn parhau i fod yn gadarn 
ac yn hyfyw yn ariannol. Mae digon o adnoddau i gwrdd ag anghenion buddsoddi o'r 
stoc. Hon fydd y flwyddyn olaf y ceir system cymhorthdal tai yng Nghymru. Bydd 
model hunan-ariannu yn cael ei gyflwyno o fis Ebrill 2015. Mae'r manylion yn cael eu 
trafod a'u datblygu yn genedlaethol, ond mae'n debygol y bydd yr effaith refeniw yn 
gadarnhaol. Bydd angen Cynllun Busnes Stoc Tai newydd unwaith y bydd hunan-
ariannu wedi’i gyflwyno. 
 

Tudalen 570



10. Pa risgiau sy’n bodoli ac a oes unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i'w lleihau? 
Gallai methiant i ddilyn y Cynllun Busnes Stoc Tai a gosod cyllidebau arwain at 
broblemau ariannol  ac ymyrraeth bosibl gan Lywodraeth Cymru. Bydd y 
Gwasanaethau Tai yn gweithio'n agos â hawliau lles a'r grŵp diwygio lles 
corfforaethol i reoli, lliniaru a lleihau effaith diwygio lles ar denantiaid. 
 
11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad 
 
Mae gan y Cyngor y pŵer i wneud y penderfyniad hwn ac nid oes angen unrhyw 
gymeradwyaeth allanol er mwyn gwneud hynny.  

Tudalen 571



Tudalen 572

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX ONE

2012/13 2014/15

Final Budget Forecast Proposed

Outturn Period 9 - December 2013 Out-turn Budget

£   EXPENDITURE £   £   £   

2,021,640 Supervision & Management - General 2,087,263 2,167,476 2,069,750

283,949 Supervision & Management - Communal 287,907 287,907 293,665

271,240 Welfare Services 139,454 159,803 142,243

2,997,042 Repairs and Maintenance 2,918,021 2,918,021 3,035,640

5,573,871 Total Housing Management 5,432,645 5,533,207 5,541,298

2,705,689 Item 8 Capital Charges 3,075,457 2,959,619 3,173,010

330,606 Capital Funded from Revenue 890,201 890,201 943,193

3,080,742 Subsidy 3,242,626 3,105,081 3,306,944

92,087 Provision for Bad Debts 131,248 131,248 132,725

11,782,995 Total Expenditure 12,772,177 12,619,356 13,097,170 

INCOME

11,796,838 Rents (net of voids) 12,499,399 12,566,017 13,089,944 

155,603 Garages 162,678 157,483 166,745

3,540 Interest on Balances & Other Income 8,015 3,540 3,600

11,955,981 Total Income 12,670,092 12,727,040 13,260,289 

Surplus / Deficit (-) for the Year:

503,592 General Balances 788,116 997,885 1,106,312

871,407 Balance as at start of year ~ General 1,044,393 1,044,393 1,152,077

-330,606 Earmarked Balances -890,201 -890,201 -943,193

1,044,393 Balance as at end of year ~ General 942,308 1,152,077 1,315,196

Housing Revenue Account ~ 2013/14 Budget

2013/14

Tudalen 573



Tudalen 574

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



 1 

 
 
 
 

APPENDIX TWO

HOUSING STOCK BUSINESS PLAN 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Planned Improvements £7,234,370 £5,028,528 £5,179,384 £5,334,765 £5,494,808

IT Investment £150,000 £850,000 
Slippage (Previous Years) £300,000 

£7,384,370 £6,178,528 £5,179,384 £5,334,765 £5,494,808

CAPITAL FUNDING

Major Repairs Allowance £2,400,000 £2,400,000 £2,400,000 £2,400,000 £2,400,000

Usable Capital Receipts £28,000 £38,314 £39,940 £41,624 £43,366

CERA £740,000 £793,193 £1,643,181 £1,805,572 £2,349,804

Efficiency Savings - IT investment £150,000 £150,000 £150,000 £150,000 £150,000

Prudential Borrowing £4,066,370 £2,797,021 £946,263 £937,570 £551,638

£7,384,370 £6,178,528 £5,179,384 £5,334,765 £5,494,808

REVENUE EXPENDITURE

Management ~ General £2,167,476 £2,069,750 £2,123,369 £2,178,328 £2,234,661

Special & Welfare Costs £447,710 £435,908 £446,806 £457,976 £469,425

Repairs & Maintenance £2,918,021 £3,035,640 £3,113,406 £3,193,116 £3,274,819

HRA Subsidy Payment £3,105,081 £3,306,944 £3,389,618 £3,474,359 £3,561,217

Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

CERA £890,201 £943,193 £1,658,061 £1,804,873 £2,267,642

Provision for Bad Debts £131,248 £132,725 £134,261 £135,984 £137,793

Capital Financing Costs £2,959,619 £3,173,010 £3,312,502 £3,320,957 £3,320,058

£12,619,356 £13,097,170 £14,178,023 £14,565,592 £15,265,616

REVENUE INCOME 
Rental Income £12,566,017 £13,089,944 £13,704,266 £14,393,413 £15,117,211

Garage Income £157,483 £166,745 £171,748 £176,900 £182,207

Interest on Balances £3,540 £3,600 £5,821 £5,107 £5,229 
£12,727,040 £13,260,289 £13,881,835 £14,575,420 £15,304,647

BALANCES

Balance brought forward £1,044,393 £1,152,077 £1,315,196 £1,019,008 £1,028,836

Surplus / Deficit (-) For Year £107,684 £163,119 -£296,188 £9,828 £39,031 
Balance carried forward £1,152,077 £1,315,196 £1,019,008 £1,028,836 £1,067,867

 

SUMMARY 

Tudalen 575



Tudalen 576

Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag



Capital Programme for Stock Investment 2014 to 2019 

Sum of Adjusted Cost Column 
Labels 

        

Row Labels 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 (blank) 2019 Grand Total Percentage of Spend 
Bathrooms £0 £25,410  £23,100 £0  £11,000 £59,510 0.61% 
Chimneys  £0 £0 £0 £0  £0 £0 0.00% 
Common Areas £5,995 £11,358 £16,583 £15,125 £29,755  £45,430 £124,245 1.28% 
Doors £35,827 £421,520 £34,507 £2,640   £1,210 £495,704 5.10% 
Electrics £12,200 £600      £12,800 0.13% 
External Works £410,894 £216,139 £244,563 £303,457 £304,821  £532,450 £2,012,324 20.69% 
Garages Attached  £21,780   £3,520   £25,300 0.26% 
General Plumbing £2,640   £2,310    £4,950 0.05% 
Heating £149,320 £58,410 £102, 050 £74,180 £63,910  £171,490 £619,360 6.37% 
Kitchens  £19,250  £11,000    £30,250 0.31% 
Roof £143,110 £1,391,230 £425,370 £358,710 £1,229,607  £305,030 £3,853,057 39.61% 
Stores and Outbuildings £144,320 £92,940 £116,600 £176,440 £275,000  £199,320 £1,004,620 10.33% 
Walls £381,365 £348,783 £85,635 £193,903 £332,629  £16,962 £1,359,276 13.97% 
Windows £3,476   £122,529    £126,005 1.30% 
(blank)         0.00% 
Grand Total £1,289,147 £2,607,419 £1,025,308 £1,283,394 £2,239,242  £1,282,892 £9,727,400 100.00% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T
udalen 577



 

The above works shall be scheduled into a bespoke Capital Programme. The programme has been developed in partnership with RAND Associates 

who also completed the Stock Condition Survey on behalf of Housing Services. Using the information gathered from the original 15% survey and pre-

existing information from the council’s Welsh Housing Quality Standard Improvement programmes, the full 5 year investment programme has been 

developed utilising the department’s new Asset Management Software System, Keystone.  

The investment programme has fundamentally been sequenced using a condition based approach, however to ensure that all future investment is 

evenly distributed across the county, several ward areas have been created in which the investment works will be completed during each year of the 

programme.  Our investigations and detailed surveys have confirmed that the greatest percentage of investment required throughout the housing 

stock now comprises of mainly external works (86%). This was to be anticipated as our most recent improvement programmes have focused on 

internal upgrades including electrical rewires, replacement kitchens and bathrooms renewals.  

Although some internal works will be completed as part of the 5 year Investment programme, these will be of a much smaller scale than of previous 

WHQS programmes and will mainly concentrate on properties improved during the early phase of the WHQS programme. 

A small number of properties have not been improved since the onset of the WHQS programme due to tenant refusals, commonly resulting from ill 

health or old age.  These properties have been recorded as acceptable fails to determine overall WHQS compliance. Although this represents a 

small percentage of the stock an allowance has been made within the 5 year investment programme to fully improve these properties within the 

housing stock. This will take the form of a contingency sum per year and it is envisaged that the necessary improvement works will be completed to 

these properties when they become vacant.  

The 5 year investment programme will also ensure that our stock remains fully compliant with all aspects of Health and Safety legislation and other 

statutory obligations to safeguard both our tenants and the Council. This will include communal area upgrades including fire risk assessment 

improvement works and DDA improvement work as recommended as part of the stock condition survey. The thermal efficiency of the housing stock 

will also benefit from the planned investment programme as new technologies and high efficiency installations will be incorporated into contract 

specifications, this will ultimately improve the average SAP rating across the housing stock and provide accommodation which is more fuel and 

energy efficient for our tenants. 

The overall result will be a larger number of smaller value contracts of varying types to include both external and internal repairs. Within this, many 

different contract types could possibly be underway at any one time and this will increase the level of management time required, as works will no 

longer be delivered by one main contractor. Wherever possible, the works will be packaged together to secure value for money and reduce the 

T
udalen 578



management time however given that the contracts will be smaller and more bespoke than the WHQS contracts there is the potential for more local 

contractors to successfully tender and win contracts and supply chain opportunities for the new improvement programme. 

Should members approved the Capital Programme then officers shall develop contracts for tender which shall be tendered in late spring/ early 

summer.  

T
udalen 579



T
udalen 580

M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



  

Adroddiad i'r:    Cabinet 
 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod:   18 Chwefror 2014 
 
Aelod/Swyddog Arweiniol:  Y Cynghorydd Julian Thompson-Hill / Paul 

McGrady 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad:  Richard Weigh, Prif Gyfrifydd  
 
Teitl:      Adroddiad Ariannol  
 

 
1. Am beth mae’r adroddiad yn sôn?  
 

Mae'r adroddiad yn rhoi manylion am gyllideb refeniw ac arbedion y cyngor fel 
y cytunwyd arnynt ar gyfer 2013/14. Mae'r adroddiad hefyd yn rhoi 
diweddariad cryno ynghylch y Cynllun Cyfalaf yn ogystal â'r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai 
a'r Cynllun Cyfalaf Tai. 

 
2. Beth yw'r rheswm dros lunio’r adroddiad hwn?  
 

Pwrpas yr adroddiad yw darparu diweddariad ar sefyllfa ariannol gyfredol y 
Cyngor. 

 
3. Beth yw'r Argymhellion? 
 

Bod aelodau yn nodi’r cynnydd yn erbyn strategaeth y gyllideb y cytunwyd arni. 
 
Bod aelodau’n cymeradwyo’r trosglwyddiadau canlynol i’r cronfeydd wrth gefn 
fel y nodir yn Adran 6 yr adroddiad: 
 

• £66 mil i’r gronfa Cynllunio wrth gefn (ffioedd a dderbyniwyd yn y 

flwyddyn gyfredol) 

• £134 mil i Gronfa Newid Sianel (Cwsmeriaid a Chymorth Addysg)  

• £121 mil i Gronfa Addysg y Tu Allan i'r Sir 

Mae Atodiad 5 yn nodi manylion yr holl drosglwyddiadau fel y cytunwyd arnynt 
gan y Cabinet yn ystod y flwyddyn.  
 

4. Manylion am yr Adroddiad  
 

Mae’r adroddiad yn rhoi crynodeb o gyllideb refeniw’r Cyngor ar gyfer 2013/14 
(Atodiad 1). Cyllideb net y Cyngor yw £192 miliwn. Ar ddiwedd mis Ionawr, 
rhagwelir tanwariant ar gyllidebau gwasanaeth a chorfforaethol o £991 mil 
(£951 mil y mis diwethaf) sy’n cynrychioli amrywiad o 0.78%.  
 
Mae Atodiad 2 yr adroddiad yn dangos y cynnydd hyd yn hyn yn erbyn yr 
arbedion a amlygwyd yn y Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig 2013/14. Cytunwyd 
ar darged arbed o £3.061 miliwn ar gyfer y flwyddyn a hyd yn hyn mae 89% 

Eitem Agenda 13

Tudalen 581



  

wedi eu cyflawni (£2.716 miliwn). Mae'r targed yn cynnwys £200 mil o 
arbedion moderneiddio. Hyd yn hyn, tybir y bydd £140 mil yn cael ei gyflawni 
(gan gynnwys ad-drefnu argraffyddion ac arbedion teithio). Tybir bod gweddill 
yr arbedion yn gyraeddadwy ond ni ellir eu cadarnhau tan ar ôl asesu 
gweithgarwch y flwyddyn gyfan.   

 
5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at Flaenoriaethau Corfforaethol? 
 

Mae rheolaeth effeithiol o gyllideb refeniw a chyllidebau cyfalaf y cyngor a 
darparu strategaeth y gyllideb y cytunwyd arni’n sail i weithgareddau ym mhob 
maes, gan gynnwys blaenoriaethau corfforaethol. 
 

6. Beth fydd yn ei gostio a sut bydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau eraill? 
Mae’r naratif sy’n cefnogi rhagolygon y gwasanaethau wedi ei nodi isod lle bo 
angen: 
 
Gwella Busnes a Moderneiddio - Er bod y tanwariant wedi aros ar £72 mil, 
mae’r rhagamcan bellach yn cynnwys effaith y newidiadau canlynol: 

• £40 mil bellach wedi ei drosglwyddo i gronfa wrth gefn EDRMS fel yr 

argymhellwyd yn yr adroddiad diwethaf  

• Yr Adain Archwilio Mewnol bellach yn cael ei adrodd dan Gwella 

Busnes a Moderneiddio a rhagwelir tanwariant o £15 mil oherwydd ein 

bod wedi gweithredu arbedion 2014/15 yn fuan. 

• Tanwariant pellach o £20 mil yn sgil yr oedi yn yr amserlen ar gyfer 

cyflwyno Cynllun Mawr 2 

• Mân amrywiadau o ran y £5 mil sy’n weddill. 

 
Mae’r gwasanaeth eisoes wedi cynnig defnyddio’r tanwariant o £32 mil yn 
2014/15 i helpu i ariannu swydd Swyddog Gwybodaeth. Mae’n bosibl y bydd y 
gwasanaeth yn cynnig defnyddio’r £20 mil i ariannu costau gohiriedig Cynllun 
Mawr 2, a bod £20 mil yn cael ei ddefnyddio i ariannu prosiect sy’n helpu i 
ddatganoli gwasanaethau i Gynghorau Tref a Chymuned. 
 
Cyllid ac Asedau - Rhagwelir y bydd tanwariant o £15 mil. Mae rhan o hyn yn 
ymwneud â hyfforddiant caffael arfaethedig a fydd yn awr yn cael ei gynnal ym 
mis Ebrill (£5 mil) a swyddi gwag o fewn y tîm Caffael (£10 mil).  
 
Priffyrdd a Gwasanaethau Amgylcheddol – Mae’r Amgylchedd a 
Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd yn dal i ddangos gorwariant o £96 mil. Fodd bynnag, 
mae’r rhagamcan hwn yn cynnwys nifer o gronfeydd wrth gefn, yn enwedig 
mewn perthynas â'r gyllideb Cynnal a Chadw yn y Gaeaf. Bydd lefel y 
rhagamcanion hyn yn parhau i gael eu hasesu yn ystod yr wythnosau nesaf 
mewn ymateb i'r tywydd ac yn cael eu hadrodd arnynt mewn adroddiadau 
monitro yn y dyfodol. Os nad oes angen y cronfeydd wrth gefn bydd cyllideb y 
gwasanaeth yn debygol o gael ei chydbwyso ddiwedd y flwyddyn. 
 
Cynllunio ac Amddiffyn y Cyhoedd – Mae ffi cynllunio o £99 mil wedi ei 
dderbyn yn ddiweddar mewn perthynas â’r datblygiad ym Modelwyddan. Bydd 
rhan o'r gwariant yn erbyn yr incwm yn cael ei wario yn y flwyddyn bresennol 

Tudalen 582



  

(£33 mil), gyda'r gweddill yn cael ei warion dros y ddwy flynedd nesaf. Felly 
argymhellir fod £66 mil o'r ffi a dderbyniwyd yn cael ei ddefnyddio ar gyfer 
costau yn y dyfodol, bydd y swm hwn yn cael ei roi mewn cronfa gynllunio wrth 
gefn er mwyn ei ddefnyddio i gyfateb gwariant yn y dyfodol.   

  
Gwasanaethau Oedolion a Busnes – Mae’r alldro ar gyfer 2013/14 yn y 
Gwasanaethau Oedolion a Busnes yn dangos tanwariant ar hyn o bryd o £119 
mil (cyllideb gros o £48 mil). Mae'r tanwariant i'w briodoli yn bennaf i 
weithredu’r cynigion ar gyfer arbedion 2014/15 yn barod ar gyfer effaith 
blwyddyn lawn. 
 
Gwasanaethau Plant - Y sefyllfa bresennol yw tanwariant o £469 mil, sef 
cynnydd o £59 mil o gymharu â’r mis blaenorol. Mae'r symudiad wedi digwydd 
o ganlyniad i arbediad o £20 mil yn sgil oedi wrth benodi a gostyngiad ar 
wariant maethu annibynnol o £31 mil o ganlyniad i leoliadau yn dod i ben yn 
gynt nag a ragwelwyd yn flaenorol. Mae'r rhan fwyaf o danwariant y flwyddyn 
gyfredol yn ymwneud ag ardaloedd lle mae arbedion wedi eu cytuno ar gyfer 
2014/15. Yn ddiweddar, mae'r gwasanaeth wedi cyflwyno cais am grant i 
Lywodraeth Cymru mewn perthynas â'r tîm Gwasanaethau Cefnogaeth 
Integredig i Deuluoedd. Mae’r cais yn cynnwys ad-dalu rhai costau staffio sydd 
ar hyn o bryd yn cael eu codi ar refeniw. Ar hyn o bryd nid ydym ni’n gwybod a 
fydd y cais yn llwyddiannus ond, os yw’n llwyddiannus, bydd cynnydd o £64 
mil yn y tanwariant.  
 
Cyfathrebu, Marchnata a Hamdden - y rhagolygon presennol yw tanwariant 
bychan o £3 mil. Mae perfformiad ariannol Theatr Pafiliwn y Rhyl yn parhau i 
wella ac mae'r rhagolygon diweddaraf ar gyfer y lleoliad yn nodi tanwariant 
bychan ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn. Mae nifer y cwsmeriaid yng nghyfleusterau 
hamdden y cyngor yn parhau i ragori ar dargedau, sy'n cyfiawnhau'r 
buddsoddiad cyfalaf sylweddol. Mae’r oedi wrth agor Harbwr y Foryd wedi 
effeithio ar lefelau incwm 13/14 ond cytunwyd eisoes y bydd unrhyw ddiffyg 
arian yn cael ei dalu yn gorfforaethol. Fodd bynnag, mae'r rhagolygon 
diweddaraf yn rhagweld y dylai hyn fod yn llawer llai nag a ragwelwyd yn 
flaenorol. 
 
Cwsmeriaid a Chefnogaeth Addysg – Rhagwelir y bydd y gwasanaeth yn 
cyflawni tanwariant o £134 mil. Mae'r symudiad o £23 mil ers y mis diwethaf 
yn bennaf yn ymwneud â rhyddhau nifer o gronfeydd wrth gefn ac amseriad 
diwygiedig rhai buddsoddiadau TGCh. Argymhellir bod cronfa wrth gefn 
newydd yn cael ei sefydlu i ysgogi'r Newid Sianel a phrosiect Mynediad i 
Gwsmeriaid sy'n ffurfio rhan o'r rhaglen foderneiddio. Bydd hyn yn hanfodol 
wrth gyflawni'r arbedion effeithlonrwydd sy'n ofynnol yn y dyfodol. Bydd y 
gwariant yn rhychwantu’r ddwy flynedd ariannol nesaf a bydd yn lleihau'r 
gofyniad cyllid gan adnoddau corfforaethol. Argymhellir ymhellach fod 
tanwariant y gwasanaeth yn cael ei roi yn y gronfa wrth gefn yma. 
 
Gwella Ysgolion a Chynhwysiad - Mae'r gwasanaeth ar hyn o bryd yn 
dangos tanwariant o £121 mil, sy’n ymwneud â chyllideb Addysg y tu allan i’r 
Sir. Mae'r rhagamcan hwn yn dal i gynnwys nifer o dybiaethau mewn 
perthynas â lefelau disgwyliedig o daliadau a godir gan awdurdodau lleol a 

Tudalen 583



  

darparwyr lleol eraill. Argymhellir bod y tanwariant hefyd yn cael ei roi yn y 
Gronfa Addysg y Tu Allan i’r Sir a sefydlwyd yn gynharach yn y flwyddyn ac 
sy’n caniatáu rhyddhau cyllideb effeithlonrwydd £200 mil yn 2014/15. Mae 
cynyddu’r gronfa yn darparu opsiynau pellach wrth ystyried arbedion cyllideb 
ar gyfer 2015/16. 
 
Ysgolion – ddiwedd mis Ionawr y rhagamcan ar gyfer balansau ysgolion yw 
£3.131 miliwn, sy’n symudiad positif o £261 mil ar falansau a ddygwyd ymlaen 
o 2012/13 (£2.870 miliwn). Mae’r symudiad o'r adroddiad diwethaf yn 
ymwneud yn bennaf â’r oedi yn y buddsoddiad arfaethedig mewn isadeiledd 
ysgol a fydd yn awr yn cael ei wneud yn ystod gwyliau'r Pasg. Mae'r 
rhagamcanion ar hyn o bryd yn cynnwys amcangyfrifon ar gyfer buddsoddiad 
TGCh na ellir eu cyflwyno tan fis Ebrill. Mae'r cyngor yn cefnogi dwy ysgol 
sydd mewn anhawster ariannol ac mae disgwyl i’r gefnogaeth barhau yn 2014-
15. Mae gan y ddwy ysgol benaethiaid dros dro sy'n ymwneud yn llawn â'r 
broses adfer ac maent yn gweithio gyda'r Awdurdod Lleol yn unol â hynny. 
Mae trydedd ysgol, Ysgol Uwchradd y Rhyl, a oedd wedi bod mewn 
trafferthion ariannol, erbyn hyn wedi cyflawni ei thargedau yn ei chynllun adfer 
a bydd yn cael ei rhedeg i warged a gynlluniwyd erbyn diwedd 2014-15. Mae 
hyn yn gyflawniad sylweddol. Mae’r Gyllideb nad yw’n ddirprwyedig yn 
rhagweld tanwariant o £116 mil ar hyn o bryd.   
 
Cyllidebau corfforaethol – Amcangyfrifir bod costau cyfalaf y llifogydd ym 
mis Rhagfyr yn oddeutu £330 mil (adfer amddiffynfeydd y môr), gyda chostau 
refeniw o £150 mil. Mae cais wedi ei wneud i Lywodraeth Cymru am gymorth 
ariannol (nid yw’r cais wedi ei asesu ar hyn o bryd). Mae'n debygol y bydd 
rhywfaint o arian yn cael ei ddarparu ar gyfer y gwaith cyfalaf i wella 
amddiffynfeydd môr, ond nid yw hyn wedi ei gadarnhau eto. Y dybiaeth yn 
erbyn y gyllideb Gorfforaethol yw £350 mil – byddai balansau cyffredinol yn 
cael eu defnyddio i ariannu unrhyw gost ychwanegol.    
 
Mae'r gyllideb Gorfforaethol yn cynnwys dyraniad cyllideb y blaenoriaethau o 
£140 mil ar gyfer moderneiddio. Amcangyfrifir y bydd £80 mil o'r gyllideb hon 
yn cael ei ddefnyddio yn 2013/14.  
 
Mae £116 mil o ddyledion wedi eu dileu mewn perthynas â Threth y Cyngor a 
£19 mil o ddyledion wedi eu dileu mewn perthynas â dyledwyr eraill. 
Amcangyfrif y bydd dyledion Treth y Cyngor a ddilëir yn oddeutu £220 mil 
erbyn diwedd y flwyddyn sy'n gyson â'r llynedd. Mae dileu dyledion yn 
ymwneud â dyledion anadferadwy sydd, mewn rhai achosion, yn dyddio'n ôl 
nifer o flynyddoedd. 
 
Rhagwelir y bydd cronfeydd arian wrth gefn y Cynllun Corfforaethol yn £13.4 
miliwn erbyn diwedd y flwyddyn, gan adael gofyniad ariannol o oddeutu £8.6 
miliwn ar gyfer cyflwyno'r Cynllun.  
 
Cyfrif Refeniw Tai Mae’r sefyllfa refeniw ddiweddaraf yn rhagdybio cynnydd o 
£105k mewn balansau ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn sy’n welliant o £207k o’i 
gymharu â’r rhagdybiaeth yn y gyllideb. Mae'r rhagolwg Cynllun Cyfalaf Tai 
wedi newid i £7.6 miliwn ers y mis diwethaf. Dylai'r Safon Ansawdd Tai Cymru 

Tudalen 584



  

gael ei gyflawni ym mis Ebrill 2014. Amcangyfrifir mai £50 mil fydd gwerth 
dyledion a ddilëir yn ystod y flwyddyn gyfredol sydd yn unol â'r rhagolwg yn y 
gyllideb.  
 
Mae crynodeb o’r Cynllun Cyfalaf wedi ei amgáu fel Atodiad 3. Mae’r cynllun 
cyfalaf cyffredinol a gymeradwywyd yn £37.6 miliwn ac mae’r gwariant hyd at 
ddiwedd mis Ionawr yn £22.4 miliwn. Mae gwariant cyfalaf yn ystod chwarter 
olaf y flwyddyn wastad yn sylweddol uwch na'r chwarter blaenorol ac felly yw’r 
sefyllfa eto eleni. Hefyd wedi’i gynnwys yn Atodiad 3 mae'r gwariant 
arfaethedig o £7.1 miliwn ar y Cynllun Corfforaethol.   
 
Mae Atodiad 4 yn rhoi diweddariad o’r prif brosiectau a gynhwyswyd yn y 
Cynllun Cyfalaf. 

  
7. Beth yw prif gasgliadau’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb a 

gwblhawyd ar gyfer y penderfyniad?   
 
Cyflwynwyd crynodeb o’r Asesiad o Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb i’r Cyngor ym mis 
Chwefror 2013.   

 
8. Pa ymgynghori a gwblhawyd gydag Archwilio ac eraill?  
 

Cynhaliwyd ymarferion herio gwasanaeth gyda phob pennaeth gwasanaeth ac 
roedd cynrychiolwyr o’r pwyllgor archwilio a’r Cabinet yn rhan o’r ymarferion 
hyn. Cynhaliwyd gweithdai Cynllun Corfforaethol a’r Gyllideb gydag aelodau 
ym mis Medi, Tachwedd a Rhagfyr. Cymeradwyodd y Cyngor y cynllun cyfalaf 
yn dilyn craffu gan y Grŵp Buddsoddi Strategol ac wedi i’r cabinet ei argymell.  
 

9. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Cyllid  
 

Mae’n bwysig bod gwasanaethau yn parhau i reoli cyllidebau’n ddoeth a bod 
unrhyw arian dros ben yn ystod y flwyddyn yn cael ei ystyried yng nghyd-
destun sefyllfa ariannol y tymor canolig, yn enwedig oherwydd cyfraddau 
gostyngiadau cyllidebau sydd eu hangen yn y ddwy flynedd nesaf.   
  
Ar ddiwedd mis Ionawr, roedd cyfanswm benthyciadau’r cyngor yn £132.454 
miliwn ar raddfa gyfartalog o 5.79%. Roedd balansau buddsoddi yn £27.1 
miliwn ar gyfradd gyfartalog o 0.80%.    
 

 
10. Beth yw’r risgiau ac oes yna unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’w lleihau? 

 
 Dyma’r cyfnod ariannol mwyaf heriol y mae'r cyngor wedi'i wynebu a bydd 

methu â chyflawni’r strategaeth gyllidol y cytunwyd arni yn rhoi pwysau 
ychwanegol ar wasanaethau yn ystod y flwyddyn ariannol gyfredol a thros y 
blynyddoedd ariannol sydd i ddod. Bydd monitro a rheoli’r gyllideb yn effeithiol 
yn helpu i sicrhau bod y strategaeth ariannol yn cael ei chyflawni. 

  
  

11. Pŵer i wneud y Penderfyniad  

Tudalen 585



  

 
 Mae'n ofynnol i awdurdodau lleol o dan Adran 151 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 

1972 wneud trefniadau ar gyfer gweinyddu eu materion ariannol.   

Tudalen 586



Appendix 1

Net Budget Variance

Forecast as at 31/01/2014 2012/13 Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Net Previous 

Report

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

Business Improvement & Modernisation 1,370 2,242 -465 1,777 2,267 -563 1,704 25 -98 -73 -4.11% -72 

Legal & Democratic Services 1,513 2,082 -555 1,527 2,136 -629 1,507 54 -74 -20 -1.31% -20 

Finance & Assets 7,058 14,116 -7,379 6,737 14,648 -7,926 6,722 532 -547 -15 -0.22% 0

Highways & Environmental Services 20,893 37,152 -17,300 19,852 34,255 -14,308 19,947 -2,897 2,992 95 0.48% 96

Planning & Public Protection 2,621 4,247 -1,706 2,541 4,390 -1,866 2,524 143 -160 -17 -0.67% -23 

Adult & Business Services 31,865 47,565 -14,053 33,512 47,868 -14,475 33,393 303 -422 -119 -0.36% -355 

Children & Family Services 8,913 9,402 -623 8,779 9,405 -1,096 8,309 3 -473 -470 -5.35% -410 

Housing & Community Development 2,103 3,347 -1,468 1,879 3,199 -1,624 1,575 -148 -156 -304 -16.18% -306 

Communication, Marketing & Leisure 5,224 11,828 -5,884 5,944 12,005 -6,064 5,549 177 -180 -3 -0.05% 0

Strategic HR 901 1,287 -368 919 1,569 -650 919 282 -282 0 0.00% 0

ICT/Business Transformation 1,935 2,663 -707 1,956 2,725 -769 1,956 62 -62 0 0.00% 0

Customers & Education Support 1,983 2,511 -505 2,006 2,399 -527 1,872 -112 -22 -134 -6.68% -111 

School Improvement & Inclusion 4,444 11,847 -6,978 4,869 12,045 -7,297 4,748 198 -319 -121 -2.49% 0

Total Services 90,823 150,289 -57,991 92,298 148,911 -57,794 90,725 -1,378 197 -1,181 -1.28% -1,201 

Corporate 5,997 43,483 -28,970 14,513 43,673 -28,970 14,703 190 0 190 1.31% 250

Transfers to Corporate Plan Reserve 1,700 3,100 0 3,100 3,100 0 3,100 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Precepts & Levies 4,569 4,593 0 4,593 4,593 0 4,593 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Capital Financing 12,656 13,230 0 13,230 13,230 0 13,230 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Total Corporate 24,922 64,406 -28,970 35,436 64,596 -28,970 35,626 190 0 190 0.54% 250

Council Services & Corporate Budget 115,745 214,695 -86,961 127,734 213,507 -86,764 126,351 -1,188 197 -991 -0.78% -951 

Schools & Non-delegated School Budgets 61,643 72,979 -9,140 63,839 73,467 -10,005 63,462 488 -865 -377 -0.59% -109 

Total Council Budget 177,388 287,674 -96,101 191,573 286,974 -96,769 189,813 -700 -668 -1,368 -0.71% -1,060 

Housing Revenue Account -71 12,772 -12,670 102 12,624 -12,729 -105 -148 -59 -207 -210

VarianceBudget 2013/14 Projected Outturn

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2013/14

T
udalen 587



T
udalen 588

M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



Update to 31/01/2014

Ref Action

General Status Saving Total

£'000 £'000
A2 Reduce Contingency for balances and impact of Recession Achieved 300

A3 Convert Essential Car Users to Casual Achieved 200

A10 Modernising the Council In progress 200

A7 Costs of Democracy Achieved 17

717

Support Services

C6 ICT Printer Rationalisation Project Achieved 25

C7 Finance & Assets Achieved 100

Energy - Reduced Consumption Achieved 100

Capital Financing Budget Achieved 100

325

Service Challenges

Communication, Marketing & Leisure
Da5 Remove leisure subsidy by increasing income In progress 70

Dk1 Modernise Library Service Provision Achieved 77

147

Environmental Services

Db2 Renegotiate recyclate and disposal contracts Achieved 225

Db5 Regional Waste Procurement budget Achieved 81

Db6 Succession Planning Achieved 15

Db10 Service Redesign (Street Cleansing) Achieved 138

Various Minor reductions in expenditure within Env Servs Replacement 15

Db15 Free School Meals - increase take-up Achieved 5

Db15a Reduced Subsidy of School Meal Service Achieved 50

Db16 Countryside - AONB Achieved -20

Db17 Stores Achieved -45

Db18 Recycling Parks Achieved 100

Highways & Infrastructure
EC17 Traffic & Road Safety Achieved 50

EC18 Highway Maintenance DLO Achieved 150

764

 Planning and Public Protection

EC21 Review Pest Control Achieved 10

EC23 Review of Building Control Achieved 20

EC26 Review of Pollution Control Achieved 20

EC29 Review of Management Achieved 40

90

Adult Social Services
Df1 Cefndy Healthcare - reduced subsidy Achieved 46

Older People
Df5 Externalise elements of Home Care Achieved 15

Df8 Impact of investment in reablement Achieved 75

Df9 Residential Care - Impact of Extra Care Achieved 155

Mental Health
Df11 Management Changes Achieved 19

Df12 Partnership Efficiency Savings Achieved 26

Appendix 2 Medium Term Financial Plan Update 2013/14

Tudalen 589



Status Saving Total

£,000 £'000

Adult Social Services (con'd)

Physical Disability & Impairment
Df13 ISIL Scheme Achieved 12

Df14 Reablement Intervention Achieved 26

Df15 Telecare Achieved 20

Other Adult Services
Df17 Systems Thinking and Vacancy Control Achieved 80

474

Children & Family Services

Staffing
Dj4 Social Workers - reduction in caseload Achieved 108

Dj7 Review of Bryn Y Wal Residential Service Achieved 109

Dj8 Reduction in Independent (external) Placement Provision Achieved 63

Pressures
Dj18 In-house Fostering Achieved -35

Dj20 Legislative changes Achieved -28

217

Housing & Community Development

Various Small savings in Housing Achieved 1

Dc1 Review of Regeneration Achieved 10

Db18 Regeneration Service Redesign Achieved 23

34

REGIONAL WORKING/COLLABORATION

ENW1 Education Regional Board Achieved 55

ENW2 Social Care Regional Board Achieved 35

ENW2 Social Care Regional Board Deferred 65

155

OUTSOURCING

G2 Bodelwyddan Castle Achieved 28

G3 Clwyd Leisure Achieved 50

G4 ECTARC Achieved 5

83

Other Cultural/Heritage activities

H2 Ruthin Craft Centre Achieved 20

H3 Llangollen Pavilion Achieved 25

H4 Heritage facilities In progress 10

55

Total Savings 2013/14 3,061

Summary: £'000 %
Savings Achieved/Replaced or Pressures Confirmed 2,716 89
Savings In Progress/Being Reviewed 280 9
Savings Not Achieved or Deferred and not replaced 65 2

Total 3,061

Tudalen 590



Denbighshire County Council  - Capital Plan 2013/14 - 2016/17 APPENDIX  3
Position to end January 2014

General Capital Plan  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Capital Expenditure

Total Estimated Payments  - General 29,865 10,686 312 0 0

Total Estimated Payments  - Corporate Plan 7,139 2,246

Contingency 694 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Total 37,698 13,932 1,312 1,000 1,000

Capital Financing

1 External Funding 25,354 12,274 4,777 4,571 4,571

2 Receipts and Reserves 4,239 1,375    

3 Prudential Borrowing  8,105 4,149 250

5 Unallocated Funding 0 (3,866) (3,715) (3,571) (3,571)

Total Capital Financing 37,698 13,932 1,312 1,000 1,000

Corporate Plan  
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Approved Capital Expenditure Cefndy Healthcare Investment 30 470

included in above plan Highways Maintenance 2,808

Bridges 1,300

Schools Capitalised Maintenance 0 190

Rhyl High School 1,475 0

Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy - Dee Valley West Review 1,242 86 0

Bodnant Community School 224 0

Ysgol Glan Clwyd 30 1,500

Faith Based Secondary 30

Estimated Capital Expenditure 11,575 32,636 34,818 23,041

Total Estimated Payments 7,139 13,821 32,636 34,818 23,041

Approved Capital Funding External Funding 1,418 1,600 0

included in above plan Receipts and Reserves 1,613 646

Prudential Borrowing 4,108

Estimated Capital Funding External Funding 4,036 15,904 10,305 12,094

Receipts and Reserves 1,854 7,546 6,808 3,692

Prudential Borrowing 5,685 9,186 17,705 7,255

Total Estimated Funding 7,139 13,821 32,636 34,818 23,041

T
udalen 591



T
udalen 592

M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



Appendix 4    - Major Capital Projects Update 

Rhyl Harbour Development 

Total Budget £10.459m 

Expenditure to date £  9.021m 

Estimated remaining spend in 2013/14 £  0.838m 

Future Years estimated spend £  0.600m 

Funding WG £2.545m; WEFO £6.162m; Sustrans £0.700m: 
RWE £155k and DCC £0.897m 

Comments Quayside Units, Public Square & Extended Quay Wall 

Officers have met with Conwy County Borough Council 

planners in respect of the compliance with the planning 

permission granted, and a workable solution has been 

agreed. 

Programme 

Snagging works in respect of the bridge and enabling 

works contracts are now being undertaken.  

The quayside building construction is ahead of schedule. 

The building is secure with external walls, roof system, 

windows, shutters and doors fitted. The external 

cladding is now being fitted. 

The quayside building is programmed to complete by 

the first week of May 2014. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £3.127m 

 

Rhyl Going Forward 

Total Budget £12.097m 

Expenditure to date £ 8.083m 

Estimated remaining spend in 13/14 £ 4.014m 

Future Years estimated spend £Nil 

Funding WG £12.097m    

Comments 
 

 

  

Hotel Development 

Design and Planning 

The developers have submitted a revised design for 

consideration by the Council, and it is now anticipated 

this will lead to a planning submission by mid March 14. 

 

Development Agreement and Tenant Agreement 

Legal terms are all agreed between the relevant parties, 

and it is hoped the agreement will be signed as soon as 

possible. 

 

Tenant Terms have now been successfully negotiated 

and agreed for a 64 bedroom hotel with a restaurant at 

ground level for use by hotel guests and members of the 

public.  

 

Demolition and Construction 

25/26 West Parade is now vested into the Council’s 

Tudalen 593



ownership. Following party wall consent, the demolition 

of the building can now commence.  

 

West Rhyl Housing Improvement Project 

Overall, the projects status remains very good, although 

there has been some delay with the target dates for 

plans for refurbishment of properties in the various 

blocks. 

 

Phase 2 demolition of Aquarium Street/John 

Street/Hope Place and Abbey Street commenced on 20
th

 

January 2014 and will continue until March 2014. 

Excellent progress continues with the re-settlement 

programme with 99 households in the rented sector 

being re-located with no negative issues as at the end of 

December 2013. There are 49 households to re-locate 

this financial year and a further 6 scheduled for next 

year. In respect of privately owned properties, 28 

properties will be vested in the Council by the end of 

March 2014. 

 

Green Space 

The public consultation exercise has been completed.  

Attendance was disappointing despite efforts to raise 

awareness. 

 

The outcome of the consultation process suggests that 

the public wish to see a pleasant green area in which 

families can enjoy peaceful recreation which is safe, 

secure and well maintained.  

 

A concept design has been developed but remains 

subject to further possible amendment following 

comments from stakeholders. Detailed design should be 

completed by mid March 2014. 

 

Overall, the project remains a challenge to deliver within 

the funding timeframe, but is being monitored and well 

managed. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £7.181m   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 594



Welsh Medium Area School – Ysgol Maes Hyfryd Site 

Total Budget £1.413m 

Expenditure to date £1.135m 

Estimated remaining spend in 13/14 £0.194m 

Future Years estimated spend £0.084m 

Funding WG £1.2m; DCC £0.213m 

Comments The Welsh Government has provided £1.2m funding as 

part of the wider 21
st
 Century Schools Programme. This 

will enable the new school to move to a single site 

following a significant extension and refurbishment to 

the current Ysgol Maes Hyfryd site. 

 

Full project completion and handover is expected by 14
th

 

February 2014. Some minor works will be carried out by 

the contractor during half term and the Easter break.  

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £1.101m 

 

North Denbighshire Welsh Medium Provision 

Total Budget £4.749m 

Expenditure to date £2.179m 

Estimated remaining spend in 13/14 £0.784m 

Future Years estimated spend £1.786m 

Funding  WG £3.061m, DCC £1.688m 

Comments The Welsh Government has provided funding as part of 

the transitional 21
st
 century Schools Programme. Along 

with the council’s funding contribution, this allows for 

improvement works to be undertaken at three Welsh 

Medium schools. 

 

Work at Ysgol Dewi Sant has been completed. 

 

Ysgol y Llys, Prestatyn 

This project will deliver an extended, remodelled and 

refurbished school for 420 pupils.  

 

The new nine classroom extension works are 

progressing with external cladding now going up. Work 

to re-roof the east wing of the existing building is 

underway and should be complete by mid February. 

The overall completion date remains August 2014. 

  

Ysgol Twm o’r Nant, Denbigh 

This project will deliver additional school hall 

accommodation and teaching areas.  

 

Recent work includes the completion of external works 

and completion of block work to the main hall. 

The excavation and foundations for the front extension 

have also been completed. 

Tudalen 595



The overall completion date remains at May 2014. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £2.201m 

 

Ysgol Dyffryn Ial 

Total Budget £0.911m 

Expenditure to date £0.790m 

Estimated remaining spend in 13/14 £0.102m 

Future Years estimated spend £0.019m 

Funding DCC £0.898m; Other Contributions £0.013m  

Comments The new building is now in operation and has been 

occupied by the school since mid October.  

 

The official opening ceremony took place on Wednesday 

18
th

 December 13. 

 

Negotiations are now underway with the Church of 

Wales on the future of the two old school sites in 

Llandegla and Bryneglwys. 

 

It is hoped at this stage that the project will come in at 

5% under budget. 

Forecast In Year Expenditure 13/14 £0.638m 

 

Tudalen 596



Appendix 5 Transfers to/from Reserves 2013/14 Budget

Reserve Transferred To Transferred From Reason Cabinet Report

Reserves Reserves Date

£'000 £'000

EDRMS 40 * Note 1 Contribution to the planned investment in a corporate modernisation project Jan-14

Modernising Social Care 300 Timing of investments in preventative measures spans three  financial years Jan-14

Strategic Investment Reserve (ECH) 355

Additional grant funding provided late in the year. Reduces the potential funding 

requirement for Extra Care Housing in the Corporate Plan Jan-14

Education Out of County Placements 251

Facilitates a £200k Budget Saving in 2014/15 by building a contingecny to cover any in-

year rise in placements Dec-13

Children with Disabilities 250 To develop leisure and other activities for children with disabitities Sep-13

Transport Reserves -106 Dampen pressures on School Transport Budget Aug-13

School Formula Transition Reserve -775 Dampen impact on schools detrimentally affected by funding formula changes May-13

Total 1,196                 -881 

Net Total Reansferred to Reserves 315                    

Note 1 - the January Cabinet report requested £72k be transferred to the EDRMS Reserve. It is likely however that the 

required transfer will be £40k which is noted above. 

T
udalen 597



T
udalen 598

M
ae tudalen hw

n yn fw
riadol w

ag



 
Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cabinet  

 
 
 

Cyfarfod 
 
 
 
 

Eitem (disgrifiad / teitl) Pwrpas yr adroddiad A oes 
angen 

penderfy
niad gan 

y 
Cabinet 
(oes/nac 
oes) 

Awdur – Aelod 
arweiniol a swyddog 

cyswllt 

25 Mawrth 
 
 

1 Diweddariad Adroddiad Cyllid Rhoi diweddariad i’r Cabinet 
ynglŷn â sefyllfa ariannol 
bresennol y Cyngor. 
 
 

I’w 
gadarnha
u 

Cyng Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Paul 
McGrady 

 2 Ymateb i ymgynghoriad ar 
Gynlluniau Tref ac Ardal – 
ardaloedd y Rhyl, Dinbych a 
Rhuddlan 

Cymeradwyo’r Cynlluniau 
Tref ac Ardal ar gyfer 
ardaloedd y Rhyl, Dinbych a 
Rhuddlan 
 
 
 
 

Oes Cyng Hugh Evans / 
Rebecca Maxwell / 
Peter McHugh / Tom 
Booty 

 3 Achos busnes caffael ar gyfer 
tair sir 

I ystyried yr achos busnes Oes Cyng Julian 
Thompson Hill / Paul 
McGrady 

 4 Prosiect Gwella Tai Gorllewin y 
Rhyl 

Dyluniad manwl o fan agored 
gwyrdd i’w ystyried 

I’w 
gadarnha

Cyng Hugh Evans / 
Carol L Evans 

E
item

 A
genda 14

T
udalen 599



 
Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cabinet  

Cyfarfod 
 
 
 
 

Eitem (disgrifiad / teitl) Pwrpas yr adroddiad A oes 
angen 

penderfy
niad gan 

y 
Cabinet 
(oes/nac 
oes) 

Awdur – Aelod 
arweiniol a swyddog 

cyswllt 

u 

 5 Cynnig i gau Ysgol Llanbedr Ystyried gwrthwynebiadau a 
dderbyniwyd ac a ddylid 
cymeradwyo gweithredu'r 
cynnig 

Oes Cyng Eryl Williams / 
Jackie Whalley 

 6 Argymhellion y Grŵp Buddsoddi 
Strategol 

Ystyried y cynigion cyfalaf a 
adolygwyd gan y Grŵp 
Buddsoddi Strategol i'w 
cynnwys yn y Cynllun 
Cyfalaf. 

Oes Cyng Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Paul 
McGrady 

 7 Polisi Enwi Strydoedd Ystyried diwygiadau i'r Polisi 
Enwi Strydoedd presennol a 
mabwysiadu'r Polisi newydd. 

Oes Cyng Huw Jones / 
Hywyn Williams 

 8 Cynllun Cyfalaf Cael argymhellion y Grŵp 
Buddsoddi Strategol ac i 
gymeradwyo gwariant y 
cynllun cyfalaf bwriedig ar 
gyfer 2014/15 

Oes Cyng Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Paul 
McGrady 

 9 Eitemau o’r Pwyllgorau 
Archwilio 

Rhoi ystyriaeth i unrhyw 
faterion a dynnwyd i sylw’r 
Cabinet gan y pwyllgorau 

I’w 
gadarnha
u 

Cydlynydd Archwilio  

T
udalen 600



 
Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cabinet  

Cyfarfod 
 
 
 
 

Eitem (disgrifiad / teitl) Pwrpas yr adroddiad A oes 
angen 

penderfy
niad gan 

y 
Cabinet 
(oes/nac 
oes) 

Awdur – Aelod 
arweiniol a swyddog 

cyswllt 

Archwilio. 

      

29 Ebrill 1 Diweddariad ynglŷn â’r 
Adroddiad Ariannol 

Rhoi diweddariad i’r Cabinet 
ynglŷn â sefyllfa ariannol 
bresennol y Cyngor. 

I’w 
gadarnha
u 

Cyng Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Paul 
McGrady 

 2 Eitemau o’r Pwyllgorau 
Archwilio 

Rhoi ystyriaeth i unrhyw 
faterion a dynnwyd i sylw’r 
Cabinet gan y pwyllgorau 
Archwilio. 

I’w 
gadarnha
u 

Cydlynydd Archwilio  

      

27 Mai 1 Diweddariad ynglŷn â’r 
Adroddiad Ariannol 

Rhoi diweddariad i’r Cabinet 
ynglŷn â sefyllfa ariannol 
bresennol y Cyngor. 

I’w 
gadarnha
u 

Cyng Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Paul 
McGrady 

 2 Eitemau o’r Pwyllgorau 
Archwilio 

Rhoi ystyriaeth i unrhyw 
faterion a dynnwyd i sylw’r 
Cabinet gan y pwyllgorau 
Archwilio. 

I’w 
gadarnha
u 

Cydlynydd Archwilio  

      

Meh 1 Diweddariad ynglŷn â’r 
Adroddiad Ariannol 

Rhoi diweddariad i’r Cabinet 
ynglŷn â sefyllfa ariannol 
bresennol y Cyngor. 

I’w 
gadarnha
u 

Cyng Julian 
Thompson-Hill / Paul 
McGrady 

T
udalen 601



 
Rhaglen Gwaith i’r Dyfodol y Cabinet  

Cyfarfod 
 
 
 
 

Eitem (disgrifiad / teitl) Pwrpas yr adroddiad A oes 
angen 

penderfy
niad gan 

y 
Cabinet 
(oes/nac 
oes) 

Awdur – Aelod 
arweiniol a swyddog 

cyswllt 

 2 Adroddiad Cynnydd Chwarterol 
y Cynllun Corfforaethol: 
Chwarter 3 2013/14 

Monitro cynnydd y Cyngor o 
ran cyflawni'r Cynllun 
Corfforaethol 2012 -17 

I’w 
gadarnha
u 

Cyng. Barbara Smith / 
Tony Ward 

 3 Eitemau o’r Pwyllgorau 
Archwilio 

Rhoi ystyriaeth i unrhyw 
faterion a dynnwyd i sylw’r 
Cabinet gan y pwyllgorau 
Archwilio. 

I’w 
gadarnha
u 

Cydlynydd Archwilio  

      

 

Nodyn ar gyfer swyddogion – Terfynau Amser Adroddiadau Cabinet 
 

Cyfarfod Dyddiad Cau Cyfarfod Dyddiad Cau Cyfarfod Dyddiad Cau 

      

Mawrth 11 Mawrth Ebrill 10 Ebrill Mai 12 Mai 
 
Diweddarwyd 07/02/14 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

 
 

T
udalen 602


	Rhaglen
	4 COFNODION
	5 CYNNIG I GAU YSGOL CLOCAENOG AC YSGOL CYFFYLLIOG AC I SEFYDLU YSGOL ARDAL NEWYDD
	YSGOL CYFFYLLIOG & CLOCAENOG - APPENDIX 1
	YSGOL CYFFYLLIOG & CLOCAENOG - APPENDIX 2
	YSGOL CYFFYLLIOG & CLOCAENOG - APPENDIX 2A
	YSGOL CYFFYLLIOG & CLOCAENOG - APPENDIX 2B
	YSGOL CLOCAENOG & CYFFYLLIOG - APPENDIX 2C
	YSGOL CYFFYLLIOG & CLOCAENOG - APPENDIX 3

	6 CYMERADWYO ACHOS BUSNES AR GYFER PROSIECT YSGOL NEWYDD  Y RHYL
	RHYL NEW SCHOOL - APPENDIX 1
	RHYL NEW SCHOOL - APPENDIX 2

	7 MODEL CENEDLAETHOL O WEITHIO™N RHANBARTHOL I WELLA YSGOLION
	NATIONAL MODEL SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT - APPENDIX

	8 ADNEWYDDU CYFLEUSTERAU ARFORDIROL YN Y RHYL A PHRESTATYN
	COASTAL FACILITIES - APPENDIX W

	9 CYNLLUNIAU TREF AC ARDAL
	TOWN & AREA PLANS - APPENDIX 1
	TOWN & AREA PLANS - APPENDIX 2
	TOWN & AREA PLANS - APPENDIX 3
	TOWN & AREA PLANS - APPENDIX 4

	10 GADAEL TY NANT, PRESTATYN
	VACATION OF TY NANT - APPENDIX 1
	VACATION OF TY NANT - APPENDIX 2
	VACATION OF TY NANT - APPENDIX 3

	11 CYMERADWYO CYNIGYDD O DDEWIS, A'R AIL GYTUNDEB RHWNG AWDURDODAU GOGLEDD CYMRU AR Y PROSIECT GWASTRAFF GWEDDILLIOL (PTGGGC)
	NWRWTP - APPENDIX 1
	NWRWTP - APPENDIX 2
	NWRWTP - APPENDIX 3
	NWRWTP - APPENDIX 4
	NWRWTP - APPENDIX 5
	NWRWTP - APPENDIX 6 - PART 2
	NWRWTP - APPENDIX 7 - PART 2
	NWRWTP - APPENDIX 8 - PART 2
	NWRWTP - APPENDIX 9

	12 LLEOLIAD RHENT CYFRIF REFENIW TAI, CYLLIDEBAU REFENIW A CHYFALAF 2014/15
	HRA REPORT - APPENDIX 1
	HRA REPORT - APPENDIX 2
	HRA REPORT - APPENDIX 3

	13 ADRODDIAD CYLLID
	FINANCE REPORT - APPENDIX 1
	FINANCE REPORT - APPENDIX 2
	FINANCE REPORT - APPENDIX 3
	FINANCE REPORT - APPENDIX 4
	FINANCE REPORT - APPENDIX 5

	14 BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y CABINET

